HSINZI&
CHONG

Hsin Chong Group Holdings Limited
MESRBERBERAT

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability 74 & & s ik sz 2 B R A7)

Stock Code B&fn {X5%: 00404.HK



=
R ST

The Leader in Construction, Property and
Related Services.
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e creating value for our customers and delivering
quality services at world-class standard; and
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e delivering value to our shareholders through
maximising market share and returns.
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Heart and Harmony
2028 MEHXD

We strive for perfection through service from the heart and
work harmoniously together by complementing and
supplementing each other.
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Can-do attitude and Commitment to quality
LEET BEAG

We uphold a can-do attitude with integrity and are committed
to delivering quality that will earn the respect and loyalty of

our stakeholders.
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I am pleased to report the annual report and consolidated financial statements of
Hsin Chong Group Holdings Limited (the “Company” or “Hsin Chong"), and its
subsidiaries, (collectively, the “Group”), for the year ended 31 December 2016 to
our shareholders.

Business review

2016 was a year full of challenges and opportunities for the Group. While
continuing our active role in our core construction business and diversifying our
property portfolio in the Mainland of China, we have strived to expand our core
business to new geographical areas.

Construction business

During the year, the Group’s core construction business continued to be
profitable, recording a gross profit of HK$436 million, which represents an
increase of 4% over 2015. Gross profit margin increased by 0.3 percentage point
to 4.7%. As of 31 December 2016, the outstanding workload (excluding NSC)
exceeded HK$12 billion. Among all the contracts on hand, 64% were from the
Government, Hong Kong Housing Authority and the MTR Corporation. Another
36% were mostly from prestigious private property developers such as Kerry
Properties, New World Development, Swire Properties, Lai Sun Development, and
Macau gaming operators like Venetian, Galaxy Entertainment Group and SJM
Holdings.

With a full range of services and a committed and professional workforce, we
continue to lay cornerstones for Hong Kong's development. Two notable projects
awarded last year are worth special mentioning. The first is the main contract
works for a splendid hotel development in Hong Kong Ocean Park. The second
is a design and construction contract for the Hong Kong Police Force’s Kowloon
East Regional Headquarters in Kai Tak.
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2016 also saw the successful diversification and globalization of the Company's
core construction business. Riding on our strong construction expertise and
experience in Hong Kong and Macau, our Construction Management Services
(the “CMS") division was awarded a landmark project to build the 500-metre
tall (133 storeys) Thai Boon Roong Twin Tower World Trade Center in Cambodia.
When completed, this will be the tallest building in Cambodia as well as one of
the world’s highest buildings.

The new projects in Hong Kong and Cambodia demonstrate our commitment
and determination to be a leader in the construction industry by broadening
our business portfolio both at home and through selective expansion overseas.
Indeed, we are pleased with the opportunity to contribute to the development
of Cambodia’s urban landscape, enhancing our reputation and foundation in
overseas markets as part of our sustainable growth into the future.

Property and Facility Management and ISP Business
The Property and Facility Management and ISP Business was disposed of in
November 2016 and the Group recorded a gain of HK$185.9 million.

Property development

Over the course of the last few years, Hsin Chong has pursued a strategic
transformation in its property business portfolio. Currently, the Group has two
completed properties in the first tier cities of Beijing and Guangzhou and four
properties under development in Foshan, Tai'an, Tianjin and Tieling.

During the period, this division delivered a revenue of HK$64 million and a gross
profit of HK$20 million.

Fund raising activities

A USD150 million 3-year senior notes due in January 2019 with 8.5% p.a. was
released successfully in the international debt capital markets. The coupon is lower
than the notes previously issued in 2015 and shows certain market interest and
confidence in our 3-year USD notes.

International Real Estate and Hospitality Business

During 2016, the International Property and Hospitality Development Division
was established to allow Hsin Chong to pursue global real estate investment and
hospitality opportunities. As a start, in early 2017, we signed a Memorandum of
Understanding with an international developer to offer project management and
construction management services for a large scale, 1,800 acre integrated seaside
resort development in Ngwe Saung in Myanmar.
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Over the year, we have also focused our efforts in exploring opportunities to
provide quality aged care services for senior citizens. After starting the joint
venture company, HC Sapphire Senior Living Ltd (HCSSL) with our Australian
partner, a project to build senior care homes with fee earning management
services in La Viva Foshan is under preparation. In the shorter term, HCSSL is
studying collaboration opportunities to operate other aged care centres in the
Mainland of China and Southeast Asia. Separately, Hsin Chong is in advanced
stages of discussions with renowned French spa operator, Vichy Group, to form a
joint venture to build a high-end spa resort in La Viva Foshan which would include
a luxury hotel and a rehabilitation center.

With its global network and development expertise, Hsin Chong's International
Property and Hospitality Development Division aims to grasp further international
real estate development opportunities, widening the Group's income base as well
as diversifying the business sectors.

Belt and Road Initiative

Taking part in the construction of major infrastructure projects and witnessing the
benefits they bring to communities, opportunities arising from the PRC's “Belt
and Road” strategy have been recognized and pursued internationally.

This year, Hsin Chong marked an important milestone in its “Belt & Road”
pursuits when it signed a Memorandum of Understanding with the Republic of
Chad. We are pleased to be invited to support Chad in its first five-year plan to
build infrastructure and public facilities under the country’s Vision 2030. This will
herald the Group’s maiden foray into the African market.

Thus, while our current significant projects are flourishing in Hong Kong
and Macau, our construction management business continues to expand its
geographical reach to cover African and Asia Pacific counties. We are confident
that based on our renowned history and solid experience in constructing large
scale integrated projects in Hong Kong and Macau, our experienced team and our
unwavering commitment to excellence, we will deliver high quality products and
services to clients outside Hong Kong.

Dividend

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company did not declare the
payment of an interim dividend for the six months ended 30 June 2016 (2015:
1.0 HK cent per share). To focus our resources on strengthening and developing
our businesses, the Board has not recommended the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil). Accordingly, total dividend for
the financial year of 2016 is nil (2015: 1.0 HK cent per share).

Outlook

The Group has established strategies and plans to achieve continued growth
through strengthening its financial position, focusing resources on the core
construction business and developing complementary new businesses to diversify
its business portfolio.
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We will continue to strengthen our strong market position and business base in
Hong Kong and support the Government in its infrastructure and building plans.
We will also continue our tradition of excellence by serving high end private sector
customers to meet their high expectation levels. We have been a major player in
Macau’s infrastructural development, and look forward to participating further
with the award of more new contracts.

In order to strengthen our financial position to meet the maturity of short term
debts, the Group is taking an overall review of its People’s Republic of China
("PRC") property portfolio and will adopt a cautious approach towards the
development of these properties in 2017. With the multiple sources of generating
funds and proceeds from proposed disposal of assets, we believe that the Group's
gearing and profitability would be improved by the end of 2017.

Appreciation

| believe that unity is the key to success. Our performance is reliant on the quality
and commitment of our people across the Group and business lines, from our
senior management to our site staff.

On behalf of the board, | would like to express my heartfelt thanks to the
management and staff of our company for their valuable dedication and tireless
efforts over the last year. Thanks to their enthusiasm, loyalty and contributions
to the Group, Hsin Chong is able to live out our commitment and values to our
clients, our customers and most importantly, our community.

I would also like to express my heartfelt gratitude to our shareholders, business
partners, clients and suppliers for their continuing support and confidence in us.

LIN Zhuo Yan
Non-executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 April 2017

\ Ei&t‘:

B EEZ B R IR BB TIZUAL & EFFER - S5
B e AR MR TR E] o AT AR FIER =
WELS RBRSHHLERTR, ERREZSHE -
PERABRPIERRGERNOTE2EE  WRRES
EREZHENME—FSEE -

RIBRBAIN T BN AT L BIHR R HIMETS  NEEE
B ARKMNE ([FE])MEEAETEREHLAS
RMBFEOTDER2017FERZENE -ENZEEERRK
BREXBHEEENNEG BAIRSAEENEERGEMN
MR BFEE N BR2017F FRFESEE

B
BERERY) - RAANIG T HEE £ T8 £5H0
HEREBBAE—HRETZBLANEN -

AAERRESFS MARNEEENIE TNBE—FEH
MEERRR RS 7 RRROEH - ERBULHAE
BHRIEHRA  ROBERKELER B ERDNER
HEF HBERMBRMOAGREE-.

AATROLBEHECIR  EBEH TP R EHE AR
KBRS FMFAEE-

FFRITEE
HEE

&% 2017F4818H

HEREEBRAMRAT 2016F W

5



- -
EEENmE DN
A. Review of Business and Prospects A. EBOBERNR
1. Financial Overview 1. HEDOE
Change
)]

(In HK$ million) 2016 2015 Amount %
(B%BET) 2016 20156 Ea %
Revenue [ & 9,823 12,585 -2,762 22%
Revenue - excluding NSC* & - FBENSC 9,379 9,623 244 -3%
Gross profit £ ] 456 435 21 +5%
Gross profit margin EfE 4.6% 3.5% 1.1%
Gross profit margin EFE-FEENSC

(excluding NSC¥) 4.9% 4.5% 0.4%
Fair value (loss)/gain on RAMELREZ

investment properties (BR) k& (884) 191 -1,075 —563%
Provision for impairment of BEPMERERE

properties under development (1,924) - -1,924 N/A
Gains on bargain purchase BRK RS - 2,321 -2,321 -100%
EBITDA EBITDA (4,040) 2,706 -6,746 -249%
Net finance costs L1272 3::3 ] (142) (116) -26 -22%
(Loss)/profit attributable to shareholders Bx¥ME{L (&5i8),/i@F (2,734) 2,446 5,180 -212%
Basic (loss)/earnings per share BREX (FE) /27

(in HK cents) () (48.9) 46.4 -953 -205%
Interim dividend (in HK cent) FREABE S (A REL) - 1.0 -10 -100%
Final dividend (in HK cent) REIBE S (ERW) - - N/A N iE A N/A i

Note: et
# Nominated subcontractors’ work of Macau Galaxy Resort Phase 2 project # [NSC | —RPIERIMIREEE AT — B8 B /938 5E

("NSC”) DHBETIE

J HSIN CHONG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016



Business Overview

Hsin Chong is an integrated construction and property group in
the region, which pursues a strategic transformation in its business
portfolio by establishing a dynamic property company. While we await
the property business to deliver significant revenue contribution to the
Group, our Group's construction business remained profitable.

E £ 7]

EREANGRBEREEE MEEERZ
Y-HAERENNYERR SREREE
BHEAMREEL - ERMIMTWEEE BN
SEHEREAM G BB 2RI NEBZZEE
XGRS HEAFEE

Change
] )]
(In HK$ million) 2016 2015 Amount %
(B%EET) 2016 20155 E %
Revenue =3
Construction — excluding NSC EiE—TBRENSC 9,314 9,552 -238 2%
Property development and investment MEZRRIEZE 65 71 -6 -8%
9,379 9,623 244 -3%
Construction — NSC B#E—NSC 444 2,962 -2,518 -85%
9,823 12,585 -2,762 -22%
Discontinued operation (Note 1) BRI EER () 2,163 2,434 =271 -11%
11,986 15,019 -3,033 -20%
Gross profit EX]]
Construction i 436 419 17 +4%
Property development and investment MEZRREZE 20 16 4 +25%
456 435 21 +5%
Discontinued operation (Note 1) BREEE SR (M) 149 186 -37 -20%
605 621 -16 -3%
EBITDA EBITDA
Construction BiE 315 275 40 +15%
Property development and MERRRKIZE (HED)
investment (Note 2) (4,238) 2,592 -6,830 -264%
Corporate overhead and others CELEBRALEM (117) (161) 44 +27%
(4,040) 2,706 -6,746 -249%
Discontinued operation (Note 1) BARIMEEER (i) 48 84 -36 -43%
(3,992) 2,790 -6,782 -243%
Gross profit margin (excluding NSC) EF%E (FEHENSC)
Construction fecy 4.7% 4.4%
Property development and investment MEEBERKRE 30.8% 22.5%

HEREEBRAMRAT 2016F W L
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Notes:

2.1

The discontinued operation represented interiors and special projects ("“ISP”)
and property and facility management business upon the disposal of Synergis
Holdings Limited, which ceased to be a subsidiary on 21 November 2016.

In 2016, this division included HK$1,924 million, being provision for
impairment of properties under development; and HK$884 million, being fair
value loss on investment properties. In 2015, this division included HK$2,321
million, being gains on bargain purchase arising in connection with the
property acquisition.

Construction Business Review

During the year of 2016, the Construction Division received total
new orders of HK$5.8 billion (2015: HK$14.9 billion), including
the following major contracts:

(i) a main contract for the Hong Kong Ocean Park Marriott
Hotel;

(i) a design and construction contract for Kowloon East
Regional Headquarters and Operational Base cum Ngau
Tau Kok Divisional Police Station at 105 Concorde Road,
Kai Tak;

(i) a HVAC installation to the main contract for Proposed
Development at Tung Chung Town Lot No.2 and No.11;

(iv) an asset enhancement works at Chung Fu Plaza (North);

(v) an alteration and addition works at Kowloon Investment
Building at 8 Bute Street; and

(vi) a main contract for Eu Yan Sang — Chinese Medicine Plant
Development at Yuen Long Industrial Estate.

Following the strong establishment of the construction business
in Hong Kong and Macau, our Construction Management
Services (the “CMS") division received a CMS contract to build a
twin tower of 500 metres (133 storeys) developed by Thai Boon
Roong Group and Sun Kian Ip Group. Upon completion, the
tower will be the tallest building in Cambodia as well as one of
the world’s tallest buildings.
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2.2

As of 31 December 2016, the outstanding workload (excluding
NSC) exceeded HK$12 billion. Among all the contracts on
hand, 64% were from the public sector and MTR Corporation,
including:

()  Government & Public Institutions: M+ Museum Main
Works Contract at West Kowloon Cultural District, Design
& Construction of Kowloon East Regional Headquarters
and Operational Base cum Ngau Tau Kok Divisional Police
Station, Civil Engineering and Development Department
and Drainage Services Department;

(i) Hong Kong Housing Authority: a public housing project in
Tung Chung; and

(i) MTR Corporation: Elevated Road along LOHAS Park Road
and the Pedestrian Footbridge FB1, Express Rail Link
contract for West Kowloon Terminus Station South and
Shatin to Central Link contract for Sung Wong Toi and To
Kwa Wan Stations and Tunnels.

Another 36% were from private clients, most of which are
prestigious property developers like Kerry Properties, New World
Development, Swire Properties, Lai Sun Development and Macau
gaming operators like Venetian, Galaxy Entertainment Group
and SJH Holdings.

During the year, the Group’s core Construction business,
excluding discontinued operation, recorded revenue (excluding
NSC) of HK$9.3 billion (2015: HK$9.6 billion) and gross profit
of HK$436 million (2015: HK$419 million). The revenue for
the year decreased by 2% comparing to that of the last year
and gross profit increased by 4%, our gross margin was then
improved by 0.3 percentage point to 4.7%.

Property and Facility Management and ISP Business

Property and Facility Management and ISP Business was disposed
of in November 2016 and the Group recorded a gain of
HK$185.9 million.

M+ Museum

M+ iR LS MR

2.2
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2.3 Property Development and Investment Business Review
Property Portfolio
Completed properties for investment and/or sale

()

New Times Plaza, Beijing

(i)

The property is a commercial development, comprising
15 storeys aboveground and 3 storeys of basement. The
shopping mall and car park occupy 9 floors of the property
(from 3rd floor of the basement to 6th floor) with a total
gross floor area ("GFA") of 55,798 square metres (“sgm”).
The apartments are located on the 7th to 15th floors of
the property. As at 31 December 2016, approximately
12,115 sgm of GFA are available for sale or lease.

As of 31 December 2016, the occupancy rate of the
shopping mall was more than 90%. The contribution has
been improving since acquisition. The New Times Plaza has
generated stable rental and related income for the year.

Xiyang Computer City, Commercial Portion of Tian

Cheng Ming Yuan
The property, which consists of a commercial property and

a car park with around 325 carparking spaces, has a total
GFA of 26,306 sgm.

Property under development

(M)

La Viva, Foshan

La Viva, Foshan project is located at the “Ninety-Ninth Hill”
of Dushugang Village, Lubao Town, Sanshui District of
Foshan City. The project is 40 kilometers east of downtown
Guangzhou and close to Hong Kong and Macau in
the south. With the established three-dimensional
transportation network in the surrounding area, it only
takes 2 hours to get to the main cities in the Pearl River
Delta Economic Zone, including Guangzhou, Shenzhen,
Zhuhai, Dongguan, Zhongshan, Yunfu, Zhaogqing,
Huizhou, Qingyuan and Jiangmen. The project enjoys
access to a road network consisting of three east-west
corridors and two north-south corridors, among which
the existing Golf Avenue, Danan First-Grade Highway
and Luhu Road can directly lead to the downtown
area of Sanshui District, Guangzhou, Zhaoging, and
Qingyuan. The entrance of the Pearl River Delta Outer-Ring
Expressway to be constructed at Lubao Town will be only 5
minutes’ drive to the project. Moreover, the planning route
of the Tangxi Highway to be constructed will pass by the
project in the east, with a distance of only 1 minute’s drive.
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Foshan Hsin Chong Town is a mixed-use development
project, consisting of a total GFA of approximately
1,900,000 sgm. The project is positioned as the first
recreation and shopping resort town in Guangzhou-
Foshan area. The project plans 13 featured business
forms including hot springs recreation city, golf course,
recreational vehicle camping ground and outlets shopping
mall.

Phase 1 comprises the existing retail outlets of
approximately 95,300 sgm, which has been completed.
As at 31 December 2016, approximately 50% of the
total indoor leasable areas of the outlet mall have been
committed for use, comprising (i) approximately 27,000
sqm of leasable floor area in 119 units signed up with
tenants representing a total of 113 brands; and (ii)
approximately 11,000 sgm in 9 units to be operated by
the Group as stores and two food & beverage outlets.
After the year end date, the Group is also in discussion
with potential tenants for a further 43 brands for 72 units
having a total indoor leasable floor area of about 15,000
sgm.

The residential development program adopts the “new
suburbs life concept” advocating for high-quality life. A
total GFA of approximately 204,400 sgm of low density
residential units and serviced apartments are planned
for phase 1, of which about 24,000 sgm of low density
residential property have been substantially completed. The
residential sales will be launched after the phased opening
of the retail outlets and granting of sales permit.
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(i)  Commercial development project, Tai'an

The project is located in the new town in the south of
Tai'an city, Shandong Province — Tai'an New and High
Tech Industrial Development Zone. It is 70 kilometers from
Ji'nan city in its north, approximately 12 kilometers from
Dongyue Street in the downtown area of Tai'an city, and
14 kilometers from the trailhead of Mountain Taishan. The
project includes commercial properties with a total GFA of
274,977 sqm. The project aims at building an integrated
commercial complex featured with tourism and leisure
elements by integrating traditional business and tourism
industries. Based on this comprehensive development
framework, the tourism and leisure-oriented project will
develop a variety of ancillary facilities integrating various
functions such as recreation, leisure, sports, catering, and
retail, etc. As at the date of this report, a total of 34 blocks
of two-storey commercial retail outlet mall with a total GFA
of 100,360 sgm are under construction.

Commercial development Project — Tai'an

BRERXBREHRE
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(iij) Commercial development project, Tianjin

The Tianjin project is located at the start-up area of the
Central Business District of Binhai New Area — the starting
point of Xiangluo Bay Business District, an advantageous
geographical location. Around the project are mainly
office buildings and the development of the project will
offer a comprehensive life centre with leisure, catering,
commerce, and recreation for residents from surrounding
communities. The project, which consists of a parcel of
land, for which development approval has been submitted
for commercial and office use, has a GFA of approximately
328,100 sqm.

(iv) La Viva, Tieling

La Viva, Tieling is located alongside the south bank
of Fanhe River in the Tieling New Town, 8 kilometres
north to the old town and about 30 kilometres south
to the downtown of Shenyang city. The project includes
numerous facilities such as retail, entertainment, tourist
attractions, hotel, international school, water park,
residential, office buildings and conference and exhibition
facilities. It covers an area of 180 hectares and a total GFA
of approximately 3 million sgm, of which approximately
2 million sgm are for residential use and approximately 1
million sgm are for commercial and other use.

Residential development Phase 1 comprises 16 high-
rise residential towers and 22 low-rise residential towers,
and vyields a total saleable area of 225,000 sgm. Upon
completion, there will be a total of 2,100 units available for
sale, with sizes ranging from 40 to 213 sgm per unit and
the average size per unit is 107 sgm. The residential sales
will be tied with the phased opening of the retail outlets
and water park.

Phase 1 of the commercial development of La Viva
comprise of exhibition centre, banquet hall, club house,
outlet mall and a water park, one of the key components
of the unparalleled La Viva experience. It will be the
first round-the-year water recreation facility in PRC's
northeast region. The total GFA of the Phase 1 commercial
development approximates to 185,900 sqm.

Looking Forward

Construction business

Hsin Chong has been executing a strategic transformation in
broadening the business portfolio with the additions of selective
expansion overseas. It is management’s primary objective to
build a construction group with diversified business divisions,
with the skills and business portfolio that will deliver superior
financial returns to our shareholders (the “Shareholders”) in the
long term.
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We have strengthened and will continue to strengthen our
strong market position and business base in Hong Kong,
participating in the Government's infrastructure and building
plans. We will also continue our tradition of excellence by serving
high-end private sector customers to meet their high expectation
levels. We have been a major player in Macau's infrastructural
development, and look forward to participating further with the
award of more new contracts.

With Hong Kong's total residential supply, including public
housing, home ownership scheme and private housing, targeted
at 460,000 units of which 280,000 units are from public housing
in the coming 10 years starting from 2016, there is good
potential for the Company to secure business volume of the
Construction Industry in the coming decade. In addition to the
successful expansion of our CMS team to Henggin and overseas
like Saipan and Cambodia, Hsin Chong, as a long established
market player with proven track records in the construction
industry, will further solidify our brand and presence in Hong
Kong and create value for our Shareholders and stakeholders.

PRC Property Business

In order to strengthen our financial position to meet the maturity
of short term debts, the Group is taking an overall review of
its PRC property portfolio and will adopt a cautious approach
towards the development of these properties in 2017.

For the developed properties in Beijing and Guangzhou, the
Group is actively seeking buyers and had successfully entered
into memorandums of understanding (“MOU") to dispose
these properties, we have confidence in selling the properties at
a reasonable good price and contribute considerable cashflow
to the Group after repayment of debts which were secured by
these properties.
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For La Viva, Foshan, we expect that the outlet mall will be soft
launched before 30 June 2017 and in full operation in the third
quarter of 2017. The residential sales will be launched after the
mall's opening. As at the date of this report, 24,000 sqgm of low
density residential property has been substantially completed.
With the promotion of “Destocking policy” by the National
Government which releases the restrictions on housing loan,
reduces the transaction levies and encourages the turnover of
provident funds, it is expected that our Foshan property will
benefit from this National Government policy.

For properties under development in Tieling and Tianjin, the
Group is actively looking for reputable property developers
to jointly develop and/or potential investors to invest in these
projects.

With the multiple sources of generating funds and proceeds
from the proposed disposal of assets, we believe that the
Group's gearing and profitability would be improved by the end
of 2017.

International Infrastructure Business — Belt and Road
Initiative

The execution of a MOU between the Republic of Chad and
Hsin Chong on 18 July 2016 extended the parties’ collaboration
horizon. Led by Dr. Haroun Kabadi, the President of the National
Assembly of the Republic of Chad, a delegation comprising 7
Chad ministers visited Hong Kong in early November 2016.
Meetings were held with Chad and potential financing banks
on Chad's infrastructure projects. Following a visit to our
project sites, including our Anderson Road Public Housing
project and a reconnaissance of our M+ Museum project, Dr.
Kabadi is profoundly impressed with Hsin Chong's capability
in undertaking various construction projects. Dr. Kabadi again
invited Hsin Chong to support Chad in carrying out projects
within the framework of its first Five-Year Plan under its
2030 Vision. The Company is concurrently considering other
infrastructure projects, such as, solar energy, railway and mining
projects, in other African countries, e.g. Morocco, Republic of
Céte d'lvoire, Central African Republic, Democratic Republic of
Congo, Zimbabwe, Rwanda and Ghana.
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Along the 21st-century Maritime Silk Road, Hsin Chong
continues its focus on exploring infrastructure projects in Asia
Pacific countries such as, India, Bangladesh, Malaysia, Philippines,
Nepal and Singapore. At the beginning of 2017, the Group
signed a MOU with a developer in Myanmar to provide project
management and construction management services for a 1,800
acre large-scale integrated resort project.

Along the Silk Road Economic Belt, Hsin Chong also focuses on
potential infrastructure projects in Central and Eastern European
countries such as: Hungary and the Republic of Czech.

Hsin Chong continues to perform its role as a Super-Connector
under the Belt and Road Initiative and expands its construction
expertise by integrating and creating a regional economic co-
operation framework.
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International Real Estate and Hospitality Business

In 2016, Hsin Chong has established the International Property
and Hospitality Development Division to seek real estate
investment and hospitality opportunities internationally. Over
the period, investment opportunities in Asia and Europe have
been explored. A MOU has been signed with H&Co. Real
Estate Holdings Ltd, an international developer in Myanmar,
with a view that Hsin Chong will provide developer services for
a 1,800 acre integrated seaside resort development in Ngwe
Saung. Phase | will include 3 hotels with over 300 rooms each,
500 residential units, retail facilities, cultural center, waterpark,
championship golf course, tennis club, organic farm and other
infrastructure developments. The Division is looking to offer
similar services and there is ongoing dialogue with investors
for developments in Macau, South East Asia and the United
Kingdom.

Following the formation of the joint venture company, HC
Sapphire Senior Living Ltd, with our Australian partner, Hsin
Chong is now working towards developing senior care homes
in La Viva Foshan as a showcase as well as providing fee earning
management services for similar developments in first tier cities
in the Mainland of China and South East Asia.

The Group is also in advanced stages of discussion in the
formation of another joint venture with Vichy Group, the
renowned French spa operator in co-developing on the La Viva
Foshan site. In anticipation of the potential synergy with our
senior care premises on site, a high end spa resort hotel as well
as a rehabilitation and spa centre with resort and senior living are
now being planned.

Going forward, Hsin Chong's International Property and
Hospitality Development Division will continue to leverage its
global network and development expertise to identify real
estate development opportunities overseas, broadening the
Group's income base and diversifying its business sectors and
geographical coverage.
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Funding Highlights

Issuance of convertible preference shares (“CPS”)

On 8 January 2015 and 8 July 2015, the Company issued a total of
5,654,772,134 CPS as the consideration (excluding the holdback
amount) to acquire the entire issued share capital of Goleman
International Limited. On 15 January 2016, the Company further
issued 259,263,039 CPS to settle the holdback amount which was
pending the determination of the aggregate amount of fee, fine or
penalty (if any) charged under the relevant land grant contract or
applicable PRC laws at any time after completion but on or before 31
December 2015 in respect of any delay in the development of certain
acquired parcels of land. On 26 April 2016, the Company lastly issued
295,833,333 CPS to settle the remaining holdback amount after the
issue of land use rights certificates in respect of the remaining land.

3-year senior notes

In January 2016, the Company issued a 3-year senior notes with
principal amounts of USD150 million due on 22 January 2019
bearing interest of 8.5% per annum which is payable semi-annually
(the “Senior Notes 2019”). The Senior Notes 2019 achieved a lower
coupon than the Senior Notes 2018 which was issued in May 2015
and reflects certain market interests in our 3-year USD notes. The
Senior Notes 2019 are also listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Redemption by holders of 6.0% Convertible Bonds due 2017
On 25 October 2016, the Company received notices for the exercise
of the put option in respect of USD94,700,000 in principal amount
of the Convertible Bonds (the “Redemption Principal”), representing
approximately 97.33% in principal amount of the Convertible Bonds
outstanding as at that date. In November 2016, the Company settled
the Redemption Principal together with interest accrued.
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Financial Position

The Group monitors its liquidity requirements and arranges refinancing
of the Group’s borrowings when appropriate. As of 31 December
2016, the total debts were HK$11.6 billion of which HK$4.5 billion
were from entrusted loans and HK$1.3 billion were from other
loans, HK$3.4 billion were from senior notes of which HK$1.1 billion
were issued in January 2016. Convertible bonds remaining balance
was HK$45 million after redemption in November 2016. Total bank
borrowings were at HK$2.4 billion.

As of 31 December 2016, cash and bank deposits stood at
HK$1,038.6 million.

Net gearing, representing net debt over tangible net assets (net assets
less intangible assets and goodwill) as at 31 December 2016, was
102% (2015: 54%).

Based on the current financial position and debt maturity profile,
the primary objective of our prudent financial management is to try
to lengthen the debt maturity and reduce the cost of finance. The
overreliance on any single financing platform in the past would not
meet the forthcoming requirements. Our financial professionals would
take a proactive role to improve the Group's cashflow through the
expansion of funding sources.

Funding Cost

Interest on the Group's bank borrowings is mainly charged at a spread
to Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate or People’s Bank of China
rate. Interest on other borrowings including entrusted loans for PRC
properties and other loans is on fixed rate term.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2016, the Group pledged its investment properties
with carrying amount of HK$7,310 million (2015: HK$8,951 million),
property, plant and equipment and leasehold land with carrying
amount of HK$2,265 million (2015: HK$506 million), properties
under development with carrying amount of HK$8,575 million (2015:
HK$12,245 million), stocks of properties with carrying amount of
HK$527 million (2015: HK$581 million), other receivable with carrying
amount of HK$512 million (2015: nil) and bank balances with carrying
amount of HK$627 million (2015: HK$127 million), and its equity
interest in certain subsidiaries, as collaterals to various banks, financial
institutions and other third parties to secure its borrowings.
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7. Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates and Related

Hedges

The Group operates in Hong Kong, Macau, the PRC, Saipan and
Cambodia with most of the transactions denominated and settled
in local currencies. Foreign exchange risk exposure arising from the
Group's operation in Macau and the PRC is monitored by proper
synchronisation of receipts and payments in different operating
currencies. For the Group's companies with USD as functional
currency, it is not expected that there are any significant movements
in the USD/HKD exchange rate as the HKD is pegged to the USD. As
at 31 December 2016, the Group did not use any derivative financial
instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange risk (2015: nil).

8. Commitments
As at 31 December 2016, the Group had capital commitments
in respect of contracted but not provided for capital expenditures
on properties under development and other capital investment
amounting to HK$2,939 million (2015: HK$1,805 million).

9. Contingent Liabilities
At 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group is subject to various
claims on liquidated damages of certain construction contracts during
the normal course of business. The Directors are of the opinion that
the Group has applied extension of time to mitigate the liquidated
damages and any resulting liability would not materially affect the
financial position of the Group.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries or
Affiliated Companies

On 21 November 2016, the Group completed the disposal of its entire interest in
its subsidiary, Synergis Holdings Limited, at a consideration of HK$279,010,790,
resulting in a gain on disposal of HK$185,915,000.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 23
November 2016.

Human Capital Investment

Advocating “Social Responsibility, Contribution to the Community”
The Group strives to be an organization that cares about the society and its staff.
In recognition of its achievements in community services and being a caring
employer, the Group has won a variety of awards in 2016: the 10 Years Plus
Caring Company Logo in 2016 by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service,
the CSR Advocate Mark by the Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency (2016),
the Family-Friendly Employer by the Family Council (2015-2016), the Corporate
Citizenship Logo (2016) and Happy Company Logo 2016 by the Hong Kong
Productivity Council.

To build corporate culture that embraces corporate social responsibility, the Group
encourages staff to join a wide range of company organised charitable activities
and voluntary services actively, including Walk for Millions, Blood Donation,
Construction Industry Sports cum Charity Fun Day, Dress Casual Day and Love
Teeth Day.
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Human Resources

Staff Training and Organization Development

As at 31 December 2016, the Group employed a total of 2,553 full time staff,
which included staff in construction, property development, international business
and related services. They are employed in Hong Kong, Macau and the Mainland
of China.

The Group regards its staff as one of its key assets and invests significant effort
and attention to the selection, training and personal development of its staff. The
Group has been awarded as “Manpower Developer” in the “ERB Manpower
Developer Award Scheme” launched by the Employees Retraining Board since
2013, recognizing its continued efforts and outstanding performance in the
development of its workforce.

The Group is committed to developing its staff through the provision of training
and development opportunities, which aims to enhance staff productivity and
facilitate them to build their career path. The “Hsin Chong Training Centre”
established in 2014 provides comprehensive training programmes including
various talks and workshops delivered by senior management staff and professors
from different universities. Over 20 training courses were conducted providing
over 2,700 attendance hours of training for more than 1,000 participants during
the year ended 31 December 2016. Moreover, the Group’s training programmes
are designed and tailo-made to increase the knowledge of its staff and fill
skill gaps identified during performance appraisals. Furthermore, the Learning
Management System (LMS) provides staff with a user-friendly approach for online
enrollment and course revision. Its overall training objectives are to enhance the
personal productivity of its staff with and to identify their individual interests
in order to prepare them for future roles and enable them to make greater
contributions to the success of the Group’s business. Besides formal training
programmes, the Group also provides comprehensive and relevant training and
self-learning opportunities to staff such as on-the-job training and educational
sponsorships.

Regular in-house seminars and site visits have been organised for all levels of staff,
to increase their technical and corporate knowledge. These trainees acquired
essential business knowledge and management skills through well planned job
rotations within the Group's core business units and corporate offices.
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For the building and construction business, developing young
engineers and supervisory staff is an essential requirement. Trainings
have been provided to both university and non-university graduated
young engineers. In addition, the Group also recruits secondary school
graduates who are interested in the construction field as apprentice
by providing them on-the-job training and releasing them from work
to take designated courses for completing their apprenticeship.
Besides, the Group has joined the Contractor Cooperative Training
Scheme since March 2014 for recruiting and providing training to
staff of various trades in the industry. A graduate trainee club was
formed a few years ago to encourage fellowship among all our
trainees. Social and training programmes were organised regularly to
improve staff commitment and sense of belonging within the Group.
Senior management staff and seasoned construction managerial
staff were also trained to take up the role of mentors to further help
the development of the young engineers and site supervisory staff
respectively. A number of in-house staff development programmes
for various staff disciplines have also been established. The Group has
been making effort and contribution to train youngsters to become
technically competent and professionally qualified in the construction
industry.

Every year, a number of recruitment talks for fresh graduated
engineers are held in various universities in Hong Kong for attracting
new blood to the construction industry. Promotion and salary reviews
will be conducted every year to ensure alignment with industry norms
and retain good performers. These are important tools to retain talent
in Hong Kong's expanding construction business with limitations in
the talent pool of suitable, experienced and qualified people.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

The Group provides competitive remuneration packages that are
determined with reference to prevailing salary levels in the market and
individual performance. Discretionary bonuses are granted to staff
based on their individual performance as well as the Group’s business
performance. The Group has a wide range of insurance coverage,
including medical insurance, life insurance and travel insurance, to
staff.

Besides offering competitive remuneration packages, the Group is
committed to promoting family-friendly employment policies and
practices, including the implementation of Five Day Work Week and
a series of family-friendly activities, such as Autumn BBQ cum Family
Fun Day, to create a pro-family culture and environment. From June
2014, the Group was awarded the “Family-Friendly Employers Award”
by the Family Council. In 2016, the Group was honoured with the
"Distinguished Family-Friendly Employer Award” in recognition of its
remarkable performance in promoting and supporting a culture of
loving families in the community. Moreover, the “Social Club” led by
the management was established in 2014 to enhance team spirits and
encourage staff from different departments to join company events
together. It provides staff the opportunities to “play hard” and pursue
hobbies after work which advocates the proper attitude of healthy
lifestyles.
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Non-executive Chairman and Non-executive Director
Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan
(aged 48)

Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan (“Mr. Lin”), was appointed as a Non-
executive Director with effect from 23 May 2015, and has been
further appointed as the Non-executive Chairman since 19
June 2015.

Mr. Lin is the Honorary Chairman of World Association of Small
and Medium Enterprises (5 A/ NEZHE ), Permanent
Standing Vice President of China Foreign Trade Council (R
HINE HIBES) , and President of Outlets Branch of China
General Chamber of Commerce (N B 2Bt & © B IF K
Hr5 &) . Mr. Lin has over 20 years of experience in large
enterprise operation and management as well as investment
and operation of mega-sized projects.

He received the Commandery of Sant'Agata Honour and was
awarded the “Prize of Most Innovative Real Estate Figures in
China for the Year”(F BEFE & AR NbEAMALE),
“Prize for Business Leaders in China for the Year” ( & Bl 4F £ 75
S 4BHA4E) and “Prize for Qutstanding Brand Innovators in
China” (H B dn R BT S AR ER) .
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Ir Joseph CHOI Kin Hung
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Executive Director and Co-Chief Executive Officer

Ir Joseph CHOI Kin Hung
BSc, RPE, CEng, FHKIE, FHKIHT, MICE

(aged 69)

Ir Joseph CHOI Kin Hung (“Ir Choi”) is an Executive Director
and the Co-Chief Executive Officer of the Company. He is a
member of each of the Executive Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee. He is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Ir Choi is a fellow and the President of the Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers (“HKIE"). He is an ex-officio member
of the Administration Board of HKIE for session 2016/2017,
the vice chairman of Council of China’s Foreign Trade of the
China Council for the Promotion of International Trade, and
a fellow and a council member of the Hong Kong Institution
of Highways and Transportation. He has also been a member
of the Infrastructure Development Advisory Committee of the
Hong Kong Trade Development Council since 1 April 2016.

Ir Choi is a member of the Institution of Civil Engineers
of the UK, a chartered engineer of the UK, a registered
professional engineer of Hong Kong and a member of the
Departmental Advisory Committee for the Department of Civil
and Environmental Engineering of the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University.

Ir Choi joined the Group in August 2009 as Assistant Managing
Director and has been subsequently promoted to his current
positions. He has over 45 years of multi-dimensional and
multi-functional experience in construction industry across
contracting and client organisations in Hong Kong, Chinese
Mainland, Taiwan, Macau and overseas. Before joining the
Group, he was the general manager of the Kowloon-Canton
Railway Corporation and MTR Corporation Limited, responsible
for the design and construction of various new railway lines.

Ir Choi graduated from the University of Aston in Birmingham,
United Kingdom with a degree of Bachelor of Science in Civil
Engineering.
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Executive Director and Chief Strategic Officer
Mr. ZHOU Wei
(aged 63)

Mr. ZHOU Wei (“Mr. Zhou") is an Executive Director and Chief
Strategic Officer of the Company. He is also a member of the
Executive Committee and a director of a number of subsidiaries
of the Company.

Mr. Zhou obtained a degree from the School of Public Finance
of Liaoning Institute of Finance & Economics (currently known
as "Dongbei University of Finance & Economics”) in 1978.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Zhou served as a Senior
Accountant in the Government Offices Administration of the
State Council ( B # A E 15 EIR D) . Mr. Zhou previously
occupied senior management positions in various private
companies and was responsible for overseeing financial and
overall management of those companies.

Mr. Zhou possesses extensive experience in finance and
corporate management in Hong Kong and China with
prominent business relationships.
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Mr. Wilfred WU Shek Chun
BREEZEE
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Executive Director and Chief Risk Officer

Mr. Wilfred WU Shek Chun
MBA, MA, FCPA

(aged 47)

Mr. Wilfred WU Shek Chun (“Mr. Wu") is an Executive Director
and the Chief Risk Officer of the Company. He is also a member
of the Executive Committee, Remuneration Committee and
a director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr.
Wu joined the Group in July 2014 as the Associate Director of
Corporate Finance, and was appointed as an Executive Director
in June 2015, responsible for all merger and acquisition projects
from due diligence, negotiation of purchase agreement,
handling regulatory approvals and financial sourcing to the
smooth operation after merger or acquisition of the projects.
Mr. Wu was appointed as the Chief Risk Officer in September
2016, responsible for corporate risk management.

Mr. Wu has more than 20 years of experience in financial
reporting, investment proposal appraisal, financial due
diligence, insolvency, litigation support and forensic accounting
with major corporations and consultancy firms.

Mr. Wu was conferred a Bachelor of Business Administration
and Master of Arts in Comparative and Public History from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong and a Master of Business
Administration from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology. He is a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountant. Mr. Wu also serves as a council
member of the Construction Industry Council and an appeal
board panel member of the Urban Renewal Authority.
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Executive Director

Mr. Eric TODD
BSc, AICPA

(aged 55)

Mr. Eric TODD (“Mr. Todd") joined the Group on 9 March 2017
as an Executive Director of the Company. He is also a member
of the Executive Committee.

Mr. Todd possesses extensive professional experience in
auditing, financial management and investment. Mr. Todd
holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration
from Boston University in the United States. He was a certified
public accountant in the State of California, the United States
from 1989 to 2010.

Mr. Todd started his career with the Hong Kong office of KPMG
(formerly known as KPMG Peat Marwick) and subsequently
joined the Standard Chartered Bank Group. Prior to joining the
Company, he had been a business consultant and also served
as finance director for several companies engaged in the media
and investment industry. Mr. Todd has been appointed as a
non-executive director of Leyou Technologies Holdings Limited
(a company listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), Stock Code: 1089)
since July 2015, an independent non-executive director of Ngai
Shun Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 1246) since July 2016, and as
the chairman and an executive director of Kong Shum Union
Property Management (Holding) Limited (a company listed on
the GEM Board of the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 8181)
since August 2016.

* for identification purposes only
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Mr. YAN lJie
RfRELE

- 28

Non-executive Director
Mr. YAN lJie
(aged 53)

Mr. YAN Jie (“Mr. Yan") has been appointed as a Non-executive
Director since 30 May 2014.

Mr. Yan, joined Tewoo Group Co., Ltd.* (KZ¥EEE
AR AE]) (“Tewoo Group”) (formerly known as Tianjin
Administration Bureau of Materials and Tianjin Material &
Equipment Group Corporation, being a substantial shareholder
of the Company) in October 1983, and held positions in the
finance department, audit department and assets department,
and served as the head of corporate development department
of Tewoo Group.

Mr. Yan has extensive management experience in finance,
audit, investment and strategic planning and has presided
over or participated in a number of domestic and overseas
substantial merger & acquisition and reorganization projects.

Mr. Yan is currently the board chairman of Tianjin Property
Development Co., Ltd. (being a subsidiary of Tewoo Group),
an executive director of Tewoo Investment Co., Limited and
a director of various subsidiaries of Tewoo Group. He is also
a director of Palabora Mining Company Limited (listed in
Johannesburg Stock Exchange, South Africa, and delisted in
2014).

Mr. Yan graduated from Party School of the Central Committee
of CPC with a post-graduate degree majoring in economic
management, and holds professional qualifications of
accountant, senior economist and senior occupation manager.
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Non-executive Director
Mr. CHEN Lei
(aged 33)

Mr. CHEN Lei (“Mr. Chen”) has been appointed as a Non-
executive Director since 23 May 2015.

Mr. Chen joined Tewoo Import and Export Trade Co., Ltd.* (&
EYEEHOZEHERAA]), a subsidiary of Tewoo Group,
in January 2015 as the deputy general manager. Mr. Chen
served as an officer of the Beijing court system and held various
positions such as the deputy department head of the legal
affair department of Tianjin Er-shang Group Co., Ltd.* (K&Z=
[HESEE]CUNCIDE

He has extensive experience in the fields of corporate legal
affair, risk prevention and control. Mr. Chen has been
redesignated as the deputy department head of corporate
development department of Tewoo Group in July 2015.

Mr. Chen obtained a Bachelor degree in Management from
the Beijing University of Chemical Technology (4t 5/t T AE2)
and a Master degree in Law from the Tsinghua University (&
#KE)  He has obtained various professional qualifications
such as legal qualification (Mainland China) and corporate legal
counsel.
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Mr. CHUI Kwong Kau
EXHEE

* for identification purposes only
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Non-executive Director
Mr. CHUI Kwong Kau
(aged 50)

Mr. CHUI Kwong Kau (“Mr. Chui”) has been appointed as
a Non-executive Director since 23 May 2015. He is also a
member of the Audit Committee.

Mr. Chui is a non-executive director of Ngai Shun Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1246) and DeTai New Energy Group
Limited (stock code: 559) respectively, the shares of which
are all listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He
is also an executive director of Hong Kong Life Sciences and
Technologies Group Limited (stock code: 8085), the share of
which is listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Chui was an Executive Director of China Energy
Development Holdings Limited (stock code: 228) from
5 October 2005 to 30 June 2016. Further, he was an
Independent Non-executive Director of Aurum Pacific (China)
Group Limited (stock code: 8148) from 17 March 2010 to 16
March 2016.

He has over 20 years' experience in financial management,
accounting and auditing fields.
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Non-executive Director

Mr. LUI Chun Pong
BA, MACc, LLM, MBA (Executive), FCPA, FCCA, ATIHK, CTA (HK), ACS, ACIS

(aged 48)

Mr. LUI Chun Pong (“Mr. Lui”) has been re-designated from an
Executive Director to a Non-executive Director of the Company
with effect from 1 January 2017. He is also a member of the
Nomination Committee.

He joined the Group in 2010 as Group Financial Controller.
He was further appointed as an Executive Director and Chief
Financial Officer in September 2015. Mr. Lui stepped down
from the role of Chief Financial Officer of the Group with effect
from 1 December 2016.

While working in the Group, Mr. Lui was responsible for
overseeing the Group's finance and accounting operations.
He has over 26 years of experience in corporate accounting,
financing and tax administration in the real estate business
like property development, property investment and property
management, in addition to company secretarial practices of
Hong Kong listed companies. Before joining the Group, Mr. Lui
held senior positions at a number of Hong Kong companies
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Lui obtained a Bachelor degree of Arts from the University
of Hong Kong, a Master degree of Laws from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong, a Master degree of Accountancy
from Charles Sturt University in Australia and an Executive
Master degree of Business Administration from the City
University of Hong Kong. He is a Certified Public Accountant
and a Certified Tax Advisor in Hong Kong, and a Chartered
Certified Accountant and a Chartered Secretary in the United
Kingdom.

Mr. Lui also serves the community through participation in
promoting sports and youth and students’ affairs in Hong
Kong. Mr. Lui was a baseball coach and was appointed as a
team secretary and a deputy delegate leader of Hong Kong
Women's Baseball Team to join the Women’s Baseball World
Cup in 2006 and in 2014 respectively. For the public services
in youth and students’ affairs, Mr. Lui is a leader of various
leadership mentoring programmes in Hong Kong United Youth
Association, Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and Hong Kong Professionals and Senior Executives
Association. Mr. Lui was a director of Hong Kong United Youth
Association in 2014/2015 and is currently a member of the
Hong Kong Student Affairs Sub-committee of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and Budget Proposal 2017-
18 Sub-committee of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.
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Mr. CHENG Sui Sang
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Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. CHENG Sui Sang
MBA, BEc, CPA

(aged 73)

Mr. CHENG Sui Sang (“Mr. Cheng”) has been appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director since 1 January 2014.
He is also the chairmen of both the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee, and a member of the Nomination
Committee.

Mr. Cheng has extensive experience in banking, finance and
investment fields. He is an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Cheng was a director of Cosmopolitan International
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange,
from August 2006 to June 2014 and a director of Chi Cheung
Investment Company, Limited (now known as LT Holdings
Limited), a company listed in the Stock Exchange, from 1997 to
2000.

He has held senior management positions in companies in
Hong Kong and overseas, as well as several companies listed
on the Stock Exchange. He has also been involved in private
consulting working in the PRC and Hong Kong. He holds
a Bachelor's degree in Economics and a Master's degree in
Business Administration.

HSIN CHONG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

BUFRTEF
WIETE

MBA, BEc, CPA

(FBF735%)

BmAE A (8584 ) B20144E1 A1
BREZTABUIENTES KD
AABZEESRTNEES ZEE

IRRBEEGZHKE -

BEANRT SRERERSHERE
ERR -RRATEGIMAEEE -

2% A 7A20065F8 A £2014566 A &
Cosmopolitan International Holdings
Limited (PSR EEEARAT*) (B
MR W) 2EE RR1997F &=
20005F REMFBEEAFR AT (PRI
i) (ABRYFRERERAG)Z
BEEo

RNEE MBINE R RIA R Z Ml
PrETRRIEERSBERA SR R
FRPEREEZ2ELABRR T
FAERBEELEM N TIHERRLE
fize



Independent Non-executive Director
Ms. LEE Jai Ying
(aged 60)

Ms. LEE Jai Ying (“Ms. Lee”) has been appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director since 9 May 2014. She
is also the chairman of the Nomination Committee and a
member of the Remuneration Committee.

Ms. Lee obtained a master's degree of Medicine from lJilin
University. She has over 30 years' experience in corporate
management. She is the chairman of Han Sheng Tang
Herbal Technologies Co., Limited, specialising in research,
manufacturing and modernisation of traditional Chinese
medicine.

She is a Justice of the Peace in Hong Kong and a member of
the 9th to 12th National Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference.

EEHEN
=]

BUFRITESE
FEREXL
(HHF605%)

TR ([Z4Z+])B2014F589
ARREZEEBIUIERNTES - HNA
RELZEBEZERENRFTNEZEES 2K

=
=)

FRIBSEMKRBE SR LB - K

BRB30FLEEERLR -NAELE
BEXERDRESEK  HEEGH N
HEBRBR T

Ms. LEE Jai Ying
ERERL

BEREBKFALRPEARBUATHE
BRENET_EXHEEE®ES-

HEREEBRAMRAT 2016F

33



Independent Non-executive Director BUFBTTEF
Mr. KWOK, Shiu Keung Ernest BPEEE
(aged 81) (HF815%)

Mr. KWOK, Shiu Keung Ernest (“Mr. Kwok”) has been 2B a8%c4 ([25E4|) B2015%F11 A8
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director since 18 18 H iEZ T AB VI IEMITEE B IR
November 2015. He is also a member of the Audit Committee. AZHiZZ 8 &M 8 °

Mr. Kwok studied engineering in Hong Kong and law in the FBAALRBFARELARTIEELR

United Kingdom. He practised engineering construction in B EAEER - A 1980F Al A& S

. Hong Kong before 1980. Thereafter he practiced construction Ti2RZEREAS -HEZEAKE B

g;‘g\gzz B g Ernest law in the United Kingdom, Australia and Hong Kong. Mr. M MEBEZELEZNEAE -BEAS
Kwok is a retired chartered civil engineer, lawyer and arbitrator.  RARAFFF LR TA2EM ~ A0 M RE S -

J HSIN CHONG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016



Independent Non-executive Director
Mr. George YUEN Kam Ho
(aged 73)

Mr. George YUEN Kam Ho (“Mr. Yuen”) has been appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director since 12 July
2016. He is also a member of each of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
respectively.

Mr. Yuen is currently an Independent Non-executive Director
of Easy One Financial Group Limited (formerly known as “PNG
Resources Holdings Limited”), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange and an Independent Non-executive Director of
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited which
was listed on the Stock Exchange before being privatised on 21
December 2010. He was a director of Visteon Corporation, a
company listed on the New York Stock Exchange.

Mr. Yuen is currently a special adviser of China National
Committee for Pacific Economic Cooperation, a Standing
Committee member of the University of Hong Kong
Convocation, a member of the Court of the University of
Hong Kong and a business advisory council member of U.N.
Economic and Social Commission for Asia and the Pacific.

Mr. Yuen graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor’s Degree (Honours) in Economics and Political Science.
Mr. Yuen has attended post-graduate studies in International
Marketing Management at the International Marketing
Institute, Cambridge, Massachusetts, U.S.A. and has completed
the Hong Kong Administrators Course (commissioned by
the Hong Kong Government) in Public Administration and
International Relations at Oxford University, the United
Kingdom, and the International Executive Program in INSEAD,
France respectively. In June 2003, Mr. Yuen was admitted to
the Leadership in Development Program organised by Kennedy
School of Government, Harvard University, U.S.A. In June 2004,
Standford University, California, U.S.A. had also invited Mr.
Yuen to participate in its “Corporate Governance” forum and
in early 2006, the University awarded a fellowship to Mr. Yuen
as a non-profit leader at its Center for Social Innovation.
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Mr. Yuen has been Chief Executive Officer of “The Better
Hong Kong Foundation” for nine years from September 1997.
Prior to his joining “The Better Hong Kong Foundation”, Mr.
Yuen was the Assistant Director and Acting Deputy Director
of the Information Services Department of the Hong Kong
Government. Mr. Yuen played an active role in organising
significant international conferences in Hong Kong and held
multiple public offices, including being a board member of
the East-west Strategic Development Commission. From
2003 to 2007, Mr. Yuen was a member of the Pan-Pearl
River Delta Panel of the Central Policy Unit (“CPU") of the
HKSAR Government. From January 2006 to January 2013,
Mr. Yuen was a member of the Committee of Guangxi
Zhuang Autonomous Region, the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, an adviser of the Institute of Finance
and Trade Economics, Chinese Academy of Social Sciences,
an adviser of Center for Hong Kong and Macao Research,
Shanghai Academy of Social Sciences, China, and an adviser
of Guangzhou Municipal Board for International Investment,
China.

Mr. Yuen is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Directors, a member of the British Institute of Management and
the Institute of Marketing, U.K., and was also commended by
the U.S. President, George W. Bush for his efforts in support of
coalition’s campaign against global terrorism.

HSIN CHONG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

BH1997F9AR RAEEGHEIE S
AREFESD | FTHREEIF - A
[BBRAREHES | Bl REERED
BRFHEEECTERENEERNE
BRIER RUCLEEGSLHESANES
;EETTZEEI =] u}%: IEEE %IE\Z\\
B HPeRHABERREEREES
B B > R2003F £2007F HifE - =5k
& RERBRERTTHRIE B REGR
MK I=AMNREATEEEKE -
FE2006F 1 B E2013F1 A8 mE4E
BAETBRARBUAHE D& EAER
BERREZEEZE -HPETSRIBHRE
BB SEEMFRATER - R LSt
TR R R IO R B E
PN T BRI E R RO B R o

+
£

REERDAEEE ErRE8

HEEE &ﬁlmﬁ¥agi'ﬁg

%m&%lwﬁﬁ%ﬁuﬁﬁﬁii
RRETEMER -



S A\

EEES

Construction Business

Ir Paul LEE Kai Hung (“Ir Lee"), BEng, MASc, PEng, MCSCE, RPE, CEng, FHKIE, MICE,
aged 60, is the Managing Director of each of Hsin Chong Construction Company
Limited (“HCC"), Hsin Chong Construction (Asia) Limited (“HCA") and HCCG
Building and Civil Engineering (Macau) Limited. He is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Ir Lee was appointed as the Deputy Managing
Director of HCC in July 2015 and has been promoted to his current position in
HCC in October 2015.

Ir Lee is responsible for the management of the construction and related
businesses within the Group. Ir Lee joined the Group in 2010 and has more than
37 years of experience in civil engineering and building construction.

Ir Lee is a registered professional engineer. He is also a fellow of The Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers. Prior to joining the Group, he was a senior executive with
a leading Hong Kong contractor.

Mr. Desmond SZE Man Sang (“Mr. Sze"), MHKIE, RPE (CVL), aged 56, is an
Assistant Managing Director since January 2017 of HCC. Mr. Sze is responsible
for part of the building business of the Group within Hong Kong. He joined the
Group in 2015 and has 35 years of experience in the field of civil and building
construction.

Mr. Cyras CHIN Chi Keung (“Mr. Chin"), BSc (Hons), MSc, MHKIE, RPE, aged 58, is a
director of HCC and HCA, and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Chin is responsible for the overall management of the Building Division in
Hong Kong. He joined the Group in 1994 and has over 33 years of experience
in the field of structural design and project management. Mr. Chin is a member
of the Mandatory Provident Fund Industry Schemes Committee and has stepped
down from the post of vice president of the Hong Kong Construction Association.

Mr. James LEE Kok Foo (“Mr. Lee"), BEng, MHKIE, aged 65, is a director of
HCC and HCA, and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lee
is responsible for the business development for the Building Division, including
managing the business development and operation of Design and Build Projects.
He joined the Group in 1981 and has over 42 years of experience in the field of
electrical and mechanical engineering and building construction management.

Mr. Steven John MEREDITH (“Mr. Meredith”), BSc (Eng), C.Eng, MICE, aged 58
is a director of HCC and HCA. Mr. Meredith is a director (Civil Engineering), and
is responsible for the civil engineering business of the Group within Hong Kong.
He joined the Group in 2017 and has 37 years of experience in the field of civil
engineering.

Mr. Alan Clive EVANS (“Mr. Evans”), MA, FRICS, ACIArb, RPS(QS), aged 55, is a
director of HCC and HCA, and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Evans is responsible for overseeing all commercial, legal, insurance and
procurement matters for the whole construction business. He joined the Group in
2011 as Group Commercial Manager and has more than 30 years of property and
construction management experience with major corporations and international
consultants in the UK, Qatar, Macau and Hong Kong.
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Mr. Joseph FUNG Cho Ning (“Mr. Fung"”), BSc (Eng), CEng, RPE, FIMECHE, MCIBSE,
MHKIE, aged 64, is the managing director of Hsin Chong Aster Building Services
Limited ("HC Aster”), the electrical and mechanical engineering specialists of
the Group, and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Fung has
the primary responsibility in managing the business of HC Aster. He joined the
Group in 2003 and has over 39 years of experience in the engineering field as
consultant, client’s representative and contractor in Hong Kong, United Kingdom
and Australia. Prior to joining the Group, for over 17 years, Mr. Fung was engaged
in the general management of companies in Australia and Hong Kong before
acting as the general manager of Jardine and Cathay Pacific group of companies.

Mr. Keith John BUCKLEY (“Mr. Buckley"), BSc (Civi), CEng, MICE, MHKIE, aged 68, is
a director of HCC and HCA, and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Buckley is the Executive Project Director of the construction management
business of the Group in Macau. He joined the Group in 2003 and has over 46
years of experience in the field of building construction and civil engineering.

Mr. Augustine TANG Man Yee (“Mr. Tang”), MSc, MCIOB, MAIB, MHKICM, aged
59, is a director of HCC, HCCG Building and Civil Engineering (Macau) Limited,
Ever Work Construction Limited, HCCG Building & Civil Engineering (Saipan)
Limited, Zhuhai Henggin New Area HCCG Construction Management Co., Ltd.
and Hsin Chong Building and Civil Engineering (Cambodia) Co. Ltd. Mr. Tang is
responsible for the civil engineering and building Projects in Macau, Zhuhai and
overseas. He joined the Group in 1976 and has over 40 years of experience in
the field of building construction and project management of mega construction
projects in Hong Kong, Beijing, Shenzhen, Zhuhai, Macau and overseas.

Mr. Phillip Kenneth CLARKE (“Mr. Clarke"), MRICS, aged 57, is the commercial
director of Hsin Chong Construction (Macau) Limited, Hsin Chong Engineering
(Macau) Limited and Ever Apex Construction (Macau) Company Limited, the
Company'’s subsidiaries in Macau. Mr. Clarke joined the Group in 2004 and has
over 35 years of experience in providing commercial and technical support in the
construction field.

Property Development and Hospitality Business (Hong
Kong and International)
Mr. Alfred Kwong Fai YEUNG (“"Mr. Yeung"”), 84, DipArch, DMS, MSc, RIBA, MCM,
MAPM, aged 57, joined the Group in February 2016 as the Managing Director
responsible for developing real estate, hospitality, and aged care business of the
Group in Hong Kong and overseas.

Mr. Yeung has more than 30 years of experience in architecture and planning, real

estate and project management. He has worked on property development and
hospitality projects in Europe, North America, Asia Pacific and Australasia.
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Mr. Yeung has built real estate networks around the globe over the years
and has rich experience in land assembly, project feasibility and incubation,
masterplanning, design, joint-venture partnership formation, project
management, as well as sales, marketing and disposal.

Mr. Yeung has held directorate appointments in a number of multi-national
companies. He was the Managing Director of Great Eagle Development and
Project Management Limited before joining the Group, looking after over US$2.5
billions in hospitality and real estate investments spreading across New York, Los
Angeles, San Francisco, Toronto, London, Hong Kong, Shanghai, Dailin, Sydney,
Melbourne and Auckland.

Mr. Yeung was also the Group Property Development Director for Melco
International and has built award winning hospitality destinations in the Mainland
of China and with investment works in the Philippines, Korea, Kazakhstan and
Russia. Previously, Mr. Yeung was the General Manager for property development
in Kowloon Canton Railway Corporation where he was responsible for the
Corporation’s US$30 billion development portfolio encompassing 20 projects
along the rail lines in Hong Kong.

Mr. Yeung is a chartered architect by profession, qualified at Liverpool John
Moores University and received a Master degree in Construction Management
from University of Bath. He has also received executive management training
from Harvard Law School, Franklin Covey Leadership Programme and Richard
Ivey Business School. Mr. Yeung is a chartered member of Royal Institute of British
Architects, a founding member of its Hong Kong Chapter. He is also a member
of Urban Lands Institute, Chartered Management Institute and Association for
Project Management in UK. Mr. Yeung has been appointed by The Chinese
University of Hong Kong as Adjunct Associate Professor.

Project Directors (Construction Business)

Mr. Chris CHAU Chi Wai (“Mr. Chau”), BSc (Hons), MHKIE, RPE, aged 55, is an
assistant director of Building Division of HCC. He is responsible for construction
projects, including M+ Museum, Dragons Range, redevelopment of Hong Kong
Sports Institute and Shek Mun HSBC Data Centre. Mr. Chau joined the Group in
2007. He has 32 years of experience in the construction industry.

Mr. Benjamin CHOW Tai Wang (“"Mr. Chow"), BSc (Civil Engineering), aged 64,
has been promoted as an assistant director of HCC in 2015 and is the head of
civil projects operations. He is responsible for project management, tendering and
business development. Mr. Chow joined the Group in 2002. He has over 38 years
of experience in foundation, site formation, infrastructure, structural steel, road &
drainage, marine works, demolition, building and contracting business.

BRI FES IR FET M) AR IR+ &
2 IRR AT RIRE  RRRE Rt EREE RN
H EEEE URHE 2HAHESTEEEEEL

BEEBRZHBEARETESRU -RIMAREHE
Al RRERERLREEBRARANAZEFEKE &
BEZR5BETNBERFEEEBRE BRALD
P =T ZRZ BB LB KE- SR -2
BAARRTHE -

BRETBENFEREEELEES EPERMHE
TEZEREEHER WNIFEE BE BERINAR
RERBERE T IN BEEBRBBNEHER
B EERABALE KR EZRFB00EEXTHYEE
RAS BREEKIEN20EER -

B RRBIURT LM EXENFYAOBERLT X
& (Liverpool John Moores University)i £& X - 1 BX 15 2 8y
R E(University of Bath)iZi& & I 48 1 B « 1 IR0 05 76
RESRERT 5 5 o MR 4988 7 g 5T &l (Franklin Covey
Leadership Programme)#ll 32 £2 o 37 JE 75 £ [ (Richard Ivey
Business School)# A TIUE I « 1550 4 R B 2 R pEEE
MEZg g8 BEAEESEMAKRBE -FRAIAMM
WeEe AERKHEEEeNRHNEEEEHerg8-
GAEETERBERXRBRERTEREIHIX -

TREH#EE (BEEE)

BEEEE ([F%LE]) 85 (Hons), MHKIE RPE » T3 FF555% -
ANEREREFRESNYRES - KA REEE
BREMHEEEYE R  BEEESRERER
FOELRITAPIEIED O o FEARN2007EMAREE o
BRBEEEBENE KR -

RBAXBEE ([FA%E]) BSc (Ciil Engineering) * 3 F 6455, * 1Y
2015F BT R E SEMNBIEES  HMALATIE
HEEEBEzFE - HRERBEEE RELIEREBER-

B SR EH2002F INARE B - RN R T2 AR P2

B s BB RYK OBEIR B BERER
EBHE HEE38F KR

HEREEBRAMRAT 2016F W

39



40

Mr. CHOI Man Fai ("Mr. Choi”), BSc, FHKIE, FCIOB, FHKICM, MICE, MRICS, RPE, aged
55, is a senior project director of HCC. He is responsible for managing all aspects
of the construction operations in projects under his control including the MTRC
Shatin to Central Link Contract No. SCL1109 — Sung Wong Toi and To Kwa
Wan Stations and Tunnels. Mr. Choi joined the Group in 2009. He has over 28
years of experience in managing and administering both Government-funded
and privately-sponsored infrastructure projects comprising civil, building and
foundation jobs.

Mr. Frankie LAM Kam Keung (“Mr. Lam”), BSc (Eng), MA (Arb & DR), CEng, MICE,
RPE, MHKIE, MCSCEHKB, aged 48, is a senior project director of HCC. He is primarily
responsible for project management as well as tender preparation and business
development. Mr. Lam joined the Group in 1994. He has over 26 years of
experience in both consulting and contracting business on a wide spectrum of
projects including infrastructure, site formation, roads & drainage, foundation,
deep excavation, geotechnical and ground investigation field works. He is also
appointed as the Authorised Signatory under the Buildings Ordinance (Chapter
123) supervising site formation and foundation works.

Mr. Christopher TANG Sik Ming (“Mr. Tang"), BSc (Hons), MCIOB, MHKIE, MASCE,
MHKICM, MCMI, RPE, MASI, aged 62, is a senior project director of HCC. He is
responsible for the construction management of various projects: Sai Wan
Terrace, Tsuen Wan Adventist Hospital, Hong Kong Housing Authority’s housing
developments at Anderson Road and Tung Chung, and HKUST, etc. Mr. Tang
joined the Group in 2011. He has over 37 years of experience in building
construction management and administration.

Mr. Simon YIU Chi Kin (“Mr. Yiu"), BSc, MSc, MHKIE, MHKICM, MCIOB, MRICS, aged
48, is a senior project director of HCC. He is responsible for construction project
management and training programme of young engineers in the Hong Kong
Buildings Division. Mr. Yiu joined the Group in August 1991 as Graduate Building
Engineer. He has over 25 years of experience in building project planning and
programming, cost control, contract administration and overall construction
management.

Mr. Wayne CHAN Wai Kei (“Mr. Chan"), BSc (Arch), MIHEEM, ASHRAE, aged 61,
is a project director of HC Aster. He is responsible for Building Services project
management, tender preparation and business development. Mr. Chan joined
the Group in 2005. He has over 36 years of experience in the managing and
administering of both public and private sector E & M projects.

Mr. TSANG Hing Wah (“Mr. Tsang”), BSc (Bidg), MSc (Environ. Mgt), MHKICM,
MIHEEM, aged 45, is a project director of HCCA. He is responsible for the
construction management in various projects. Mr. Tsang joined the Group in
August 1994 as Graduate Building Engineer. He has over 22 years of experience
in building construction and over 14 years of experience in construction project
management.
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Business of the Mainland of China

Mr. ZHANG Xuejun ("Mr. Zhang"”), aged 51, Co-Chief Executive Officer,
graduated from Capital Normal University (formerly known as Beijing Normal
College) and obtained a Bachelor's Degree in Philosophy. He also completed an
on-job postgraduate course at Chinese Academy of Social Sciences. Subsequently,
he obtained an Executive Master's degree in Business Administration from
Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business in 2006.

Mr. ZHANG taught at School of English and School of Political Science and Law in
Beijing Normal College. Subsequently, he successively assumed the deputy office
head of Municipal Party Committee of Youth League in Beijing (It RETZ),
secretary of the Committee of Youth League in Chaoyang District in Beijing (1t
REm#ABEEZ) , director and secretary of Party Work Committee (& T Z &
52 ) of Heping Subdistrict Office in Chaoyang District in Beijing (4t ST 835 &= 71
FHEEEPIER) . Since 2000, he has served in Central Committee of Chinese
Communist Youth League (FHEFEF ) . He successively assumed the deputy
director of Chinese Young Pioneers Business Development Center ( [& A7 5 A1 B >
SR EZEERPOEIE), deputy director of the Central Juvenile Department
(s g AEE8) and Central Propaganda Department ([E /8= &) , director
of Central Juvenile Department ([E & A4 5() of the Chinese Communist
Youth League, deputy director of National Committee of Chinese Young Pioneers
(2B TZ&/=EE) and the member of 16th Central Standing Committee of
the Chinese Communist Youth League (16/EE R R EFZE) .

Mr. ZHANG served as a deputy secretary (department level) at Municipal Party
Committee of Jiujiang in Jiangxi Province from 2008 to 2011; and a Party
secretary and director at Foreign Affairs Office in Jiangxi Province (;T P54& 4h %
BFP A=) from 2011 to 2014. He has served as a Party member and the
Secretary-General of Chinese Western Returned Scholars Association ( B3 7] £

&) since February 2014.

Ms. WAN Wen Ying (“Ms. Wan"), aged 71, joined Hsin Chong Holdings (China)
Limited as Senior Commercial Vice President in March 2016. She is also Chairman
of Hsin Chong (China) Business Management Company Limited*.

Ms. Wan has engaged in business operation and management for 41 years and
devoted herself to research and development of the business sector in China,
and accumulated rich experience in business management. Honoured as the
"originator of China's outlets”, she was the first to bring the outlets mode into
China, and she was also the planner and leader of the outlets business model
of the new generation. In recent years, as the general business advisor of Beijing
Capital Land, she led and directed in the opening and operation of Capital Land's
projects in Fangshan, Wanning, Huzhou, and Kunshan, and explored a path for
developing outlets with Chinese characteristics.

Ms. Wan is also standing director of China General Chamber of Commerce, vice
president of China Commerce Association for General Merchandise, a member
of the Expert Committee of China General Chamber of Commerce, and honorary
president of Outlets Branch of China General Chamber of Commerce. Ms. Wan is
also a senior economist and senior corporate operator.

* for identification purposes only
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Mr. JIANG Wanyong (“Mr. lJiang”), aged 57, is a senior engineer with the
Bachelor's Degree in Engineering. He now assumes the senior vice president
of Hsin Chong Holdings (China) Limited. Mr. Jiang once worked for China-
Foreign Aid Office of Ministry of Railways/China Civil Engineering Construction
Corporation (CCECC), and was dispatched to Arabia and African countries,
Hong Kong, Macao and North America. He worked as the director of business
development in Mainland China for CH2MHILL, a world’s famous large-scale
engineering consulting company and took charge of energy and transportation
services. With over 30 years' management experience in real estate investment
and development, energy and environmental protection, urban planning and
infrastructure construction, communications technologies and services, asset
restructuring, mergers and acquisitions of enterprises and others, Mr. Jiang, a
senior business management specialist, has accumulated rich experience in the
investment and operation and management of large projects at home and abroad
as well as commercial real estate investment and development management, and
obtained outstanding achievements in related fields. Mr. Jiang also concurrently
serves as an expert member of Commercial Real Estate Association and the vice
president of Ortles Branch of China General Chamber of Commerce.

Ms. ZENG Xian (“Ms. Zeng"”), aged 49, is a senior corporate culture specialist
and economist with double Master’'s Degree respectively in Economic
Management and Psychology. She has been the vice president of Hsin Chong
Holdings (China) Limited since 2015. As a senior human resources expert, Ms.
Zeng once assumed the senior management position of several famous listed
companies and large real estate enterprises, and she particularly excels in human
resource management of real estate industry. Ms. Zeng also concurrently serves as
the vice president of Ortles Branch of China General Chamber of Commerce, the
director of Practice Committee of Chinese Human Resource Theory and Practice
Association, the vice chairman of Human Resource Alliance of Commercial and
Tourism Real Estate Professional Committee of China Real Estate Association,
managing director of National Real Estate Managers Alliance, distinguished
lecturer of China Federation of Human Resources Managers and career mentor of
Sun Yat-sen Business School.

Mr. DING Mingliang (“Mr. Ding”), aged 49, graduated from Tsinghua University
with a masters’ degree, majoring in heating, ventilation and air conditioning. He
joined Hsin Chong (China) Business Management Company Limited* as Executive
Deputy General Manager in 2015 and is responsible for the properties and
engineering related business.

For many years Mr. Ding engaged in planning, investment attraction, and
operation management with commercial real estate projects. He has nearly 20
years' experience as a senior executive at well-known enterprises and commercial
property companies including GT Land Group, Saite Group, and Beijing Modern
Plaza, thus with comprehensive management capability in large commercial real
estate projects, especially in large commercial complex and other commercial
projects in Guangzhou Area.

* for identification purposes only
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Mr. JIA Tongli (“Mr. Jia”), aged 53, graduated from the Party School of the CPC,
majored in economic administration. He joined Hsin Chong (China) Business
Management Company* as Vice General Manager in 2015 and is responsible for
investment attraction.

Mr. Jia has over 20 years' experience in commercial retailing, and had taken
up positions at more than ten retail enterprises including Beijing Yansha Youyi
Shopping City, Yansha Outlets Shopping Center, Yansha Shopping Center
(Jinyuan), Beijing Henderson Yansha, and Beijing U-town Plaza. He participated
in the planning, investment attraction and operation of various outlets projects
in recent years, and has become an expert with rich practical experience in
commercial retailing business.

Mr. LI Qiming (“Mr. Li), aged 46, is a senior engineer and a Class 1 registered
constructor as well as a national supervision engineer with a civil engineering
degree. Mr. Li joined Hsin Chong Holdings (China) Limited in 2016 as the general
manager of Liaoning Tongji Property Investment Limited / Liaoning Huisheng
Property Investment Limited (Tieling project company). Mr. Li has 17 years of
experience in comprehensive development and management of large-scale real
estate complex, commercial, hotel, residential and tourism properties, and has
conducted whole process management and operation in a number of complexes
and real estate projects with an area over 500,000 sgm?. He has assumed various
senior management positions in Yintai Land Group, Wanda Group and many
other well-known real estate enterprises, including the general manager of
projects and the general manager of cites. Mr. Li has outstanding performance
in real estate operation and has profound management experience in all stages
of commercial property development as well as remarkable resources integration
capabilities.

Ms. LIU Lan (“Ms. Liu”), aged 48, holds a bachelor degree in economic
management and an MBA degree in monetary banking. Ms. Liu is currently the
general manager of the Taian Project of Hsin Chong Holdings (China) Limited.
Ms. Liu is a senior professional manager in the property development industry
in China. She has held senior executive positions in various well-known real
estate enterprises such as the Contue Group, the Ronggiao Group and the
Tahoe Group, delivering outstanding performances in project development,
sales and commercial opening. She was named one of the Top 10 Characters in
National Property Marketing. Ms. Liu was also engaged by the Alumni Office of
the Renmin University of China as consultant and by Taian High-tech Industrial
Development Zone as investment adviser.

Mr. XIE Lizhong ("Mr. Xie”), aged 49, is the general manager of the Foshan
Project Company of Hsin Chong Holdings (China) Limited. Mr. Xie is a senior
engineer graduated from Tsinghua University with a degree in water resources
and hydropower engineering. Mr. Xie had been the Director of Guangdong
Fangshi Construction Supervision Co., Ltd. (ERFEEER TREEEFRAR]),
the deputy general manager of Guangdong Jinhuiyang Real Estate Co., Ltd. (/&
He B FREMEBR AR and the project manager of Panyu Clifford Estate
Real Estate Limited (F BT FEHEBMR A F]) . He has nearly 30 years'
experience in construction project management, particularly in the operation of
construction and supervision companies, and is familiar with the construction
related processes and relevant laws and regulations of property development.

* for identification purposes only
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Mr. ZHENG Chenglie (“Mr. Zheng”), aged 56, is a member of the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors (Facilities Management) with a master degree of
Business Administration awarded by the Newport University in the US. Mr. Zheng
has been engaged in property management for over 20 years and accumulated
considerable experience in property and asset management during his service in
well-known projects in Hong Kong and Mainland China. He has cooperated with
renowned domestic and overseas property developers and Top 500 companies
in managing high-end residential properties, 5A office buildings, large shopping
malls and service apartments, etc. He is an expert in market development, early
stage consultation, preparation of accurate management budget, acceptance
inspection, renovation supervision, hygiene, environmental protection and fire
inspection, inspection before opening of projects and risk management. By
effectively applying the mature management modes of Hong Kong properties to
those in mainland China, he is capable of coordinating the operation of various
departments and managing projects comprehensively and has a good track record
in his management work.

Mr. ZHOU Hong (Note 1) ("Mr. Zhou"), aged 47, graduated from Civil Aviation
University of China majoring in Planning Finance. He obtained a MBA from
Renmin University of China and an EMBA from China Europe International
Business School. Mr. Zhou is a financial professional and an expert on enterprise
strategic management, investment and financing, and financial management.
He is also a senior business administrator. He joined Hsin Chong Finance Lease
(China) Limited* as CEO and Hsin Chong Capital Management (China) Limited*
as President in 2015.

Mr. Zhou had acted as senior executive at various large enterprise groups and
many financial institutions including finance lease companies, futures companies,
finance companies and insurance companies, which helped him accumulate rich
practical experience in financial and tax management, business development,
corporate operation and management, investment and financing, and capital
market operation. He has built up close cooperative relationships with local
governments, financial institutions, and investment organizations, with great
achievements in corporate strategy research and management. Mr. Zhou is also a
member of the Central Economics Committee under China Democratic League,
and has an in-depth insight into the macro economy and the industrial research.

Chief Operating Officer

Mr. Thomas PANG Pui Yin (“Mr. Pang”), aged 55, is Chief Operating Officer
of the Company. Mr. Pang is primarily responsible for overseeing the operations
of the Company. Mr. Pang possesses over 30 years of experience in the areas of
capital markets, accounting & finance, and corporate management covering a
number of industrial sectors such as real estate investment and management,
oil and gas, financial advisory, investment management and securities market
regulation. Before joining the Group, Mr. PANG held senior positions including
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of a real estate investment fund
as well as a number of Hong Kong listed companies.
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Mr. Pang qualified as a Chartered Accountant in England and Wales in 1988
while working in the London office of a big 4 accounting firm. He is a member of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants with exposure in the United
Kingdom, Australia, New Zealand, Hong Kong, the Mainland of China and Dubai.
Mr. Pang graduated from the University of Oxford, England with a Master's
degree and also obtained a Master's degree from the International School of
Advanced Studies, University of Trieste, Italy.

Corporate Service

Ms. Victoria TAM Yin Ping ("Ms. Tam”), MSc, MBA, M.LH.RM. (HK), MHKIoD,
FinstLM, aged 55, is the Group Human Resources & Administration Director. She
is responsible for the Group’s human resources strategy to support the Group's
growth opportunities in Hong Kong, Macau, China and overseas, as well as
for superintending the administrative functions at the Group's headquarters.
Ms. Tam is also a member of the Human Resources Steering Committee of the
executive board of the Group, and is responsible for deploying effective human
resources management policies, plans and practical methods for corporate
sustainable competitive advantages. Ms. Tam possesses over 25 years of human
resources & administration management spanning across construction, property
investment and development and hospitality industries, with expertise including
organizational transformation strategies, leadership and management coaching,
and talent management.

Ms. WONG May Kay (“Ms. Wong"), aged 54, is the Vice President of Business
Relations of the Group. She joined the Group in February 2016 and is responsible
for leading the Business Relations and Corporate Communications team to
develop and drive strategies for enhancing the corporate image of the Group
while building positive relations with different stakeholders in and outside of Hong
Kong to support the Group’s business expansion strategy.

Ms. Wong is an all-rounded communications and relationship-management
professional of 30 years. Graduating from Canada’s premier journalism school
at Carleton University in Ottawa, Ontario, Ms. Wong spent more than 13 years
as a television journalist covering domestic and world news before becoming a
corporate communications specialist with particular expertise in communications
strategy development and crisis communications. She has led the communications
function for other Hong Kong-listed companies including MTR Corporation
Limited.

Note 1:  Mr. ZHOU Hong has resigned on 13 March 2017.
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Corporate governance is the system by which the Company is directed and
controlled. The Board is fully aware of its importance to shareholders and has
developed a rigorous system of checks and balances which allows management
to respond to the strategic directions approved by the Board. The Board believes
that a well balanced corporate governance system enables the Company to
achieve business excellence and fulfill the Company’s mission.

Corporate Code of Conduct

Since 1995, the Company has published and distributed its Corporate Code of
Conduct to all staff to educate and reinforce the Company’s commitment to the
highest standards of business ethics and the seriousness with which the Board
treats such matters. The Corporate Code of Conduct is a living document that
will be periodically updated to incorporate comments and suggestions from the
Independent Commission Against Corruption and the other regulating authorities
in Hong Kong.

Corporate Governance Code

The Company has applied the principals in the code provisions and certain
recommended best practices set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). During the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the Company
complied with all code provisions of the CG Code, except those deviations as
mentioned herein below.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Board has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules (as amended from time to time by the Stock Exchange) as its own code of
conduct for regulating securities transactions by Directors. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the financial year ended
31 December 2016.

The Board has further adopted the Model Code as the written guidelines
for regulating securities transactions by the senior management and certain
employees of the Group (collectively, the “Relevant Employees”). The Board
believes that the Relevant Employees may, by virtue of their positions, likely be in
possession of unpublished inside information of the Group.
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Board of Directors

Composition

As at 18 April 2017, the Board comprised 13 Directors, including four Executive
Directors, five Non-executive Directors and four Independent Non-executive
Directors.

The Directors who were in office during the year and up to the date of this report
are named as below:

Non-executive Chairman
Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan

Executive Directors

Ir Joseph CHOI Kin Hung (Co-Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. ZHOU Wei (Chief Strategic Officer)

Mr. Wilfred WU Shek Chun (Chief Risk Officer)

Mr. Eric TODD (appointed with effect from 9 March 2017)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. YAN Jie

Mr. CHEN Lei

Mr. CHUI Kwong Kau

Mr. LUI Chun Pong (re-designated with effect from 1 January 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHENG Sui Sang

Ms. LEE Jai Ying

Mr. KWOK, Shiu Keung Ernest

Mr. George YUEN Kam Ho (appointed with effect from 12 July 2016)
Mr. GAO Jingyuan (resigned with effect from 12 July 2016)

Following the appointment of Mr. Eric TODD as an Executive Director, the number
of the Independent Non-executive Directors has fallen below the minimum
number required under Rule 3.10(1) and Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules. The
Company will seek a suitable candidate to fill the expected replacement to be
appointed within three months from 9 March 2017 pursuant to Rule 3.11 of the
Listing Rules.

An updated list of Directors identifying their roles and functions is available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company
(www.hsinchong.com).

Coming from diverse business and professional backgrounds, including real
estate development, property development, construction, finance, and finance
related work, members of the Board possess a balance of skills, expertise and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Group which
helps promote its success and benefits its management. Save as disclosed in the
Profiles of Directors set out on pages 23 to 36 of this annual report, there is no
relationship among the members of the Board.
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Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has given the Company an
annual confirmation of independence in compliance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers that all the Independent Non-executive Directors
are and have remained independent. Mr. CHENG Sui Sang, chairman of the Audit
Committee, has the appropriate accounting and financial management expertise
required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

Members of the Board, including the names of all the Independent Non-executive
Directors, are expressly identified in all corporate communications which disclose
the names of the directors of the Company.

Functions

The Board has an ultimate oversight of the Group's activities. Its primary functions
are to set and direct the Company’s strategy and to monitor and measure
the management’s performance. It is accountable for the overall strategic
development of the Group with the objective to enhance shareholder value.
Material matters are reserved for the Board's considerations or decisions which
include, among other things, overall strategy of the Group, business plans, annual
budgets, significant capital expenditure, interim and annual results and reports,
dividend policy and payments, material acquisitions, disposals or investment
proposals, directors’ appointments, re-appointments or removal, and other
material transactions.

The Board has delegated certain of its responsibilities to the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Executive Committee. It
has also delegated the day-to-day operations of the Group’s business to the senior
management. Delegation of duties to the Board committees and daily business
operations to the management are discussed on pages 53 to 62 of this report.

Board Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan is the Non-executive Chairman. For the period from
1 January 2016 to 18 September 2016, Ir Joseph CHOI Kin Hung (an Executive
Director) was the Chief Executive Officer. Upon the appointment of Mr. ZHANG
Xuejun as Co-Chief Executive Officer with effect from 19 September 2016, the
title of Ir Joseph CHOI Kin Hung was changed to Co-Chief Executive Officer.

The roles of chairman and chief executive are separate, and there are clear
divisions among their responsibilities with a view to achieving a balance of power
and authority. Therefore, the Company complies with the code provision A.2.1 of
the CG Code.

HSIN CHONG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

BREUIFNTEFERE EMRANE3 MG EE T
MARBERFEEARR - AR BB B E B IENTT
EERARM—EUREYABIAL BEZZESEFEKE
A s B R AIE3N0QBIRE I EE 95t R FE
BHEK

ERG /KB (BEMABILFNTES 2% ) TR
WEFINFAERBEARARAESER 2 BEBAP -

B

EFEERARERB cReEEAM HXBRERHIE
AARZ REGWIREIES] - TRFERMFHEEEEZ R
R-EEQARAEE BRRBER  WRAKREER
RAR - BAFHEOBRFETGEEIELRE AP E
BASE 2 BERE X558 FERE EXEARH
X mHEEERENRE REBERD K EAME-
HESXRENRE R ENZAXRRESUALEMS
AR5 e

EECEREETEAERTERZES FWEES:
RAEZEEURHTZES -ETENERESEEEA
BREASEHFERCE - FHERBETEETSET
NEEGNBEREIEERIEODEERLE S RAR
HEE53E62H A5 ©

EFEETERITHER

EEATRIEA2 HESTRMESGRTE » EFEMRITHRAT D
AEEEEY W ER— ARBRIT MELELERIE
1T ENE - R20165F1 A1H £201659 A 18 HARS » £2 4
TETREEN (BITESE) BITHAEE - 7R2016F9 8198 £ E
REBELELABFITBERE SEEIRMZBEDE
B R FITEEE -

TRETHRARNACE SR MAME ZETHEE
o RS R ER 2 FEUG - Bt RARER
BTEERTRIEA2VESFRME 2 H5E -



With the support from the Executive Directors and the Company Secretary, the
Board chairman ensures that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising
from Board meetings and receive adequate, complete and reliable information on
a timely manner.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The Board has assumed the responsibility to consider the appointment, re-election
and removal of the Directors. The Board set up a Nomination Committee in 2011
to recommend the appointment, re-election and removal of the Directors.

All the Non-executive and Independent Non-executive Directors have entered into
letters of appointment with the Company for a term of two years subject to the
requirements of the Listing Rules and the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-
laws"), including the requirement of retirement by rotation and re-election or
standing for re-election at annual general meetings of the Company at least once
every three years. The term is renewable upon expiry.

Any new director to be appointed by the Company shall be provided with
information on duties and obligations of director, relevant regulatory requirements
and the Group's business affairs. All Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy
would be subject to election by shareholders at the first general meeting of the
Company after appointment.

Board Meetings

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year at approximately
quarterly intervals. Tentative dates of regular Board meetings for next year are
scheduled approaching the end of each calendar year in order to facilitate the
Directors to plan for attendance of the meetings. Additional Board meetings will
be convened, as and when required, to deal with ad hoc issues. Any Director who
is not able to present physically may participate at any Board meeting through
electronic means of communication, such as conference telephone or other similar
communication equipment, in accordance with the Bye-laws.

Board Proceedings

Notice convening each regular Board meeting is sent at least 14 days in advance,
and reasonable notice is given for other Board meetings. The Company Secretary
assists the Board chairman to prepare the meeting notice and agenda. Each
Director may include any item in the agenda. The agenda, accompanied by
meeting papers with sufficient and reliable information, are sent to each Director
not less than three days before the date of a Board meeting to enable the
Directors to make informed decisions on the matters to be discussed, except
where a Board meeting is convened on a very urgent basis to consider any urgent
ad hoc matter.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of the Board meetings,
drafts and final versions of which will be circulated to Directors for comments
and records, respectively, and in both cases, within a reasonable time after each
meeting. Minutes recorded in sufficient detail the matters considered by the
Board at the meeting and decisions reached, including any concerns raised by the
Directors or dissenting view (if any) expressed. Minutes of Board meetings are kept
by the Company Secretary and open for inspection to any Director on request.
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All Directors have access to the Company Secretary who is responsible for
ensuring that the Board procedures are complied with and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed. Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information, including reports from the Board committees and reports from the
management. They are also provided with updates on the latest developments of
the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory changes and matters of
relevance to the Directors in discharging their duties as and when appropriate.

To assist the Directors to discharge their duties, the Board has adopted written
procedures in case any Director wishes to seek independent professional advice at
the Company's expenses.

Board approval is also given by circulation of resolution in writing pursuant to
the Bye-laws on urgent matter which requires decision in a tight timeframe and
hence convening a Board meeting is difficult or not practicable. In case where a
resolution in writing is circulated, sufficient information and explanatory materials
will also be provided to the Directors at the same time. These written resolutions
were tabled for the Directors’ review at the next following Board meeting so that
Directors were given the opportunity to raise any further comment (if any) on the
relevant matters.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter
(including material transaction with connected persons) which the Board
determines to be material, the Board will hold a meeting (as long as time is
allowed to convene a Board meeting) to consider the relevant matter first before
any subsequent approval is given by way of circulation of resolution in writing.

Appropriate insurance covering directors’ and officers’ liabilities has been arranged
to protect the Directors and officers of the Group.
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Attendances of Meetings =g Jeel g

Eight Board meetings, two Audit Committee meetings, six Remuneration  E{ZE2016F12A31BIEFERNERITSNEE S 2K
Committee meetings, two Nomination Committee meetings, one annual general EZZE & &% 6XFMEE & &3 2XNIREZEg e
meeting and two special general meetings were held during the year ended 31  # - VABREEER G M2 EE RS - TH ARES
December 2016. Attendances of these meetings by Directors are set out below: HREzEescBmR:

Meetings attended/Eligible to attend

HE/ RERHEEE
Annual Special
Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination General General
Name of Directors 3.1 Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meetings Meetings

E¥e FUEAT FHZERAE REZAE RRATAE REWHIAE

Non-executive Chairman HHTERE
LIN Zhuo Yan WEIE /8 n/a n/a n/a 1 22
TiEA TiEA TiEA
Executive Directors HiTEE
Joseph CHOI Kin Hung (Co-Chief Executive Officer) &% (B E7THAE#) 8/8 n/a 6/6 22 1n 22
A
ZHOU Wei (Chief Strategic Officer) B (BEREE) 7/8 n/a n/a n/a 7 20
TiEA TiEA TiEA
Wilfred WU Shek Chun (Chief Risk Officer) SEE (BEARE) 8/8 n/a 33 n/a 1N 22
A A
Non-executive Directors HHTEE
YAN Jie LS 7/8 n/a n/a n/a 171 20
A A A
CHEN Lei B 6/8 n/a n/a n/a 1" 12
A A A
CHUI Kwong Kau ERK 718 22 n/a n/a 1N 22
N N
LUI Chun Pong? iR 8/8 n/a n/a 0/0 11 22
A A
Indlependent Non-executive Directors BUHNTEE
CHENG Sui Sang 54 6/8 212 6/6 12 " 212
GAO Jingyuan' BRE 45 n/a 33 n/a 1”n 2
A A
LEE Jai Ying SEE 88 na Ve n o n
TiEA
KWOK, Shiu Keung Ernest B 6/3 2R n/a n/a 0/1 12
A A
George YUEN Kam Ho? Ram 33 11 33 n/a n/a n/a
A A A
Notes: B3k

1 Mr. GAO Jingyuan resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director and a member of 1 ARBAEEDABEBLIFNTEERTMNERGKE 8
Remuneration Committee respectively with effect from 12 July 2016. 20165F7 A12B B AR

2 Mr. George YUEN Kam Ho has been appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director 2 ReAEECBEEABEIENITES B2016F7A12B 4L
with effect from 12 July 2016. o

3 Mr. LUI Chun Pong was re-designated from an Executive Director to a Non-executive Director 3 ERABEERPTEFTRAEIENTES  B2017F1 A1BRE
with effect from 1 January 2017. e

n/a:  not applicable TEA - T #E A
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During the year under review, the Chairman of the Board also held a meeting
with Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive Directors)
without the presence of Executive Directors.

Code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code requires that independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors should attend general meetings and
develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders. Mr. CHEN Lei,
a Non-executive Director, and Ms. LEE Jai Ying, an Independent Non-executive
Director, did not attend the special general meeting of the Company held on
14 March 2016 due to their own official businesses and Ms. LEE Jai Ying and
Mr. KWOK, Shui Keung Ernest, the Independent Non-executive Directors, did
not attend the annual general meeting and the special general meeting of the
Company held on 19 May 2016 due to their own official businesses.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Every Director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a director of the Company
and of the conduct, business activities and development of the Company. The
Company provides all members of the Board with monthly updates on the
Group's performance and financial position.

Directors are aware of the requirement under code provision A.6.5 of the CG
Code regarding continuous professional development. During the year, the
Company provided reading materials to the Directors for self-study. In addition,
the Directors have attended external courses, conferences or luncheons organised
by various organisations.
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Directors also reviewed the monthly business and financial updates and other
reading materials provided to them concerning latest developments in corporate
governance practices, and relevant legal and regulatory developments. A record
of the Directors’ participation in various professional development programs is
kept by the company secretarial department. A summary of training received by
the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2016 is according to the records
provided by the Directors as follows:

EFNENRSERB 2B AER R BEHE I ERHIA
NEMEBAEE AT HEMNMMBREEG LA RETEREN
HEEH EHEE2EIAEEERELNGCEANT
WEIPIRTT - IBRIEEZESRENREE EERNEE2016F
12A31BIEFEMEZBIBENT

Reading newspapers,
journals and

updates relating

to the economy,
general business,
accounting, laws,

Giving talks or
attending seminars/

Remuneration Committee respectively with effect from 12 July 2016.

with effect from 12 July 2016.

Board Committees

Mr. George YUEN Kam Ho has been appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director

Each of the Board committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Executive Committee, is to assist
in the execution of the Board's responsibilities and to oversee particular aspect of
the Group's affairs. Each Board committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties properly, and holds meetings in accordance with the Bye-laws,
its specific written terms of reference and, where applicable, the proceedings of
Board meeting.

conferences/forums rules and regulations, etc.

RSB R 8 -

—REE FatEE

FTMESHE BRAREREREZ

Name of Directors EEME WHe Sl AR BE HHRSHEM

LIN Zhuo Yan (Non-executive Chairman) — W& 3E (FEE 772 /%) v v
Joseph CHOI Kin Hung B8 (BETTHEZ)

(Co-Chief Executive Officer) %4 v
ZHOU Wei (Chief Strategic Officer) BE (BERKEE) v
Wilfred WU Shek Chun SEE (BEARE)

(Chief Risk Officer) v v
YAN Jie e v v
CHEN Lei R v v
CHUI Kwong Kau BRI % v
LUI Chun Pong = R v v
CHENG Sui Sang i v v
GAO Jingyuan' BRR v v
LEE Jai Ying TR v
KWOK, Shiu Keung Ernest B v v
George YUEN Kam Ho? RE v v

Notes: T
1 Mr. GAO Jingyuan resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director and a member of 1 e EAADE(IB I TEERYHESeRE 1982016
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises Mr. CHENG Sui Sang (Independent Non-
executive Director) as chairman, Mr. CHUI Kwong Kau (Non-executive Director),
Mr. KWOK, Shiu Keung Ernest (Independent Non-executive Director) and Mr.
George YUEN Kam Ho (who was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director and a member with effect from 12 July 2016) as members. None of
the Audit Committee members is or has been a former partner of the existing
auditing firm engaged by the Company for the past one year.

The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for conducting an independent and
objective review of the financial reporting process, internal controls and audit
function with emphasis on:

(i) appraise the quality of the audit effort of the Company’s internal and
external auditors;

(i) serve as an independent and objective party to review the financial
information presented by management to shareholders, regulators and the
general public;

(iiiy  ascertain the adequacy of the Company'’s system of internal controls which
management and the Board have established; and

(iv) serve as useful channel of communication between the Board and the
external and internal auditors on matters relating to and arising out of the
external and internal audit.

The authority and duties of the Audit Committee are set out in its specific written
terms of reference. Full text of the terms of reference of the Audit Committee is
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include, among other things,
recommending to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment or removal
of the Company's external auditor and on its remuneration; reviewing the
Company'’s interim and annual financial statements and other financial reports;
and reviewing the Company’s financial reporting system, internal control
procedures (including monitoring the effectiveness of the internal audit function)
and risk management systems. The Audit Committee has explicit authority to
investigate any activity within its duties and responsibilities and the authority
to obtain outside legal or other independent professional advice if it considers
necessary.

The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year. During the year ended 31

December 2016, two committee meetings were held. Attendances of the
meetings have been disclosed on page 51 of this report.
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During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Audit Committee members
reviewed (i) the audit strategy memorandum from the external auditor; (i) with
the participation of the internal and external auditors and the management,
reviewed the internal control and risk management systems of the Group; and (iii)
with the participation of the internal and external auditors and the management,
the interim and annual results and the related financial statements of the
Company with a view to ensuring that these financial statements were prepared
in accordance with the accounting principles and standards generally accepted in
Hong Kong. The Audit Committee also considered the reports from the external
auditor on the scope and findings of its independent review of the interim
financial information and independent audit of the annual financial statements.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises Mr. CHENG Sui Sang (Independent Non-
executive Director) as chairman, Ir Joseph CHOI Kin Hung (Executive Director), Mr.
Wilfred WU Shek Chun (Executive Director), Ms. LEE Jai Ying (Independent Non-
executive Director), Mr. GAO Jingyuan (who resigned as an Independent Non-
executive Director and ceased to be a member with effect from 12 July 2016) and
Mr. George YUEN Kam Ho (who was appointed as Independent Non-executive
Director and a member with effect from 12 July 2016) as members.

The authority and duties of the Remuneration Committee are set out in its specific
written terms of reference. Full text of the terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee is available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible for reviewing the
remuneration policy of the Group and the remuneration packages of the Directors
and senior management of the Company. Its duties are summarised below:

(i) make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy;

(i) review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives;

(i)  make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual Executive Directors and senior management;

(iv)  make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of Non-executive
Directors;
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(v)  consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities, and employment conditions elsewhere in the Group;

(vi)  review and approve compensation payable to Executive Directors and senior
management for any loss or termination of office or appointment to ensure
that it is consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not
excessive;

(Vi) review and approve compensation arrangement, relating to dismissal or
removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with
contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

(viii) delegate such of its powers the committee deems appropriate to the
management; and

(ix)  ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in deciding his
own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year. During the year
ended 31 December 2016, six committee meetings were held. Attendances of the
meetings have been disclosed on page 51 of in this report.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Remuneration Committee
members (i) reviewed the bonus distribution of the Executive Directors and the
senior management for the year ended 31 December 2015; (i) reviewed the
bonus structure of the Executive Directors and the senior management; (i)
reviewed the salaries of Executive Directors and senior management; (iv) reviewed
the annual fee of Directors and annual fees for Chairman and members of each of
Board committees for the financial year ending 31 December 2017; (v) the grant
of share options to an relevant employee; and (vi) recommended the aforesaid
matters to the Board for approval.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of the senior
management by band for the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out below:
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Number of individuals

Within the band of #8250 5 T 7 A8
Up to HK$1,000,000 75 %51,000,0007T 8% LA 10
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 751,000,001 7T 2 7% #2,000,0007TC 7
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 751#2,000,0017T 2 7% #3,000,0007C 10
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 75 #£3,000,0017T 2 /% #4,000,0007T 6
HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000 75 #£4,000,0017T 2 /% #5,000,0007T 2
HK$5,000,001 to HK$6,000,000 75 #£5,000,0017T 2 7% #6,000,0007T 1
HK$6,000,001 to HK$7,000,000 75 #6,000,0017C £ /8 #7,000,0007C 1
Over HK$7,000,000 75 %57 000,0007T BA £ 1
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Remuneration Policy of the Group

The Group adopts sound policies of management incentives and competitive
remuneration, which aligns the interests of management, employees and
shareholders. The chief asset of the Group remains the skills and expertise of our
loyal staff and we have rightly invested much time and effort in the selection,
training and personal improvement of our staff.

The Group sets its remuneration policy by making reference to the prevailing
market conditions and a performance-based reward system. It is to ensure
that the Group is able to attract, retain and motivate executives of the highest
caliber, essential to the successful leadership and effective management of the
Group. The performance measures are balanced between financial and industrial
comparatives. The components of the remuneration package consist of base
salary, allowances, benefits-in-kind, fringe benefits including medical insurance
and contributions to pension funds, as well as incentives like discretionary bonus,
participation in share option scheme and long-term rewards.

The remuneration packages of the directors are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and determined by the Board except that no director or
any of his associates is allowed to make recommendation on or to determine his
own remuneration package. Director’s remuneration is determined by reference
to each director’s duties and responsibilities in the Group as well as the overall
performance of the respective company and the Group and the prevailing market
situation and competitiveness in the industry.

The remuneration packages of the senior management are determined by the
Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board by reference to their
respective responsibilities and accountability, target achievements, business results
and market competitiveness of the Group. The remuneration packages of the
managerial and support staff are determined by the senior management of the
Company.

Incentive bonus scheme for each major business segment is set up for senior
management staff and employees with significant contributions to the business
objectives. The scheme is business result oriented and performance based. Share
options are granted to directors, senior management and other employees
based on individual performance and overall contributions to the Group. The
number and terms of share options granted to each grantee are proposed by the
respective executive directors (except for options granted to themselves), reviewed
by the Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board.

The Group has sought to make the remuneration policy more transparent and
well communicated to its staff. Details of the remuneration payable to each
Director for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in Note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

FREZTHREFE

RSB ERR 2 B IR B RBBUR R BB F 1 2 %
BR<SEEE BEMERMNGEER R AEEZ&KE
ZEEDRAPRAZEZ QHEES Bt AEBEELHE
BEZEE HIARBRR T HEERAANER KSR
BIRe

AEBEFVEFMERGESEERTN - UHIFT—&
B TERIVEA 2 EHE - ARERASEER S B E
EBBABEBA & RN BERAERERAEEZA
A HETRANZE G BRI BOIKR RITRIERAKAE
ME PG FE - FMT B B RELATE R EY
Mgt MisEs (2 REERR RRARSHR)  AREE
TEAL 2 EBEEA A RARB RS SRR -

BERzHMEmMFENEESERES ThESSE
o HESEERREEMBMBEARREARS 2 HMFEE
HEZRIRE -BEE2HMISEBUEETNAKE 2B
AREE UREENAREARE 2 EEBRE MLE
BmSERRITAGFIERERE -

REEEABZHFHEBE I RTMNEESBEE MEHE
ZE2ERNERAZEMEREE ERKE FEREKE
Bz mismE R E - RERREHB T 2 HMFET
MARASEEEASEE -

REEETEXEB O BT EYEBEREERERZREE
BABREEFTEEA KR8 - At BIARBE RIKE R
HTERAB -EF FEEEABREMERSGRE
BEARBRRHAKE 2 BREERERBEE - SRR
R RBEEHE MR REENRNITESERER (1F
BT REE S 2RBRERIN) KHFMEZESEHNRBEH
EEEHE-

AEENKSHFHBRERBRAERSERBEBE TH-
FHEE2016F12A3TH L FERINEEEZHMFS
HNAFERZ FARMBHRRME -

HEREEBRAMRAT 2016F

57



58

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises Ms. LEE Jai Ying (Independent Non-
executive Director) as chairman, Ir Joseph CHOI Kin Hung (Executive Director),
Mr. LUl Chun Pong (who was re-designated from an Executive Director to a
Non-executive Director with effect from 1 January 2017), Mr. CHENG Sui Sang
(Independent Non-executive Director) and Mr. George YUEN Kam Ho (who was
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director and a member with effect
from 12 July 2016) as members.

The authority and duties of the Nomination Committee are set out in its specific
written terms of reference. Full text of the terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee is available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee is primarily responsible for formulating nomination
policy and leading the process of identifying and nominating suitable candidates.
Its duties are summarised below:

(i) review the structure, size and diversity (including, but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, skills, knowledge,
professional experience and length of service) of the Board at least annually;
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Group’s corporate strategy;

(i) identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select
or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships;

(i) identify and nominate candidates to fill casual vacancies of directors for the
Board's approval;

(iv)  taking into account the Group's corporate strategy and mix of skills,
knowledge, experience and diversity needed in the future, to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of
directors and succession planning for directors, in particular the chairman
and the chief executive;

(v)  assess the independence of independent non-executive directors and review
the independent non-executive directors’ annual confirmations on their
independence; and make disclosure of its review results in the Corporate
Governance Report;

(vi) regularly review the time required from a director to perform his/her
responsibilities and report to the Board of their findings; and

(vii) review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate; and review the measurable
objectives that the Board had set for implementing the Board Diversity
Policy, and the progress on achieving the objectives; and make disclosure of
its review results in the Corporate Governance Report annually.

HSIN CHONG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

EEZERT
REZEEmRERSLtT (B FITES ) IEAEF I
AERETREM (RTES) BIRAEE (HR201761
BIHBENTESHMTENTES)  BInElE (B Ik
HITEE) RRDERLE (HR20165F7 A 12BEZ T AT
STIITEERKE ) EEKE -

REZBECRBRIBREENEFEEMRBEREAN -2
AL EERERE XA NARE R RMEEE -

RAZESIZAAHERABRLIEYENIERA
ERE AR - KB E Mt T

() EIESFRIEFSNRE ABEKEZT (2
FBETERRMERN Fik XERBEER Bk &K
e AR BEERIRGFEHIE)  YRHARAAR
SEMNCERBEMABESSELNEMEZB RN

2 .
ik

iy YVEARSEERITETESERENAL L2
REBMATHEESIBBEAEFTSRIER:

iy VERELVEFEEHRRTROAR REES
&

(v) FEREE D ERIEARKRRAFT R 3
BahkZntls REEREAERZENLE
F (LERIFERITHAR) BEFERNEESRR

22 .
%

) FHEBUFRTESFNELENERBYIFNTE
EREBUMFELNFERR WE (BXEERR
H) NIRBERLE

V) TEHRNEERETEECAFNLENER L@E
EgEHERIER R

Vi) FEEBER MRS ESERES T BE: as
EEERITEFTEREZTEBERMBIER A 5
EERMEREE  UREBFE (REERTBE) W
BERIER



The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once a year. During the year ended
31 December 2016, two committee meetings were held. Attendances of the
meetings have been disclosed on page 51 of this report.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Nomination Committee members
(i) reviewed and considered that the structure, size, diversity and composition of
the Board are appropriate; (i) assessed the independence of Independent Non-
executive Directors; (iii) recommended the appointments of new Board members,
and (iv) recommended the aforesaid matters to the Board for approval.

The "Board Diversity Policy” sets out the approach to achieve diversity of the
Board. It is believed that a truly diverse board will include and make good use of
differences in the skills, background, experience, knowledge, expertise and other
qualities of members of the board. These differences will be taken into account in
determining the optimum composition of the Board. The Nomination Committee
will review the Board composition by considering the benefits of all aspects of
diversity, including but not limited to those described above. The “Board Diversity
Policy” shall be reviewed by the Nomination Committee, as appropriate, to ensure
its effectiveness.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee comprises four members, namely, Ir Joseph CHOI Kin
Hung, Mr. ZHOU Wei, Mr. Wilfred WU Shek Chun, Mr. LUl Chun Pong (who was
re-designated from an Executive Director to a Non-executive Director and ceased
to be a member with effect from 1 January 2017) and Mr. Eric TODD (who was
appointed as an Executive Director with effect from 9 March 2017 and was
appointed to be member with effect from 22 March 2017).

The authority and duties of the Executive Committee are set out in its specific
written terms of reference. Its primary duties are to approve banking matters,
issue of shares under any share option schemes of the Company, and
administrative issues of routine nature (excluding notifiable transactions), with a
view to assisting the Board to discharge partially its executive functions.

The Executive Committee shall meet as and when required depending on business
and operation needs. Members' attendances would depend on the importance
of the matters to be transacted. During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Executive Committee held 13 meetings to discharge their duties.
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Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for determining the policy for the corporate governance
of the Company and performing the corporate governance duties as below:

(i) develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance,

(i) review and monitor the training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management;

(i) review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with all legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv)  develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual
(if any) applicable to the employees and Directors; and

(v) review the Company's compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
requirements in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Board has in place procedures for Directors to seek Independent Professional
Advice.

Delegation to Management

Management Committee

The monitoring of business operations and implementation of business plans and
strategies adopted by the Board are performed by senior executives led primarily
by the Executive Committee. The Management Committee for the Group's
operations comprising all the Executive Directors and key senior executives
was established to oversee the achievement of the Group's operations. The
Management Committee holds regular meetings to review and discuss the
Group's performance against budget, business strategy, operational issues, and
matters relating to corporate services including human resources, corporate
communications, and information technology. Other management meetings
are also held regularly to review and discuss the day-to-day operations and
performance of individual business divisions.

Tender Procedures for Construction Related Business

The directors of the respective business divisions are responsible for reviewing
business opportunities and their associated risks; formulating viable business
models; and deciding the strategy and tactic towards each opportunity. These
directors or the managing director of the construction division, working together
with the estimator, the bid manager or other persons with relevant expertise
continuously review, discuss and approve the various business proposals
submitted.
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Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee for the property and construction operations
was set up to assess and manage market risks, financial risks, and operational risks
of the Company. The committee is led by an executive director as convener, with
members that comprise managing director of construction, managing director
of PRC property, group financial controller, general counsel, commercial director,
head of IT, human resources director, company secretary and internal audit. Risk
information is reviewed and assessed from time to time during the committee
meetings. A supervisory board that is chaired by the chief executive officer of the
Company with other executive directors will review the risk management report/
meeting minutes before this is communicated to the Audit Committee. The Risk
Management Committee for the property and facility management operations
(Synergis’ operations) will also submit its risk management report/meeting minutes
to the supervisory board for its overall consideration and assessment.

Risk Management and Internal Control
The Board has overall responsibility for the Group's systems of internal control and
for the assessment and management of risks.

While such systems are designed to identify and manage risks that could have an
adverse impact on the achievement of the Group's objectives, it does not provide
an absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Management is responsible for setting the appropriate tone from the top,
performing risk assessments, and owning the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal controls. The associated policies and procedures for risk
management and internal controls, are designed to help ensure that the Group’s
assets are safeguarded against unauthorised use or disposition; relevant rules and
regulations are adhered to and complied with; complete, accurate and reliable
financial and accounting records are maintained; and key risk factors including
business strategic, operational, financial and regulatory compliance risks which
may impact the Group’s performance are appropriately identified and managed.

The key elements of the Company's risk management and internal control
systems include:

e A distinct organisational structure for different responsible parties with
defined authority, responsibilities and risk management roles;

e The Board sets forth the proper risk management culture and risk appetite
for the Group, evaluates and determines the level of risk that the Group
should take and monitor regularly;

e The Risk Management Committee facilitates the risk assessment process and
timely communication to the Audit Committee and the Board. Also, they
ensure key business and operational risks properly identified and managed;
and

o A Risk Management Policy has been established to provide a framework
for the identification, analysis, evaluation, treatment, monitoring and
reporting of key financial risks and in particular, liquidity risk, currency risk
and interest rate risk, with a view to further strengthening the financial risk
management.

REEEZAE
ViNAN 7Eﬁki¢@%&ki**@2ﬂﬁ?£f¥§,\a PARHE
FER KRR RIS RR - B E R & Rk -%ZE 8
EH-EBHTESEETETEEA ﬁXE@%L?&%%
WiIB PR EEERCIE SEBRE  AEER
PESAREL B EE - ANBRRE - ’“TM\E&W*B
FZ - ZECEFZBITERT M HRBRER - BAR
ﬁiﬂli'ﬁ?ﬁkfrciflﬁﬁﬁi\ﬂﬁﬂ §$Z§F$Aﬂﬂﬁ/‘ﬂ
ﬁﬁi/amﬁﬁ% %% ﬁ%mﬂﬁLﬁﬁﬁ
%%& BHLE (FEER 2 LE) ZAREREE
A)TH#F"F*%Eixﬁi\ﬂﬁ’*”fiﬁi/ﬁ% RER A E
EH 2 RE8 KT

REERRAIBER
EESERREHALRBENRNPEL
BEE-

R BA K R S R ik M

HEMARE AR L EER U ERAEEBEEL
M BRI MRER L R EAR RIS
Ko

EREREMSERETRRIGETEN LBAER
BT RS ARREE - B BT R A RREE R RO AR RN
%&%%F%EE1%”X$'§IE’JQFTxL%E@EFH‘JU‘%E viE!

BRAERESET B ERETENUB RS
CHERRE: RS AEERBEEFENEANAR
R (BIEEBRE 28 MR RRAR) ZAHMNR
B o

ARBRBREERAFEZERFOERRAREE:

o  TEEMFETAFHENAEBE
BEENEREEME:

- AERmNEE -

o EEERASEFRTEEMREREEKERER
oF - BT N2 8 TE N 5 B ARHE o E B B R A [& B oK
I

o EREEZEeRERRGERFLMEEERZ
BEghEFRRR - NETREBREBRELR
RIEZ DAL EE R

o HERBREEBRRRBN 2 FHE EHE B
REHREBAMHRAR LEZABECRR H¥R

b e A R @ B R AR 2R DA — PIRTTRRE TR

HEREEBRAMRAT 2016F

61



62

Internal Control

The Group has separate internal audit functions for its principal property,
construction & construction related operations, and for its subsidiary property
and facility management operations, forming part of its ongoing effort to focus
on greater efficiency and to quickly respond to the management’s concern for
the likely problem areas due to their distinctive business nature. Internal audit
adopts risks and controls based audit approach. The internal audit work plan
for the subsidiary property and facility management operations is reviewed by
Group internal audit, and its audit reports and follow-up actions are circulated
to the Group internal audit for information. The work plans of internal audit are
reviewed/further reviewed and endorsed by the respective audit committees.
Examination of the processes, practices and procedures of internal controls for
business operations and corporate functions of the Group are performed on a
regular basis. Internal audit reports containing findings and recommendations for
improvements are submitted to the respective audit committees for review.

The Group is fully aware of its obligation of handling and dissemination of inside
information under the Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”). The Group has a set
of procedures and controls in place to preserve the confidentiality of inside
information relating to the Group. All Board members and senior management,
who are likely to possess the Group's inside information because of their offices
or employments in the Group, are bound by Model Code. In addition, every
employee is required to follow the guidelines of the code of conduct and the staff
handbook to keep unpublished inside information strictly confidential.

The Board has also considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group's accounting and
financial reporting function.

During the year under review, the Board has conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group through discussion with the Audit Committee on audit findings and
control issues at least annually. These procedures provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material errors, losses and fraud, and manage rather
than eliminate risks of failure in the Group’s operational systems and in the
achievement of the Group’s business objectives.

Integrity Committee

The Integrity Committee was established for the purpose of examining integrity-
related matters. Currently, the Integrity Committee is chaired by Ir Joseph CHOI
Kin Hung, an Executive Director and Co-Chief Executive Officer as chairman,
and members of this committee come from various departments and operating
divisions, including Human Resources, Finance & Accounts, Internal Audit,
Commercial and Project Administration. The Integrity Committee reports directly
to the Audit Committee. The authority and duties of the Integrity Committee are
set out in its specific written terms of reference as well as the policies, procedures
and guidelines relating to integrity issues.

Connected transactions

During the year, the Group entered into a series of transactions and provide
financial assistance to entities associated with an executive director, Mr. Zhou Wei,
which constitute connected transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.
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The Company had omitted to comply with the reporting, announcement
and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements of Rule 14A.35 of the
Listing Rules and failed to announce the provisions of financial assistance to the
connected entities at the time of the execution of the relevant agreements at the
material time.

Details of the connected transactions mentioned above are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 30 March 2017.

Delay In Publication of Annual Results and Postponement of Board
Meeting

The Company announced on 5 April 2017 that the release of annual results for
the year ended 31 December 2016 (the “Annual Results”) would be delayed.

The Board acknowledges that the delay in the publication of the announcement
of the Annual Results constitutes non-compliance with Rule 13.49(1) of the Rules.

Independent Auditor’s Report on the Company’s
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31
December 2016

As disclosed in sections headed “Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion” and “Disclaimer
of Opinion” in independent auditor’s report contained on pages 98 to 107 of
this report, the auditor of the Company did not express an audit opinion on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016 as a result of certain matters, including: (1) multiple uncertainties relating to
going concern; (2) transactions and balances relating to Mr. Zhou and his related
entities; (3) payments made to a construction company; and (4) payments made
to certain financial consultancy companies.

The Board of Directors of the Company has set up an independent investigation
committee in late March 2017 which has agreed to conduct the independent
investigation on the matters (2), (3) and (4) as mentioned above as soon as
practicable.

Directors’ Responsibility for Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and the Group on a going concern basis. With the support of the
accounting and finance functions led by Group Financial Controller of the Group,
the Directors have ensured that the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2016 have been prepared in accordance with appropriate
accounting policies applied consistently save for those new and amended
accounting standards, if any, as disclosed in the Notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

In preparing the interim financial information and annual financial statements,
announcements and other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules,
the Directors aim at presenting a balanced, clear and understandable assessment
of the Group's position and prospects. Financial information put before the Board
for approval by management is accompanied by sufficient explanation to enable
the Directors to make an informed assessment.

The independent auditor’s report, which contains the statement of the external
auditor about its reporting responsibilities on the Group consolidated financial
statements, is set out on pages 98 to 107 of this annual report.
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Auditor's Remuneration 3 4 K

The fees paid/payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company's external — #ZE2016%F12 8318 IFFfE - siA R BISNEZ BT B Rl
auditor, for services rendered for the year ended 31 December 2016 (excluded GBS FHRISESAAIEH 2 RECH, BN ER (TRIEAE
the fees in respect of Synergis Holdings Limited which was disposed by the Group ~ BASRERAFEEHEZHETEEBARLAGER)

during the year) are set out as follows: AT
Services rendered Fees paid/payable
FF 12 £t BR 75 Bft EHRA
HK$'000
BT
Audit services BB 7,269
Non-audit services* IEEIZ RS * 3,118

* including advisory services for compliance with regulatory requirements and potential ~ * BIEEBRTEERERREBER S hHBVBERERN #1758
transactions, interim review of financial information, services on notes issuance and B2 R R ERER 5% E SRR R -
continuing connected transactions assurance etc.

Company Secretary YNCIE R

The Company Secretary is responsible for facilitating the Board process, as wellas AR EZEBEHBEESIRBRBZEE UNEZERE
communications among Board members. The Company Secretary complied with ] Z/&@B - RAIMEF A LB TOREEKR B
all the qualifications under the Listing Rules.

Shareholders’ Rights, Investor Relations and BERER RBEMERARRZBE
Communications with Shareholders

In addition to publishing interim and annual reports, announcements, circulars, ~ BREB TR EREEFR NG BR - ZTEELEH
quarterly business updates, and press releases, updates on the Group's K#EIN BEAEBSHERBERZEETESHINAK
developments are also provided on the Company's website which is updated ona A B 48 uA I 1785 F A FE #7

timely manner.

Comments, suggestions and enquiries from shareholders or investors to the Board ~ ¥R IR EHWMARNESSEHTANER - EHELEW
are welcome through the following channels to the Company: BODE B TSR TARA]:

() by post to the Company’s Hong Kong principal place of business at Hsin () BHFEAAFZEBEBEEME WU AF BN

Chong Center, 107-109 Wai Yip Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong BEEEEEE107-1095F & L
(i) by facsimile transmission to (852) 2516 6596 (i) {EEZE(852) 2516 6596
(i) by telephone at (852) 2579 8238 (i)  ExFE(852) 2579 8238
(iv) by email at info@hcg.com.hk (iv) 3T HEinfo@hcg.com.hk

(v  on the Company's website at www.hsinchong.com under “IR Contact” of ~ (v)  F 72 A48 siwww.hsinchong.comA [1% & & BF 1% |
“Investor Relations” 2 IREREH] —H
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Shareholders’ Rights, Investor Relations and
Communications with Shareholders (continued)

An annual general meeting is deemed as a forum for shareholders to
communicate directly with the Board members. Notice of 20 clear business days
together with detailed agenda is given to shareholders for the annual general
meeting of the Company and ten clear business days for all special general
meetings of the Company. Separate resolution is proposed at an annual general
meeting on each substantially separate issue, including the election of each
individual director.

In accordance with the Bye-laws, any shareholder holding not less than one-
tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at a
general meeting shall have the right, by written requisition served to the Board or
the Company Secretary, to require a special general meeting to be convened by
the Board for transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Any vote
of shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll. The chairman of
meeting will explain the poll voting procedures at the relevant general meeting.

Continuous Corporate Governance Enhancement

The Board is committed to continuous corporate governance enhancement
including giving closer attention to any regulatory changes with a view to
maintaining a corporate culture built on ethics and integrity and increasing
shareholder value as a whole.
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About This Report

We are pleased to present this Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG")
Report, which provides an overview of the ESG performance of Hsin Chong
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company” or “Hsin Chong”) together with its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2016.

The scope of this report covers the major operations in the Group’s building
construction and property development across Hong Kong, Macau and the
Mainland of China.

This report is prepared in accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide under
Appendix 27 of the Main Board Listing Rules issued by the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited in 2015.

Our Philosophy in ESG

The Group has strong belief in the need of prioritising environmental and social
responsibilities. Besides fulfilling our business objectives, we are committed
to operating in an accountable and sustainable way by integrating ESG
considerations in our day-to-day operations.

Our Board oversees the direction of our ESG strategy to align our business
objectives with sustainable growth. A dedicated ESG Steering Committee,
comprised of executive directors and senior management, has been established
to assist the Board in setting out principles and priorities for managing our ESG
impacts. ESG performance of our businesses is measured, reviewed and reported
to the management periodically for creating sustained values for our stakeholders.

Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality Assessment

We maintain open and honest dialogues with our stakeholders on important
ESG issues. Given that our operations span across several regions, we interact
with a wide range of stakeholders including employees, customers, suppliers,
shareholders and local communities. We engage our stakeholders regularly across
various channels, such as meetings, workshops, interviews and surveys.

This ESG report serves to respond to the key concerns and expectations of our
stakeholders. Representative initiatives have been prioritised and highlighted
in this report, in the order of employment and labour standards, operating
practices, environmental protection and community involvement. We believe
these examples can best demonstrate our efforts in addressing our stakeholders’
interests and concerns.
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Caring for Our People

As one of the Asia’s longest-standing construction groups, Hsin Chong takes
pride in being responsive to the needs and aspirations of our employees. In
order to attract, retain and motivate our talent, the Group provides competitive
remuneration packages as well as a wide range of support services to support
employees’ well-being and professional career development.

Employment well-being

Our success relies on the dedication of our skilled and competent workforce.
It is of paramount importance that we continue to attract and retain skilled
talent. We work closely with the Hong Kong Construction Industry Council
("CIC") to attract talent through Contractor Cooperative Training Scheme and
the CIC Joint Apprenticeship Programme. We also broaden our talent pipelines
through recruitment days at our headquarters in Hong Kong as well as through
recruitment talks at local universities and the Vocational Training Council. In
addition, Hsin Chong has a graduate trainee programme that aims to attract
highly qualified talent who are eager to develop a rewarding long-term career
with us. In 2016, more than 30 graduate trainees from various education
background were recruited, these includes engineering, quantity surveying and
construction management.

Recognising employees’ work performances and capabilities are the core basis
of rewarding and promoting our talents. We offer reasonable remuneration
packages which include allowances, benefits-in-kind, medical insurance,
contributions to pension funds, discretionary bonus, as well as participation in a
share option scheme or long-term rewards to eligible employees. These packages
are reviewed and adjusted regularly to keep up with the competitive employment
market level.

We work to provide an inclusive working environment for our employees. \We
instil corporate identity by nurturing team spirit among our employees through a
wide range of social activities. These include excursions, festival parties, interest
groups, community services events, athletic teams and its cheerleading teams. In
2016, the Group welcomed the newly joined graduate trainees to the Graduate
Trainee Summer Camp. During the week-long event, the newcomers were able
to build relationship with various departments through a series of workshops,
competitions and group-discussions.

Hsin Chong is committed to fostering employees’ well-being. As part of our
commitment, we provide leave entitlements for a more flexible work and personal
schedule. The Employee Assistance Programme (EAP) was initiated in May 2016
to promote mental health awareness and provide assistance if needed. This
program aims to help employees in handling work, family and personal related
stress in a confidential manner.

We have extended our care to families of our employees. The Hsin Chong Staff's
Children Education Fund established on the 50th Anniversary of the Group. Since
1990, the fund has awarded scholarships and grants to employees’ children in
supporting their education and personal development.
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As a result of our dedication, we were presented with numerous awards which
recognise the Group’s work towards promoting a happy and conducive working
environment. During the reporting period, not only we received the Distinguished
Family-Friendly Employers 2015/2016 Award, we also received a Special Mention
under the Family-Friendly Employers Award Scheme for the second time,
organised by the Home Affairs Bureau and the Family Council. Additionally,
we also attained the Happy Company Label under the “Happiness-at-Work
Promotional Scheme 2016" jointly organised by the Promoting Happiness Index
and Hong Kong Productivity Council.

Diversity and equal opportunity forms part of our people strategy. Our
employment practices support the building of an inclusive work environment
free from any kind of discriminations including gender, age, nationality, sexual
orientation, family status, race or religion.

Health and Safety

Hsin Chong places great emphasis on maintaining workplace health and safety.
The Corporate Safety Committee was established to safeguard the proper
mitigation and management of occupational health and safety (“OHS") related
risks. Our management system is certified against recognised international
standards such as the Occupational Health and Safety Assessment Series (OHSAS)
18001. Our operations adhere to our OHS Policy to identify, assess, control and
monitor safety risks. We also raise staff awareness on safety matters through OHS
training and safety workshops. In addition to safety inspections, OHS incidents
and near-misses are recorded and followed up for continuous improvement. As a
result of our work in promoting workplace safety, Hsin Chong received a number
of awards related to OHS. For example, in 2016 we were presented with the
Bronze Safety Management System Award in the “Construction” category at the
15th Hong Kong Occupational Safety and Health Award ceremony conducted
by the Occupational Safety and Health Council. We were also honoured at the
22nd Considerate Contractors Site Award Scheme, jointly organised by the
Development Bureau and the Construction Industry Council.

Training and Development

Hsin Chong strives to actualise the full potential of our employees through on-the-
job training, professional skills training and managerial training. To encourage our
employees to undertake lifelong learning, we provide Staff Education Sponsorship
and the Early Leave for Study arrangement. With the aim of enriching personal
and professional development, we enable eligible employees to be nominated in
the Tomorrow’s Young Leadership Programme organised by the Global Institute.

Labour Practice

The Group strictly prohibits the use of child and forced labour. It has implemented
policies and procedures to prevent, monitor, report and properly handle suspected
malpractices. We expect our contractors and suppliers to adhere to the same
standards of behaviour when working with us.

Regulatory Compliance

During the year, we were not aware of any non-compliance with laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group relating to employment
and labour practices and occupational health and safety. Nor did we identify any
incidents that have a significant impact on the Group relating to the use of child
or forced labour.
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Caring for Customers

We aspire to be a leader in construction, property and related services. The
Group has been pursuing the transformation from a building contractor to a
company that provides a full range of businesses including civil and engineering,
interiors and fitting-out, electrical and mechanical engineering and construction
management. In upholding our principles of “quality, safety, reliability and
integrity”, we deliver efficient solutions, quality products and services to earn
customer respect and loyalty.

Product and Service Excellence
We apply our expertise and strengths to build world-class facilities that improve
quality of life.

Our teams focus on achieving quality and efficiency throughout construction
projects. From material procurement, material testing, construction and
completion, stringent quality assurance and control procedures are applied from
start to end. Our dedicated experts monitor and control quality, time and cost
to help ensure effective planning, design and construction from inception to
completion.

Flexibility, reliability and effective teamwork are key to the success of projects. At
our construction project of the Imperial Pacific Resort in Garapan, Saipan, our
team has demonstrated exceptional standard in solving problems despite the
lack of material supply and large scale of the project. For instance, we dispatched
dedicated personnel to station in the mainland of China for quality production
and timely delivery of materials. At the construction field, 18 employees from Hsin
Chong collaborated closely with 1,700 locally-based employees, transcending the
cultural barriers and delivered the work of quality and timeliness, despite various
challenges such as last minute design changes and adverse weather conditions.

During 2016, numerous organisations showed appreciation to our quality service.
We were recognised with awards such as “Outstanding Construction Group
Award” at Mediazone's annual “Most Valuable Services Awards in Hong Kong
2016".

Innovative Solutions

Delivering innovative solutions is part of our commitment to customers. As the
main contractor of the M+ Museum, construction in the West Kowloon District
of Hong Kong, we successfully overcame the structural challenge by adopting
an innovative engineering solution. As over half of the museum'’s podium
base will rest on top of the Airport Express/Tung Chung Line railway tunnel, a
light structure is required to support the weight above without breaching the
maximum limit of safety. Our team designed a mega truss to support the podium,
used rare composite of structural steel and concrete to meet structural constraints.
Additionally, the podium was built from the top-down, instead of bottom up in
traditional projects.
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In Macau, the “Eiffel Tower” of Parisian Macao marks another state-of-art
solution delivered by Hsin Chong. We took great care to simulate the details
of the original Eiffel Tower. By using modern computational technologies,
such as finite element analyses, 3D drafting and shop drawing preparation,
we successfully tackled complex design, fabrication and erection of the lattice
geometry.

Customer Protection

To maintain ongoing communication and build close relationships with our
customers, a complaint handling mechanism is implemented to receive, record
and address complaints from customers. Follow-up actions are undertaken by
dedicated teams to enhance service quality in the long run.

Customer data privacy is dealt seriously across the Group. All collected customer
data are treated as strictly confidential and handled with due care, accessible only
by designated personnel.

Regulatory Compliance

In 2016, we were not aware of any incidents of non-compliance with laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group concerning product
responsibility.

Caring for Business Partners

The Group interacts with a wide range of business partners, including
subcontractors, suppliers and service providers across our footprint in construction
and property development business. We seek to drive positive influence by
engaging our suppliers to join force with us in providing responsible and
sustainable solutions to the society.

The Group adheres to fair operating practices through robust procurement
mechanism which sets out screening criteria to identify and measure risks from
suppliers. The criteria cover not only technical capability but also performance in
quality, safety, labour and environmental compliance. A competitive tendering
process is required to demonstrate our commitment to maintaining fairness and
integrity of our supply chain. We manage our supply chain risks through vigilant
monitoring and regular performance appraisals. In the event of business partners
failed to comply with our standards, they are required to undertake corrective
actions in a timely manner, otherwise they may be suspended from any business
relationship with us.

We seek to exert positive influence over our supply chain and contribute to the
sustainable development of the construction and property development value
chain. For example, we encourage our suppliers to participate in our green
initiatives to manage environmental impacts. We work closely with suppliers
who share our philosophy in responsible management of quality, safety, labour
and environmental issues. To deepen our collaborative relationships, we regularly
communicate with our suppliers to share knowledge and experience of good
industry practices, and seek opportunities to apply in our projects and operations.
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Anti-corruption

We are committed to operating as a responsible business by upholding high
ethical standards and building trust with our stakeholders. Our anti-corruption
principles are well communicated to employees through induction and refresher
training, talks by the Independent Commission Against Corruption (ICAC)
and compliance training. Clear guidelines and Code of Conduct in the staff
handbook are conveyed to the employees. Meanwhile, we established an
Integrity Committee with an aim to examine suspected matters and prevent
from compromising corporate ethical values. The Integrity Committee also serves
as a whistle-blowing channel for staff to report any integrity-related issues in a
confidential manner. Reported cases will be followed up promptly and confirmed
cases will be reported to the Audit Committee.

Regulatory Compliance
During the reporting period, we were not aware of any breach of laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group relating to anti-corruption.

Caring for the Environment

Environmental responsibility forms an important part of our corporate social
responsibility. To honour our commitment to the environment, the Group puts
great emphasis on improving our environmental practices through minimising
waste, maximising resource efficiency and reducing environmental impacts from
our operations.

Managing Emissions and Improving Resource Efficiency

The Group has policies in place to encourage continuous improvement in
environmental management practices. We have also implemented environmental
and energy management systems that are certified to the 1SO14001 and
ISO50001 standards respectively. Numerous initiatives have been carried out
across our operations to reduce emissions and waste, enhance resource efficiency
and minimise environmental footprint.

We work to minimise energy consumption and greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions.
At our construction fields, we improve efficiency by adopting renewable energy
and energy efficient equipment.

We introduced renewable energy sources to cut our GHG emissions. For example,
at construction sites we have added biodiesel to our existing fuel mix for all
non-road mobile machinery such as generators and excavators. Solar panels are
installed at a number of site offices to power water heaters for showering.

In maximising energy efficiency, we have installed LED lamps at construction
sites and office in replacement of less energy efficient models. Our teams are
encouraged to switch off idle plants and machinery to avoid energy wastage. To
further improve fuel efficiency and reduce GHG emissions, regular maintenance of
the construction plants and equipment are conducted.
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We encourage a waste management hierarchy that prioritises avoidance,
reduction, reuse and recycling, over disposal. Our project teams carefully plan
work programmes to avoid over-ordering of materials. In addition, good site
practices are adopted to prevent cross contamination of materials. Excavated
materials from the site are sorted, segregated and reused as fill materials at the
premises as much as possible. Reusable metal formwork is encouraged to be
applied at site to reduce material consumption such as wood.

During the Parisian Macao project where we were the main contractor, each floor
has 2 central recycling stations and 400 large recycling bins to collect recyclable
plastic, metal, paper and cardboard. Extra labour was hired to manage recycled
material collection and compression for transport. The project achieved a 50%
recovery rate through recycling. The Parisian Macao has been awarded a LEED
certification (Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design) for its sustainable
building strategies.

We apply good construction site management to reduce other environmental
impacts such as dust emissions and wastewater discharges. Control measures
such as water sprays, dust curtains and covers are applied to suppress dust from
excavation and during transportation. Construction wastewater is collected and
treated for reuse on site for wheel washing and dust suppression.

The Group supports the use of materials from responsible sources during
construction. For example, we import Forest Stewardship Council-certified timbers
that are sourced and managed through sustainable sources.

In April 2016, two of our projects were honoured at the Hong Kong Awards for
Environmental Excellence (“HKAEE”), in recognition of the Group's dedication
to promote a greener environment. We were presented the Bronze Award —
Construction Industry for the MTR Shatin to Central project, Contract 1109 —
Stations and Tunnels of Kowloon City Section. Our effort in the main contract
work for the Ho Man Tin Project (Mantin Heights), the residential development
at Sheung Lok Street and Sheung Shing Street, was recognised with the Merit
Award. The Ho Man Tin Project also won the Platinum Award in both Kerry
Properties — Green Construction Site Award 2016 and Kerry Properties — Best
Green Leadership Award for the recognition of our eco-friendly construction
practices.

Supporting Green Buildings

In the role of a contractor, we actively seek ways to contribute to a more
sustainable living environment. The concept of sustainable living and working is
embedded and applied throughout the building construction lifecycle. We work
closely with clients in identifying better ways for bringing green building designs
to life. The Group encourages and supports employees to add value to project
delivery by undertake training on green building assessment and certification.
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In the M+ Museum project, we endeavour to support this project in attaining
a BEAM Plus Gold Rating (Building Environmental Assessment Method) by
minimising the environmental impacts during construction.

Regulatory Compliance

The Group was not aware of any non-compliance of laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group relating to air and GHG emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste during 2016.

Caring for Community

Caring for Community is a value shared by the Group and its employees. We are
committed to giving back to the society through leveraging our resources and
supporting meaningful projects and charitable services.

During 2016, we attained a number of recognitions for our continuous efforts
in giving back to the society. We received the Corporate Citizenship Logo from
the Hong Kong Productivity Council, which demonstrated our achievement in
support in social welfare. The Group was also awarded the Caring Company Logo
2015/16 by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service for the 14" consecutive year,
and also the CSR Advocate Mark from the Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency
for the 4" year in a row.

We have three main focuses when developing community initiatives, which are
youth education and development, community wellness and conservation. During
the reporting period, we made a charitable contribution of HK$157,000 and
engaged our employees in social services to provide support and show care to the
less fortunate members in the society.

Youth Education and Development

Hsin Chong continues to provide funding to support adolescents and young
adults for their education. We recognise the importance of STEM (Science,
Technology, Engineering and Mathematics) education in the early stages of
youth development. In 2016, we sponsored a team of young engineers from
Sha Tin College during their journey to design their own Formula 1 race car
in the F1 in Schools Hong Kong Finals Competition. The competition fostered
students’ interest in STEM through practical applications of physics, aerodynamics,
fabrication and design and facilitated teamwork.

Additionally, we continue to provide scholarships for the Hong Kong Institute
of Vocational Education which is intended to recognise outstanding students. In
March 2016, more than 40 employees from Macau participated with their family
members in the charitable sports event “beHERO Run 2016" to raise fund for
teenagers in need.
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Community Wellness

The Group has been organising blood donation day since 2009 in response to
the Hong Kong Red Cross’s plea for blood donation. This year, we received many
support from staff, more than 50 of them donated their blood for the cause.

The Hsin Chong “Love & Care” team, which consisted of volunteer from all
department took part in the “Bring Warmth to the Elderly” in November 2016.
The team visited the Salvation Army Nam Tai Centre for Senior Citizens with gifts
and organised activities to bring joy and warmth to the elderly.

The Group also demonstrated its charitable spirit in a number of fund raising
events. More than 50 employees participated in Dress Causal Day to raise fund
for the Community Chest. Over 130 colleagues donated money during the Love
Teeth Day to help the less privileged to gain access to dental care.

Hsin Chong has also put many efforts in various sport-related charity events. In
January 2016, more than 70 employees brought other members to participate in
the annual charity walk "Walk for Millions” organised by the Community Chest to
raise funds for the less unfortunate. Similarly, our colleagues also raise awareness
of mental health through participation in Charity Run held by Joyful Foundation.
They also fundraised for the Construction Charity Fund at the Construction
Industry Council Sports Day.

Conservation

As part of the Group's effort to cherish our environment and protect biodiversity,
Hsin Chong sponsored the Ocean Park Conservation Day, organised by Ocean
Park Conservation Foundation. A series of workshops, nature tours and
programmes were held to raise public awareness on conservation. The theme of
2016 was “Biodiversity Fiesta”, with a focus on protecting wildlife especially the
endangered species.
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The Board have pleasure in presenting their report and the consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2016 to the shareholders.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities
of the Company's subsidiaries are building construction, civil engineering,
electrical and mechanical installation, interiors and special projects, property
development and investment, and provision of property and facility management
services. The provision of interiors and special projects, and property and facility
management services are undertaken by Synergis Holdings Limited, the shares
of which are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange, and a non wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company up to 21 November 2016 upon which the
Group disposed its entire interests in it. Particulars of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries are set out in Note 46 to the consolidated financial statements and
particulars of its joint operations are set out in Note 22 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Segment Information
Details of segment information are set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Business Review
Details of the business review information are set out in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 6 to 22 of this annual report.

Environmental Policies and Performance

We consider environmental protection is essential to the long-term development
of the Group and will constantly improve a management practices so as to
minimise waste, maximise efficiencies and reduce our negative environmental
impact on the environment.

For details, please refer to the section headed "“Environmental, Social and
Governance” on pages 66 to 74 of this annual report.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory requirements
and the risk of non-compliance with such requirements. The Group has been
allocating system and staff resources to ensure ongoing compliance with rules and
regulations.

The Group's operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s subsidiaries in
Hong Kong and the mainland China while the Company itself was incorporated
in Bermuda and listed on the Stock Exchange in Hong Kong. Our establishment
and operations accordingly shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in
Hong Kong, Bermuda and the mainland China. A review was undertaken of
procurement processes, procedures and practices for compliance with the new
Competition Ordinance that came into force in December 2015. No significant
amendments were required as the preexisting approach was already consistent
with the ethos and requirements of the Ordinance.

To ensure compliance with the new Competition Ordinance, the Group
has conducted trainings for our staff. We also step up measures to increase
safety awareness amongst our management and staff to prevent accidents in
contravention with safety regulations.
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Risks and Uncertainties

Various risks that the Company may face have been disclosed in the Corporate
Governance Report and the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements of
this Report.

Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers

The Group ensures all staff are reasonably remunerated and we regularly review
and improve our policies on remuneration and benefits, training, occupational
health and safety.

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers. A customer
complaint handling mechanism is in place to receive, analyse and study complaints
and make recommendations on remedies with the aim of improving service
quality.

The Group is in good relationship with its suppliers and conducts a fair and strict
appraisal of its suppliers.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in
the consolidated income statement on page 108; the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on page 109 and the state of affairs of the Group and of
the Company as at 31 December 2016 are set out in the consolidated balance
sheet on pages 110 to 111.

The Board did not recommend the payment of interim dividend for the six months
ended 30 June 2016 (2015: 1.0 HK cent per share). To preserve funds for the
expansion and development of the Company, the Board does not recommend
the payment of final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).
Accordingly, total dividends for the financial year of 2016 is nil (2015: 1.0 HK cent
per share).
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Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages
114 to 116 and in Note 45 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the operating results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last 4 financial years and for the year ended 31 December 2016 is set
out on page 215. This summary does not form part of the consolidated financial
statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Leasehold Land

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and leasehold land
of the Group during the year are set out in Note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Major Properties

A summary of the properties of the Group held for investment/own use/sale and
properties under development as at 31 December 2016 is set out on pages 220
to 223.

Share Capital
Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are set
out in Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2016, calculated under
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), amounted to nil (2015:
HK$170,769,000).

Pre-emptive Rights
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws although there
is no restriction against such rights under the laws of Bermuda.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

Pursuant to bye-law 177 of the Company’s Bye-laws, every director or other
officer of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or
about the execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto,
and no Director or other officer shall be liable for any loss, damages or misfortune
which may happen to or be incurred by the Company in the execution of the
duties of his/her office or in relation thereto, provided that the Bye-laws shall only
have effect in so far as its provisions are not avoided by the Bermuda Companies
Act. The Company and its listed subsidiary have maintained Directors and officers
liability insurance during the year.
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Directors
The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to the date of this
report were:

Non-executive Chairman
Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan

Executive Directors

Ir Joseph CHOI Kin Hung (Co-Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. ZHOU Wei (Chief Strategic Officer)

Mr. Wilfred WU Shek Chun (Chief Risk Officer)

Mr. Eric TODD (appointed with effect from 9 March 2017)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. YAN Jie

Mr. CHEN Lei

Mr. CHUI Kwong Kau

Mr. LUI Chun Pong (re-designated with effect from 1 January 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHENG Sui Sang

Ms. LEE Jai Ying

Mr. KWOK, Shiu Keung Ernest

Mr. George YUEN Kam Ho (appointed with effect from 12 July 2016)

Note:

Mr. GAO Jingyuan resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director with effect from 12 July
2016. He has confirmed that he has no disagreement with the Board and there is nothing relating
to the affairs of the Company that needed to be brought to the attention of the shareholders of the
Company or the Stock Exchange.

The Profiles of Directors who are in office as at the date of this report are set out
on pages 23 to 36 of this annual report.

In accordance with bye-law 98(A) of the Bye-laws, Ir Joseph CHOI Kin Hung, Mr.
CHEN Lei, Mr. CHUI Kwong Kau and Mr. CHENG Sui Sang shall retire by rotation
but, being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
2017 annual general meeting. Besides, Mr. George YUEN Kam Ho was appointed
by the Board as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company with
effect from 12 July 2016 and Mr. Eric TODD was appointed by the Board as
an Executive Director with effect from 9 March 2017. In accordance with bye-
law 101(B) of the Bye-laws, they shall retire from office, but being eligible, have
offered themselves for re-election at the forthcoming 2017 annual general
meeting. Save for the aforesaid, the other remaining directors of the Company
would continue in office.

The Company has received from each Independent Non-executive Director
an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules, and considers that all the Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent in accordance with the terms of the independence guidelines set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

HSIN CHONG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

EE
REZE2016F12A3MBEFERARBEARREAHILE &
EmMT

FHITER

MRS A

BITEF

B TAZRD (BETTIARE,)
BIEEE (BEREE)

EMEELE (BHERARE)
EPRIZ S (201753 AR BEEE)

FHITEF

B kA

PRZZCHE

BEXIREA

BRFBLLE (F2017E1A1BRAE)

BUFRITEF

BiIm St

T=F4at

gL

REERE (R2016F7A 128 RIEZT)

G

BREFECFEEIFNITES  520165F7 A 128 AR - IR
BERBESWESE  TEEMBEAAREBEZEERIEBEAAR
P& SR B B X AT R

EEEERNAREAHCBEFNHNAFREBAEE
36E °

RIEAB A 2 40 RISE08(AV K - 28 TA2A0 - BREZ LA &
Bk R Bl 3 A S A B BN HG R 1T 2 201 7 IR R B 4F
AeHERT HEESFAERLBEEEREMT LN
REEEEE016F7ANEREESS S X AB I IEH
TEEERIELREB20176F3 AR HEE TSR (T AH
TEE - IRFMB 2 MBIFE101BME - BWEBEREGRITZ
20176 IR EFAE LET HEAERTBEEBRET-
BLA LR BN RA R ESBE BRI -

AARCERESMBI SFRITESRE EHARAFE313M4G
REBUMEHZ FERAS URA/MEBILIFRNTE
ERE TR RIE3N3ERPTE 2 B IS HESIE RBIZA
+o



Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at the 2017 annual
general meeting of the Company has entered into a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not terminable within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements and
Contracts

Save as disclosed in the connected transactions section, there were no
transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in relation to the Group's
business to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries
or holding companies was a party and in which a Director and the Director's
connected party had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of or at any time during the year.

Directors’ Emoluments
Details of directors’ emoluments are set out in Note 11 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company and its Associated
Corporations

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company and their associates in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO")) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules, were as follows:
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Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company

RERFRGRIEHRGCIFE

Approximate
percentage of

interest in
Number of Number of the issued
shares held/ underlying share
Name of Directors Capacity involved shares held Total capital
HERT
B8 SR BFHZHER BEzHR
EERR ELv ZEin®E B8 E #at HHESLL
(Note 4)
(PRtzE4)
LIN Zhuo Yan Interest of spouse 1,466,858,789 - 1,466,858,789 25.70%
METE fie (B (Note 1)
(PH3ET)
Interest of controlled
corporations - 2,704,166,666  2,704,166,666 47.39%
X EEER (Note 2)
(Ff5E2)
Joseph CHOI Kin Hung Beneficial owner - 1,334,000 1,334,000 0.023%
Ef@in Exn#lBEA (Note 3)
(P5E3)
ZHOU Wei Beneficial owner 48,932,000 - 48,932,000 0.86%
5 EnEAA
LUI Chun Pong Beneficial owner - 750,000 750,000 0.013%
2iRH BnEa A (Note 3)
(f5E3)
Notes: BiaE

1 475,816,993 ordinary shares are held by Neo Summit Limited (“Neo Summit”), which is
owned by (a) Pinnacle State Real Estate Limited as to 28.89%; (b) Summit View Holdings
Limited (“Summit View") as to 13.33%; (c) Jones Capital Investments Limited as to 28.89%;
and (d) Becl World Holding Ltd as to 28.89%. Jones Capital Investments Limited is wholly-
owned by Ms. MA Kwing, Pony (“Ms. MA"). As such, Neo Summit is deemed to be a
controlled corporation of Ms. MA under the SFO.

991,041,796 ordinary shares are held by Summit View, which is owned as to 50% by Dr.
Wilfred WONG Ying Wai and 50% by Ms. MA. As such, Summit View is deemed to be a
controlled corporation of Ms. MA under the SFO.

Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan is the spouse of Ms. MA Kwing, Pony and is deemed to be interested in
the aforesaid 1,466,858,789 shares under the SFO.
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2 As disclosed in (i) the announcement of the Company dated 15 May 2014, Hsin Chong
Property Holdings Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) as the Purchaser
entered into the Acquisition Agreement with Rich Century Development Limited (a company
wholly-owned by the Non-executive Chairman of the Company, Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan) (“Rich
Century”) as the Vendor and Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan as the warrantor regarding a very substantial
acquisition in relation to the acquisition of a property development project in the PRC; and (ii)
the announcement of the Company dated 4 November 2014, a Supplemental Agreement
was entered into amongst the same parties. As part of the consideration of the Acquisition
Agreement, the Company may issue to Rich Century convertible preference shares (“CPSs”)
which can be converted into Shares in the Company. As such, Rich Century being a company
wholly owned by Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan is deemed to be a controlled corporation of Mr. LIN Zhuo
Yan under the SFO.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 8 January 2015 in relation to the
issuance of CPSs as part of the consideration, the total number of CPSs (issued or which
may be issued) to Rich Century and which can be converted into Shares of the Company is
6,253,829,151. Upon issue of certain number of CPSs to Rich Century on 8 January 2015,
it then disposed 1,855,563,322 CPSs on the same date. Therefore, as of 30 June 2015, Rich
Century held 4,398,265,830 CPSs (rounding difference included).

As further disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 30 June 2015, 15
January 2016 and 26 April 2016 respectively in relation to the issuance of CPSs as part of
the consideration, Rich Century was further allotted by the Company 1,095,042,146 CPSs,
259,263,039 CPSs and 295,833,333 CPSs on 8 July 2015, 15 January 2016 and 26 April
2016 respectively. Rich Century then disposed 1,095,042,146 CPSs, 43,960,645 CPSs,
259,263,039 CPSs, 280,000,000 CPSs and 15,833,333 CPSs on 15 July 2015, 15 January
2016, 19 January 2016, 29 April 2016 and 31 May 2016 respectively. Therefore, as at 31
December 2016, Rich Century held 2,704,166,666 CPSs.

3 As at 31 December 2016, the interests in the underlying shares held by the Directors
represented share options granted pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by the
Company on 22 May 2008. Details of share options granted were set out below:

2 SING)ZAQE HEA2014F5 8158 2 AEFTEE - #HEMER
BERAR (ARR—H2EHRENBAR) (ERER)HEF)
HERERAR (—HERRARERTERENREEEERER
Bzar) ([FHERE]) (EREHR) RMEEE (ERER
N AR — B RFRE MEEREE 2EEEANES
R MW EE B KA AT BEA2014F11 B4R 2 AEFTHE
B R ZETAF TR e  (ERBERERE —35
N A [ F R BT AT SR E AR ([T R EER]) -
HA 8 AR ARG - Bt RIFEHRBAEED - FtHER
(MRBRELEZERAZ AR WIRAMRERLEZ ZIEEE -

SN AR BEA2015F1 ASH WA AR 1T A B0 E SR 1
BEMAREZ REFTEE B Rk At RET 2 ATERE
Je k4B 2A6,253,829,151/% - I ATE IR B AR A B © 720155
1AsAMAIt BRI TE TEE 2 IERELRE  ERXFAB L
1,855,563,32201% AT 5 #218 50 iR < A It - 720156 308 + F
2R #554,398,265,8300 AT 8RB ST AR (B AAZER) o

AR E B E S R A201556 4308 201651 4158 %2016
FAR26B AR A BRI ERELRIERIHREZASH
#— SR FIEEES BI2015%7 A8  20165F1 5158 &
2016F4A26 B A A 7 # — 2P Br 51,095,042, 146/% Al 85448
Je % ~ 259,263,0390% A] #5442 5t % 12 295,833,333 AT $5 1A (E 5
% o FII 2% R 2 1% 9 BIA201547 A 158 20161 A15H 2016
F1H19H *2016F4 A298 % 201645 A31H H151,095,042,146
[ AT 8318 SEAR - 43,960,6450% AT 54448 45 ik - 259,263,0390% AT
B STAY - 280,000,000% AT 838 S A% 12 15,833,333 % Al 853
1B5Eh% - At - 2016912 A31H - Ftth 3R 1% 52,704,166,666
% AT $E B SR

3 M2016F12A318  EFR/HEZEBRMD 2 ERIBIREBERAR)
200845 22 B K48 2 SRR AR AT 115 1 2 SR AGHE - 1 2 R
REF BRI

Number of Exercise price
Name of Directors Date of grant share options held per share Exercisable period
EERE BHAR TR
(dd/mm/yyyy) (dd/mm/yyyy)
(B/B/%) HHERRERA BRITER (8/B/%)

(HK$)

(L)
Joseph CHOI Kin Hung 04/12/2009 1,334,000 (i) 1.02  04/12/2010 - 03/12/2019
LUI Chun Pong 01/09/2011 750,000 (ii) 129 30/09/2012 - 31/08/2021

AR

i. Share options were vested in three portions on 4 December 2010, 2011 and 2012
respectively, and became exercisable for a period from the respective dates and
ending on 3 December 2019.

ii. Share options were vested in three portions on 30 September 2012, 2013 and 2014
respectively, and became exercisable for a period from the respective dates and
ending on 31 August 2021.

4 There were 5,706,670,104 ordinary shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December
2016.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company or their associates had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO
or otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Model Code.

i. RRLAE D BIFA2010%F ~ 201148 K 20124F12 A4H &35 1D
B WRE B A EEE2019512A38 (EEIR A F17
e

i AL HED BIF20124F ~ 20134F K201449 A308 235610
BN E AEEE202148A31H ILEIR A F17
fiEo

4 ARRIR20165F12A31H 2 B 317 & B R5,706,670,104[% »

Br E AT FEAE SN A2016F12A318 A ARG ESE N
TR SIS 2 B ABEE R R A Bk AT I AR
(EERBHRBAEEHEXVER) 25 - HHRER G &
EEPHA T ESSARMIENREESFRPEK
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Share Option Scheme

2008 Option Scheme

A share option scheme was adopted by the shareholders of the Company
on 22 May 2008 (the “2008 Option Scheme”). Pursuant to the 2008 Option
Scheme, the directors may, at their absolute discretion, make an offer to grant
share options to eligible persons (as defined in the rules of the 2008 Option
Scheme) who might include, inter alia, any employee, executive director, non-
executive director and independent non-executive director of the Company or its
subsidiaries. A summary of the rules of the 2008 Option Scheme is set out below:

(1) Summary of the 2008 Option Scheme

(a)

(b)

-~ 82

Purpose of the 2008 Option Scheme

The purpose of the 2008 Option Scheme is to provide an Eligible
Person (as defined below) with the opportunity to acquire equity
securities in the Company, thus enabling them to participate in the
prosperity of the Company and/or its subsidiaries and/or any invested
entity (which refers to any entity in which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries holds any equity interest) (“Invested Entity”) and
consequently such opportunity is an incentive for such Eligible Person
to contribute further to the success of the Company and/or its any
subsidiary and/or any Invested Entity.

Participants of the 2008 Option Scheme

The Board (or a duly authorised committee thereof) shall, at its
absolute discretion, make an offer to grant option to any person
(“Eligible Person”) belonging to any of the following classes of
participants to subscribe for the shares of the Company (the
“Shares”):

(i) any employee (whether full time or part time) of the Company,
any of its subsidiary or any Invested Entity, including any
executive director of the Company, its subsidiary or any Invested
Entity and for the avoidance of doubt, including any employee
employed or to be employed by the Company, any of its
subsidiary or any Invested Entity in The People’s Republic of
China;

(i) any non-executive director (including any independent non-
executive director) of the Company, any of its subsidiary or any
Invested Entity; or

(i) the trustee of any trust pre-approved by the Board, the
beneficiary (or in case of discretionary trust, the discretionary
objects) of which includes any of the persons mentioned in
subparagraphs (i) and (i) above.
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(d)

(e)

()

(9

Maximum number of Shares available for issue under the 2008
Option Scheme

As at 18 April 2017, the total number of shares available for issue
was 18,584,000 shares, representing 0.33% of the total issued share
capital of the Company.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person under the 2008
Option Scheme

No option may be granted to any one Eligible Person in any 12-month
period which, if exercised in full, would result in the total number
of Shares already issued to such Eligible Person under all the options
previously granted to him/her which have been exercised and, issuable
to him/her under all the options previously granted to him/her which
are for the time being subsisting and unexercised, exceeding 1% of
the total number of issued Shares on the last date of such 12-month
period unless approval by the shareholders in a general meeting with
such Eligible Person and his/her associates abstaining from voting has
been obtained.

Period for and consideration payable upon acceptance of an
option

An offer for the grant of option must be accepted within the time
period specified in the relevant offer letter. A sum of HK$10.00 is
payable as consideration upon acceptance of the offer. Such amount
shall in no circumstances be refundable.

Basic of determining the subscription price

The subscription price for Shares shall be a price to be determined by
the Board and notified to each grantee but shall not be less than the
highest of:

(i)  the nominal value of a Share;

(i) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the offer date, which must be a
business day; and

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheet on the offer date, which must be a
business day,

provided that in the event of fractional prices, the subscription price
shall be rounded upwards to the nearest whole cent.

Minimum period for holding an option before exercise

There is no minimum holding period for which an option must be
held before exercise pursuant to the 2008 Option Scheme. The
commencement date of the period during which an option may be
exercised shall be determined by the Board and specified in the offer
letter in respect of the option.

(9]

(d)

(e)

()

(@)
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(h) Remaining life

The 2008 Option Scheme shall remain in effect for a period of 10
years commencing from 22 May 2008, its date of adoption, unless
otherwise terminated in accordance with the rules of the 2008 Option
Scheme.

(h) FepzBEXA

BRAR 22008 F iR B s T 81 Z AR BN B 7T F IALR 1E
AN 2008 RIKAETEIHE 200845 A22H (AP
HEWB ) BT FERESE R

(2) Movements under the 2008 Option Scheme (2) 20084 3BRR1EFH BT ZEE)
Details of movements in the share options under the 2008 Option Scheme, R2008F RS TR HEBRREV R
and the options outstanding as at the beginning and the year ended 31 BZ2016F 12 A31 A L 2 RITREABBAEF B
December 2016 are as follows: T
Closing
Number of Number price
share of share per share
options . options immediately
held as at Change;d;r;;ﬂle year held as at Exercise before date
1 January 31 December price of grant of
Name of grantee(s) Date of grant 2016 Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled 2016 per share Exercisable period ~  share options
#0165 R2016%
1A18 12A318 RERRE
#HZ #EZ R BRI
REARE RHHAM BRENE R i %% (] BEENE BRITER it SREHR
(do/mmyyy) (HKS) (dd/mmAyyy) (HKS)
(B/R/%) (B¥T) (B/R/%) (#%7)
Directors
1
Joseph CHOI Kin Hung 04/12/2009 1,334,000 - - - - 1,334,000 1.02 04/12/2010 - 03/12/2019 1.02
LUI Chun Pong 01/09/2011 750,000% - - - - 750,000 129 30/09/2012 - 31/08/2021 127
Ak
Ex-Director
HE®
Witfred WONG Ying Wai® 23/05/2008 5,000,000¢ = - (5,000,000) - - 213 01/01/2009 - 22/05/2018 204
TRED
Employees (in aggregate) 23/05/2008 14,000,000 = - - - 14,000,000 213 01/01/2009 - 22/05/2018 204
&R (@) 04/12/2009 1,420,000 = = (420,000) - 1,000,000 1.02 04/12/2010 - 03/12/2019 1.02
01/09/2011 1,500,000% - - - - 1,500,000 129 30/09/2012 - 31/08/2021 127
29/012016 - 3,000,000© - (3,000,000)” - - 070 11/06/2016 - 10/06/2025 0.70
Total 24,004,000 3,000,000 - (8,420,000) - 18,584,000
#it
Notes: Bt
(1) Share options were vested in three portions on 4 December 2010, 2011 and 2012 (1) ‘”ﬂxﬁg’ IJEé2010¢ <2014 220129 12 A48 & = 50

respectively, and became exercisable for a period from the respective dates and
ending on 3 December 2019.

Share options were vested in three portions on 30 September 2012, 2013 and 2014
respectively, and became exercisable for a period from the respective dates and
ending on 31 August 2021.

Share options were vested in equal portions on 1 January 2009 and 2010 respectively,
and became exercisable for a period from the respective dates and ending on 22 May
2018.

Share options were vested in three portions on 1 January 2009, 2010 and 2011
respectively, and became exercisable for a period from the respective dates and
ending on 22 May 2018.

Dr. Wilfred WONG Ying Wai resigned as the Executive Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer with effect from 1 November 2015 and his share options lapsed on 30 April
2016.

Share options were or will be vested in three portions on 11 June 2016, 2017 and
2018 respectively, and became exercisable for a period from the respective dates and
ending on 10 June 2025.

These 3,000,000 share options lapsed on 29 July 2016.
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Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares or Debentures

During the year, the Company operated a share option scheme pursuant to
which options may be granted, inter alia, to the directors of the Company. Details
of such scheme and the movements in options are set out in the paragraphs
entitled “Share Option Schemes” above. Further details of options granted and/
or shares allotted or transferred to the directors of the Company are disclosed
in the paragraph entitled “Directors” and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company and its
Associated Corporations” and Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

During the year ended 31 December 2016, Mr. YAN Jie (a Non-executive Director)
was the board chairman of KEMEEFEERBR AT (“Tewoo Property”)
engaging in property development in the PRC (the “Tewoo Business”). Based
on Tewoo Group's website, in recent years, it has developed and is developing
projects of approximately 1.4 million sg.m GFA in total. Tewoo Property is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Tewoo Group, which is a substantial shareholder of
the Company.

For the purposes of the Listing Rules, Mr. YAN lJie is considered to have interests
(by way of directorship) in competing businesses (i.e. property development and
investment in the PRC). The operations of Tewoo Property and the Group and
their respective management are totally separate and independent. Therefore,
the Company has been and continues to carry on its business, management and
operation independently of, and at arm’s length from, the Tewoo Business.

As disclosed in page 90, Mr. Zhou Wei (an Executive Director), has interests in
Zhong Wu Xin He which engaging in property development in the PRC.

For the purposes of the Listing Rules, Mr. Zhou Wei is considered to have interests
(by way of shareholding) in competing businesses (i.e. property development and
investment in the PRC). The operations of Zhong Wu Xin He and the Group and
their respective management are totally separate and independent. Therefore,
the Company has been and continues to carry on its business, management and
operation independently of, and at arm’s length from, the Zhong Wu Xin He.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors (excluding Independent
Non-executive Directors) were interested in any business apart from the Group’s
business which competed or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2016.
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Convertible Securities, Options, Warrants or Similar
Rights

Issuance of convertible preference shares

On 8 January 2015 and 8 July 2015, the Company issued a total of
5,654,772,134 CPSs as the consideration (excluding the holdback amount)
to acquire the entire issued share capital of Goleman International Limited.
On 15 January 2016, the Company further issued 259,263,039 CPSs to settle
the holdback amount which was pending the determination of the aggregate
amount of fee, fine or penalty (if any) charged under the relevant land grant
contract or applicable People’s Republic of China (“PRC") laws at any time after
completion but on or before 31 December 2015 in respect of any delay in the
development of certain acquired parcels of land. On 26 April 2016, the Company
lastly issued 295,833,333 CPSs to settle the remaining holdback amount after the
issue of land use rights certificates in respect of the remaining land.

3-year senior notes

In January 2016, the Company issued a 3-year senior notes with principal
amounts of USD150 million due on 22 January 2019 bearing interest of 8.5%
per annum which is payable semi-annually (the “Senior Notes 2019"). The Senior
Notes 2019 achieved at a lower coupon than the Senior Notes 2018 which was
issued in May 2015 reflects certain market interests in our 3-year USD notes. The
Senior Notes 2019 are also listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Redemption by holders of 6.0% Convertible Bonds due 2017

On 25 October 2016, the Company has received notices for the exercise of the
put option in respect of USD94,700,000 in principal amount of the Convertible
Bonds (the “Redemption Principal”), representing approximately 97.33% in
principal amount of the Convertible Bonds outstanding as at that date. In
November 2016, the Company settled the Redemption Principal together with
interest accrued.

Save as above, the option scheme mentioned under “Share Option Scheme”
above and in Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company
had no other outstanding convertible securities, options, warrants or similar
rights as at 31 December 2016. Other than those disclosed above and in Note
36 to the consolidated financial statements, there was no issue or exercise of any
convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights during the year ended 31
December 2016.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into or existed
during the year ended 31 December 2016.

Retirement Schemes

The Group participated defined contribution retirement schemes during the year.
Particulars of the retirement schemes are set out in Note 2(u)(i) to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions in the Shares
and Underlying Shares of the Company
As at 31 December 2016, the interests or short positions of the following
substantial shareholders (other than a director and the chief executive of the
Company) in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the

-+

@ A

FERERILEIRERIEAHROPEE B2 B K

E

2016512 4310  IRIEEFH KB E KHIZE336154 A &)
BAFFEZERMARE THEERE (ARFEER
TTERBBE R IN) AR RN AR D P A 2wk

register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, A2 :
were as follows:
Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company REXEIRGEBIEGRGZIFE
Approximate
percentage of
Number of interest in
shares held/ Number of the issued
Name of Shareholder Capacity involved underlying shares share capital
EERTT
F¥, BRZ BEESZ
BERER 4 Bin & E HERZEAE #Braast
(Note 3)
(PfI5E3)
(1) Tewoo Group Co., Ltd.* Interests of controlled 513,861,240 3,000,000,000 61.57%
corporation
REMESEFR AR R A E
(2) Tewoo Investment Co., Limited Beneficial owner 137,940,000 - 2.42%
KPR EFR AT BB A
Interests of controlled 375,921,240 3,000,000,000 59.16%
corporation
R EE s
(3) Riant Investment Co., Limited Benefigial owner 375,921,240 3,000,000,000 59.16%
I IR EBR AR BEmERA
(4) Neo Summit Beneficial owner 475,816,993 - 8.34%
ild BEafaA (Note 1(a))
(KzE1G@))
(5) Summit View Beneficial owner 991,041,796 - 17.37%
= EnEA A (Note 1(b))
(PF=E1 (b))
(6) MA Kwing, Pony Interests of controlled corporation 1,466,858,789 - 25.70%
510 Ry EE s (Note 1)
(BRFaE1)
Interests of spouse - 2,704,166,666 47.39%
B (B e (Note 2)
(Pff&E2)
(7) Wilfred WONG Ying Wai BenefiEiaI owner 26,000,000 - 0.46%
THE BEREAA
Interests of controlled corporation 1,466,858,789 - 25.70%
Ry AE s (Note 1)
(BfF&ET)
(8) Rich Century Development Limited Beneficial owner - 2,704,166,666 47.39%

M ERAR AT

*  For identification purposes only

BEmBEEA

* S
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Approximate
percentage of

Number of interest in
shares held/ Number of the issued
Name of Shareholder Capacity involved underlying shares share capital
EERT
s BRZ BFERZ
BEREE 4] & E & E L EoI=R2 44
(Note 3)
(P7E3)
(9) China Merchants Securities Co., Interests of controlled corporation 276,855,000 - 4.85%
Ltd.
BREEFRGBR AR R AE R (long position)
(#FE)
83,100,000 - 1.46%
(short position)
(#B)
(10) China Merchants Securities Interests of controlled corporation 276,855,000 - 4.85%
International Company Limited
AR FEEER AR YA E S (long position)
(&)
83,100,000 - 1.46%
(short position)
(#E)
(11) China Merchants Securities Beneficial owner 193,755,000 - 3.40%
Investment Management (HK)
Co., Limited
BEEFREER (BF) EmEAA (long position)
BRAA (&)
(12) Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings)  Interests of controlled corporation 400,000,000 - 7.01%
Limited B
SPEA B RS (Note 4)
(Hy=x4)
(13) Cheng Yu Tung Family Interests of controlled corporation 400,000,000 - 7.01%
(Holdings Il) Limited B
AR (Note 4)
(FfT7E4)
(14) Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited Interests of controlled corporation 400,000,000 - 7.01%
A B s (Note 4)
(Pt 5E4)
(15) Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited Interests of controlled corporation 400,000,000 - 7.01%
T EE RS (Note 4)
(Fg5E4)
(16) Chow Tai Fook Nominee Limited  Beneficial owner 400,000,000 - 7.01%
BAREREAGRAF EmEAA (Note 4)
(BisE4)
(17) MAK Siu Hang Viola Interests of controlled corporation 434,484,000 - 7.61%
21 ZEAE R
(18) VMS Holdings Limited Interests of controlled corporation 434,484,000 - 7.61%
SPEAE RS
(19) VMS Investment Group Ltd. Beneficial owner 434,484,000 - 7.61%

88

ERmBEEA

HSIN CHONG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016



1. (a) 475,816,993 Shares are held by Neo Summit, which is owned by (a) Pinnacle State
Real Estate Limited as to 28.89%; (b) Summit View Holdings Limited (“Summit
View") as to 13.33%; (c) Jones Capital Investments Limited as to 28.89%; and (d)
Becl World Holding Ltd as to 28.89%. Pinnacle State Real Estate Limited is indirectly
wholly-owned by Dr. Wilfred WONG Ying Wai. Jones Capital Investments Limited is
wholly-owned by Ms. MA Kwing, Pony (“Ms. MA"). As such, Neo Summit is deemed
to be a controlled corporation of Dr. Wilfred WONG Ying Wai and Ms. MA under the
SFO.

(b) 991,041,796 ordinary shares are held by Summit View, which is owned as to 50% by
Dr. Wilfred WONG Ying Wai and 50% by Ms. MA. As such, Summit View is deemed
to be a controlled corporation of Dr. Wilfred WONG Ying Wai and Ms. MA under the
SFO.

2. As disclosed in (i) the announcement of the Company dated 15 May 2014, Hsin Chong
Property Holdings Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) as the Purchaser
entered into the Acquisition Agreement with Rich Century (@ company wholly-owned by
Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan) as the Vendor and Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan as the warrantor regarding a very
substantial acquisition in relation to the acquisition of a property development project in the
PRC; and (i) the announcement of the Company dated 4 November 2014, a Supplemental
Agreement was entered into amongst the same parties. As part of the consideration of
the Acquisition Agreement, the Company may issue to Rich Century CPSs which can be
converted into Shares in the Company. As such, Rich Century being a company wholly
owned by Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan is deemed to be a controlled corporation of Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan
under the SFO. MA Kwing, Pony is the spouse of Mr. LIN Zhuo Yan and is deemed to be
interested under the SFO.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 8 January 2015 in relation to the
issuance of CPSs as part of the consideration, the total number of CPSs (issued or which
may be issued) to Rich Century and which can be converted into Shares of the Company is
6,253,829,151. Upon issue of certain number of CPSs to Rich Century on 8 January 2015,
it then disposed 1,855,563,322 CPSs on the same date. Therefore, as of 30 June 2015, Rich
Century held 4,398,265,830 CPSs (rounding difference included).

As further disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 30 June 2015, 15
January 2016 and 26 April 2016 respectively in relation to the issuance of CPSs as part of
the consideration, Rich Century was further allotted by the Company 1,095,042,146 CPSs,
259,263,039 CPSs and 295,833,333 CPSs on 8 July 2015, 15 January 2016 and 26 April
2016 respectively. Rich Century then disposed 1,095,042,146 CPSs, 43,960,645 CPSs,
259,263,039 CPSs, 280,000,000 CPSs and 15,833,333 CPSs on 15 July 2015, 15 January
2016, 19 January 2016, 29 April 2016 and 31 May 2016 respectively. Therefore, as at 31
December 2016, Rich Century held 2,704,166,666 CPSs.

3. There were 5,706,670,104 ordinary shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December
2016.

4. As of 31 December 2016, 400,000,000 shares are held by Chow Tai Fook Nominee Limited,
which is owned by Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited as to 99.80%. Chow Tai Fook (Holding)
Limited is owned by Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited as to 78.58%. Chow Tai Fook Capital
Limited is in turn owned by (i) Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited as to 48.98% and (ii)
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings II) Limited as to 46.65%.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, the Company had not been
notified of any other persons (other than a director and the chief executive of the
Company) who had an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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1. (@  #E35H4758169930 8 WL T&F A : Q&
WS EAR AT HAE28.89% : (DIERIERER AT (TE
=])#EHB13.33% : () Jones Capital Investments Limited
#7528.89% : M.(d) Becl World Holding Ltd#% 528.89%
I hEER AR BT RESHEE2EHE - Jones
Capital Investments Limitedf8 5z + ([Hx 1) 2 &%
oAt BIEEHFRBEED FEREATRERL
EEZtzZEiEER-

(b) &S3FH991,041,796 LM W TREFTLIEEL
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B EE FI B R 5 BIR201597A8H 201641 A 158 &
2016F4 A26 8 AN A 7 # — 2P B 951,095,042, 146/% Al 85448
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Fook Capital Limited BIIFA B AAE (120%) BFR A Rl35H78.58% &
25 + M Chow Tai Fook Capital Limitedff A & 75 # A (i) Cheng Yu
Tung Family (Holdings) Limited# 548.98% (i) Cheng Yu Tung
Family (Holdings 1) Limited# 546.65% °
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Connected Transactions

Provision of financial assistance to Zhong Wu Xin He

On 24 August 2016, Hsin Chong Finance Lease (China) Company Limited
(the “Finance Lease Company”) and Zhong Wu Xin He Property Development
Company Limited (“Zhong Wu Xin He") is an associate of Mr. Zhou Wei
("Mr. Zhou") who is an Executive Director, entered into a Sale and Leaseback
Agreement, pursuant to which, (i) the Finance Lease Company shall purchase
the Properties from Zhong Wu Xin He at a consideration of RMB500,000,000;
and (ii) upon the settlement of the first instalment of the purchase price of the
Properties of RMB130,000,000 by the Finance Lease Company, the Finance Lease
Company shall lease the Properties back to Zhong Wu Xin He for a period of 8
years commencing from 24 August 2016, for an aggregate lease consideration
of approximately RMB203,485,214.31 payable semi-annually. The interest rate is
calculated on the basis of 12% per annum.

On 25 August 2016, the Finance Lease Company has paid Zhong Wu Xin He
RMB 129,000,000 (after deducting RMB1,000,000 as security money) as the first
instalment of the purchase price of the Properties.

On 15 December 2016, the Finance Lease Company, Zhong Wu Xin He, Hsin
Chong Holdings (China) Limited (“Hsin Chong China”), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, and Tianjin Jiu Ding Ke Mao Company
Limited entered into the Confirmation Letter, pursuant to which it was confirmed
among the parties that (i) the Sale and Leaseback Agreement (including the
pledges of the equity interest in Zhong Wu Xin He and the mortgage of the
Properties by Zhong Wu Xin He) shall be terminated; (ii) the first instalment of
the RMB129,000,000 paid by the Finance Lease Company to Zhong Wu Xin He
under the Sale and Leaseback Agreement shall be treated as an unsecured loan
provided by the Finance Lease Company to Zhong Wu Xin He; and (iii) the rights
of the Finance Lease Company under such loan shall be assigned to Hsin Chong
China, a fellow subsidiary of the Finance Lease Company. On the same day, the
Finance Lease Company, Hsin Chong China and Zhong Wu Xin He entered into
an agreement, pursuant to which, the parties agreed that Zhong Wu Xin He
shall repay the loan of RMB129,000,000 which was originally received from the
Finance Lease Company under the Sale and Leaseback Agreement to Hsin Chong
China before 21 August 2024. The interest rate for the loan of RMB129,000,000
shall be 12% per annum which shall be paid by Zhong Wu Xin He semi-annually.
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Provision of financial assistance to Beijing Xuan He

On 27 December 2016, Beijing Xuan He, Hsin Chong China and Zhong Wu
Xin He entered into the Loan Agreement, pursuant to which Hsin Chong China
agreed to advance a loan to Beijing Xuan He in the sum of RMB247,500,000 for a
term of period from 28 December 2016 to 12 November 2018. The interest rate
for the loan shall be 0.91667% per month payable in four instalments during the
term of the loan. The loan together with the unpaid interest may be prepaid in full
after the expiry of six months from the commencement date of the term of the
loan by giving ten working days notice to Hsin Chong China. Pursuant to the Loan
Agreement, Zhong Wu Xin He shall act as the guarantor for Beijing Xuan He.

Listing rules implications

As Zhong Wu Xin He is an associate of Mr. Zhou who is an Executive Director,
Zhong Wu Xin He is a connected person of the Company, and Beijing Xuan He
is a deemed connected person of the Company within the meaning under the
Listing Rules, the entering into of each of the Sale and Leaseback Agreement,
the Confirmation Letter, the Cooperation Agreement and the Loan Agreement
constitutes connected transaction and the transactions as contemplated
thereunder constitute connected transactions for the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

As the relevant percentage ratios in respect of the Sale and Leaseback Agreement,
the Confirmation Letter, the Cooperation Agreement and the Loan Agreement,
on an aggregated basis, exceed 5% and the total value of the financial
assistance plus the monetary advantage to the connected person is more
than HK$10,000,000, the transactions thereunder constitutes a non-exempt
connected transaction for the Company and is therefore subject to the reporting,
announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Company had omitted to comply with the reporting, announcement
and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements of Rule 14A.35 of the
Listing Rules and failed to announce the provisions of financial assistance to the
connected entities at the time of the execution of the relevant agreements at the
material time.

For details of the connected transactions mentioned above, please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 30 March 2017.

ZEeipaL

AL REFIEH T EE)

R2016F 128278 L REM -FTEFE KFWEFET
VERRE BUHEFRERAERILREMREARYE
247,500,0007T 2 B3 - HABR A20165F 12 A28 H £20184F
MANRAZHE -ZEFRZFMEREAB0.91667%  NEK
HARR A PH EASZ A - IRE SR EARR 7 4a A AR M S A & 7]
FBRAFERBREL HEIER 2B RATHEEER
HERAZAFE - BRBEERGZE  POEMNBEEILR
EMZERA

LT RRZ %
HRPYEMSRTEEALEZBEA  PUEMAR
REIZBAEALT RAEREMAARRZESEEANLT
(EER EWRA)  RIFELEHRANE AT FTLERE
Ol % R AEBEMERBRBEREERS B
ATHETZRGBRARR ZBERS -

MRERERRE BREK SERELERBE S H:T
B RBAERB DL RBi1E5% A MRS A IR 2 B
BB EE N £ B BB 10,000,0007T © 7% % %
BN ZRXGERARB 2 TERRRER S R /BEST
EHRAFUAB 2R RNE MBI RELEZ BT -

RREREESF EHARRIE14AISMEE T3S RER
B BIRIERTE - TIRBER B LA R RN ERR AR
for —fE R E BRI 5 &R -

AR BESHALTAA201743A308 2 A% -

HEREEBRAMRAT 2016F

91



Y L

Continuing Connected Transactions

Smart Lane, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company has already sold
all its shareholding in Synergis Holdings Limited (“Synergis”) to Champ Key, the
transaction of which was completed on 21 November 2016 (“Completion”). As
such, since Synergis is no longer a subsidiary of the Company, the transactions
between Synergis and the Company are no longer regarded as connected
transactions since 21 November 2016.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company and/or its subsidiaries
had entered into (or continued to be a party to) the following continuing
connected transactions which are subject to the annual review and reporting
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

(A) Tenancy Agreement and Carpark Agreements

Cogent Spring Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, or the
Company entered into tenancy agreement, sub-lease agreement or carpark
agreement with subsidiaries of Synergis, details of the transactions were
disclosed in the announcements of the Company of 27 February 2015 and
18 January 2016. The annual caps, considerations for the period ended 30
November 2016 and other details for the year ended 31 December 2016
were as follows:

FHERERXS
RRAFz—FEEEENEB 2T Smart Lane Holdings
LimitedB HEEREEREBEERAE ([FTEEHE])
#) 2 ZRA%HE F Champ Key Holdings Limited® B 521
2016511 A21 B (T2 ) - At BRFTEEETH
BRANRHMNEB AR B20165F11 A21H i ANA 7] B
EEEZENRHITBREABERS -

REZE2016F12A31AILFEN  ARF R HEKEA
AIEAIS (BB RZER S ZFIHT) THIAEST £W
MAIBUATZ FEEZLRHRRENFEMER S -

(A) HERBREFELGRE
NRaElz 2B B AR Cogent Spring Limitedgk AN 2
RIEEEE B RRRI L THERR  DHpE
SEBESEME FAXSFBERERARFBHA
20152 A27H K20165F1 B18H 2 A& - & £2016
FNMNAIHBZFE LR -REREZE20165F128
BNHIEFEZFEMFFIBOT

Consideration
for the
period ended
November Nature and extent of the
Connected person(s) Date of agreement(s) Terms Particulars Annual cap 2016 connected person’s interest
#HE2016%
1A LKA
WEAL i} 4=R R Hf FELR <Rl REALCHAREREE
(HKS) (HKS)
(BT (BT
Hsin Chong Interiors Renewal Sub-lease Agreement 2 years from 1 January ~ Lease of portion of 7/F of 1,000,000 857,888 Hsin Chong Interiors and SMS are
(Hong Kong) Limited dated 27 February 2015 2015 to 31 December Hsin Chong Center wholly-owned subsidiaries of Synergis,
("Hsin Chong Interiors"”) 2016 a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of
as lessee the Company where Summit View
HEENERM (BE) BEE2015F2/27H 2 H2015F1 A1BRE EHEDLTEZHH Holdings Limited, a substantial
BRAR ([FEE RS MR 2016512318 125 shareholder of the Company, is
RH)) ERETA directly holding 16.64% of Synergs.
Hence, Hsin Chong Interiors and SMS
Synergis Management Tenancy Agreement dated 1 year from 1 January Lease of portion of 3/F, 57F, 4,000,000 2,237,066 are connected persons under the
Services Limited (“SMS") 18 January 2016 2016 to 31 December &/F and 10/F of Listing Rules.
as lessee 2016 Hsin Chong Center HEZARMREERRBALTA
MEEERBERAT  AHA016F1718H2  H016F1A1AEE EMERLIE S AL ENBRARMEERE 2 2 EN
(FREERRE) - HEHE 16F12A31B1E1F  SIERI0EZEHH BAR ARAZ FERRESERE
fEREBEA BRRIEEFAHEER1664%2 1K
1Rt HEZARH RIS EER
SMS as lessee New Carpark Agreement 2 years from 1 January  Lease of car parking spacesof 230,000 124158 BALTRABTZHEAL.
dated 27 February 2015 2015 to 31 December Hsin Chong Center
2016
MEERRBEREEA BEARNFIAZEZ  BNBFIAERE  HEHRSPOAEN
HEES S 2016512318 125
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(B) General Business Services Agreement

The Company entered into a General Business Services Agreement on
31 December 2014 with Synergis pursuant to which Synergis Group is
the service provider. The annual cap for the General Business Services
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2016 was HK$45,000,000.
Details of the General Business Services Transaction were disclosed in the

(B) —REHBIRHRBE

ZEeipaL

ANAREHEEIEN2014512 8318 5T L — REH
R Bt EEIREE AE RIS 2 HES -
HZE2016F12A31ALFE  —REBEREHZED
EE R AB145,000,0007T « — R E TSRS 5
HERENAATBEA2014F12A31B 225 K

announcement of the Company dated 31 December 2014 and its circular 20152 A28 2@ o
dated 2 February 2015.
Consideration
for the
period ended
November  Nature and extent of the
Connected person(s) Date of agreement(s) Terms Particulars 2016  connected person's interest
HE2016F
1A L
REAL 21 MR 3] ZRE RMEALCHEHEREE
(HKS)
(BET)

Synergis General Business 3years from 1 January ~ Provision of property and 16,420,554  The Company is a substantial
Services Agreement 2015 to 31 December facility management shareholder and controlling
dated 31 December 2017 services, cleaning services shareholder of Synergis and
2014 and miscellaneous services hence, Synergis is a connected

by relevant members of person under the Listing Rules.
Synergis to relevant
members of the Group

MEER BER014F12A3182  @2015F1A1BEE  HEEREEREARR ARAIRHEERNEERERER

—RE KR s 175128318135 ARERENE A aRE Rt HEERALTRAETZ
UEPEGARTI S BEAL-
2R R AR R

(C) Tender Services Agreement

The Company entered into the Tender Services Agreement with Synergis
on 31 December 2014 pursuant to which the Group will provide tender
services to Synergis Group. The annual cap for the Tender Services
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2016 was HK$1,300,000,000.
Details of the transactions were disclosed in the announcement of the

(O REFREEH

ARATHEFEEEN2014F12 431 B3] LR E AR TS
Wi B A B A EE B S BIREERG
HE2016F 12 A3 IEFE  WIZRE HmFE L
R 45 %1,300,000,0007T ° X SR FEIEHER A A
HHEIA2014F12A31HB 2 R E R HEIA2015F2 A2

Company dated 31 December 2014 and its circular dated 2 February 2015. H 238K -
Consideration
for the
period ended
November Nature and extent of the
Connected person(s) Date of agreement(s) Terms Particulars 2016  connected person's interest
HBE2016%F
11A LR
REAL 1 {=R R 21 ZRE BEALZHEHEREE
(HK$)
(BETL)
Synergis Tender Services 3 years from 1 January  To provide tender services to 85,345,565  The Company is a substantial
Agreement dated 31 2015 to 31 December Synergis Group shareholder and controlling
December 2014 2017 shareholder of Synergis and
hence, Synergis is a connected
person under the Listing Rules.
HEER BER2014F12A318 MOFIAIRLEE  ENEEEEBRERERS RAR RS ERAEERARRR

ZBERE GBS 2017128318135

Rt HEEEALTRARTZ
BEAL
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(D) Supporting Services Agreement (D) XIERT ik

The Company entered into the Supporting Services Agreement with ARA R S BEIEN2014F12 831851 L R RS
Synergis on 31 December 2014 pursuant to which the Group will provide ek Bt A EE R E B R EERETERY
supporting services (which mainly involve staff costs in health, safety, BERFrESRER %2 8 BR HE #E-
quality, environmental, plant, surveying, site administration, building HEREE BFRELENEESFEINA-HE
services and special projects, etc.) to Synergis Group. The annual cap for 20165F 12 AR IEFE X ERB R 2 FE LR
the Supporting Services Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2016 778%18,000,0007T ° X ZHIFFIEWEBER AL T A H
was HK$18,000,000. Details of the transactions were disclosed in the B2014F12A318 2 AE R BEIA2015F2H28 2
announcement of the Company dated 31 December 2014 and its circular R

dated 2 February 2015.

Consideration
for the
period ended
November  Nature and extent of the
Connected person(s) Date of agreement(s) Terms Particulars 2016 connected person's interest
BE2016%F
118 LKA
WEAL EAR MR 3 2R REALZHGREREE
(HKS)
(¥
Synergis Supporting Services 3years from 1January ~ To provide supporting services 8,991,232 The Company is a substantial
Agreement dated 31 2015 to 31 December to Synergis Group shareholder and controlling
December 2014 2017 shareholder of Synergis and
hence, Synergis is a connected
person under the Listing Rules.
MEER AEEA2014512A318 MOFIAIERE  ENEEEEERER RAR RS ERAEERERR
ZXERB G DI7F12A31BIBF  ERE Rt HEERALTRARTZ
BEAT-
(E) Specialist Works Sub-Contracting Agreement () BFIiIER# &
The Company entered into the Spedialist Works Sub-Contracting Agreement ARREFEEER2014F12A318 T2
with Synergis on 31 December 2014 pursuant to which Synergis Group may DG B E TR EE A R AEEIERT
engage the Group as the sub-contractor of Synergis Group for provision EEREE ¥ ERNNEEREE BEERHESE
of specialist works to the Synergis Group’s projects. The annual cap for PITRR -EH E£2016F12A31HIEFE EFITREDH
the Specialist Works Sub-Contracting Agreement for the year ended 31 Wk 2 F & _EBR A7 #600,000,0007T ° X Z R 1B
December 2016 was HK$600,000,000. Details of the transactions were WENRAAFAEA2014F12A31HZ A5 R BH
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 31 December 2014 A2015F2 A28 2K °
and its circular dated 2 February 2015.
Consideration
for the
period ended
November  Nature and extent of the
Connected person(s) Date of agreement(s) Terms Particulars 2016  connected person's interest
EE20165F
118 LA
WEAL 3 1=R 1R 31 ZRE REATCHEREREER
(HKS)
(%)
Synergis Specialist Works Sub- 3 years from 1 January Synergis Group to engage the 0 The Company is a substantial
Contracting 2015 to 31 December Group as its sub-contractor shareholder and controlling
Agreement dated 31 2017 for providing specialist works shareholder of Synergis and
December 2014 hence, Synergis is a connected
person under the Listing Rules.
MEER BEAR2014512A318 2 8201551 A1BRE  HEEESEREASEES ARARHEEENEERERRE
EMTRA HGE 017F12831B13F ASAERMAEMNIR Rt HEEBALTHRARTZ
BEANL-
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(F) ISP Works Sub-Contracting Agreement

The Company entered into the ISP Works Sub-Contracting Agreement with
Synergis on 31 December 2014 pursuant to which the Group may engage
the Synergis Group as its sub-contractor for provision of the ISP works to
the Group's projects. The annual cap for the ISP Works Sub-Contracting
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2016 was HK$700,000,000.
Details of the transactions were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 31 December 2014 and its circular dated 2 February 2015.

ZEeipaL

() ZEARBGREHTEEIESHIBE

RAREFEEREMN2014F12 A31HET L ERE 4
DERIEE IR HHE B AEETZRENS
EEEEEAESHE ARAEEZEEREER
HEMMNERTEE T2 - Bl 22016F 12 A31HIEFE

EREMREHRER IR HWEZFE LR AS
#700,000,0007C ° R H W BEHERN ARG HEHA
2014F12A31H 2 A E R B A20152 A28 28

Consideration

for the

period ended
November Nature and extent of the

Connected person(s) Date of agreement(s) Terms Particulars 2016  connected person'’s interest
HE20165F
11A L3R
HEAL 4 1=R MR HR ZRE REALZHERKEREE
(HK$)
(B8
Synergis ISP Works Sub- 3years from 1 January ~ The Group to engage Synergis 6,267,850  The Company is a substantial
Contracting 2015 to 31 December Group as its subcontractor shareholder and controlling
Agreement dated 31 2017 for providing ISP works shareholder of Synergis and
December 2014 hence, Synergis is a connected
person under the Listing Rules.
MEER BER014F12A31Bz  @01F1A1BEE  ASEZENSEESE RAR RS ERMEERERRR
ENEHREHREELE 0175128318135 (ERESHEREEA Al EER B EHRAETZ
DHH= REREHIAR T2 BEAL-

The directors (including the independent non-executive directors) of the
Company have reviewed and confirmed that all the continuing connected
transactions mentioned in (A) to (F) above conducted in the year were
entered into on the following basis:

(@ inthe ordinary and usual course of the business of the Group;
(b)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(0 according to the relevant agreements governing these transactions
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits
or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing
his findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group as above in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided
by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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In addition, the auditor of the Company has confirmed to the Board that
nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that the
above continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31 December
2016:

(@ have not been approved by the Board;

(b) were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group where the transactions involve the provision of
services by the Group;

() were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing the transactions; and

(d) have exceeded the relevant annual caps as disclosed in the respective
previous announcements of the Company.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the continuing
connected transactions mentioned in (A) to (F) above.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The five largest customers of the Group accounted for 52% (2015: 61%) of the
Group's total revenue and the largest customer of the Group accounted for 19%
(2015: 24%) of the Group's total revenue for the year.

The 5 largest suppliers of the Group accounted for less than 30% (2015: less than
30%) of the Group's total purchase for the year.

None of the Directors, any of their associates or shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had an interest in any of the Group's five largest customers.

Senior Notes, Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

The particulars of senior notes, bank and other borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2015 and 31 December 2016 are set out in Notes 30, 32 and 33 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.

Convertible Bonds

On 20 November 2015, the Company issued Convertible Bonds bearing interest
at 6% per annum at a par value of US$100 million. The bonds mature two
years from the issue date at their nominal value of US$100 million or can be
converted into ordinary shares of the Company at the holder's option within
the conversion period at the initial conversion of HK$1.00 per share subject to
adjustments required under the conditions of the bonds. The maximum number
of ordinary shares to be issued at the maturity date is 775,020,000 shares and
none of them was issued up to 31 December 2015. The net proceeds received
from the issuance of convertible bonds was HK$728.7 million. The Company
will not receive further consideration when any holder determines to convert the
bonds into ordinary shares of the Company on conversion date. The Company
intended to use the net proceeds for refinancing the Group's debts and provision
of working capital for its general corporate purposes.
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Donations
During the year, donations made by the Group for charitable and other purposes
amounted to HK$157,000 (2015: HK$279,000).

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed
Securities

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company had repurchased on the
Stock Exchange a total of 14,436,000 Shares. All the repurchased Shares were
cancelled on 21 June 2016.

Related Party Transactions

Significant related party transactions of the Group are set out in Note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements. In relation to those related party transactions
that also constituted connected transaction or continuing connected transactions
of the Group as defined in the Listing Rules, if any, the relevant disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules have been
complied with except for the connected transaction disclosed in pages 90 to 91.

Public Float

At the date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float
under the Listing Rules, based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and to the best of knowledge of its directors.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers whose term of office will expire upon the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire
as auditor of the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company and will not offer themselves for re-appointment. The Board
will propose the appointment of new auditor of the Company following the
retirement of PricewaterhouseCoopers, subject to approval by the shareholders of
the Company at the forthcoming general meeting. The resolution to authorise the
Directors to fix the remuneration of the new auditor will also be proposed at the
forthcoming general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

LIN Zhuo Yan
Non-executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 April 2017
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To the Shareholders of Hsin Chong Group Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Disclaimer of Opinion

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of Hsin Chong
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) set out on pages 108 to 214, which comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2016;
. the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

e  the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then
ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary
of significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group due to the potential interaction of the multiple uncertainties relating to
going concern and their possible cumulative effect on the consolidated financial
statements and because we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate
evidence as described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report.
In all other respects, in our opinion the consolidated financial statements have
been properly prepared in compliance with disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

(1) Multiple uncertainties relating to going concern
As described in Note 2(a)()) to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group reported a net loss attributable to the owners of the Company of
HK$2,734 million and had a net operating cash outflow of approximately
HK$1,334 million during the year ended 31 December 2016. As at the
same date, the Group's total borrowings amounted to HK$11,580 million,
of which HK$6,551 million were classified as current liabilities, while its
unrestricted cash and cash equivalents amounted to HK$411 million only.

i PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F,
Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888
F: +852 2810 9888
www.pwchk.com
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On 22 March 2017, the Group received a letter from a lender of a
borrowing of HK$768 million as at 31 December 2016 demanding for
immediate repayment of total outstanding overdue balance of HK$796
million. Subsequent thereto, the Group has already fully settled the amount.
In connection with the drawdown of this borrowing in November 2016,
certain assets of the Group were pledged as security therefor, and if such
pledge was not considered as permitted lien under the relevant documents
of the senior notes issued by the Company under non-current liabilities
amounting to HK$3,418 million, this might lead to a breach of the relevant
covenants such that reclassification of the borrowings under the senior
notes to current liabilities as at 31 December 2016 might be required. As
at 31 December 2016 and up to the date of this report, the borrowings of
the Group in aggregate of HK$455 million were overdue. Subsequent to
31 December 2016, additional borrowings of the Group in aggregate of
HK$705 million (excluding the aforesaid borrowings of HK$768 million and
HK$455 million) as at 31 December 2016 were also overdue but the Group
has already obtained extension of repayment of such balances prior to the
date of this report. The overdue borrowings without extension would be
immediately repayable if requested by the lenders. Furthermore, in respect
of the borrowings of the Group in aggregate of HK$4,348 million as at 31
December 2016, the Group could not meet certain financial ratios as set out
in the covenants in the relevant borrowing agreements.

Should the above-mentioned situations constitute or have become events
of default under the respective borrowing agreements, including those
under the cross-default terms, these might cause an aggregate amount of
borrowings up to HK$6,294 million at 31 December 2016, of which an
aggregate amount of HK$4,850 million had original contractual repayment
dates beyond 31 December 2017, to become immediately repayable.

These conditions, together with other matters described in Note 2(a)(i) to
the consolidated financial statements, indicate the existence of material
uncertainties which may cast significant doubt about the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern.
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The directors of the Company have been undertaking a number of
measures to improve the Group's liquidity and financial position, and
to remediate certain delayed repayments to financial institutions, which
are set out in Note 2(a)(i) to the consolidated financial statements. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis, the validity of which depends on the outcome of these measures,
which are subject to multiple uncertainties, including (i) the successful
negotiations with the lenders for the renewal of or extension for repayment
of outstanding borrowings, including those with overdue principals and
interests; (i) the successful obtaining of additional new sources of financing
as and when needed; (iii) the successful implementation and acceleration
of its disposal plan of its properties, plant and equipment, investment
properties, properties under development and completed properties held
for sale, including timely execution of definitive sales agreements and timely
collection of the disposal proceeds, and the successful deferral of capital
expenditures for the Group’s unsold projects; (iv) the successful launch of
its outlet mall and pre-sales of certain residential units in Foshan so as to
generate operating cash inflows; (v) the successful negotiation with the
Group's existing lenders such that no action will be taken by the relevant
lenders to demand immediate repayment of the borrowings in any breach
of loan covenants or default, including those with cross-default terms; and
(vi) the successful maintenance of relationship with the suppliers of the
Group, in particular those in relation to the Group's construction business
and the property development projects such that no actions will be taken by
those suppliers against the Group should the Group not be able to meet all
the payment obligations on a timely basis.

Should the Group fail to achieve the above mentioned plans and measures,
it might not be able to continue to operate as a going concern, and
adjustments would have to be made to write down the carrying values of
the Group's assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any further
liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-current assets and non-
current liabilities as current assets and current liabilities. The effects of
these adjustments have not been reflected in the consolidated financial
statements.

HSIN CHONG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

ERREFCRBZERR AkE EXENRIIER
MR WA TRERSREEERNEE B
BREN A M BER RN E20)) « 476 Mg IRR TR
BREEBEERY EERMIARZSHBNER
HXBIRNZBEAEERE BROMERER (BEES
HEEASRANE) BERAKNEREXEELIERE
RLHE (AT ERKINEFHNE SRR (KB
RIMREME #EkRiE REVDE ZRVODERE
BERECERMENHESE E R EAHER
& MR EBERSTERE ERENRARTEERE
RIEREE AR - (VR ILE I LB As R IBEE
TEESUUEERSRA WKHE BREREFER
ANETERS ERBERATEREMERERZHEHE
MEL BRZEIENRSK MERTHERKAEE
BATIERMER RVKDE EREHERESRHEE.
LHEAH BREREXRBRVMFZRERNMHER
ERERERE BESEAREREREMEEREENE
RTT &Y BERERRTH-

gE

e BREAREER Ll 8 RERE RIRDEEER
RECEEBREELS BEELRENE EXENE
EMRENREE AT EI S5 - 5L sEELE M I —
SREELES REERBDEERFRBDABED HIEH
DERRBEERRBDEE ZERBNTERARERS
RAMBRRARKR



EoWRA Gk

2) FHAXERAMBREENX SR EE

(2) Transactions and balances relating to Mr. Zhou and his related

entities
(2)() Funding arrangements in relation to certain properties in QU EBEETLEEMENREZH
Beijing

In late January 2017, management provided us with a set of
agreements (“Agreement A”), which was not complete and fully
executed, entered into by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group
("Subsidiary A”), Mr. Zhou Wei (“Mr. Zhou", an executive director of
the Company), and a PRC incorporated company indirectly owned
by Mr. Zhou and his relative (“Mr. Zhou's Company A"). Pursuant to
Agreement A, Mr. Zhou's Company A should sell certain properties in
Beijing, the PRC (the “BJ Properties”) to the Group at a consideration
of RMB500 million. According to Agreement A, the Group should
make a first instalment payment of RMB130 million upon fulfilling
certain conditions, of which RMB129 million had been paid by
Subsidiary A to Mr. Zhou's Company A in August 2016 and recorded
as "“Receivables and Prepayments” under non-current assets in the
Group’s consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2016. The
remaining consideration of RMB370 million has yet been paid by the
Group up to the date of this report. Pursuant to Agreement A, Mr.
Zhou's Company A should lease back the BJ Properties at an agreed
term, and upon full settlement of the corresponding rental, the Group
should transfer the BJ Properties back to Mr. Zhou's Company A at
RMB100. Furthermore, the BJ Properties and 86% equity interest in
Mr. Zhou's Company A should be pledged to the Group, and Mr.
Zhou should provide a personal guarantee for the obligations of Mr.
Zhou's Company A under Agreement A.

On 14 March 2017, management provided us with another set
of agreements (“Complete Agreement A") that were the same as
Agreement A, except that they were complete and fully executed. On
28 March 2017, management provided us with further documents
signed by various parties in December 2016, including Subsidiary A,
another wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group (”Subsidiary B") and
Mr. Zhou's Company A (“Further Documents”). Pursuant to Further
Documents, Complete Agreement A was terminated as Subsidiary A
had not provided the remaining funding of RMB370 million under that
agreement. Furthermore, the RMB129 million advanced by Subsidiary
A was treated as an unsecured loan to Mr. Zhou's Company A, which
carries interest at 12% per annum and is repayable before 21 August
2024. Management explained that the delay in provision of Complete
Agreement A and Further Documents to us was due to inadvertent
omission and unintentional oversight. We could not ascertain when
Complete Agreement A and Further Documents were executed.
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(2)(ii) Cooperation agreement in relation to the BJ Properties

In early February 2017, management provided us with a cooperation
agreement entered into between another wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Group (“Subsidiary C”) and another PRC incorporated company
owned by Mr. Zhou's relatives (“Mr. Zhou's Company B"), together
with a guarantee agreement entered into amongst Subsidiary C,
Mr. Zhou's Company A and Mr. Zhou (collectively, “Agreement B").
Pursuant to Agreement B, Mr. Zhou's Company B was required to (i)
facilitate the handover of the property operation and management
of the BJ Properties from Mr. Zhou's Company A to Subsidiary C; and
(ii) refurbish the BJ Properties according to Subsidiary C's specification
by 30 September 2017. As considerations for these services provided
under Agreement B, Subsidiary C should pay a total amount of
RMB247.5 million to Mr. Zhou's Company B. Payments of RMB126.2
million and RMB121.3 million were made by Subsidiary C to another
company indirectly owned by Mr. Zhou on 29 December 2016 and 13
January 2017, respectively, which were financed by a long-term loan
facility of RMB420 million provided by a financial institution in the PRC
to the Group on 28 December 2016. Pursuant to the relevant loan
agreement, Mr. Zhou's Company A has pledged the BJ Properties to
the financial institution as a security to the loan facility. Pursuant to
Agreement B, Mr. Zhou's Company A and Mr. Zhou are guarantors for
the obligations of Mr. Zhou Company B under Agreement B. As at 31
December 2016, the first payment was recorded as “Receivables and
Prepayments” under non-current assets in the Group’s consolidated
balance sheet. No profit or loss was recognised in the consolidated
income statement for the year then ended in this connection.

Agreement B was undated. Although the company chop of Subsidiary
C was noted on Agreement B, no signature of the authorised
representative of Subsidiary C was found. On 14 March 2017,
management provided us with an agreement dated 27 December
2016 (“Agreement C") and a loan agreement dated 27 December
2016 (“Agreement D”). Pursuant to Agreement C, Agreement B was
to be terminated; and pursuant to Agreement D, the total payment of
RMB247.5 million to be made under Agreement B should be treated
as a loan from Subsidiary C to Mr. Zhou's Company B for a term of
period from 28 December 2016 to 12 November 2018, which carries
interest at 0.91667% per month. Management explained that the
delay in provision of Agreement C and Agreement D to us was due
to inadvertent omission and unintentional oversight. We could not
ascertain when Agreement C and Agreement D were executed.

ﬁ HSIN CHONG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

(i) BRI RMEN S EIHE

R2017F2 /%) BERERHEMREEE E5E
HEth2EMBAR ([MBARC])EBERALE
R 5 T B Bl MR A R ([ E
NAEIB1)FRTNEEw = ERMKBARC:
BRERTARBSERTNERDZE ([
B) - iRIE B FELEQFIBAB(RERELLE
ARARMBARCREIL R YENYEEE
NER  MiR201749 A30 8 iR E A &)C
BRI BE AL Y o 1E BIR IR B R BRT IR (1
RISRE KHBAG CARBRERABY
- 4858 A R #247,500,0007T ° it & A FICH Bl
20165128298 K2017F1A1BE AR
#126,200,0007T & A B #121,300,0007T F &
SERBERENS — AR ZEHRER—HEFP
FE&rikiER S5£EM2016F12H28H FTiE
HAORIEEE ARE420,000,0007T# 1T
o RIBEBER G BEER AR MZE
RMEE R A MEEAERRE ZEH R
BB BEERRARBLEHABRLEER
AIBA B T EEMIERA - 7220165128
3R E—E[NRER BESEZEEGEESR
BERABEAERDEEBE T2 [ RTE
&) -HEBBEFETEREGE WS RERT

(CIE kN

B TR B Hl - B E M EBREI KB R
RICH AR ENE - B BB B QR CRE
RENFEE-N2017F38148  EEE A&
9424 B 83 A20165F12 8278 2 i ([ =
Cl)RBHA20165F12A278 2 &xineE ([
#ED ) REMEC HEBBER L RRER
ED IKIEHEBS TIEE NN RATBARE
247,500,0007T 15 4 17, 4 T B8 A BRI C R Bl o
NEIBME N EFXER A2016F12A28R0 &
2018F 11 F12H & A7 %0.91667%5H B &
B EREBIEERMHGZC R MED RN ESE
R DE AT - BB AER R C K S
DRAMAI B R 7T



In relation to these transactions and balances with Mr. Zhou and
entities related to him under 2(i) and 2(ii), management was unable
to provide us with adequate documentary evidence to support the
proper approval of these transactions at or prior to the transaction
dates, nor was it able to provide satisfactory and consistent
explanations about their business rationale and commercial substance.
We were also not able to obtain all the necessary corroborative
evidence from the counterparties to substantiate the nature of these
transactions and the related outstanding balances, and to assess
their recoverability. Given the above, together with our concerns on
those transactions described in the sub-sections headed (3) and (4)
below, we have requested the audit committee of the Company
to commission an independent investigation on the approval,
authenticity and commercial substance of the relevant transactions
(the “Proposed Investigation”). The audit committee has confirmed
that an independent investigation committee was set up in late March
2017 which agreed to conduct the Proposed Investigation as soon as
practicable.

As at the date of this report, the Proposed Investigation on those
transactions under this sub-section (2) has just commenced. Because
of the above scope limitations, there were no alternative audit
procedures that we could perform to satisfy ourselves as to:

(i)  the business rationale and commercial substance, legitimacy,
occurrence, accuracy, completeness and presentation of these
transactions and the related balances as at and during the year
ended 31 December 2016;

(i) the valuation of the related balances at 31 December 2016; and

(i) whether the effects of these transactions have been properly
accounted for and disclosed, including the accuracy and
completeness of any related party transaction disclosures.

(3) Payments made to a construction company

In January 2017, management provided us with two shop renovation
subsidy agreements (the “Subsidy Agreements”) entered into by certain
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group with a construction company
incorporated in the PRC (the “Construction Company”), one dated 16
January 2016 in relation to the Group's property development project in
Foshan city, the PRC (the “Foshan project”), and another one dated 4
August 2016 in relation to the Group's property development project in
Taian city, the PRC (the “Taian project”). We were informed by management
that the Construction Company was an enterprise owned by whole people
(2RFTEHI{PZ) and an independent third party. In addition, we were
provided with a supplemental agreement (the “Supplemental Agreement”)
dated 26 March 2016 in relation to the Foshan project, and an interior
renovation construction contract (the “Renovation Contract”) dated 1 July
2016 in relation to the Taian project.
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Pursuant to the Subsidy Agreements, the Group should pay to the
Construction Company an amount calculated at a unit rate of RMB8,500
per sg. meter in exchange for the Construction Company’s service in
providing renovation subsidies to the future tenants of the first phase outlet
mall of each of the Foshan project and the Taian project. The total contract
sums payable under the Subsidy Agreements amounted to RMB765
million and RMB136 million for the Foshan project and the Taian project
respectively. The Group should pay 90% of the total contract sum to the
Construction Company on the 5th working day after signing of the Subsidy
Agreements. According to the accounting records of the Group, RMB433
million and RMB22 million were paid under the Subsidy Agreements for the
Foshan project and the Taian project respectively during the year.

Pursuant to the Supplemental Agreement for the Foshan project only, based
on the Group's revised development and investment plan, RMB457 million
out of the total contract sum of RMB765 million pursuant to the Subsidy
Agreements should be revised to cover certain services to be provided
by the Construction Company including (i) assistance in demolition and
relocation matters; (ii) greening and other environment restoration work of
the land used for construction; and (iii) water and sewage system works.
The remaining balance of the original contract sum of RMB308 million
should be applied as subsidies for the renovation work of the future tenants
as stipulated in the Subsidy Agreements, together with other construction
and tender services in relation to the Foshan project, with the final contract
sum subject to work certification. Up to December 2016, of the total
RMB433 million paid by the Group to the Construction Company pursuant
to the Subsidy Agreements, RMB409 million was accounted for as partial
payment in respect of the work of RMB457 million under the Supplemental
Agreement. In August 2016, the Construction Company issued a payment
request to the Group stating that the work under items (i) to (iii) above had
been completed and requested for the balance payment of RMB48 million,
which was settled by the Group in January 2017.

Pursuant to the Renovation Contract for the Taian project only, the
Construction Company should provide interior decoration service for
the first phase outlet mall of the Taian project at a total contract sum of
RMB500 million. The Group should pay 50% of the total contract sum to
the Construction Company within 30 working days after signing of the
Renovation Contract. According to the accounting records of the Group,
RMB250 million was paid under Renovation Contract during the year.
Management confirmed that as at 31 December 2016, the work under the
Renovation Contract has not commenced.
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In the Group's consolidated balance sheet, the aggregate amount of
RMB272 million paid in respect of the Taian project was included as
“Receivables and Prepayments” under non-current assets while for the
aggregate amount of RMB433 million paid in respect of the Foshan
project, RMB409 million was accounted for as addition to “Investment
Properties” during 2016 and RMB24 million was included as “Receivables
and Prepayments” under non-current assets. For the year ended 31
December 2016, the fair value change recognised for certain investment
properties of the Foshan project was calculated after taking into account of
the aforesaid addition to the investment properties. Should the remaining
paid and payable amount of RMB356 million for Foshan project under the
Subsidy Agreements and the total contracted amount of RMB636 million
for Taian project under the Subsidy Agreements and Renovation Contract
be considered as unavoidable cost directly attributable to the investment
properties, the amounts might need to be included in determining, and thus
might increase, the fair value loss of “Investment Properties”.

Management was unable to provide us with adequate documentary
evidence to support the proper approval and the nature of the
transactions, the value and status of the work and services performed
by the Construction Company as at and during the year ended 31
December 2016, and whether the amounts paid and payable under the
aforesaid agreements have been incorporated in the Group's approved
development budget for these projects, nor was it able to provide
satisfactory explanations about the commercial substance of these
transactions. Although we have interviewed the representatives of the
Construction Company who explained that the services to be provided
under these agreements were mainly identification and solicitation of
new tenants, interior decoration work at the requests of the tenants and
other refurbishment works, we were not able to obtain all the necessary
corroborative evidence from the Construction Company to substantiate the
nature of these transactions, and to verify the value and status of the work
and services performed. Given these scope limitations, and because the
Proposed Investigation on those transactions under this sub-section (3) is yet
to commence as at the date of this report, there were no alternative audit
procedures that we could perform to satisfy ourselves as to:

(i) the business rationale (including the reasonableness of the subsidies to
tenants as compared with common market practices) and commercial
substance, occurrence, accuracy, completeness and presentation of
these transactions together with the related balances as at and during
the year ended 31 December 2016;

(i) whether the effects of these transactions have been properly
accounted for and disclosed, including the potential impact on the
carrying amounts of the related assets of the Foshan project and the
Taian project including “Investment Properties”, “Receivables and
Prepayments” or other assets in the Group’s consolidated balance
sheet and the potential related impact to changes in fair value for
investment properties or other items in the consolidated income
statement; and

(i)~ disclosure of the related capital commitment, if any.
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(4) Payments made to certain financial consultancy companies

During the course of our audit, we have identified total payments of
RMB120 million to four companies incorporated in the PRC (the “Financial
Consultancy Companies”) made by certain wholly-owned subsidiaries
during the year. We were informed by management that the Financial
Consultancy Companies were independent third parties. In the Group’s
consolidated balance sheet, these amounts were capitalised in “Properties
under Development” during the year ended 31 December 2016.

With regard to these payments, in January 2017, management provided
us with several financial consultancy service agreements (the “Financial
Consultancy Agreements”) entered into in May 2016. Pursuant to the
Financial Consultancy Agreements, the Financial Consultancy Companies
should provide financial consultancy services to the Group, although
the details of the services, e.g., references to specific financing activities
undertaken by the Group or to specific property projects of the Group, were
not provided in these agreements. Subsequently, management provided us
with a management schedule relating the aforesaid financial consultancy
service fees to an entrusted loan of RMB750 million obtained by the
Group in May 2016, together with certain documents from the Financial
Consultancy Companies to the Group stating that the amounts received
were related to the aforesaid entrusted loan. However, the names or the
existence of the Financial Consultancy Companies as consultants were not
mentioned in the corresponding entrusted loan agreement.

Management was unable to provide us with adequate documentary
evidence to support the nature and details of these transactions, nor was
it able to provide satisfactory explanations about the commercial substance
of these transactions. We were also unable to obtain all the necessary
corroborative evidence from the counterparties to substantiate the nature
of these transactions. Given these scope limitations, and because the
Proposed Investigation on those transactions under this sub-section (4) is yet
to commence as at the date of this report, there were no alternative audit
procedures that we could perform to satisfy ourselves as to:

(i)  the business rationale and commercial substance, occurrence,
accuracy, completeness and presentation of these transactions
together with the related balances as at and during the year ended 31
December 2016; and

(i) whether the effects of these transactions have been properly
accounted for and disclosed, including the potential impact on the
carrying amounts of the any related assets of the Group's property
projects under “Properties under Development” and “Investment
Properties” in the consolidated balance sheet and the potential related
impact to the consolidated income statement.
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Responsibilities of Directors and Audit Committee for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group's consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the
HKICPA and to issue an auditor’s report. We report solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. However, due to the potential
interaction of the multiple uncertainties and their possible cumulative effect on
the consolidated financial statements and because we have not been able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence as described in the Basis for Disclaimer
of Opinion section of our report, it is not possible for us to form an opinion on
these consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other

ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Chu Ho Kwan Raphael.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 18 April 2017
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

HZE2016F12A31H ILFE
2016 2015
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Pt & B¥TT ST
Continuing operations BEEEEY
Revenue Was 5 9,823,216 12,585,256
Cost of sales & BA 10 (9,366,767) (12,149,786)
Gross profit EF 456,449 435,470
Other (losses)/gains, net Hith (E518) W T 7 (1,106,159) 112,603
Gains on bargain purchase B R 41 - 2,320,579
Fair value (loss)/gain on investment properties &Y% A 78 (E518) Wz 18 (883,925) 191,225
Provision for impairment of properties BRPYERERE
under development 8 (1,924,025) -
Net exchange loss b 5 B 18 % 58 (101,899) (17,668)
Selling and general administrative expenses  $5& K& —fZ7T R (507,182) (404,378)
Amortisation of intangible assets A 19 (12,340) (4,090)
Interest income FLEWA 12,101 3,022
Interest expenses FEMAX 9 (154,465) (118,947)
(4,221,445) 2,517,816
Share of loss of an associated company FE(E —[HE & A R E1E 21 (52,015) =
(Loss)/profit before taxation BBiAT (E18) mFl 10 (4,273,460) 2,517,816
Taxation IR 14 1,350,866 (99,213)
(Loss)/profit for the year from continuing REAFBECEEBOREE
__Operatons (B w 292259) AAEEE
Discontinued operation DRIEEERE
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary e —RHEB ATz K 6 185,915 -
Profit for the year from RE BRI EKH
__ Oiscontinued operation | ________ AvEwA 6 ... 284 . 55487 _
210,408 55,487
(Loss)/profit for the year AEE (BER), 5 (2,712,186) 2,474,090
(Loss)/profit attributable to: fE1E (B1B) /aF
Equity holders of the Company RRAE=FRA (2,733,500) 2,445,837
Non-controlling interests FEIRE I 2 21,314 28,253
(2,712,186) 2,474,090
(Loss)/profit attributable to equity holders NREiEREE ARG (B18),/
of the Company: A -
Continuing operations FRERE XD (2,936,129) 2,410,659
Discontinued operation B IF A TS 202,629 35,178
(2,733,500) 2,445,837
(Loss)/earnings per share RABBESLEL 2K (B18),/
from continuing operations (HK cents) 2 (AL
Basic E- 9N 15 (52.6) 45.8
Diluted s 15 (52.6) 22.0
Earnings per share from REERIEREEE 2
discontinued operation (HK cents) BRAER (BEL)
Basic L= 9N 15 3.6 0.7
Diluted s 15 3.6 0.3
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

B Z20165F12A31BIEFE
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRTT BT T
_(oss)iprofitfortheyear = *FE(EW) @™ 0 RUZESN 2
Other comprehensive income Htt2mEmka
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: T & E# 7484872 BH -
Actuarial loss on retirement benefit obligations BRENEECIEEEE (101) (3,280)
Fair value gain on leasehold land and building ME T REF 2 AAEREE 117,548 43,951
Deferred tax on fair value gain of HETHEREFAABERZZ
leasehold land and building RETIE (19,395) (7,252)
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to HiE [t EZ R BiEm s HA -
profit or loss:
Fair value (loss)/gain on available-for-sale AIHHEENBEEZ
financial asset ARE (BER) M (1,877) 3,864
Deferred tax on fair value loss/(gain) of ARHETKEEAREBRE,
available-for-sale financial asset (Weas) 2 RERETH 469 (966)
Exchange differences arising on translation of MEBINEBEEZER Z58
foreign operations (1,034,216) (1,003,401)
Other comprehensive income for the year, TEERMBRERCHEGZEKS
netoftac @) (967,084
Total comprehensive income for the year, TEEENMRRBERZZEAKEEEH
net of tax (3,649,758) 1,507,006
Total comprehensive income EE2EBEEHE:
attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company RAREREE A (3,631,959) 1,492,368
Non-controlling interests SRR A (17,799) 14,638
(3,649,758) 1,507,006
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As at 31 December 2016
2016512 A31H

2016 2015
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B &E BETT PRI
Non-current assets FERENEE
Property, plant and equipment M e KRB K&
and leasehold land HE L 17 3,010,816 568,137
Investment properties "EME 18 9,597,022 10,721,129
Intangible assets mREE 19 194,200 76,043
Goodwill EE 20 - 42,002
Available-for-sale financial asset AHEE B EE 23 29,785 31,662
Receivables and prepayments FEWERR R FE & 26 661,070 208,941
Tax indemnification asset HIEREEE 42 - 1,006,384
Deferred tax assets REBIHEE 29 9,056 41,974
13,501,949 12,696,272
Current assets BN R E
Properties under development BERBPYE 24 13,429,518 16,808,489
Stocks and contracting work-in-progress FEREGEATE 25 2,395,934 2,537,258
Receivables and prepayments ERERRENE 26 3,063,363 2,679,474
Amounts due from non-controlling interests &Y FF 122 A% 4 25 7k 18 27 267 1,043
Amount due from an associate JE U — g i A B 5RIE 21 - 11,940
Amounts due from other partners of FEWHEREE 2
joint operations HAih & ERHRIE 22 8,041 11,200
Deposits, cash and cash equivalents ER-BHekERREIER 28 411,147 1,469,463
Restricted cash ZRHIRE 28 627,416 126,812
19,935,686 23,645,679
Current liabilities mERE
Bank overdrafts RITEX (25,216) =
Bank loans RITER 30 (2,329,735) (3,117,787)
Convertible bonds AR E 34 (44,696) (544,199)
Other borrowings Hinfg & 32 (4,151,612) (2,400,736)
Payables and accruals JEMERF N fEAT & A 31 (6,011,998) (6,073,538)
Amounts due to other partners of FERT H RIS 2 H & 1E
joint operations B RIE 22 (22,847) (16,153)
Financial derivative liability TRITTAETAAE 34 (183) (206,412)
Current tax liabilities HEHNIBAE (81,827) (66,760)
(12,668,114) (12,425,585)
Net current assets R ERE 7,267,572 11,220,094
Total assets less current liabilities HEERTHAR 20,769,521 23,916,366
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2016 2015
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B &E BETT BT T
Non-current liabilities FRENAR
Bank loans RITERK 30 - (679,816)
Other borrowings HthfEE 32 (1,610,389) =
Senior notes BERE 33 (3,417,715) (2,275,504)
Long service payment liabilities EHREEaE 35 (2,157) (6,553)
Deferred tax liabilities RERIA S B 29 (4,632,585) (6,407,122)
Total non-current liabilities SEREN R fR#EE (9,662,846) (9,368,995)
Net assets H"EPRE 11,106,675 14,547,371
Equity Ba
Capital and reserves attributable to ELFRESFEAEMNL
the Company’s equity holders BER A
Share capital & A 36 1,141,084 1,084,335
Other reserves H A 8,937,241 9,694,991
Retained profits IREE i A 446,785 3,109,814
Proposed dividends FORAR S 16 - =
10,525,110 13,889,140
Non-controlling interests RS 581,565 658,231
Total equity R 11,106,675 14,547,371

The financial statements on pages 108 to 214 were approved by the Board of

Directors on 18 April 2017 and were signed on its behalf.

Joseph CHOI Kin Hung % fi# 1§

Executive Director and Co-Chief Executive Officer #177 & F 3 1 /& 7T IEC A4 2

F108E2V4B 2 SR MEZTLH2017F4818H

HAELH FIIEFRRESE -

Wilfred WU Shek Chun BRBFEE

Executive Director and Chief Risk Officer #77# E# B /AR E
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mMERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HZE2016F12A31H ILFE
2016 2015
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B &E BETT PRI
Operating activities EERE
Net cash outflow from operations & 7 ISR R 43 (310,800) (133,502)
Interest received B W F B 12,206 3,123
Interest paid BEARALE (986,769) (407,565)
Tax paid BERIE (58,186) (43,964)
Long service payment E RS E (793) (734)
Net advance from/(repayment to) other &z EMmEIERHZ
partners of joint operations iﬂm/ BN FE 9,868 (2,911)
Net cash outflow from operating BETHZHSRHBHE
activities (1,334,474) (585,553)
Investing activities BREEH
Acquisition of a non-wholly owned WE—FEEE BN B AR
subsidiary 249 -
Net cash paid for consideration for ERNEBEHREZREEFHE
business combination 41 - (2,411,927)
Release of time deposit over three months ~ =1& A LA & HiTE 5k 2 iR & 316 7,168
Investment in an associate R—AEBE R 2%E (52,994) =
Increase in amount due from a FEU—EEE ARz —BREZ
shareholder of an associate FIEHE N (156,044) =
Advance to an associate RHET—EEERAAZER - (11,940)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment ~ BE B #7% - #28 M R E iy
and leasehold land (42,838) (19,048)
Purchase of intangible assets BEETEE (544) (714)
Additions of investment properties NEREME (740,986) (537,517)
Deposits paid BEftiEe (528,415) (208,941)
Increase in receivables FEUBR Zk 2 1 N (150,572) =
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME MR RRERAE i
plant and equipment and leasehold land FriS s 319 928
Net cash receipt from disposal of a RE HE—EH B A RKE 2
subsidiary R R 190,088 943
Net cash outflow from BRETBZHSRHBHE
investing activities (1,481,421) (3,181,048)
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2016 2015
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
s BRETT BT T
Financing activities i 3 A
Deposits paid B e (35,163) -
Increase in receivables FEUER R 2 1 1N (535,058) -
Drawdown of bank loans REURTTER 1,400,606 1,344,193
Repayment of bank loans EBERITER (2,627,871) (1,325,295)
Proceeds from issuance of shares by EITERBEM S B IR M
Synergis to non-controlling interests AR AR AT O
upon exercise of share options FrfS s I8 389 10,203
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests &k T FEIE R AE SR B (7.148) (11,339)
Dividends paid to the Company’s Bk T AR AR R AR 2
shareholders - (322,896)
Proceeds from issuance of shares BITRM PTG FRIE - 2,255,816
Net proceeds from issuance of senior notes 2R B #1TEALZE >
PSSR F 5 1,106,501 2,271,129
Net proceeds from issuance of REBITAIMRES 2
convertible bonds FTiS kI8 558 — 728,713
Redemption of convertible bonds & O] Al R AR (B 55 (733,943) =
Repurchase of shares BRI, (7,583) =
Drawdown of other borrowings REEMEES 5,269,050 1,988,641
Repayment of other borrowings EEHEMEER (1,582,383) (2,284,083)
Repayment of notes BEEER - (156,250)
Increase in bank overdrafts HRITH I AN 25,216 =
Increase in restricted deposits PR 1 535 0 (500,604) (96,104)
Net cash inflow from financing activities BE;EBZHR &R A BHE 1,772,009 4,402,728
(Decrease)/increase in cash and cash ReRERARLER (RD) 18
equivalents (1,043,886) 636,127
Cash and cash equivalents at the REVzHeRERREIEE
beginning of the year 1,462,716 850,045
Exchange loss on cash and cash equivalents H& RERRESER 2 EHEE (14,114) (23,456)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end RERZEERERAALTAR
of the year 404,716 1,462,716
Analysis of the balances of cash and ReRERBAEHABFZSM:
cash equivalents:
Bank balances and cash — unrestricted RITHEGFERES —TZRH 411,147 1,469,463
Less: Time deposit over three months e =18 A LA EEERTER (6,431) (6,747)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end RERZESRERARLER
of the year 404,716 1,462,716
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

HZE2016F12A318IEFE
Capital Convertible
redemption bonds and
and Share warrants Non-
Share Share  Exchange general Special  Revaluation options equity Other Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserves profits Total interests equity
TRRES
REMER Rk
Kd  RhEE  ERRE 2 HERRE 0 BMEE 0 ERRE  DRERE  REGRE  XNEE  REEA #F  FRENE  HaeH
(Note ) (Notei) (Noteii) (Note )
(Weaki) (k) (i) (Wskw)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
AT E%Tr  BETn BT BBt BETn B¥Tn BBt BETn BT BT BT BT
At January 2016 R06E1A18 1084335 9MOS0T (88198 1440 56876 44006 711 . I 309814 BSHM0 GBI 173N
(Lossprofit for the year AER (ER) /4 - = = = = = = > - 7350 (273350) 1314 (2712,186)
Other comprehensive income Ai2EkE
Actuarallos on retiement beneft RIVEHEL RERIE
obligations - - - - - - - - - (101) (101) - (101)
Fairvalue gain on leasehold land and BETHREF ANERE
buiding - - - - - 17,548 - - - - 17548 - 117,548
Deferred tax o fair value gai of RETHREFAEREL
leasehold land and buiding BERR = = = = = (19,395) = - - - (19,395) - (19,39)
Fair vlue loss on avalable-forsdle AL ERRERE MBS
financial asset - - - - - (1877) - - - - (1877) - (1877)
Deferted tax o far value loss o AL ERFEENLEREL
avalable-forsale financ asset BEHE - - - - - 469 - - - - 469 - 469
Exchange differences arsng on transiion of -~ BENNFHELZEX £
foreign operations - - (995,103) - - - - - - - (995,103) (39113)  (1,034216)
Tota comprehensive income 2ENEEE = - (%5103 - - 96,745 - - - (273601 (3631959 (17799 (3,649758)
Isue of congideraton preference shares FIRERLR 55,510 446,702 - - (256,670) - - - - - 15,58 - 15,54
Isue of shares Upon conversion of RERAARESMETRG
convertile bonds 2683 18,654 - - - - - - - - 1337 - 1331
Recogition of equity component upon R akESR L ERS
issuance of convertble bonds - - - - - - - 9874 - - 9,874 - 9,874
Cancelation on repurchase of shares BERAZEH (1,444) = = 1484 = = = = = (7,583) (7,583) = (7.583)
Ksue of shares by Synergis tonon-contolling.~ RTEE RS EE
inerests upon exercie of share options FEREREIRG - - - - - - (110) - - - (110) 19 3%
Acquisiton of a non-wholly owned subsidary  RE—EE2 ENEAR - - - - - - - - - - - 19 u9
Transfer upon share optons lapsing RRREXIMEE - - - - - - (4043) - - 4051 8 (6] -
Equity stfled share-based transactions NRHBER RELERS - - - - - - n - - - n @ 69
Disposal of a subsidary HE-FHELT - - - - - - - - (75314) 75307 (] (53,843) (53850)
Change in ownership nerestin asubsidiay ~ R—FiA XA RIEZHBARZ
withoutlossof control izt - - - - - - - - - (1.203) (1.203) 138 183
Dividends paid BiRRE - - - - - - - - - - - (1.148) (1.148)
56,749 465,356 - 144 (256,670) - (4,082) 9874 (15314) 70572 267929 (58,867) 209,062
At31 Decernber 2016 R016%E128318 1,141,084 9906163 (1,877,092 15,864 332,046 537,351 13,035 9874 - 6785 10525110 581,565 11,106,675
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Capital Convertible

redemption bonds and
and Share  warrants Non-
Share Share  Exchange general Special  Revaluation options equity Other Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserves profits Total interests equity
TRRRS
REMER Rk
Bx  BRER ERERE 2 HEGE 2 GREE  EGRE DREGE  RREE  RREE  GEEH @ FEREE  HeeH
(Note) (Notei) (Noteii) (Note)
(Hati) (ki) (i) (Isw)

HKSOD  HKSOD  HKSOOD  HKSO0D  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO0  HKSO0D  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSOO0  HKSO0D
AT AT AfTn  B%Tn BETn B . AT BT BT BMTn B%Tn BBt BB

At1 January 2015 01581518 285817 2,385,285 108819 14420 332,046 401,009 19,65 11,683 74137 976491 4,609,363 49,087 4658450
Proft forthe year RERER = - - - - - - - - QM8 M5 B3 247409
Other comprehensive income Ak
Actuaral losson retement benefit RIVETIEEZBREER
obligations = = = = = = = = = 2259 2.259) (1022 (3.280)
Falrvale gain on leasehold and and RETHREF ABRE
buiding - - - - - 43951 - - - - 43951 - 43951
Deferred tax o far value gai of HETHREFAEREL
leasehold land and bulding EiLHA - - - - - (1.25) - - - - (1250) - (125
Fairvalue gain on avalable-forsale AN ERHERE MEKE
financal asset - - - - - 3864 - - - - 3864 - 3864
Deferred tax on fai value gain of e EEEM ENGEZ
avalable-forscle financal asset itz = = = = = (%66) = = = = (%66) = (9%6)
Exchange difeences aisng on transion ~~ RENFHELZEXEE
of foreign operations - - (990,808) - - - - - - - (990,808) (12593)  (1,003401)
Totel comprehensive income 2EYREE - - (9%0808) - - 39597 - - - 248519 1492368 14638 1507006
Issue of new placing shares KR ER 1472% 1266746 - - - - - - - - 1440 - 141408
Isue of rights shares RN 85,745 756,029 - - - - - - - - 1,774 - 841,774
Isue of convrthle preference shares T EhEsR 565477 5032747 - - - - - - - - 55824 - 55824
Unissued consceraton sheres REGRERD - - - - 2660 - - - - - 2660 - %660
Acquisition of a non-wholly owned subsidaries EFE2 EHBA - - - - - - - - - - - 594,280 504280
Issue of shares by Synergs to noncontroling. BT (E AR IEM AT S E BRI
interests upon execise of share options FARERZ TR - - - - = = (2639 - - - (2638) 12891 10,203
Fquit setled share-based transactions NRIBER RELERS - - - - - - 1357 - - - 1357 (400) %7
Transfer upon share optons lapsing RARELRm S - - - - - - (1,208 o = 97 (251) b =
Transfer upon warrants apsing ERRERAUmEE - - - - - - - (11,683) - 11,683 - - -
Change in ownershp inerest R-REE R HBARZ
in a subsidiary without los of control BHEREY - - - - - - - - 117 - 1477 1177 -
Dividends paid BiRRE = = = = = = - - - (3228%) (3228%) (11,339 (334235)
798518 7,055,522 - - 256,670 - (2539 (11,683) 117 (31025) 7787409 594,506 8381915
At31 Decernber 2015 H20158128318 1,084,335 9440807 (881,989) 14420 588,716 440,606 17117 = 75314 3109814 13,889,140 658231 14547371
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Notes:

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Capital redemption reserve was created during the repurchase of shares of HK$4,420,000
and HK$1,444,000 in 2015 and 2016 respectively. General reserve amounts to
HK$10,000,000.

Special reserves comprise:

(a) the difference between the fair value of the consideration, net of deferred taxation
and fair value of acquiring land parcels in Tieling, the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC"). This reserve will be recognised through the retained profits upon the earlier
of the disposal of the subsidiaries or the disposal by the subsidiaries of the assets to
which it relates, in proportion to the percentage the Group disposes.

(b)  the convertible preference shares issued on 15 January and 26 April 2016 for settling
part of the consideration for acquiring the properties in Foshan, the PRC (Note 41).

Revaluation reserve comprises the fair value gains, net of deferred tax, on leasehold land and
building held for own use and available-for-sale financial assets.

Other reserves were arisen from the Group's reorganisation and realignment of business
activities.

On 30 November 2012, the Company completed the disposal of Interiors & Special Projects
division to Driven Power Management Limited (“Driven Power”), a wholly owned subsidiary
of Synergis Holdings Limited (”Synergis”), a separately listed subsidiary of the Company. The
transaction was accounted for as a transaction with non-controlling interests.

As part of the settlement of the consideration, Synergis issued 58,666,667 convertible
preference shares (“CPS"”) to the Company. In determining the Group's economic interest
in Synergis after the transaction, management has taken into account the rights of the CPS
holders, among other things, potential voting rights and the same entitlement to dividends
and other distributions as the ordinary shareholders, and that a holder of the CPS is entitled
to the return of capital in priority of ordinary shares in case of winding up of Synergis.
Accordingly, the Group’s economic interest in Synergis increased from 50.94% to 58.31%
and the gain on disposals to non-controlling interests of HK$77,664,000 was recognised in
equity.

On 21 November 2016, the Group has disposed its subsidiary, Synergis, and the related
other reserves have been transferred to retained profits.

*  for identification purposes only
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General information

Hsin Chong Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) are engaged in building construction, civil
engineering, electrical and mechanical installation, property development
and investment.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda.
The address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton, HM 11, Bermuda. The Company has its primary listing on the
main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of Hong
Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated, and were approved for
issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on 18 April 2017.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements which have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment properties,
leasehold land and building in Hong Kong, available-for-sale financial
assets and financial derivatives which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It
also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 4.

(i) Going concern basis

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group reported
a net loss attributable to the owners of the Company of
HK$2,734 million (2015: profit of HK$2,446 million) and had a
net operating cash outflow of HK$1,334 million (2015: HK$586
million). Total borrowings increased from HK$9,224 million as
at 31 December 2015 to HK$11,580 million as at 31 December
2016, of which HK$6,551 million (2015: HK$6,269 million)
were classified as current liabilities. Unrestricted cash and cash
equivalents reduced from HK$1,469 million as at 31 December
2015 to HK$411 million as at 31 December 2016.

—REH
MERBEEBRABRAR ((ARF]) RAKELDA
(M8 [AEEREEFRE LATER HER
RIR MEERRRE-

ARBARABRETMRIMNEREE AR - HiE
fit ¥ =gz b4k A Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton, HM 11, Bermuda ° AR BIA BB A X 5
AR ([BRAT]) ERIEE— Lo

B BEFIEIN KA RER ST T AEM
IR WE 201754818 ER AT EE S H AT
o

FEERBREE
RUZFRA R ERENRMN X ERHBRHT)
mT-BRRANHRIN RERFORAELRFEE
B -

(a) HEEE
AR MBHRRDIBBEEBSHMAE (158
S A ) BHZAEERNE BN BRE
2R ([FEFBMELER]) RE L KAEDIR
2 WEHRARBEIIRZRENEER RE
BZBEETHNET AHEEZMBEER
SROTETA/EHERT -

HEERBEMHREEARRMBERE A
REETEANGE EEENACERABA
SEE SRR 2 BIZ PR HIE -8 BRIk
FHE S BER SRR FAMEHRREBE
RZBERAFTEE D RO AR

() BELEEE

HZE2016%F12A31B ILFE KNEE
BREAQNGHEAEAEGLFEBEEBE
2,734,000,0007C (20154 : 4 F| & &
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

0]
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Going concern basis (continued)

On 22 March 2017, the Group received a letter from a lender
of a borrowing of HK$768 million as at 31 December 2016
demanding for immediate repayment of total outstanding
overdue balance of HK$796 million. Subsequent thereto, the
Group has already fully settled the amount. In connection with
the drawdown of this borrowing in November 2016, certain
assets of the Group were pledged as security therefor, and if
such pledge was not considered as permitted lien under the
relevant documents of the senior notes issued by the Company
under non-current liabilities amounting to HK$3,418 million, this
might lead to a breach of the relevant covenants.

As at 31 December 2016 and up to the date of the approval
of these consolidated financial statements, the borrowings
of the Group in aggregate of HK$455 million were overdue.
Subsequent to 31 December 2016, additional borrowings of the
Group in aggregate of HK$705 million (excluding the aforesaid
borrowings of HK$768 million and HK$455 million) as at 31
December 2016 were also overdue but the Group has already
obtained extension of repayment of such balances prior to the
date of approval of these consolidated financial statements. The
overdue borrowings without extension would be immediately
repayable if requested by the lenders.

In respect of the borrowings of the Group in aggregate of
HK$4,348 million as at 31 December 2016, the Group could not
meet certain financial ratios as set out in the covenants in the
relevant borrowing agreements.

Should the above-mentioned situations constitute or have
become events of default under the respective borrowing
agreements, including those under the cross-default terms,
these might cause an aggregate amount of borrowings up to
HK$6,294 million at 31 December 2016, of which an aggregate
amount of HK$4,850 million had original contractual repayment
dates beyond 31 December 2017, to become immediately
repayable.

All of the above conditions indicate the existence of material

uncertainties which may cast significant doubt about the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

HSIN CHONG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (continued)
Going concern basis (continued)
In view of such circumstances, the directors of the Company
have given careful consideration to the future liquidity and
performance of the Group and its available sources of financing
in assessing whether the Group will have sufficient financial
resources to continue as a going concern. Certain measures have
been taken to mitigate the liquidity pressure and to improve the
Group's financial position which include, but are not limited to,
the following:

0]

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The Group has been actively negotiating with a number
of commercial banks and other financial institutions for
renewal and extension of bank and other borrowings
and credit facilities. Specifically, the Group is in active
negotiations with the lenders to extend the repayment
dates of the overdue borrowings, and to obtain waivers
from complying with certain restrictive covenants
contained in the loan agreements of certain borrowings;

In addition, the Group is identifying various options for
financing the Group's working capital and commitments
in the foreseeable future by obtaining facilities from
shareholders, issuance of shares and debt instruments.
In April 2017, a facility of HK$800 million which is
available until and repayable by 31 March 2018 has
been successfully obtained from a related company of a
substantial shareholder of the Company;

The Group has accelerated its disposal plan of its
properties, plant and equipment and leasehold land,
investment properties, properties under development and
completed properties held for sale (“Group Properties”).
Subsequent to 31 December 2016 and up to the date of
approval of these consolidated financial statements, the
Group has successfully entered into certain uncommitted
memorandums of understandings to dispose of certain
Group Properties. Apart from selling the Group Properties,
the Group expects to launch its outlet mall in Foshan in
the first half of 2017, followed by pre-sales of certain
residential units in Foshan, which are expected to improve
the Group's operating cash inflow in 2017; and

The Group will continue to take active measures to
control administrative costs through various channels
including human resources optimisation and management
remuneration adjustment and containment of capital
expenditures.

The directors have reviewed the Group’s cash flow projections
prepared by management. The cash flow projections cover a
period of not less than twelve months from 31 December 2016.
They are of the opinion that, taking into account the above-
mentioned plans and measures, the Group will have sufficient
working capital to finance its operations and to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due within twelve months
from 31 December 2016. Accordingly, the directors are satisfied
that it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

0]

120

Going concern basis (continued)

Notwithstanding the above, significant uncertainties exist as to
whether management of the Company will be able to achieve its
plans and measures as described above. Whether the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern would depend upon the
Group's ability to generate adequate financing and operating
cash flows through the following:

(i) Successful negotiations with the lenders for the renewal
of or extension for repayment of outstanding borrowings,
including those with overdue principals and interests;

(i) Successful obtaining of additional new sources of financing
as and when needed;

(i) Successful implementation and acceleration of its disposal
plan of the Group Properties, including timely execution
of definitive sales agreements and timely collection of the
disposal proceeds, and the successful deferral of capital
expenditures for the Group’s unsold projects;

(iv)  Successful launch of its outlet mall and pre-sales of certain
residential units in Foshan so as to general operating cash
inflows;

(v)  Successful negotiation with the Group's existing lenders
such that no action will be taken by the relevant lenders to
demand immediate repayment of the borrowings in any
breach of loan covenants or default, including those with
cross-default terms; and

(vi)  Successful maintenance of relationship with the suppliers
of the Group, in particular those in relation to the Group's
construction business and the property development
projects such that no actions will be taken by those
suppliers against the Group should the Group not be able
to meet all the payment obligations on a timely basis.

Should the Group fail to achieve the above-mentioned plans
and measures, it might not be able to continue operate as a
going concern, and adjustments would have to be made to
write down the carrying values of the Group’s assets to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which
might arise, and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current
liabilities as current assets and current liabilities, respectively. The
effects of these adjustments have not been reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (continued)
(i) New and amended standards adopted by the Group
The following amendments and improvements are mandatory
for the first time for the financial year beginning 1 January 2016.

HKFRS 14 Regulatory deferral accounts

2. FEEHRFREE»)
(a) BEREEZ)

(i) AEBEFEMZHETRLIEFTLER
ATMERT AR R B ZEMN 201651 A1 B A

HKFRS 11 Amendment

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
Amendment

HKAS 16 and HKAS 41
Amendment

HKAS 27 Amendment

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 Amendment

HKAS 1 Amendment

Accounting for acquisitions of
interests in joint operations

Clarification of acceptable
methods of depreciation
and amortisation

Agriculture: bearer plants
Equity method in separate
financial statements

Investment entities: applying
the consolidation exception

Disclosure initiative

Annual Improvements Project  Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2012 — 2014 Cycle
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The application of the above amendments and improvements
in the current year has had no material effect on the Group's
reported financial performance and position for the current
and prior year and/or disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

(iii) New and amended standards have been issued and
are relevant to the Group but are not effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2016 and have not
been early adopted in preparing these consolidated
financial statements

HKAS 12 Amendment Recognition of deferred tax
assets for unrealised losses'

HKAS 7 Amendment Disclosure initiative'

HKFRS15 Revenue from contracts with
customers?

HKFRS 15 Amendment Classifications to HKFRS 152

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments?

HKFRS 2 Amendment Classification and

measurement of share-
based payment transactions?

HKFRS 16 Leases®
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or contribution of assets
Amendment between an investor and its

associate or joint venture?

Effective for annual periods beginning on 1 January 2017
Effective for annual periods beginning on 1 January 2018
Effective for annual periods beginning on 1 January 2019
Effective date to be determined

s woN o

The Group will adopt the above standards and amendments to
existing standards as and when they become effective. None
of the above is expected to have a significant effect on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group, except the
following set out below:

HKFRS 15, “Revenue from contracts with customers”

The application of HKFRS 15 may result in the identification of
separate performance obligations which could affect the timing
of the recognition of revenue. At this stage, the Group is in the
process of assessing the impact of HKFRS 15 on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 16, “Leases”

HKFRS 16 will affect primarily the accounting for Group's
operating leases. Under the new standard, an asset (the right
to use the leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals
are recognised in the consolidated balance sheet. The Group is
in the process of assessing to what extent the operating lease
commitments will result in the recognition of an asset and a
liability for future payments and how this will affect the Group's
profit or loss and classification of cash flows.
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2. FEEHRFREE»)
(b) BEE

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(b) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to 31 December

RAEMBERRBEARG REFTEH B AR
Z20165F 128318 Ik 2 B3Rk -

2016.

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the MEAREASBEHEERENHEZMEER
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is (PREAEMTR) EA5ERE2HEEM
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with R AEZAEOH  AHNEREH TR
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power B 12 i 45 2 EE AR [0 B - AN R E K B

over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.

0]

Business Combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred for
the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date. Indemnification assets are
recognised as an asset of the acquirer at the same time and on
the same basis as the indemnified item is recognised as a liability
of the acquiree. The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis, either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that
is deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 39 in consolidated income statement. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured, and
its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwiill. If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognised and previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired
in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised
directly in the consolidated income statement as a gain.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(b) Consolidation (continued)

0]

(i)

(iii)

124

Business Combinations (continued)

For purchase of subsidiaries which constitutes a purchase of
assets rather than a business combination, the assets and
liabilities acquired are accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policies for the assets and liabilities rather
than the acquisition method of accounting.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains and
losses on transactions between group companies are eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of transferred asset. Where necessary, amounts reported by
subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with the Group's
accounting policies.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without
change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions
— that is, as transactions with the owners of the subsidiary in
their capacity as owners. The difference between fair value of
any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity.
Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also
recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest
in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised
in consolidated income statement. The fair value is the initial
carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting
for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to consolidated
income statement.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(©

(d)

Joint arrangements

Investments in joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures; depending on the contractual rights and
obligations each investor has rather than the legal structure of the joint
arrangement. For the joint arrangements that specify that the parties
to the joint arrangements have rights to the assets and obligations
to the liabilities relating to the joint arrangements, they are classified
as joint operations. For the remaining joint arrangements, they are
classified as joint ventures.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Under the
equity method, the investment is initially recognised at cost, and the
carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor's
share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group's investments in associates include goodwill identified
on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest in an
associate, any difference between the cost of the associate and the
Group's share of the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets
and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to
consolidated income statement where appropriate.

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in
the consolidated income statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of the investment. When the Group's share of losses
in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including
any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any
objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If
this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the
difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to ‘share of profit
of investments accounted for using equity method' in the consolidated
income statement.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(d) Associates (continued)

(e)

126

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are recognised
in the Group's financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investor’s interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are recognised
in the consolidated income statement.

Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency
[tems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (“the
functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK dollars”), which is the
Company'’s functional and the Group's presentation currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets such

as equities classified as available-for-sale are included in other
comprehensive income.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(e) Foreign currency translation (continued)
(iii) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none
of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

—  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

— income and expenses for each consolidated income
statement are translated at average exchange rates; and

— all resulting currency translation differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of
a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate. Currency translation
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

On consolidation, currency translation differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign entities, are taken
to shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

(f) Intangible assets

0)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over
the fair value of the Group'’s share of the net identifiable assets
of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Goodwill
is tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill
are not reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity
include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity
sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose
of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-
generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the business combination in which the
goodwill arose identified according to operating segment.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

)
(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

128

Intangible assets (continued)

Trademarks and trade names

Separately acquired trademarks and trade names are shown
at historical cost. Trademarks and trade names acquired in
a business combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date.

Trademarks and trade names that have a finite useful life are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.

Trademarks that have indefinite useful lives are not amortised.
They are subject to impairment testing annually and whenever
there is an indication that it may be impaired.

Secured contracts

Secured contracts acquired in a business combination are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. The secured
contracts have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method over the expected life of the contracts of 5
years.

Client relationships

Client relationships acquired in a business combination are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. The client
relationships have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using
the straight-line method over the expected life of the client
relationships of 9 years.

Computer software

Costs associated with maintaining computer software
programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs that are directly attributable to the design
and testing of identifiable and unique software products
controlled by the Group are recognised as intangible assets when
the following criteria are met:

It is technically feasible to complete the software product
so that it will be available for use;

—  Management intends to complete the software product
and to use or sell it;

—  There is an ability to use or sell the software product;

— It can be demonstrated how the software product will
generate probable future economic benefits;
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

™)

9)

Intangible assets (continued)
(v) Computer software (continued)
- Adequate technical, financial and other resources to
complete the development and to use or sell the software
product are available; and

—  The expenditure attributable to the software product
during its development can be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the
software product include the software development employee
costs and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.

Other development expenditures that do not meet these criteria
are recognised as an expense as incurred. Development costs
previously recognised as an expense are not recognised as an
asset in a subsequent period.

Computer software development costs recognised as assets
are amortised over their estimated useful lives, which does not
exceed three years.
(vi) Operating right
Operating right of a property in Foshan is initially recognised at
cost. The operating right has a finite useful life and is carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method over the expected life of the
operating right of 10 years.

Investment properties

Investment property is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and is not occupied by the companies in
the Group. Land held under operating leases are accounted for as
investment properties when the rest of the definition of an investment
property is met. In such cases, the operating leases concerned are
accounted for as if they were finance leases. A property interest that
is held by a lessee under an operating lease may be classified and
accounted for as investment property if the property would otherwise
meet the definition of an investment property and the lessee uses the
fair value model for the asset recognised.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment properties are
carried at fair value, representing open market value determined at
the end of the reporting period by independent professional qualified
valuers.

Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific
assets. If this information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices in less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

)

(h)

130

Investment properties (continued)

Subsequent expenditure is recognised in the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated income statement during the financial
year in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are charged in the consolidated income
statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as property, plant and equipment and leasehold land. Its fair value at
the date of reclassification becomes its cost for subsequent accounting
purposes.

Property, plant and equipment and leasehold land

(i) Property comprises leasehold land and building held for own
use in Hong Kong and is stated at fair value less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses. Revaluation is performed with sufficient
regularity by independent professional qualified valuers. Changes
arising on the revaluation are dealt with in other comprehensive
income and are accumulated in the revaluation reserve, except
that, when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be charged to
the consolidated income statement to the extent that it exceeds
the amount held in the reserve in respect of that same asset
immediately prior to revaluation.

Any accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is
eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and
the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset.

When a revalued asset is sold, the amount included in the
revaluation reserve is transferred to retained earnings.

Leasehold land in the PRC comprises prepaid operating
lease payments. Leasehold land classified as operating lease
commences amortisation form the time when land interest
becomes available for its intended use. Amortisation on
leasehold land classified as operating lease is calculated using
straight-line method to allocated their cost to their residual value
over their unexpired period of the lease.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(h) Property, plant and equipment and leasehold land
(continued)

0]

(ii)

(continued)

Construction in progress is stated at cost less impairment losses.
Cost comprises direct costs of construction as well as interest
expense and exchange differences capitalised during the periods
of construction. Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the
construction in progress is transferred to respective category
in property, plant and equipment and leasehold land when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the assets for
their intended use are completed. No depreciation is provided
for in respect of construction in progress until it is completed and
ready for its intended use.

All other property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in
the consolidated income statement during the financial year in
which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment and leasehold land are
depreciated at rates sufficient to write off their cost less
accumulated impairment over their estimated useful lives on a
straight-line basis. The principal annual rates are as follows:

Leasehold land classified as over the unexpired period of
finance lease the lease

Building 5%

Leasehold land classified as over the unexpired period of

operating lease the lease
Leasehold improvements over the unexpired period of
the lease

10%-50%
10%-50%

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and
equipment

Motor vehicles 25%-30%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and

adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the assets carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
and leasehold land is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is
recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(i)

1)

(k)

132

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is estimated taking into account
the price ultimately expected to be realised, less applicable variable
selling expenses and the anticipated costs to completion.

The costs of properties under development comprises costs of land use
rights, construction costs, borrowing costs capitalised for qualifying
assets and professional fees incurred during the development period.

If a property under development becomes an investment property
under development when there is a change in use, any difference
resulting between the fair value of the property at that date and its
previous carrying amount is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

If a property under development becomes owner-occupied, it is
reclassified as property, plant and equipment and leasehold land. Its
carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for
subsequent accounting purposes.

Stocks and contracting work-in-progress

Stocks are stated at the lower of the cost and net realisable value.
Net realisable value is determined on the basis of anticipated sales
proceeds less estimated selling expenses.

Contracting work-in-progress is valued at cost incurred plus an
appropriate proportion of profits after deducting progress payments
and allowances for foreseeable losses. Cost comprises direct materials,
labour and overheads expenses incurred in bringing the work-in-
progress to its present condition.

The Group presents as an asset the gross amount due from customers
for contract work for all contracts in progress for which costs incurred
plus recognised profits (less recognised losses) exceed progress billings.
Progress billings not yet paid by customers and retention are included
within trade and retention receivables. The Group presents as a liability
the gross amount due to customers for contract work for all contracts
in progress for which progress billings exceed costs incurred plus
recognised profits (less recognised losses).

Financial assets
The Group dlassifies its investment as available-for-sale financial asset.

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of the
other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless
management intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months
of the reporting period.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(k) Financial assets (continued)

)

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership.

Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently carried at fair value.
Changes in carrying amount are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

The fair values of quoted financial assets are based on current bid
prices. For financial assets that are not traded in an active market
(and for unlisted securities), the Group establishes fair value by using
valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s length
transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially
the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and option pricing models,
making maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as possible
on entity-specific inputs.

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as available-
for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is considered an indicator that the securities
are impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial
assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognised in the consolidated
income statement — is removed from equity and recognised in the
consolidated income statement. Impairment losses recognised in the
consolidated income statement on equity instruments are not reversed
through the consolidated income statement.

Operating leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessors are classified as operating leases.

(i) The Group is the lessee
Payments made under operating leases net of any incentives
received from the lessors are charged to the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the lease periods.

(i) The Group is the lessor
When assets are leased out under an operating lease, the asset is
included in the balance sheet based on the nature of the asset.
Lease income from an operating lease is recognised over the
term of the lease on a straight-line basis.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(m) Receivables

(n)

(o)

134

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not
be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of
receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability
that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and
default or delinquency in payments are considered indicators that the
receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate.
The amount of the provision is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. When a receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for receivables. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to the consolidated income
statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, deposits held at call
with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturity of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, and non-
financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwill, are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwiill that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(o)

Q)

(r)

Borrowings

Borrowings, including senior notes, are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net
of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the balance sheet date.

Trade payable
Trade payable are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Current and deferred tax
The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax.

The current tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the
countries where the Company and its subsidiaries and joint operations
operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluate positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax is recognised in full, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred
taxation liability is settled.

Tax is recognised in the consolidated income statement, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and joint operations, except where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(r)

s)

(®

(u)

136

Current and deferred tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred taxes assets and liabilities relate to
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity
or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that outflow of economic resources will be required or the
amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the Notes
to the consolidated financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will
then be recognised as a provision.

Employee benefits

(i) Retirement benefits
The Group participates in mandatory provident fund schemes
in Hong Kong which are defined contribution plan generally
funded through payments to trustee-administered funds. The
assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in independently administered funds.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(u) Employee benefits (continued)

0]

(i)

(iii)

Retirement benefits (continued)

Pursuant to the relevant regulations of the government in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC"), the subsidiaries in the PRC
participate in the municipal government contribution scheme
whereby the subsidiaries are required to contribute to the
scheme for the retirement benefit of eligible employees. The
municipal government of the PRC is responsible for the entire
benefit obligations payable to the retired employees. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the scheme is to pay
the ongoing contributions required by the scheme. The Group's
contributions to the scheme are expensed as incurred.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave
are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is
made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date. It
is the Group’s policy to forfeit any untaken annual leave within
a specific time period. Subject to regular assessment of staff
turnover rate, a provision will be made or reversed. Employee
entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates two equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans, under which the entity receives services
from employees as consideration for equity instruments (options)
of the Group. The fair value of the employee services received
in exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as an
expense. The total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted, excluding
the impact of any non-market service and performance vesting
conditions (for example, profitability, sales growth targets
and remaining an employee of the entity over a specified
time period). Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are expected to
vest. The total amount expensed is recognised over the vesting
period, which is the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. At each balance sheet date, the
Company revises its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to vest based on the non-marketing vesting conditions.
It recognises the impact of the revision of original estimates, if
any, in the consolidated income statement with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new
shares and the proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and
share premium.

2. FEEHRFREE»)
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0]

(i)

(iii)
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(u) Employee benefits (continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

wv)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement date,
or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises termination
benefits when it is demonstrably committed to a termination
when the entity has a detailed formal plan to terminate the
employment of current employees without possibility of
withdrawal. In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits
falling due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period are discounted to their present value.

Long service payment liabilities

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long service accounts
payable on cessation of employment in certain circumstances
under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance is the amount
of future benefit that employees have earned in return for
their services in the current and prior periods. That benefit is
discounted to determine the present value and reduced by
entitlements accrued under the Group's retirement plans. The
obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit method by
a qualified actuary. Actuarial gains or losses was credited/charged
to other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

Bonus plans
Provisions for bonus are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in consolidated income
statement in the period in which they are incurred.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2. EEEHFBREE (2

(w) Revenue recognition (w) R ER

Contract costs are recognised when incurred. When the outcome
of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract
revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract costs incurred
that are likely to be recoverable. When the outcome of a construction
contract can be estimated reliably and it is probable that the contract
will be profitable, contract revenue is recognised over the period of
the contract. When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments are
included in contract revenue to the extent that they have been agreed
with the customer and are capable of being reliably measured.

Revenue from contracting work is recognised based on the stage
of completion of the contracts, provided that the stage of contract
completion and the gross billing value of contracting work can be
measured reliably. The stage of completion of a contract is established
by reference to the gross billing value of contracting work to date as
compared to the total contract sum receivable under the contracts.

Income from sale of stock of property is recognised when the risks
and rewards of properties are transferred to the purchasers, which is
when the construction of relevant properties has been completed and
the properties have been delivered to the purchasers and collectibility
of related receivables is reasonably assured. Deposits and instalments
received on properties sold prior to the date of revenue recognition
are included in the consolidated balance sheet as advanced proceeds
received from customers under current liabilities.

Operating lease rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease.

Property and facility management fees are recognised when the
services are rendered in accordance with the terms of agreements.
There are two types of property and facility management agreements,
namely management remuneration contracts (“MR Contracts”)
and lump sum contracts (“LS Contracts”). Under a MR Contract,
the Group is remunerated based on a fixed percentage of the costs
involved in the management of the property or facility as management
remuneration and only such fee is recognised as revenue for the
Group. Under a LS Contract, the Group is paid a lump sum fee which
normally covers the costs involved in the management of the property
or facility, thus the whole of the lump sum fee is recognised as revenue
for the Group.

Revenue from provision of other supporting services for the
management of the property or facility is recognised when the services
are rendered.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(w) Revenue recognition (continued)

x)

(7

)

Plant and plant staff hire income, secondment fee income, consultancy
fee income, services centre charges, building management fee and
copying service income are recognised when the services are rendered.

Interest income on bank deposits is recognised on a time proportion
basis, taking into account the principal amounts outstanding and the
interest rates applicable.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is
established.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The
chief operating decision-maker is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating segments and making
strategic decisions.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer
(i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficial holder of the guarantee (i.e. the holder) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

The Group does not recognise liabilities for financial guarantees at
inception, but performs a liability adequacy test at each reporting date
by comparing its carrying amount of the net liability from the financial
guarantee with its present legal or constructive obligation amount. If
the carrying amount of the net liability is less than its present legal or
constructive obligation amount, the entire difference is recognised in
the consolidated income statement immediately.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company'’s equity holders is recognised as
a liability in the financial statements in the year in which the dividend is
approved by the Company’s shareholders.

(aa) Share capital

140

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity
as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

HSIN CHONG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

2. FESHRFREE»)
(w) WBEE (&)

x)

(7

()

HRRBHE R R TZBBIRA - BB
fEARFA - BB WA~ IRFETOE ¥
XEEE RENRE BN RIS HEHER -

RITFERNBRAKBREERNSRSLEAHN
IR L

=7
s ©

MR B ATE M ER IR B 2 #E R BETE 12 FERR

DEE
BENBEHRETAERRETEIRLERRE
ZABMET KB - ETELBRREREL
BORERD I EEER G WFEHRRNE
RTE

MEBRESH
IBERENEBETA (MREAN) RERZF
@mA (BFHEA) BIEE 2 B ARERBER
T AR B HIFORN R ZBKRE - @R
BAENEEFIENEL -

AEBERRMHERZ BREEVIRER BR
FEHRE AR BIER AR FEREESR
HRIDEESIMER T2 BEETRERES
BHE -BEEREFERAELSENERT
ETE S E B AT 2 BURR - MR E 2 SRS AR
EHEENGEARERPRHER -

DiERE
AARRESRFAADIKZBREBERBERR
AR FRRMBRRPERRAE-

(aa) BZF

BBREOBRER BERBERBITHRM K
R Z FIER AR T RS FIRZH
WMIRE (HBRBIR) -



2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2. EEEHFBREE (2
(ab) Convertible bonds, coupon bonds and warrants (ab) ATRRIES REEFRERES

Convertible bonds that can be converted to share capital at the option
of the holders, where the conversion price is at a stipulated price that
will be adjusted, subject to terms and formulae provided for in the
agreement of the convertible bonds, to adjust for the dilutive effects
of share split or consolidation, capital distribution, capitalisation of
profit or reserves, issuance of new shares or share options or warrants,
and etc, are accounted for as compound financial instruments which
contain both a liability component and an embedded derivative
component.

The liability component of convertible bonds is recognised initially
at the fair value of a similar liability that does not have an equity
conversion option. The equity component and embedded derivative
component are recognised initially at the difference between the fair
value of the convertible bonds as a whole and the fair value of the
liability component.

Any directly attributable transaction costs of issuing convertible bonds
are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to
their initial carrying amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of convertible
bonds and is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The derivative component of convertible bond is re-measured
using fair value model.

If the bonds are converted, the convertible bonds equity reserve,
together with the carrying amounts of the liability and derivative
components at the time of conversion, is transferred to share capital
and share premium as consideration for the shares issued. If the bonds
are redeemed, the convertible bonds equity reserve is released directly
to retained profits, and any difference between the amount paid
relating to the liability component and the fair value of the liability
and derivative components is recognised in consolidated income
statement.
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3.

142

Financial risk management

(a) Financial risk factors
The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group'’s financial performance.

(i) Market risk

(1)

&)

3)

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk exposure arising from the Group's
operation in Macau and the Chinese Mainland are
monitored by proper synchronisation of receipts and
payments in different operating currencies, hedging of risk
is not considered because of insignificant exposure to the
Group’s working capital. The Group has no outstanding
forward exchange contract as at 31 December 2015 and
2016, but will consider hedging the foreign currency
exposure by using forward exchange contracts if needed.

As at 31 December 2016, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% (2015: 5%) against Hong Kong dollars
with all other variables held constant, the Group's loss
for the year would have been approximately HK$23,000
higher/(lower) (2015: HK$5,500,000 higher/(lower),
mainly as a result of net foreign exchange gains/(losses)
on translation of foreign currency denominated trade and
other receivables, deposit, cash and bank balances and
trade and other payables.

Interest rate risk

Financial instruments at fixed and variable rates expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk and cash flow interest
rate risk respectively. The Group's interest rate risk arises
mainly from bank borrowings, other borrowings, senior
notes and convertible bonds. Borrowings issued at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk due
to fluctuation of HIBOR arising from the Group's Hong
Kong dollar denominated borrowings.

At 31 December 2016, if interest rates on bank
borrowings, which carried at floating interest rate, had
been 50 basis points (2015: 50 basis points) higher or
lower with all other variables held constant, the Group’s
profit for the year would have decreased/increased by
approximately HK$9.1 million (2015: HK$6.0 million) as a
result of higher or lower interest expenses on floating rate
bank borrowings.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk through
financial asset held by the Group classified as available-
for-sale financial asset. The Group considers the price risk
exposure is not material.
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3. Financial risk management (continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Credit risk

Credit risk of the Group mainly arises from deposits, cash and
bank balances and receivables. The Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk.

The credit risk associated with deposits and cash and bank
balances is limited because the counterparties are banks with
high credit rating.

Before entering into construction contracts, assessment on the
potential customers is carried out as part of the acceptance
procedures for the new contracts.

To manage the credit risk associated with receivables, the Group
adopts risk control to assess the credit quality of the customers
and debtors, taking into account of their financial position, past
experience and other factors. Aging analysis is performed and
reviewed regularly by management of each operating segment
and follow up action will be taken, as appropriate.

Liquidity risk

The Group adopts prudent liquidity risk management which
includes maintaining sufficient bank balances and cash, and
having available funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities. Relevant details are also set out in
Note 2(a)(i).

Cash flow forecast is performed in the operating segments
of the Group and aggregated by corporate finance team.
Corporate finance team monitors forecasts of the Group’s
liquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet
operational needs.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at
the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. For
bank loans containing a repayment on demand clause, after
taking into account the Group's financial position, the directors
do not consider that the bank will exercise its discretion to
demand immediate repayment, and believe that the bank loans
will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates
set out in Note 30. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows, including interest payment.

However, for bank loans containing a repayment on demand
clause, if the lenders were to invoke their unconditional rights
to call the loans with immediate effect, including short term
revolving loans of HK$1.2 billion which is subject to annual
review by lenders and bank loans of HK$1.1 billion with
scheduled repayment dates will be on demand for repayment
immediately, excluding interest payments.

3. MERBEER &)
(a) MERBEE £

(i)

(iii)
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3. Financial risk management (continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

(iii) Liquidity risk (continued)

144

3. MERKEER &
(a) MERBEE £

(i) RBELRAR (8)

Less than Between Between
1year 1and2years  2and5 years Over 5 years Total
PR—F —£ERE AEELE EENE o]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERTT ERTT BT ERTT ERTT
At 31 December 2016 1#2016512A31H
Bank overdrafts RITEL 25,216 - - - 25,216
Bank loans BITER
— short term revolving - RERRRTER 1,240,319 - - - 1,240,319
— with repayment on - BEREREER
demand clause X2 FITER 943,146 78,121 129,841 - 1,151,108
Convertible bonds R ES 55,359 - - - 55,359
Other borrowings HinfE g 4,388,123 1,787,533 - - 6,175,656
Payables FETRR R 4,957,368 157,572 51,676 20 5,166,706
Amounts due to other JET L RIAS & Eo A
partners of joint BHFE
operations 22,847 - - - 22,847
Senior notes BEZEK 302,251 2,525,532 1,211,906 - 4,039,689
Total Bt 11,934,629 4,548,758 1,393,423 920 17,876,900
At 31 December 2015 12015%12 A31H
Bank loans RITER
— short term revolving —RHBRRITER 1,941,097 = = = 1,941,097
—with repayment on demand  — B SR ER(EEEN 2
dlause RITER 369,565 238,469 209,954 - 817,988
— without repayment on - RBRREKEER
demand clause Xz BRITER 450,398 264,653 453,864 - 1,168,915
Convertible bonds AR RS 821,500 - - - 821,500
Other borrowings HinfE & 2,484,962 - - - 2,484,962
Payables JERERR 4,873,605 313,673 165,040 = 5,352,318
Amounts due to other R RS E A
partners of joint BresE
operations 16,153 - - - 16,153
Senior notes BERE 203,438 203,438 2,426,719 - 2,833,595
Total FoHS 11,160,718 1,020,233 3,255,577 - 15,436,528
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3. Financial risk management (continued)
(b) Capital risk management

(9]

In managing capital, the Group’s objectives are to safeguard its ability
to continue operation as a going concern and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of net debt-to-tangible-net-
assets ratio. Net debt is the sum of deposits, cash and cash equivalents
less bank loans, interest-bearing notes, convertible bonds, senior
notes, financial derivative liability and other borrowings. Tangible net
assets include total net assets of the Group and exclude goodwill and
intangible assets. The ratio is 102% at 31 December 2016 (2015:
54%). As a result of long-term funding raising activity to cope with
rapid expansion of property development in the Chinese Mainland,
the Group has a net debt position of HK$11.1 billion as at 31
December 2016 (2015: net debt HK$7.8 billion).

Fair value estimation

HKFRS 7 (Amendment) ‘Financial Instruments — Disclosures’ requires
disclosure of fair value measurements by level of the following fair
value measurement hierarchy:

—  quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities (level 1).

—  inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

—  inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based
on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. These instruments
are included in level 1. As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group
did not have financial instruments under this category.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as
possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to
fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in
level 2. As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group did not have
financial instruments under this category.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in level 3. As at 31 December
2016 and 2015, the Group had available-for-sale financial asset and
financial derivative liability under this category.
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3. Financial risk management (continued)

(c) Fair value estimation (continued)
There was no transfer of financial instruments between level 1, 2 and

3 during the year.

Movement of financial asset under level 3 measurements is as follows:

3. MERKEER &
() RAEMER (#)
RAEE TESHIANE B E-BRE
=B EEITE R

BRE-EENUBEEZBNT:

2016 2015

HK$°000 HK$'000

Available-for-sale financial asset AEHEREEE BETT BT
At 1 January M®1A1R 31,662 27,798
Fair value (loss)/gain ARE(EE) s (1,877) 3,864
At 31 December M®12A31H 29,785 31,662

Movement of financial liabilities under level 3 measurements is as

BE-EBENYHREZSHWT

follows:

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

Financial derivative liability SMETETRAR BETT BT T
At 1 January M®1A1R 206,412 -
Issue of convertible bonds BITA AR ES - 199,425
Fair value (gain)/loss Al () /BB (194,168) 6,987
Conversion to ordinary shares i 7 L m g (5,573) =
Early redemption RFEL (6,488) =
At 31 December »12H318 183 206,412
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Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions having a significant effect on
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities are discussed below:

€))

(b)

(9]

Going concern consideration

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, apart
from those involving estimations, management has prepared the
consolidated financial statements on the assumption that the Group
will be able to operate as a going concern in the coming year, which
is a critical judgement that has the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements. The
assessment of the going concern assumption involves making a
judgement by the directors, at a particular point of time, about the
future outcome of events or conditions which are inherently uncertain.
The directors consider that the Group has the capability to continue
as a going concern and the major events or conditions, which may
give rise to business risks, that individually or collectively may cast
significant doubt upon the going concern assumption are set out in
Note 2(a)(i) to the consolidated financial statements.

Business combination

The Group completed several acquisitions during the year ended
31 December 2015. Please refer to Notes 41 for details of the
acquisitions.

The Group assessed the acquisition in accordance with HKFRS and
concluded that the acquisition constitutes a business combination. To
account for the assets and liabilities acquired, significant judgement
was required in determining the fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities.

Fair value measurement of convertible bonds

On initial recognition and redemption, the fair values of convertible
bonds that are not traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. The Group uses its judgement to select methods
and make assumptions, including those based on market conditions
on valuation date for valuation. The assessment of the fair value of the
bonds and the liability component of the convertible bonds involved
key management assumptions, among other things, the expected
volatility, dividend yield, etc.

4. EXERHER AR
7 85 B 4 R SR M it R R AR - R PR TE B PTG M
BIEHE S RN ERERAR - HEER
BEREBEAEAY S A RBRE T hi -

(a) FREEEZE
RIERAREEN S BERR BF RIEH A5
S ER BRI ARE SN R EFELL
ZBERBHEG AV BRE - RS R
RITERCHGEERBEATENEANHE -
FRLEBROTHE S REEN B ERERE
HB R RS THEE A E SRR R R4S
RN -BEERRARERENFELE
i AJ BE 7 2R R A5 LR 3 {8 51l 2k S R AT BE 4548
REBRBEREAFZENEBZEFREHFER
iR A MR M EE2()0) ©

(b) EFELH
HZE2015F12A31B IEFE AEEB TR E
FURBE = TE - WEE R TE 2 FF 1B 26K 41 -

AEBDREFSUWHRE LT EKBEER
W REZBBEFEBKELT A - /HCKE
BEERBBEAR REEARNEENRBEZ
RAERRELERHE -

(0 FRREFHLREHE

RYIFHER RERE - WIFR RIS E &
AR E 75 2 A A ER T B E R EE -
REBAAEPTERNIEREL KRR B
ZERFEMENGER N TR REENTT
ERBR-EHFRARRESNEELRDI AL
ENFHEESHIZERERER HhekE
KRB R EEE-
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4 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(continued)
(d) Construction contracts

(e)

148

As explained in Note 2(w), revenue recognition on a project is
dependent on management's estimation of the total outcome of the
construction contract, as well as the work done to date. The Group
reviews and revises the estimates of contract revenue, contract costs,
variation orders and contract claims prepared for each construction
contract as the contract progresses. Budgeted construction income
is determined in accordance with the terms set out in the relevant
contracts. Budgeted construction costs are prepared by the
management on the basis of quotations from time to time provided
by the major contractors, suppliers or vendors involved and the
experience of the management. In order to keep the budget accurate
and up-to-date, the management conducts periodic reviews of the
management budgets by comparing the budgeted amounts to the
actual amounts incurred.

A considerable amount of judgement is required in estimating
the total contract revenue, contract costs, variation orders and
contract claims which may have an impact in terms of percentage of
completion and job profit taken.

As at 31 December 2016, among the arbitrations over the Group have
been dealing with, a significant arbitration claim of approximately
RMB205 million was against a subcontractor in the PRC (the “PRC
Subcontractor”) in respect of disputes between the Group and the
PRC Subcontractor in a building construction contract in the PRC. The
PRC Subcontractor raised a counterclaim against the Group in the sum
of approximately RMB221 million. The case is under examination by
the arbitrator and the directors are of the view that no provision for
the arbitration is required as at 31 December 2016. The determination
of the provision involved significant management estimation.

Subsequent to year-end, another significant claim of approximately
HK$208 million was against the Group in relation to dispute between
the Group and a shareholder (the “Claimant”) of a subcontractor (the
"HK Subcontractor”) in respect of a civil engineering contract in Hong
Kong. The Group detained certain equipment of the HK Subcontractor
and yet to return them to the Claimant due to insufficient proof of
ownership. Management assessed the evidence and concluded that
the amount claimed by the Claimant is significantly over-assessed and
sufficient provision has been made by the Group as at 31 December
2016.

Allowances for bad and doubtful debts

The allowances for bad and doubtful debts of the Group are based
on the evaluation of collectability and aging analysis of account
receivables and on management’s judgement. A considerable amount
of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these
receivables, including the creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each customer.
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4 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

)

)

Impairment of non-financial assets other than properties
under development

The Group tests annually whether goodwill and trademark have
suffered any impairment in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 2(f). The recoverable amounts of goodwill and
trademark are the higher of the assets’ fair values less costs to sell and
value in use.

A considerable amount of judgement and assumptions are required
in estimating the recoverable amount of goodwill and trademark,
including growth rate, gross margin and weighted average discount
rate applied to the discounted cashflows.

The Group also assesses annually for intangible assets that are not
being amortised, to determine whether events and circumstances
continue to support an indefinite useful life assessment for that asset.
For the trademarks held by the Group, management carries out the
assessment by performing an analysis of all of the relevant factors,
including the ability to hold and use the trademarks and the market
environment of relevant industry, to consider whether there is no
foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to
generate net cash inflows for the Group.

Other assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units have been determined based on the higher of fair
value less cost to sell or value-in-use calculations. These value-in-use
calculations require the use of estimates.

Provision for impairment of properties under development
The Group assesses the carrying amounts of properties under
development according to their recoverable amounts based on the
realisability of these properties, taking into account estimated costs to
completion based on past experience and committed contracts and
estimated net sales/rental value based on prevailing market conditions.
Provision is made when events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amounts may not be realised. The assessment
requires the use of judgement and estimates.

During the year, provision amounting to HK$1,924 million has been
made in light of the delayed progress of development. Management
assessed the net realisable value of its properties under development
based on the latest market condition and latest Group's development
plan. In view of the liquidity position of the Group, the Group has also
been actively considering different potential development plans. Taking
into consideration all these factors, the Group considered a decrease
in net realisable value and accordingly concluded the provision of
impairment as at 31 December 2016.

4. EXErHERRM|E (&)

/)
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4 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(continued)
(h) Estimate of fair value of properties

()

1

150

The valuation of properties is performed in accordance with the ‘The
HKIS Valuation Standards (2012 Edition)” published by the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors.

Details of the judgement and assumptions have been disclosed in
Note 17 and Note 18.

If information on current or recent prices of properties is not available,
the fair values of properties are mainly determined using income
capitalisation valuation techniques.

The Group uses assumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions existing at balance sheet date.

The principal assumptions underlying management’s estimation of fair
value are those related to: the receipt of contractual rentals; expected
future market rentals; void periods; maintenance requirements; and
appropriate discount rates. These valuations are regularly compared
to actual market yield data, and actual transactions by the Group and
those reported by the market.

The expected future market rentals are determined on the basis of
current market rentals for similar properties in the same location and
condition.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes mainly in Hong Kong, Macau
and the PRC. Significant judgement is required in determining the
provision for PRC income taxes. There are a number of transactions
and calculations for which ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises liabilities
for potential tax exposures based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will affect the income tax and deferred tax provision in the
period in which such determination is made.

PRC land appreciation taxes

The Group is subject to land appreciation taxes in the PRC. However,
the implementation and settlement of these taxes varies among
various tax jurisdictions in cities of the PRC, and the Group has not
finalised its land appreciation taxes calculation and payments with any
local tax authorities in the PRC. Accordingly, significant judgement
is required in determining the amount of the land appreciation
taxes. The Group recognised these land appreciation taxes based on
management’s best estimates according to the interpretation of the
tax rules. The final tax outcome could be different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, and these differences will impact the
income tax expense and tax provisions in the periods in which such
taxes have been finalised with local tax authorities.

HSIN CHONG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

4. EXErHERRMEE (&)

(h) PHEXSEZAEEH

(i)

0

MELEDREEBNENBS TR [FE
AIEENE S HEER (20129FHR) | ETTe

BRAAE RRE
18

FIEDBERM 17 R

ARG ERSUIHMEER ZER W
ZRAEEENAWEE AN ERIMEE -

BRI 2 R E BRI E B EE 25
R

EREEBHAEGF Z2EERRS N &
MRS 2 WE - BEARRTISHES  E0 4
ERELEE ZWBRX - W FHETHEER
ZTSWEBIEARAEEZ BERR 5 MzE
MIGMEEH LB

AR E S RBBEUDEER — 1 F
MR ERTISHEHSERE -

Frig#R

REBEGHEEZEE RPIRPEZ PSP -
REETBEMESHEGRAFELERNAE -
HEEBBETFEAESHRENIARE LR
BEEZR 5 MTE - AEERIER T AW
M INARIR 2 fhEt AR B ERIER R 2 B fE -
WEZEFFRIRENBGEREY S8R 2 B
BIAE AAHMEReYEETHEMGEH R
EIERR IR 2 Bt o

L I E R
AREBEXNPEZ LI ER AW FRE
MR AT RERE BB H T RBL RLA
RERA R T AN B 1) R B AL AT o B 3 0 A5 7%
BESEBEHE T IREN 2 E RN RITE B
It REE LB ER 2 SRR AEHERH
B - REBRBEEERBRAYHHRA 2 IER
e 2 REMGFT - R R IR ER - &AW
BERA RPN TREA R MERHE
ERFEM T HEHEREERTAREZM
SRR S KRB -



SEAEH

@ EERE
e EEHETE= T 2 ANTRAEHE Y
ETEZEEMER NEFERRANEY
B WA REHEEEZ YA -

5. Segment information 5.
(a) Operating segments
Revenue comprises gross billing value of contracting work to third
parties, sales proceeds from stocks of properties, rental income from
stocks of properties and investment properties and rental related
income.

RIBAEERERTE2LERKE (NRTE
Sg HEBESRER FHEEESBRRR
TEHSRRRIERE ) 2 WA HE R ATEH
ZEENRRMETRE: QLARTE: Q)
BETR UR@MEHRIE -

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker, identified as the Executive
Committee, who are responsible for allocating resources, assessing
performance of the operating segments and making strategic
decisions, the reportable operating segments are (1) building
construction; (2) civil engineering; (3) electrical and mechanical
engineering; and (4) property development and investment.

Continuing operations
BREERE
Property
development Corporate
Building Civil  Electrical and and and others Discontinued
Year ended 31 December 2016 construction engineering mechanical investment (Note 1) Total operation
MERRR IR R E B&LE
HE016512A31ALEE BFRE TAIE #EIR #E (HEE1) #8 BERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRTT BRTT #RTT BRTT BRTT #RTT BRTT

Revenue (excluding NSC (Note 2)) gk (TREENSC (Bi32) ) 6,718,426 1,705,406 890,011 64,814 - 9,378,657 2,162,961
Gross profit el 311,645 7,038 117472 20,294 - 456,449 148,516
Other (losses)/gains, net i (55i8) RS FE 1,380 = 38 (1,173,375) 65,798 (1,106,159) 4193
Fair value loss on investment properties RENEALEER - - - (883,925) - (883,925) =
Provision for impairment of properties BRPMERERE

under development - - - (1,924,025) - (1,924,025) -
Net exchange (loss)/gain B (B8) WaFa (1,068) - 16 (74,011) (26,836) (101,899) (94)
Selling and marketing expenses SHE R HERAS - - - (14,620) (132) (14,752) =
General and administrative expenses —RITBREX (74,725) (30,194) (26,484) (192,921) (168,106) (492,430) (110,223)
Operating profitfloss) meEF/ (58) 231,232 (23,156) 91,042 (4,242,583) (129,276) (4,066,741) 4239
Amortisation of intangble assets B EEEE - - - (10,111) (2.229) (12,340) (7,238)
Interest income FlEYA - - - 3,591 8,510 12,101 105
Interest expenses MERAX - - - (94,300) (60,165) (154,465) (2.874)

237,232 (23,156) 91,042 (4,343,403) (183,160) (4,221,445) 32,385
Share of loss of an associated company Elh-BREAREE - - - (52,015) - (52,015) -
Profitioss) before taxation BHaLRR/ (BR) 231232 (23,156) 91,042 (4,395,418) (183,160) (4,273,460) 32,385
Taxation A 1,350,866 (7,892)
(Loss)profit for the year RERE (F8B)/@F (2.922,59) 24,493
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE-FHNBAR YE 185915
210,408

Capital expenditure AAMRS (5792) - (233) (822,365) (16,874) (845,264) (12,279)
Depreciation bk} (9.462) (145) (282) (57,846) (12,269) (80,004) (5.281)
As at 31 December 2016 120165124318
Deposits, cash and cash equivalents R ReRERREER - - - 40,258 370,889 411,147
Bank overdrafts RITEX - - - - (25,216) (25,216)
Bank loans BAER = - - (1,762,518) (567,217) (2,329,735)
Convertble bonds AR (ES = = = = (4,69) (44,6%)
Other borrowings EffEE - - - (4,494073)  (1,267,928) (5,762,001)
Financial derivative liabilty SRTETARRE - - - - (183) (183)
Senior notes BERE - - - - BMITI5)  (3417,715)
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5. Segment information (continued)
(a) Operating segments (continued)

5. 2EEHE &
(a) BESE (£

Continuing operations
REEERE
Property Property
and facility development Corporate
Building Civil  Electricaland ~ management and and others Discontinued
construction engineering mechanical services investment (Note 1) Total operation
YRR NRBER BB BALE
Year ended 31 December 2015 BFRE tRIR BEIE REEERE "R (MEE1) B8 BERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BENSFENANALEE BUTT BRTT BUTT BRTR EUTT BUTT EUTT BUTT
Revenue (excluding NSC (Note 2)) Uas (T EAENSC (MiER2) ) 6,513,467 1,868,967 1170173 - 70,575 - 9,623,182 2433617
Gross profit EF 259,899 83499 75571 - 16,501 - 435,470 185,614
Other gainsflosses), net Hfplhas/ (B8) 58 1117 9 0} - 17,611 (6.733) 112,603 4,679
Gains on bargain purchase HERE RS - - - - 2,320,579 = 2,320,579 =
Fair value gain on investment properties BEMELENRE - - - - 191,225 - 191,225 240
Net exchange (loss)/gain EX (58)/ MsEe (146) - (776) - 292 (17,038) (17,668) 130
Selling and marketing expenses HERMISHEREAR - - - - (32,408) - (32,408) -
General and administrative expenses —RABAX (83.773) (45,059 (25143) - (74,089) (143,906) (371,970) (111,225)
Operating profitioss) gEER/ (58) 177,697 38,449 49,651 - 2,539,711 (167,677) 2,637,831 79,438
Amortisation of intangible assets B EERH (768) (105) (104) = (1) (3,112) (4,090) (8,105
Interest income FISHA - - - - 1,165 1,857 3,022 101
Interest expenses FlEm% - - - - (18,137) (100,810) (118,947) (3640)
Profit/loss) before taxation BT/ (58) 176,929 38,344 49,547 = 2,522,738 (269,742) 2,517,816 67,794
Taxation BE (99,213) (12,307)
Profit for the year RERER 2,418,603 55,487
Capital expenditure ARMRET (3,587) - (195) - (579,054) (7.913) (590,749) (2,702)
Depreciation il (8854) (149) (234) - (52,517) (6373) (68,127) (4,425)
As at 31 December 2015 120154124318

Deposits, cash and cash equivalents FR-BeRERBLER - - - 129,877 552,323 787,263 1,469,463

Bank loans BTEHR = - - (293,536) (2,480,437) (1,023,630) (3,797,603)

Convertible bonds MARES = = = = = (544,199) (544,199)

Other borrowings Hifg & - - - - (2,400,736) = (2,400,736)

Finandial derivative liabiity SERITETABE - - - = = (206,412) (206,412)

Senior notes BEEE - - - - - (2,275,504) (2,275,504)

Notes: B 5
1. Corporate mainly represents corporate and administrative activities, and shared 1. TBREERARRTBUEE  ARAZRE: Hib

services; others represent international infrastructure business and international
real estate and hospitality business.

BEREEZEBLERENERIREERES -

EPRTIREEE BN S HEENEE S AT
FE(INSC ) e

2. Nominated subcontractors’ works of Macau Galaxy Resort Phase 2 project 2.
("NSC”).
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5.

Segment information (continued)

SEEH #)

two) customers with transactions exceeded 10% of the Group’s total
revenue. Aggregate revenue from those customers amounted to
HK$3,880.9 million and was derived from building construction (2015:
HK$5,907.1 million from building construction).

(b) Geographical analysis (b) HESHT
2016 2015
Revenue Wiz HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Continuing operations BEEEEY
Hong Kong G 8,123,618 7,923,707
Macau SR 1,587,620 4,597,276
PRC B 66,805 61,057
Others EAth 45,173 3,216
9,823,216 12,585,256
Discontinued operation ERIEEERE
Hong Kong BB 2,070,129 2,196,982
Macau JEFT 20,049 153,506
PRC i 72,783 83,129
2,162,961 2,433,617
11,986,177 15,018,873
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥TT ST T
Non-current assets EMBEE
Hong Kong B 585,447 668,986
Macau SR 23 318
PRC R 12,877,638 11,953,332
13,463,108 12,622,636
Available-for-sale financial asset AtHESREE 29,785 31,662
Deferred tax assets RIEFRIEE E 9,056 41,974
Total non-current assets JEmENEERRE 13,501,949 12,696,272
(c) Customer base analysis ) EFEEDIT
The Group's customer base is diversified and includes two (2015: REEZEFPERSE MEPRE (20155

MBE)EFPZRHBIEAEEBUZEI0%IA
L-ZEREFPZWARABTRES LA
3,880,900,0007T (20154 : & #5,907,100,000
TREEFEE) -
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5. Segment information (continued) 5. SFEH®
(d) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue (d) AFEFERHBE LR
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
BR¥TT BT T
Continuing operations BEBEES
Reportable segment revenue AT 2o Bl 9,378,657 9,623,182
_Revenue-Nsc _______________ Mae-oNsC Lk aas59 2.962,074
9,823,216 12,585,256
Discontinued operation ERILEESXER
Reportable segment revenue BT E2Wmy AR 2,162,961 2,433,617
11,986,177 15,018,873
6. Discontinued operation 6. ERILLEBEXEE

The discontinued operation represented interiors & special projects and
property & facility management business upon the disposal of Synergis
Holdings Limited, which ceased to be a subsidiary on 21 November 2016.
The results of Synergis Holdings Limited for the period from 1 January 2016
to 20 November 2016 was presented as discontinued operation accordingly.

ERIMHCEEBRIEENEMRERBE ARWE
DERMERER ARTEEEEEERAAEH
€ ZARR2016F11A21B B 24N 5E B 1 B
nal A EEREBBRARHA2016F1/1H
F2016F 11 A208 IFEBE 2 2 E 25 BB LI
E

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
EB¥TT PEHE T IT
Revenue & 2,162,961 2,433,617
Cost of sales and operating expenses HEKAREEEH (2,130,576) (2,365,823)
Profit before taxation R B4 B v A 32,385 67,794
Taxation AL (7,892) (12,307)
Profit for the year ANEE A 24,493 55,487
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—ERB ARz e 185,915 -
210,408 55,487
Profit attributable to: FEAE &= 7«
Equity holders of the Company RATRE=RFEA 202,629 35,178
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR 2 7,779 20,309
210,408 55,487
Operating cash flows AL ZIRERE 61,398 20,940
Investing cash flows KEXBZRERE (31,121) (11,500)
Financing cash flows MEXKZIBERE (71,195) 29,207
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ReMERHFEIEE
cash equivalents CRA) /38 hnF5a (40,918) 38,647
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6. Discontinued operation (continued) 6. ERILEBEEE

2016
HK$'000
BRTT
Net assets disposed of: EHEEEFE:
Intangible assets mEE 64,400
Stocks and contracting work-in-progress FEREZR TR 414,942
Receivables and prepayments ERERRBNE 479,015
Cash and cash equivalents RehERHFEEE 88,923
Other assets Hith &= 100,148
Bank loans SRITEK (239,048)
Payables and accruals FEBRF N FEET & (734,623)
Other liabilities HiaE (45,563)
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR AR (53,843)
Goodwill EkS 18,753
Release of reserves upon disposal R ERFBFEE ®)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHB ARz Kk 185,915
Total consideration BRE 279,011
Net cash inflow in respect of the disposal: BRALEENHRESRAFE:
Cash and bank deposits disposed BEHERE RIEITER (88,923)
Cash consideration received BYR S RE 279,011
190,088
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7. Other (losses)/gains, net

7. Efth (BR) W@FH

156

early settlement of certain other borrowings.
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2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT IT
Continuing operations BEEEER
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HEMZE EREERER
plant and equipment and leasehold land Stz (BE)F5E 31 (683)
Adjustment for tax indemnification asset ARTIAMERE (Mars201))
(Note 42(1)) (983,861) -
Gain on reversal of provision for impairment 1% [0 & U 2 IE (8 B i 2 Uk 2
of receivables - 455
Provision for impairment of amount due JFE Uy — B A Rl IR R SRIE 2
from a shareholder of an associate’ VENIEEE Ll (156,044) -
Provision for impairment of amount due FEUS —[EER & A R FUR 2 R E R
from an associate (11,179) -
Provision for impairment of goodwill? PR RR 1 1B 182 (23,249) =
Change in fair value in financial derivatives TESRMTAAREE
(Note 34) (PEE34) 194,168 (6,987)
Loss on redemption of convertible bonds & TR R 5 2 518 (129,976) =
Gain on debt extinguishment? BT 88 P EE A 2 W2 - 117,557
Miscellaneous HAth 3,951 2,261
(1,106,159) 112,603
Discontinued operation BRIEEERE
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HEME R REER
plant and equipment and leasehold land etz e (BiE)FE 138 (134)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FWE ARz EE - (2,257)
Provision for impairment of receivables JE WS BR OB (B 1 (16) -
Gain on reversal of provision for impairment 18 [B] & Uk BR FOR (B 5 2 Wk e
of receivables - 317
Miscellaneous Htb 4,071 6,753
4,193 4,679
Notes: B 5T :
1. The amount represents the registered capital injection paid by the Company on behalf 1. HEBEEARARARKR—HEBEARZES —BREIZMNHN
of another shareholder of an associate. The amount of registered capital was used for HEMER - ZAMERSFEDANE R —MHE A FEE
a potential acquisition of property projects through an associate. As at 31 December WEE— R EER - R2016F12A318 kX HEfER
2016, the transaction was expired and the deposit paid was non-refundable pursuant REX MRS REBEEZTERTTFRE - BNEBEER
to the sales and purchase agreement. Due to the absence of progress after repeated MEEHEE BHEEZE RS A RREP U EHEE
requests for settlement, management considered the recoverability of the balance MEETEEN AREREEREHHERAERE-
from the shareholder of the associate was highly uncertain in the near future and
therefore full provision of impairment has been made accordingly.
The goodwill arose from Hsin Chong Property Development Limited in 2011 allocated 2. P20 - BHEEREFEMERRBRAAF SRR
to the “Property development and investment segment”. Management carried out [MEHREMIGENTE] - H2016F12A831H - EEEHRE
impairment assessment of the goodwill and concluded a full provision is required as BHEITRE L REFEREGEHRMERE -
at 31 December 2016.
The gain in 2015 represents the discounts offered by the financial institution upon the 3. 2015F Z W ES mEER IR AT E T HMEERE

I



8. Provision for impairment of properties under

development

Management carried out impairment assessment with reference to
valuation performed by independent external valuer, B.I. Appraisals Limited.
Following the delays of the development certain property projects, potential
changes in management’s development plans and decrease in expected
selling price, management considered a decrease in net realisable value of
its properties under development. As at 31 December 2016, provision of
HK$1,924 million has been provided in light of such delayed development
status and latest market condition on certain property projects in the PRC.

ERPYREBER S

BEREE2EB L INEHEMRBEERFEERAA
ZIEEETREN G AR MEER CEEE
B EREEHETENEEEHREHEERD &
BERSERTME 2SR FEZ R - 120164F
12A318  ERMEERERMK RS M SRR &
R BEREAZ o EEB ELBE19.2487T 2R
(ERE TGN

Interest expenses FIRFX
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
B¥TT ST T
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts RITERRBEZ 2T L 99,426 122,197
Interest expense on notes ZEFBRAX - 2,087
Interest expense on convertible bonds AR ES 2 F B
(Note 34) (BiE34) 136,092 14,911
Interest expense on other borrowings HiEEZF S 695,039 33,553
Interest expense on senior notes BEERZAEREZ 335,649 138,546
Others Hfb - 117
1,266,206 311,411
Less: amounts capitalised on qualifying assets & : RE BEREEE AL ZFIB (1,108,867) (188,824)
157,339 122,587
Representing: (&
Continuing operations B EET 154,465 118,947
Discontinued operation B IEE ST 2,874 3,640
157,339 122,587

The annual weighted average interest rates of bank loans and other
borrowings are 3.2% (2015: 3.2%) and 19.1% (2015: 8.8%) respectively,
of which the capitalised annual weighted average interest rates are 3.9%
(2015: 3.8%) and 20.3% (2015: 8.8%) respectively. The imputed effective
capitalised weighted average interest rates of senior notes and convertible
bonds are 10.0% and 26.9% respectively (2015: 9.7% for senior notes and
28.1% for convertible bonds).

RITERREMEENINEFIFFNEDFAE3.2%
(20155 :3.2% ) }19.1% (2015%F : 8.8% ) * EF &
b hntE S F F E 5 Bl A3.9% (20154 :3.8% )
}%20.3% (20154F : 8.8% ) B RIE R AJ MR EH
MEEBRER 2 NEFEFES B A10.0% K&
26.9% (2015F B EIE RIT% L AR ESH &
28.1%) °
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10. (Loss)/profit before taxation 10. BRI (B518) &7

2016 2015
Continuing  Discontinued Continuing Discontinued
operations operation operations operation
5| =5:714 P& B IE
BEER BEER e IR
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT T BT T
Cost of sales SHERE
Cost of construction ISR A
— Staff costs — B IA 1,052,581 122,375 1,185,448 120,660
— Other construction costs — HoAth S R AR 8,269,666 1,331,128 10,910,264 1,588,571
9,322,247 1,453,503 12,095,712 1,709,231
Cost of property and facility YRR E B
management services PR 75K A
— Staff costs —BTIA - 442,367 - 503,192
— Others —H A - 118,575 - 35,580
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, o e R e
Cost of property development ¥ E K
and investment BB
— Staff costs —B IR 3,758 - 1,305 -
— Stock of properties sold —BEEMEFEKAE 12,906 - 15,344 -
- Others —HAh, 27,856 - 37,425 -
44,520 - 54,074 -
9,366,767 2,014,445 12,149,786 2,248,003
Depreciation on property, ER =Y S P5
plant and equipment and HELH 2 ITE
leasehold land 80,004 5,281 68,127 4,425
Auditor’s remuneration ZERTE & 7,269 1,547 4,736 1,330
Operating lease rentals for land T M IBFKLHEM S
and buildings 33,791 8,061 15,253 6,110
Outgoings in respect of NTEEZER
— Investment properties — B 19,995 - 23,621 -
— Owner occupied property —BRZME 4,534 - 4,792 -
Staff costs, included in general ~ T A—RITHFAS Z
and administrative expenses 8 T4 273,990 66,193 233,501 68,675
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11. Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
The remuneration of the directors and chief executive officer for the year

N EERTHERHMS

SEERITRAZSNEE20165E12 A31H IEFEE 2 B

ended 31 December 2016 is set out below: E (LN
2016 2015
Salaries,

allowances Contributions

and benefits to retirement
Fees in kind? Bonus? scheme? Total Total

Fll 2UR Bl 38
e Bk (3 a2 1] Fot]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Names 31 BETT BETT BYTT BETT YT BB
Joseph CHOI Kin Hung' g 387 11,663 9,011 - 21,061 10,188
LUI Chun Pong (Note i) 2 1 (B 362 2372 780 11 3,625 2279
Wilfred WU Shek Chun BBEE 210 2,227 319 18 2,774 2,197
ZHOU Wei [EtE 200 1,879 - - 2,079 946
LIN Zhuo Yan MEL 750 - - - 750 421
YAN Jie il 250 - - - 250 250
CHENG Sui Sang ims 340 - - - 340 250
GAO Jingyuan BRE 137 1,123 - 6 1,266 250
LEE Jai Ying Z5E 275 - - - 275 250
KWOK, Shiu Keung Emest Ao 280 - - - 280 30
Joseph CHOW Ming Kuen (Note i) ELACED) - - - - - 188
CHEN Lei & 250 - - - 250 153
CHUI Kwong Kau BRI 280 - - - 280 153
Wilfred WONG Ying Wai (Note iii F3E (izti) - - - - - 32,100
Clifford King CHIU (Note iv) LR (M) - - - - - 124
ZHANG Xiaoying (Note v) RANE (HizEv) - - - - = 76
YUEN Kam Ho George REE 142 - - - 142 -
3,863 19,264 10,110 135 33372 49,855

1 Co-Chief Executive Officer 1 BT IR AR,

The amounts represented emoluments in respect of services provided in connection

with management of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries undertaking.

PR TS YR 2 B >
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11. Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (continued)

Notes:

(i) Mr. LUI Chun Pong was redesignated as a Non-executive Director with effect from 1
January 2017.

(i) Dr. Joseph Chow Ming Kuen resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director, a
member of the Audit Committee and the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
with effect from 1 October 2015.

(i)~ Dr. Wilfred WONG Ying Wai resigned as an Executive Director, the Executive
Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer, members of each of the Executive, Nomination
and Remuneration Committees with effect from 1 November 2015.

Pursuant to announcements of the Company of 18 January 2016 and 29 March
2016, the Company entered into a subscription deed with Dr. Wong, pursuant to
which the Company has conditionally agreed to issue to Dr. Wong convertible bonds
in the aggregate principal amount of HK$34,000,000, as payment of part of the
performance bonus due to Dr. Wong. The maturity date of the convertible bonds falls
on the 18th month of the date of issue.

(iv) Mr. Clifford King CHIU resigned as a Non-executive Director, a member of Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee with effect from 30 June 2015.

(v)  Mr. ZHANG Xiaoying resigned as a Non-executive Director with effect from 21 April
2015.

(vi)  Share-based compensation represents the fair value of share options granted by the
Group recognised during the year.

No benefit arose on shares issued and allotted to directors of the Company
under the employee share subscription scheme of the Company adopted
on 23 August 2002 for both years as no such share allotment was made
for both years. None of the directors have waived their rights to receive
emoluments for both years.

There is no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in favour of directors, their
controlled bodies corporate and connected entities (2015: Nil).

Except for the other receivables from related companies owned by a director
of the Company and/or close members of his family as set out in Note
26, these were no significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group's business to which the Group was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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N EERITHEARMS &)

B EE -

0} ERACECHTAIENTES H2017F1A1BRE
o

(i) FEREETEEIBEVINTES ERETEEKER
HFNZ B EFE ¥HE2015F10 A1 B A -

(i) FHREBLEBENTES NITER TTBEHR T
ZEGXE REZEGNERFMEEGKE  H2015
F1TATHBAER

RIEARQR HEA201651A18H K2016F3H290 2 A
HOARRHEEE LI IREZE Bt ARRE AR
HFRIE M T 81 TA S 8% A 7S 34,000,0007T 2 AT #
f&E 5 - (E RN T+ 2 RIBICALZ S D 3K - AT
BEEZEHAARITRBRE1SEALER -

vy MLBEEECBIFATES BLZEGKE TP
ZEEKE  H2015F6A30HEEM -

() RAOARFEECHTEIFERITES B2015F4H21HRE
o

vi) MH&‘%E%WZ@ IR RSB X BN F AR
/L@

MEFE R EIRIE AR A AR 2002F8 A23 A 49,2
EERBROABBITREERG FARGES
A L 7 9 {18 4F [ P9 I 8 58 S 19 i B AE AR (A )25
MEFTERN BEEERERSIWEB S ZEF -

WEER EERKEMANEE  ZESEH T
FEABREZSESENEAMEEEATRAZR
5 (20154  4E) »

BT AK 26T B 2 A RR —RERER R HE
MBER 2 BERR 2 EMRUEERRIN RAFE
RERAFREEMESRE AEELEFERAEE
EBMEBMEXN MARRZEFTNETERKHA
BEREEAEDE IR RHREL-



12. Five highest paid employees 12. AfimEHMER

There was one director (2015: two) whose emolument was among the five AEBERNU ST HEEPRIE—UES (20155 :
highest paid employees in the Group and included in the analysis set out in MAL)  Ee B &EAMENZ TR
Note 11.
Details of the emoluments paid to the other four (2015: three) individuals, HEPUAL (20155 =) R AL - BRI
who are not directors of the Company but whose emoluments were among ARRAEEEBRAEE RS HHES - EB
the five highest paid employees in the Group are as follows: BEIIAT:
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$'000
BRTT BT T
Salaries and other allowances 7 B B EC 22 BL 14,222 9,929
Bonus TE4T 7,062 3,724
Contributions to retirement scheme RIRET B 216 278
Share-based compensation VAR 7 R 2t 2 F (B - =
Others H At - =
21,500 13,931

Number of Individuals in each band

EHEZERAAS

Emolument bands B&sE 2016 2015
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 75 #3,500,0017T — 78 #4,000,0005C — 1
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 75 #4,000,0017T — 78 #4,500,0005C 1 =
HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000 75 #4,500,0017T — 78 #5,000,0005C 1 =
HK$5,000,001 — HK$5,500,000 785,000,001 7T — 75 #55,500,0007C - 2
HK$5,500,001 — HK$6,000,000 745,500,001 7T — 7% #66,000,0007C 1 =
HK$6,000,001 — HK$6,500,000 756,000,001 7T — 7% #6,500,0007C - -
HK$6,500,001 — HK$7,000,000 75 #6,500,0017T — % 7,000,000 1 =

4 3
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13. Staff costs

13. AIRE

2016 2015
Continuing  Discontinued Continuing Discontinued
operations operation operations operation
54 B#IE ST BRIk
EEXRY BEXRY KRR KT
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BT BT T
Wages, salaries and allowances T & - #rf &2 284
(including directors’ (BREEEM)
emoluments) 1,299,991 608,231 1,395,243 666,531
Provision for annual leave, net FREE F5E - (190) = (156)
Termination benefits 1R IERRTS & A 520 - 533 =
Long service payment REARBEER 273 1,085 132 126
Contributions to defined FERFR KRGS 2 K
contribution retirement schemes 29,545 21,804 24,346 25,068
Share-based compensation LARRAD 7 Bt 2 #e (8 - 5 - 958
1,330,329 630,935 1,420,254 692,527
Charged to cost of sales B3I A SHE B AR
(Note 10) (PiZE10) (1,056,339) (564,742) (1,186,753) (623,852)
273,990 66,193 233,501 68,675
14. Taxation 14. ]RIA

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% on the

estimated assessable profits for the

year after application of available tax

losses brought forward for both years. Taxation on overseas profits has been

calculated on the estimated assessa

ble profits for the year at the rates of

taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

The amount of tax (credited)/charged to the consolidated income statement

MEFENTENERIREBFE G ERY
MR SRR 2 BB R R R 16.5% B - A&k
B2 s a B R R A AR AT RS A A

REBFK 2 RITHETH -

HEEREWEE (Gt R ZBENT :

represents:
2016 2015
Continuing  Discontinued Continuing Discontinued
operations operation operations operation
54| B#1E FEiE BRIk
EEXRY BEXRY R IR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
E®TT B2BTT BT T BEETIT
Provision for the year NEEREE
— Hong Kong profits tax —BABMEH 34,136 9,067 17,456 13,868
— PRC and Macau profits tax ~ — /1 B &R P FI 1S5 15,508 = 25,725 (35)
— Overseas profits tax —BINFIS TR 2,851 = — —
Under/(over) provision in BEFED(Z)BE
respect of prior years 12,999 - (3,924) -
Deferred tax (credit)/charge EERIE (5T A), 0k
(Note 29) (Pf7E29) (1,416,360) (1,175) 59,956 (1,526)
(1,350,866) 7,892 99,213 12,307
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14. Taxation (continued)

14. RIE (&)

Taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the theoretical
amount that would arise using the tax rate of the home country of the

Company as follows:

REBRHANGEN 2 HBRBERBARRANLE
RZBEMAEZERHBZZRLT

Continuing  Discontinued Continuing Discontinued
operations operation operations operation
HiE 21t #iE B4R 1E
BEER BEER R KT
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT ok
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRFLAT (E548) m Al
(excluding share of loss of an (e fEEE—RE
associated company) BN B E5 18 ) (4,221,445) 218,300 2,517,816 67,794
Taxation at Hong Kong profits ~ Z&B S %E16.5%
tax rate at 16.5% AHEZHIR (696,538) 36,020 415,440 11,186
Effect of different taxation rates ~ E At 75 Bl A& (A
in other tax jurisdictions MEZZE (321,728) 511 19,447 277
Under/(over) provision in respect @EEE (%) Bt
of prior years 12,999 - (3,924) -
Income not subject to taxation  #EZERRF UL A (37,582) (30,691) (413,492) (41)
Expenses not deductible for NAENFIE 2 A
taxation purpose 304,887 1,331 33,545 1,165
Temporary differences not REBRZERER
recognised 6,032 91 11,687 (556)
Tax losses not recognised AEERZTIE 231,034 (884) 33,415 574
Utilisation of previously FERERIRGERZTE
unrecognised
tax losses (12,372) 1,514 (1,344) (298)
Land appreciation tax T AT (837,598) = 4,439 -
(1,350,866) 7,892 99,213 12,307
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15. (Loss)/earnings per share 15. B (55]) B8R

(@) Basic (loss)earnings per share is calculated by dividing the Group's (@) BTREXR (BB BANDERAQAEEFEA
(loss)/profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company by the FEML ARG (518) DR AR AFNE BITE B
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year. MRINETF R EGTE -

Continuing operations Discontinued operation
BREBES DRILESES
2016 2015 2016 2015

(Loss)/profit attributable to equity #Ezx#FH AFE(E (ER)

holders (HK$'000) A (GBEFIT) (2,936,129) 2,410,659 202,629 35,178
Less: dividends to convertible B AT BB S AR AR R 2
preference shareholders g8 (GBETT)
(HK$'000) (Note) (H3E) - (56,548) = -

(Loss)/profit attributable to ordinary 3 % A% 58 FE {5 (E518)
shareholders (HK$'000) Al B Tr) (2,936,129) 2,354,111 202,629 35,178

Weighted average number of BT 2 B
ordinary shares issued ('000) RS (FAR) 5,586,379 5,143,884 5,586,379 5,143,884

Basic (loss)/earnings per share BREX (BE) &BF

(HK cents) (L) (52.6) 45.8 3.6 0.7

Note: Pursuant to the terms of the convertible preference shares, the holders are at all times Mzt : BIRFTERELR AR HEAREAFEREATZSE
entitled to dividends or other distributions of the same amount with respect to the HIRQN A2 EiBAR A SRS S R E M 5k o Et -
Company's ordinary shares. Accordingly, the holders of the convertible preference HE2015F12A318 L FE AT ERELRZIFEAE
shares were entitled to dividend of 1.0 HK cent per share for the year ended 31 SERBE1.0LZARE - 2458 AB 56,548,000 T &
December 2015 and a total amount of HK$56,548,000 was adjusted in the profit BREEAEGENPAR -ETSCFATREHZE
attributable to ordinary shareholders. There was no dividend declared by the board 20165F 12 A31HIEFEZ RS - At AFEZ BRERR
for the year ended 31 December 2016 and accordingly no adjustment has been (8 2t A e AR

made in the calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share for the year.
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15. (Loss)/earnings per share (continued)

(b)

The diluted loss per share for continuing operations for the year ended
31 December 2016 is the same as the basic loss per share because
the exercise of the Group's share options, convertible preference
shares and convertible bonds would result in a decrease in loss
per share for the year. The basis for diluted earnings per share for
discontinued operation is the same as the basis used in continuing
operations. Diluted earnings per share in 2015 is calculated by dividing
the Group's profit attributable to the equity holders by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding after adjustment for
the potential dilutive effect in respective of outstanding share options
and potential ordinary shares to be issued on convertible bonds
outstanding and convertible preference shares during the year.

Continuing operations

15. Bk (&518) 8% ()

(b)

HZE2016 F12 A31 HILFEHELEEL 2
BRESERETGRERNBEER RE AT
FARL BB E  FTEIRELR R AT RBES
BERFRNESRERBRL BRIEEEERZ
EREEER EE EISELLEBIRA
ZEENRR - 2015F 2 BIRESE R A TR AR E
B2 ESEFE AR ENBR AR FERNZ RITHE
BB RS RE N R 18 2R 53R AT IR AR (55 % AT S 1R 5T
TR ZEELT R BEEEYEEDR
R BBITEBRINE TR EGTE -

Discontinued operation

BIREEES DRILEERT
2016 2015 2016 2015
(Loss)/profit attributable to equity #2555 A& (E518),/
holders (HK$'000) sa ) (BT IT) (2,936,129) 2,410,659 202,629 35,178
Add: Change in fair value in m:eRITETAARE
financial derivatives &) (BEBTT)
(HK$'000) - 6,987 - -
Add: Interest expense on N AR ES 2 A B R X
convertible bonds (BT IT)
(HK$'000) - 14,911 - -
(2,936,129) 2,432,557 202,629 35,178
Weighted average number of BT R INE T EAR
ordinary shares issued ('000) H(F’) 5,586,379 5,143,884 5,586,379 5,143,884
Adjustment for convertible B 31T 2 AT B S iR A R
preference shares issued ('000)  (FR%) - 5,800,615 - 5,800,615
Adjustment for convertible bonds B %17 2 Al A &5 T
issued ('000) (FA) - 127,401 - 127,401
Weighted average number of STHSRES (B18)
ordinary shares for calculating Bz LmAR e
diluted (loss)/earnings per share A% & (FA%)
('000) 5,586,379 11,071,900 5,586,379 11,071,900
Diluted (loss)Yearnings per share & EEE (E518) /&R
(HK cents) (AL (52.6) 22.0 3.6 0.3
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16. Dividends

Dividends recognised as distribution during the year:

16.

BB
RERERD RS

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥TT BT T
2016 Interim dividend — Nil (2015 20164 FR BAfR B — & (20154
Interim dividend: 1.0 HK cent) per share HREARR S - GRS 1.010L) - 108,433
2015 Final dividend — Nil 2014 20155 REARR B — & (20144
Final dividend: 2.2 HK cents) per share RNEARR S, : FRREE2.210) - 214,463
- 322,896

The Group did not propose any final dividend for the year ended 31

December 2016 (2015: nil).

17. Property, plant and equipment and leasehold land

REARZ S (20154F < &) ©

17. ¥ BBREMEER L

AEENRBEZE2016512 A31 8 1HF E R 3T (1]

Leasehold
Leasehold land and Furniture,
land Building building Leasehold  Construction Plantand fixtures and Motor
in the PRC inthe PRC in Hong Kong improvements in progress machinery  equipment vehicles Total
RE#Z
RARE Rl ARLHER HAYE &E - BT
ZHELH BT #F ki EBIE HBERRE RERRF RE 1]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BB BT BB BB BT BB BB BT
Cost or valuation BABEE
At 1 January 2015 120151718 = = 506,000 80,751 = 69,528 85,954 16,381 758,614
Exchange difference ERERE - - - (899) - - (1,235) (557) (2,691)
Additions RE = = = 2,669 = 2,993 10,047 3,339 19,048
Acquisition of subsidiaries WERBAR
(Note 41) (BizEa1) = = = = = = 5,321 515 5,836
Disposal HE = = = (6,515) = (3,363) (1,442) (2,644) (13,964)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHBAR - - - (186) - (294) (465) - (945)
At 31 December 2015 ®2015612A318 = = 506,000 75,820 = 68,364 98,180 17,034 765,898
Exchange difference ERzE - - - (302) - - (1,768) (684) (2,754)
Additions NE - - - 17,481 - 4,880 17,504 3,787 43,652
Fair value gain on revaluation ~ AfEE N - - 64,000 - - - - - 64,000
Transfer from investment REBRENZEZER
properties (Note 18) (Gigat) 180,431 191,129 - - - - - - 371,560
Transfer from properties under R R EF 5 2 B
development (Note 24) (Fizk24) 1,177,482 - - - 837,210 - - - 2,014,692
Disposal HE - - - (2,205) - (248) (1,581) (244) (4,278)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHBAR - - - (12,359) - (4,133) (34,265) (4,655) (55,412)
At 31 December 2016 20165124318 1,357,913 191,129 570,000 78,435 837,210 69,363 78,070 15,238 3,197,358

Upon the finalisation of development plan of certain property projects,
a certain portion of its properties under development and investment
properties were determined to be for self-use by the Group and have
been transferred to property, plant and equipment and leasehold land
accordingly. During the year ended 31 December 2016, HK$2,015 million
from properties under development and HK$372 million from investment

properties under development have been transferred to property, plant and

equipment and leasehold land.
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17. Property, plant and equipment and leasehold land 17. ¥ -WBEREMREAZ LM (2)
(continued)
Leasehold
Leasehold land and Furniture,
land Building building Leasehold  Construction Plantand fixtures and Motor
in the PRC inthe PRC in Hong Kong improvements i progress machinery  equipment vehicles Total
REEZ
REZ RhE AR HEYE EH - BE
HRLH ZBF #F 31 EBIE HERRE RERRE RE #a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BETT BT BT BETT BB BT BT
Accumulated depreciation ~ REHE
At 1 January 2015 2015118 = = = (64,155) = (41,630) (65,309) (8,999) (180,093)
Exchange difference ERER - - - 709 - - 524 236 1,469
Depreciation for the year REEHE (MizE)
(Note) = = (43,951) (11,089) - (7,633) (10,746) 23812 (76,231)
Elimination of fair value gain S AR EEFKE
on revaluation - - 43,951 - - - - - 43,951
Disposal HE = = = 5,490 = 3299 1,140 2,290 12,219
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—AHEAR - - - 186 - 292 446 - 924
At 31 December 2015 12015F12A318 = = = (68,859) = (45,672) (73,945) (9,285) (197,761)
Exchange difference ERER - - - 22 - - 972 367 1,561
Depreciation for the year REEHE (MizE)
(Note) = = (53,548) (11,392) = (8,127) (13,209) (2,515) (88,791)
Elimination of fair value gain S A REEE RS
on revaluation - - 53,548 - - - - - 53,548
Disposal it - = = 217 = 251 1462 24 4,128
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHEAR - - - 5,955 - 2121 29,640 3,057 40,773
At 31 December 2016 720165128310 - - - (71,903) - (51427) (55,080) (8,132) (186,542)
Net book value or
valuation FESESGE
At 31 December 2016 120165124318 1,357,913 191,129 570,000 6,532 837,210 17,936 22,990 7,106 3,010,816
At 31 December 2015 12015124318 = = 506,000 6,961 = 23,192 24,235 7,749 568,137

Note: During the year, depreciation of HK$3,506,000 (2015: HK$3,679,000) was capitalised
in properties under development.

The leasehold land and building was revalued at fair value by an
independent valuer, B.I. Appraisals Limited.

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs
(Level 3)

Fair value of leasehold land and building in Hong Kong is derived using the
direct comparison method. This valuation method compares the property
to be valued directly with other comparable properties, which have recently
transacted. However, given the heterogeneous nature of real estate
properties, appropriate adjustments are usually required to allow for any
qualitative differences that may affect the price likely to be achieved by the
property under consideration.

There was no transfer between level 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

MizE: F e ##3,506,0005T (20154 : 74 #53,679,0007T) 2
WEDRERPWETUERL

MEL W REFHB L AEMRAERFEERA
RIRARESh-

FRRAEXFTBRGABBZ LA EHE (F=
E)

REBZBELWREFZARENRBERLR
AR - WA EET S ERAEZ M REREMIT AR
P2 A BT R - AR - ERNEHEMEZ
HEE TR BEAEHEE ZABMAATMNE
BIZER REEZRNGTEMERMEZER -

RAFE F—B F_EREZBzMUELTE
Ko
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17. Property, plant and equipment and leasehold land
(continued)
Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs
(Level 3) (continued)
Significant inputs used to determine fair value of leasehold land
and building at 31 December 2016

17. R -BBREWERER LM ()

HHEXTTHRGAREBEZ LA AEHE (F=
B) (&)
AREEN2016512A31BEzHE L REFEA
AREZER@GAEE

Relationship of
unobservable inputs

Valuation method Unobservable input to fair value
AR A Brbs
KERE ARG A B2 DREZRE
31 December 2016
20165£12A31H
Leasehold land and building Direct comparison method Average price per square feet:  The higher the average price,
— Hong Kong HK$6,915 (2015: HK$6,138)  the higher the fair value
HE T REF-BH BELBUA BFHFRFGER FHBERES ARERR

If leasehold land and building in Hong Kong had not been revalued, it
would have been included in these consolidated financial statements at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation of HK$78,291,000 (2015:
HK$86,528,000).

The leasehold land and building in Hong Kong is with a medium-term lease.
The leasehold land in the PRC is with a medium-term lease.
As at 31 December 2016, the Group's leasehold land and building of

approximately HK$2,265,166,000 (2015: HK$506,000,000) was pledged as
collateral for the Group’s banking facilities.
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7B #6,915 JT
(20154 : #&#6,1387T)

WREBSZHET M MNEFTEETER ek
[ b pk A 2 FE T 8 5 #578,291,0007T (20154 : 78
#86,528,00070) iF AZE LR A M ISR

UREBEZHE L REFHEPHREE -
AR E 2 BE s A E -
M2016F12A31H  AEBMHEE L R EFLE

#2,265,166,0007T (20154 : /& ¥506,000,0007T) E
WIFEALBEIRITRE 2 KT R -



18. Investment properties . REME
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRTT BT
At fair value: BARE
As at 1 January R1A1H 10,721,129 2,806,731
Addition = 813,891 574,403
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 41) U BE BT B A 7] (FiisE41) - 7,689,453
Disposal of a subsidiary & — B AR (3,040) =
Transfer to property, plant and EREEYE MERERER
equipment and leasehold land (Note 17) FE L (FizE17) (371,560) -
Fair value (loss)/gain ARE (BR) /IR (883,925) 191,465
Exchange difference VE 5 =58 (679,473) (540,923)
At 31 December MW12A31H 9,597,022 10,721,129
The Group's interests in investment properties A& BHE 2 W=D T T ¢
are analysed as follows:
Properties in Hong Kong held under RRA T HERE 2 BB
— Medium-term lease (more than ten years but —FF EiFHE
less than fifty years) (BB 10F 18 L5004 ) - 3,040
Properties outside Hong Kong held under RIBATNHER G 2 BEBRINZE
— Medium-term lease (more than ten years but —FFEfFRE
less than fifty years) (810518 D504 ) 9,597,022 10,718,089
9,597,022 10,721,129

As at 31 December 2016, the Group's investment properties of
approximately HK$7,310,374,000 (2015: HK$8,951,043,000) were pledged
as collaterals for the Group's banking facilities and other borrowings.

K20165F12 A318 - AN 5 B 498 #7,310,374,0007T
(20154 : 78%8,951,043,00070 ) 2 &% B W ¥E 2 K
EAREBIRITRME REMEE 2 MG -
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18. Investment properties (continued) 18. BEMX (&)

Completed Commercial
commercial  properties under
Carparks properties development Total
Effi CRIGENE BETEEDE st
Hong Kong PRC PRC
&8 HE E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BETT EETT
At 1 January 2015 #2015%1 18 2,800 1,606,049 1,197,882 2,806,731
Additions AE - 3,932 570,471 574,403
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 41) WK B AR (KizEa1) - 3,695,915 3,993,538 7,689,453
Fair value gain ARl 240 48,270 142,955 191,465
Exchange difference fE =5 - (301,370) (239,553) (540,923)
At 31 December 2015 72015812318 3,040 5,052,796 5,665,293 10,721,129
Additions AE - 477,172 336,719 813,891
Transfer to property, plant and BREENE BEREZER
equipment and leasehold land (Note 17) & £t (FifzE17) - (371,560) - (371,560)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—EHBAT (3,040) = = (3,040)
Fair value (loss)/gain ARE (BR) /e = (585,724) (298,201) (883,925)
Exchange difference fEH =5 = (317,131) (362,342) (679,473)
At 31 December 2016 72016512318 - 4,255,553 5,341,469 9,597,022
The investment properties were revalued at their fair value by an WEYERB L EEMROREETEERARZRA
independent valuer, B.I. Appraisals Limited. The Group's finance department REEMN - AEE 2V BEHPIGERE L HEM A
would review the valuations performed by the independent valuers for B ERR B AT 2B - BT A 0P R ERD =
financial reporting purposes. Discussions of valuation processes and results GREA (EAEEFHARFERREH B0
are held between the finance department and valuers at least once every six HERFRERET R

months, in line with the Group's interim and annual reporting dates.
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18. BEME (1)

18. Investment properties (continued)

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2016 using

EHTIEEREEHZ
#2016F12A31HZ AR ERTE
Quoted prices Significant
in active other Significant
markets for observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
HEEE HthEX EXFW
REETS CIE k- n®
ZHRE WA i WA BE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(5—R&) (B=8) (E=E)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Description iREA BT BT T BT
Recurring fair value measurements KEEARETE
Investments properties: BEYE:
Shopping mall in the PRC AR B 2 YIRS % - - 4,153,821
Carparks in the PRC iz A HR Bl 2 B L = = 101,732
Commercial properties under AR Bz BRI 2E
development in the PRC - - 5,341,469

There was no transfer between level 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs
(Level 3)

Fair values of shopping mall, carparks and commercial properties under
development in the PRC are derived using the direct comparison method
(2015: combination of direct comparison method and investment method).

Direct comparison method is by comparing the property to be valued
directly with other comparable properties, which have recently transacted.
However, given the heterogeneous nature of real estate properties,
appropriate adjustments are usually required to allow for any qualitative
differences that may affect the price likely to be achieved by the property
under consideration.

RAFE F—E F_EBENE=RBZHEITEETE
B o

FREXTTBRBABBEZ L EHE (F=
E)

NRFBEZBENES EURERTEAENEZR
AEFRAEELEE (2015F  BEELEERKE X
BER)MSH -

HEERLEAERSRETRECMEEREEMT
HIR 5 2 AT LB EELL B - AT - BN B FIEY)
EZUHEETHAR BEAFEHEE ZHBAHA
EEELZEZR REEZRARTENMERME
ZfEfE e
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18. Investment properties (continued) 18. BEMX (&)

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs HABXFTHEHAKBEZ 2 A ENE (F=
(Level 3) (continued) B) (&)

The investment method is based on the capitalisation of net income at an REEDERREEOTRERRAFETUER
appropriate discount rate or by taking into account the current rents passing biEH KEERBEMFECRITHE RELERR
and the reversionary income potential of the property. For commercial WA -RERTFEEDENS  HEFSSEEEE
properties under development, construction costs that will be incurred to ZERTEMRAT KA ARMZIENEREN
complete the development to reflect the development potential of the MEiER 2 BEER-

property and the quality of the completed development are taken into
account in the valuation.

Significant inputs used to determine fair value of investment AREE2016F12A31A ZRENEAAREBZE
properties at 31 December 2016 Kig N&E
Relationship of unobservable
Valuation method Unobservable input inputs to fair value
HERE FABRRBARE FURRBANBRLREZRE
31 December 2016
2016512A31H
Completed commercial properties—  Direct comparison method Term yield: N/A The changes in the term yield would not
Retail, PRC (2015: Investment method and (2015: 5.25% - 5.50%) materially affect the fair value.
BERIBENE-ZTE HH Direct comparison method) FHEHRE: NEA FHERRESHANETGELEAY
BRLEE (20155 (2015% :5.25% - 5.50% ) g
REEREELRE)
Reversionary yield: N/A The lower the reversionary yield, the higher
(2015: 5.50% - 6.00%) the fair value.
BHERE: TEA ERRREHE DABEBS-
(20154 :5.50% - 6.00% )
Adjusted average market rent per sqm per  The higher the adjusted average market rent,
month: N/A (2015: RMB260 - 410) the higher the fair value.
BRETHRAERBIOMSHE KREIETSHEHS AnEMS-
Tam (20155 : AR260-4107T)
Adjusted average market transacted price  The higher the adjusted average market
per sgm RMB19,280 - 52,580 transacted price, the higher the fair value.
(2015: RMB21,900)* EHBRTOMER SBHS ARERS-
BRETATSZHE : §TAK
AR 19,280 - 52,5807C
(20155 - AR#21,9007C) *
*  Direct comparison method was applied to one project only in 2015 * 20154 EELECER EAR—IER
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18. Investment properties (continued)

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs

18. BEWE (1)

FREXFTBRGABBEZ LR ENE (F=

(Level 3) (continued) B) (&)
Relationship of unobservable
Valuation method Unobservable input inputs to fair value
ERE FARRHANE FURRBARBRLREZRE
Carparks — PRC Direct comparison method Term yield: N/A The changes in the term yield would not
BH—M (2015: Investment method and (2015: 3.50%) materially affect the fair value.
Direct comparison method) FHIERE : TEA FHRBREZHHNABEIGESE
(2015% :3.50% ) EATE
B HBUA (20155 -
REEZREZELRE) Reversionary yield: N/A The lower the reversionary yield, the higher
(2015: 4.00%) the fair value.
BHERE: TEA ERERELE DAY
(20155 : 4.00% )
Adjusted average market rent per lot The higher the adjusted average market rent,
per month: N/A (2015: RMB1,750) the higher the fair value.
BEGAEARTINSR 5B : TER KRBETOTSEEHS ARELR-
(20155 : ARH1,7507T)
Adjusted average market transacted The higher the adjusted average market
price per lot RMB250,000 transacted price, the higher the fair value.
(2015: RMB259,000) KREFATSRHELD AAELER-
BELHRTHMSRHE:
AR#250,0007T (20155 :
AR #259,0007T)
Commercial properties under Direct comparison method (2015:  Adjusted average market transacted price  The higher the adjusted average market
development - land, PRC Direct comparison method) per sqm RMB2,500 - 5,280 transacted price, the higher the fair value.
EROBENE - P BIERHBOA (20155 (2015: RMB530 - 6,000) EHBRTOMER SEHS ANERS-
EREEEE) BRBRTHMSRHE:

FEHRARE2,500 - 528070
(20154 : AR¥530 - 6,0007T)
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18. Investment properties (continued)
Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs
(Level 3) (continued)

Valuation method

HERE

18. B WX ()

E) (&)

Unobservable input

AUERGANRE

FRAEXFTBRGABBEZ LA EHE (F=

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value

AUERBABBALREZRE

Commercial properties under
development - retail, PRC

BRTAZRNE-TE TE

Commercial properties
under development
— apartment, PRC
EEGIEE 3 SSNC

Commercial properties
under development —
carparks, PRC
EROBEDE-Ef PE

174

Direct comparison method (2015:

Investment method and Direct

comparison method)
EELEE (20155

REZREZLRE)

Direct comparison method (2015:

Direct comparison method)
BRILEE (20155 :
BERLBE)

Direct comparison method (2015:

Direct comparison method)
BELEE (20155
BELBE)

Term yield: N/A (2015: 3.00%)
FHIEI R  AEA (20159 :3.00%)

Reversionary yield: N/A (2015: 5.00%)
BHEEHE  ER (20155 :5.00% )

Adjusted average market rent per sgm per
month: N/A (2015: RMB130)

BRBTARERBIEMSME
TR (20155 : AR 1307)

Adjusted average market transacted
price per sqm RMB15,000 - 19,000
(2015: RMB19,000 - 24,000)

BRETHTSHRHE: BTAK
AR 15,000 - 19,0007T (20154
A& ¥19,000 - 24,0007 )

Adjusted average market transacted price
per sqm RMB21,000 (2015: RMB16,000)
BRBRTHMSRHE
FFRARAREK21,0007
(20155 : AR #16,0007C)

Adjusted average market transacted price
per lot RMB110,000 - 150,000 (2015:
RMB123,000 - 150,000)

BEEAEFOMERHE
AE®110,000 - 150,0007T (20154 :
AR 123,000 - 150,0007T)
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The changes in the term yield would not
materially affect the fair value.

FHOREEHHUANEIGESE
EX¥E-

The lower the reversionary yield, the higher
the fair value.
ERRREHE DABEBS-

The higher the adjusted average market rent,
the higher the fair value.
EBETHTSRLEE AABMS

The higher the adjusted average market
transacted price, the higher the fair value.
SEBTHTEREER AREER

The higher the adjusted average market
transacted price, the higher the fair value.
BRETOMSRSBHR AREES-

The higher the adjusted average market
transacted price, the higher the fair value.

FRBFIMERABER ANELS-



19. Intangible assets

19. LS E

Other
Secured Client trademarks Operating
Trademark contracts  relationships and trade  Software cost right
(Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 1) Sub-total names (Note 2) (Note 3) Total
-1 nEaH EER& Hitiig & BERE #EE
(Msz1) (PiE1) (1) Mt RERER (PE2) (PE3) #a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Cost BE
At 1 January 2015 #201561 418 58,469 30,497 71,073 160,039 1,600 12,807 - 174,446
Additions NE - - - - - 714 - 714
Exchange Realignment 0 A% - - - - - (19) - (19)
At 31 December 2015 #2015 124318 58,469 30,497 71,073 160,039 1,600 13,502 - 175,141
Additions hE = = = = - 544 210,101 210,645
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—HKBAR (58,469) (30,497) (71,073) (160,039) - = = (160,039)
Exchange Realignment 0 A% - - - - - (46) (8,874) (8,920)
At 31 December 2016 #20165 124318 = - = = 1,600 14,000 201,227 216,827
Accumulated amortisation AEMS
At 1 January 2015 #201561 818 = (30,497) (50,008) (80,505) = (6,398) - (86,903)
Amortisation for the year AEEHH - - (7,896) (7,896) - (4,299) - (12,195)
At 31 December 2015 #2015 124318 = (30,497) (57,904) (88,401) = (10,697) - (99,098)
Amortisation for the year AEEHH - - (7.238) (7,238) - (2,286) (10,073) (19,597)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—ERBAR - 30,497 65,142 95,639 - - - 95,639
Exchange Realignment ERBE - - - - - 3 426 429
At 31 December 2016 #20165 124318 = = = = = (12,980) (9,647) (22,627)
Net book value IRE®E
At 31 December 2016 #20165 124318 = - = = 1,600 1,020 191,580 194,200
At 31 December 2015 20154124318 58,469 = 13,169 71,638 1,600 2,805 - 76,043
Notes: iiEss
1. Intangible assets arising from the acquisition of Synergis included a trademark, 1. WENEEEMEACEFERE BERE FEHOKR

secured contracts and client relationships. The trademark has an indefinite useful life
as there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the trademark is expected
to generate economic benefits to the Group. During the year, these intangible assets
were derecognised due to the disposal of Synergis.

2. During the year, amortisation of HK$19,000 (2015: nil) was capitalised in properties
under development.

3. Operating right acquired during the year was in connection with a golf course in
Foshan, the PRC. The operating right has a ten years useful life.

BEPRF - BRI 2B RTE A EAEN I mNHRY
7R S B P EE AR RO AR e YR 8 T TR R RO HRIR - MR
HRHENEEE  IEPEECHIIKARK.

RER -+ BH#19,0007T (20155 « ) 2 BB N EEFY
ETFLER -

FRFTES 2 EEREURP R RBARSHER -
ISR 2 (ERFHRI0F-
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20. Goodwill
The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to groups of cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the business combination as follows:

20. e
HERYEEEE TR D EEEPRRERAGH
BB F% 2 BEEEBAIAR:

Property Property

and facility development

management and investment
(Note (i) (Note (ii)) Total

MER MERERR

B &=E
(FHEEG) ) ( & (i) ) s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T

At 1 January 2015 and 31 December 2015 720151518 &
2015512 H31H 18,753 23,249 42,002
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHNERQ R (18,753) = (18,753)
Provision for impairment BB = (23,249) (23,249)
At 31 December 2016 72016512 H31H - - -
Notes: ks

0]

(ii)

176

Goodwill arising from Synergis, allocated to the “Property and facility management”
segment, amounting to HK$92,618,000, was previously reduced through recognition
of an impairment loss of HK$73,865,000.

At 31 December 2015, the management of the Group determined that there is no
further impairment of goodwill. The recoverable amount of the “Property and facility
management” segment has been determined based on the higher of its fair value
less costs to sell and its value in use. Management has calculated the fair value based
on observable market price and assessed that the fair value less costs to sell is higher
than the carrying amount of “Property and facility management” segment and no
impairment provision is considered necessary.

Upon disposal of Synergis on 21 November 2016, the entire amount of goodwill
is derecognised and included in the determination of the gain on disposal of a
subsidiary.

The balance represents goodwill arising from Hsin Chong Property Development
Limited ("HCPD"), allocated to the “Property development and investment” segment.
The recoverable amount is considered taking reference to valuation prepared by
external independent valuer for properties under development of related property
project. Latest market condition and sales plan have been considered by external
independent valuer and it is concluded that certain impairment is to be provided for
its properties under development in the PRC. In view of this, management considered
full provision on its goodwill over this segment is appropriate.
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(ii)

MEEBEACHE BHRE [MEARREEE] 98-
R AE1592,618,0007T * HESLATE B B MERBA R BB
#73,865,0007C F A T o

20155123310 AEBE B EHERE T BEE—
HE [MERRBER] DBEZAKRESEIINED
REREEXASIEERAEENE 2BAREE BEME
EoBRENBEMSER;NEANE TEANER

sHRRE R -

EHEEENR2016F11 8218 HE%R 2 BEBRIIK
AREAEEEHE —MBAR -

ZBEEORE [MERRIRE] DRKEHEHER
RARRR ([MEMEHRR])WHE - AIREEETIS
ZEHMNEGEMARYRIRE 2 E R WEMIEL
ZEESNEHEMEE BRI TSR RHEE - F
R BB RV F L B0 Rl E B - St
ERERR/UDE BB F2RBBETEEN-



21. Associate 21. BB LT
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
B¥TT ST T
Share of net assets E(REEFE - =
Amount due from associate JE UK B = A R 5RIE - 11,940
At 31 December M®12831H - 11,940
The movement of the share of net assets is as follows: EREEFEZ2EHNT:
HK$'000
BYTT
At 1 January 2015 and at 31 December 2015 R2015F 1418 Kk2015F12A31H -
Investment in associate BENRZIRE 52,994
Share of loss of an associated company FE 15— EHE & A A& (52,015)
Exchange difference EHER (979)
At 31 December 2016 2016512 A31H -
The share of the aggregate amounts of the assets, liabilities and results AEEFEEEEAREE BERES (IRIELM)
of the associate, all of which are unlisted, attributable to the Group is as 2R mT
follows:
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT I
Assets BE 13 =
Liabilities afs (11,179) -
Net liabilities FARE (11,166) =
Loss after taxation and briiiEEE R
total comprehensive income 2HEN SRR (219,718) =
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21. Associate (continued)

Amount due from an associated company as at 31 December 2015 was
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayment on demand. As at 31
December 2016, the deposit paid by the associated company for a potential
acquisition of property projects has been impaired due to the expiration of
sales and purchase agreement. Therefore, management considered to make
provision for impairment for the amount due from an associated company
accordingly.

Details of the associated company of the Group is given in below:

21. BRELR (8

M2015F12A31H  BUE & AR B AEEKR £
BRI BR(EE - HR20166F12A318 AREEAR
Eﬁﬁlﬁgﬁﬁﬁ%EW%2%¥ﬁ9%§HZ
Ze D RE Bt ERERRAEIEE A RHKIE
VEH (B B o

BRAXEEBERARZFBNT:

Place of

incorporation/ The Group's effective

registration/ percentage of interest held by Issued and
Company operation the Company Subsidiaries paid up capital  Principal activities
N B/ EE e FFSEERERTHL BERORMERFT FERK

N HELE
RENECEERERAT The People’s Republic of - 25% RMB178,250,000 Consultancy Senvice
China AR#1782500000  #HARE
hEARLAE

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's interest in the
associate as at 31 December 2016.

The associated company is an unlisted company and there is no quoted
market price available for its shares.
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12 i 252 (DC/2012/08)

in Hong Kong

EEBRLFBEBARLERY

TARTRE
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22. Joint operations 22 HAEEXRY
Details of major investment in joint operations as at 31 December 2016 and 20165 22015F 12 31 B F 2 HE KRS EHIKE
2015 are as follows: ZEBMT
Name Place of operation Principal activities Participating shares
£:1 HEEE FERH 2k
2016 2015
CRCC —HC - CR15G Joint Venture Unincorporated joint operation operating Civil engineering 30% 30%
REE-HE-—PERSREE AR in Hong Kong TATE
EEBLE 7 EBEBLRLEER
GAS Joint Venture Unincorporated joint operation operating Electrical and mechanical 30% 30%
REEHEAR in Hong Kong BETRE
EEBRE R ABARGEEER
Hsin Chong Aster — China Comservice )V Unincorporated joint operation operating Electrical and mechanical 70% 70%
HErE—FEBEREEE QA in Hong Kong WETR
EEBRE 2 FBEELRLE X
Hsin Chong Aster — China Comservice )V Unincorporated joint operation operating Electrical and mechanical 60% 60%
HERLE-PEBERBEHE AR in Hong Kong BEIR
(002) EEBEE 2 FBABARLE X5
Hsin Chong Aster — China Comservice )V Unincorporated joint operation operating Electrical and mechanical 60% 60%
e nitE-—PEREREE S AR in Hong Kong BEITR
(003) EEBRE B ABARGEEET
Hsin Chong - Build King JV Unincorporated joint operation operating Building construction 65% =
in Hong Kong BFEE
EREBREZFBABARGEEH
Hsin Chong - Maeda JV Unincorporated joint operation operating Building construction 60% 60%
in Hong Kong BFEE
EEBREZ FBABAREEER
Hsin Chong-Wah Cheong Unincorporated joint operation operating Interiors and special projects - 30.2%
Joint Venture (01) in Hong Kong o Rk IE B
EEBREZFBABARGEEH
Hsin Chong-Wah Cheong Unincorporated joint operation operating Interiors and special projects - 30.2%
Joint Venture (02) in Hong Kong ENEH R ERIER
EEBRE B EABARLEER
Hsin Chong - Yau Lee Joint Venture Unincorporated joint operation operating Building construction 50% 50%
in Hong Kong BFRE
i T B E S
Hsin Chong Tsun Yip Joint Venture Unincorporated joint operation operating Civil engineering 60% 60%
HEHEERE in Hong Kong TATR
I BAL = ; /\ RIRT AE):
EEBREZFBEBARKEEH
Hsin Chong Tsun Yip Joint Venture Unincorporated joint operation operating Civil engineering 57% 57%
T2 EHE (DC/2012/07) in Hong Kong IARIRE
EEBRE KR EBARLEER
Hsin Chong Tsun Yip Joint Venture Unincorporated joint operation operating Civil engineering 57% 57%
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22. Joint operations (continued)

22 HEEEERE (5

Name Place of operation Principal activities Participating shares
£ REME FERH 2k
2016 2015
Hsin Chong Tsun Yip Joint Venture Unincorporated joint operation operating Civil engineering 83% 83%
B HE E B2 (5/WSD/13) in Hong Kong TAIRE
EREBRE 2 FBEEARLE XK
Hsin Chong Tsun Yip Joint Venture Unincorporated joint operation operating Civil engineering 57% 57%
57 & 2B 2 (CV/2015/03) in Hong Kong tARTE
ERBEE 2 KB ABARLE X5
Laing O Rourke — Hsin Chong — Paul Y. Unincorporated joint operation operating Civil engineering 22.5% 22.5%
Joint Venture in Hong Kong TAIRE
EEBGE 2 FBEELREE X
Laing O' Rourke — Hsin Chong — Paul Y. Unincorporated joint operation operating Civil engineering 22.5% 22.5%
(WKCD) Joint Venture in Hong Kong TARTHR
ERBRE 2 FBEB ARG E XK
Maeda - Hitachi - Yokogawa Unincorporated joint operation operating Civil engineering 20% 20%
— Hsin Chong Joint Venture in Hong Kong TAIRE
EEBGE 2 FREELRLE X
MBH Joint Venture Unincorporated joint operation operating Civil engineering 20% 20%
in Hong Kong TARIRE
EEBRE 2 FBEELRGE X
Samsung — Hsin Chong Joint Venture Unincorporated joint operation operating Civil engineering 40% 40%
in Hong Kong TARIRE
EEBRE 2 kBB LRLE XS
Yau Lee — Hsin Chong Joint Venture Unincorporated joint operation operating Building construction 40% 40%
BRl-Fame in Hong Kong BFEE
EEBRE R EABARGLEETR
CESL - HCCG Joint Venture Unincorporated joint operation operating Building construction = 45%

Note:

Pursuant to the terms of the joint arrangements, the profit sharing for each year of all joint
operations listed herein above shall be distributed to the joint operators in proportion to their

respective participating interests.

Amounts due from/to other partners of joint operations are unsecured, non-interest bearing,

in Macau

RSS2 FBABAR R E X

have no fixed terms of repayment and are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The above table lists the joint operations of the Group which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affected the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other joint operations

would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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23. Available-for-sale financial asset
Available-for-sale financial asset comprises the following:

23 AHHEZMERE
A 2 A B AR A TS RE

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
B¥TT ST T
Equity securities BXES
Listed, at fair value W ®ARE
At 1 January M1A1H 31,662 27,798
Fair value (loss)/gain NAE (E18) iz (1,877) 3,864
At 31 December ®12831H 29,785 31,662

The fair value of listed securities is determined by referencing to a valuation
report by independent valuers and the latest net asset value of the unlisted

EHREHZ ARENSEBIGEMZEERS R
FEEMRASZRAMEEFEMETE

securities.
24. Properties under development 24. ERME

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

BRTT BT T

At 1 January B1A1H 16,808,489 4,287,431
Additions during the year FRNRE 1,541,647 971,459
Provision for impairment (Note 8) B RHE (5E8) (1,924,025) =

Transfer to property, plant and equipment and B E ) S K& EREE L
leasehold land (Note 17) (ME17) (2,014,692) =
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 41) W EEHT B A A (FIsE41) = 12,487,798
Exchange difference VE 5 Z=%E (981,901) (938,199)
At 31 December ®12831H 13,429,518 16,808,489
Properties under development comprise: BRPYEDRE:

Land use rights + 3 5 A A 11,863,829 14,076,708
Construction cost and capitalised expenditure 323K 7N & & AL B 2 1,644,898 2,377,886
Interest expense capitalised BERMEFERX 1,329,992 353,895
14,838,719 16,808,489

Less: Provision for impairment R E R (1,409,201) =
13,429,518 16,808,489

As at 31 December 2016, the amount properties under development
expected to be completed and available for sale within one
year is approximately HK$1,290,906,000 (31 December 2015:
HK$1,160,030,000). The remaining balance is expected to be recovered
after one year.

7201612 8318 FBHEN —F A% T RA#EHE
BRI S EEL A 1,290,906,0007T (20155
128318 : #%1,160,030,0007T ) * 4258 FE HA A5 A —
Fielgm o
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24. Properties under development (continued)
As at 31 December 2016, a portion of the Group's properties under
development with carrying amount of approximately HK$8,574,608,000
(2015: HK$12,244,684,000) was pledged as collateral for the Group's
banking facilities and other borrowings.

24,

BRAPAYME 85

M2016F12A31H  AEB 2B REFWEIRMD
8F T B 4978 #8,574,608,0007T (20154 : /B #&
12,244,684,00070) EEBIEAREERITEERE
g E 2 HEIE G -

25. Stocks and contracting work-in-progress 25 FRREERDPIRE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
B¥TT ok
Gross amounts due from customers for ElEEZ
contract work TEFRIEER 1,826,631 1,918,127
Raw materials, at cost [RE A AR 1,603 1,666
Stocks of properties, at cost MEFE R 541,851 591,510
Stocks for retailing HEENTFE 25,849 25,955
2,395,934 2,537,258
Note: BfeE
Cost plus attributable profit less B DN A i L
foreseeable losses CINESRN Spi=! 40,297,427 31,896,206
Less: progress payments received and W B K PR T2 AR SR
receivable (38,778,476) (30,296,153)
Contracting work-in-progress BER TR 1,518,951 1,600,053
Representing: REK:
Gross amounts due from customers for GFEREEPTEIBEREIE
contract work included in stocks and B EF 2z TEKIBESRE
contracting work-in-progress 1,826,631 1,918,127
Gross amounts due to customers for contract ~ JEERFA LB EFHIEE B 1E
work included in payables and accruals ENEFEZTIE/IEEE (307,680) (318,074)
1,518,951 1,600,053

As at 31 December 2016, the Group's stocks of properties of approximately
HK$527,161,000 (2015: HK$580,944,000) was pledged as collateral for
Group's banking facilities and other borrowings.
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26. Receivables and prepayments 26. BIIRR R AT £

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Trade receivables B 5 YRR
— third parties =E8=% 856,613 883,298
— provision for impairment — BB H (423) (423)
SN 88285
Retention receivables R E & EARR
— third parties —%=5 1,213,917 1,268,742
— provision for impairment —REEE (125) (125)
e 1268617
2,069,982 2,151,492
Other receivables H b fE U AR K
— third parties! =E=7 623,910 101,814
— related companies? —BE QR 285,307 -
909,217 101,814
Deposits and prepayments Re kEAE
~ third parties —E=% 745,234 635,109
3,724,433 2,888,415
Less: non-current portion B IERENEE D (661,070) (208,941)
3,063,363 2,679,474

The carrying amounts of the Group's receivables and prepayments are AEBE 2 EYGIBRIENFIEREEIZATEE

denominated in the following currencies: FHE:

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT

Hong Kong dollar ok 1,999,746 2,174,534
Renminbi AR 604,810 115,220
Macau pataca SR 458,807 389,720
3,063,363 2,679,474

Notes: B 5 -

1. Balance includes deposits of HK$512 million made to a third party as collateral to 1. &MAHEIERSE =77 X 1/8#512,000,0007T FIZ & LAYE
secure the other borrowings from the corresponding party. REREEZINEMERE ZERR -

2. Related companies represented two companies incorporated in the PRC, which are 2. BERRENRBEEMA I AME AR BARR—%&
owned by a director of the Company and/or close members of his family. Balances Bk REARRE ZSHERERTREREAR
represent two borrowings granted to the two related companies which carry interest BIMIE D BIRF B12/E & A B0.91667ET EMEE RS
at 12% per annum and 0.91667% per month and is repayable by 21 August 2024 RIZER2024F8 821 H K2018F 11 12 H AI{EE °

and 12 November 2018 respectively.
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26. Receivables and prepayments (continued)
(a) Trade and retention receivables

0]

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

184

The aging analysis of trade receivables by due date is as follows:

26. BIRRB AT & (@)
(a) B8R FE R MU R

@

B 5 RBRFIRE BB 2 RS AT -

2016 2015
HK$’'000 HK$'000

BT BT

Not yet due R EIH 758,437 801,692
1 to 30 days 1230k 85,011 31,026
31 to 90 days 31E90K 2,586 34,923
91 to 180 days 91E 180K 6,710 2,795
Over 180 days 180K A £ 3,446 12,439
856,190 882,875

As at 31 December 2016, for the receivables which are not yet
due, there is no indication that they will be non-performing as
there is no history of default of the customers.

The Group's credit terms for its contracting business and
property rental are negotiated with and entered into under
normal commercial terms with its trade customers. The credit
period for the trade receivables for contracting business generally
ranges from 30 to 60 days (2015: 30 to 60 days).

Retention receivables in respect of the contracting business are
settled in accordance with the terms of the respective contracts.
Rental income is billed in advance of the rental period. At 31
December 2016, retention receivables held by customers for
contract works amounting to approximately HK$462,011,000
(2015: HK$603,906,000) are expected to be recovered or settled
in more than twelve months from the end of the reporting
period.

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade

and retention receivables, as the Group has a large number of
customers.
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

201612 A318 » KRB HAR IR 3K
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AEBREXFEYERE ZEEHZ
B—RAERNEEESRFAELE
R BEEBRNE SERER ZEES—
T F30E60K (20154 : 30260k ) ©
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B2 &R EE - BB WA BN HEH B
B BR BB UL - W20165F12 83180 &
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KB #462,011,0007T (20154 : B #
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26. Receivables and prepayments (continued)
(a) Trade and retention receivables (continued)
(v)  Depending on the credit history and financial position of each
individual customer, trade receivables that are less than 180 days
past due are not considered impaired. As at 31 December 2016,
trade receivables of HK$3,446,000 (2015: HK$12,439,000),
net of provision for impairment, were past due over 180 days
but not impaired as there are no recent history of default
of independent customers and no objective evidence of the
receivables being not fully collectible.

(vi)  Movements in the provision for impairment of trade and

26. BIRIEH RFMN & (&)
(a) BEERFELEKK &)

v) BIRERER ZEERS IR
T E 5 EURBR 3 B D M 80K N AR
BEERME-N20165F128318 2 1%
B 2 B 5 R 5UE 13,446,000
JC (20154 : 7 #512,439,0007T ) 45 &, %1 2f
BB 180K - B EAE L RE - RE 2 @R
EREAHS HIERERRLEE  MEREE
BRERZ S EBERE L2 8k (E -

vy BIZRRESEKIERRZ REREFEZSN

retention receivables are as follows: N
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
At the beginning and REDRER
at the end of the year 548 548

The provision for impairment represents trade and retention
receivables aged over 180 days in both years.

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group does not hold
any collateral.

27. Amounts due from non-controlling interests
Amounts due from non-controlling interests are unsecured, non-interest
bearing and have no fixed terms of repayment. The carrying amounts
approximate their fair values, and are mainly denominated in Hong Kong
dollars.

MERBIEMESERNRREBIBORZ
B 5 MRE S BRI

20165 K2015%F12 A31H » REE I &
HHTMERR-

27. BUFFZRERRIR

FEUS FEIE AR A e SR IR T AR R - 0 B N A B E AR K
HelRMEREQAERI WX BABEREN-
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28. Cash and bank balances 28. e RBITHEE

(a) Deposits, cash and cash equivalents (a) BFE HLREFRAZLELH
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
EBETT BT
Cash at bank and in hand RITHEFRFERS 400,210 1,199,583
Short term bank deposits (Note i) 5 ERSRITER (PREEI) 4,506 263,133
404,716 1,462,716
Time deposit over three months (Note ii) = {8 A A LT BFER (HIaEi) 6,431 6,747
Deposits, cash and cash equivalents FTR-BekERRLER 411,147 1,469,463
Deposits, cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following G -RekERBEBEEUTIERE BERM:
currencies:
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Hong Kong dollar Nokiss 317,765 700,397
United States dollar =TT 16,640 130,750
Renminbi AR¥ 40,487 549,106
Macau pataca R 36,060 88,797
Other HAh 195 413
411,147 1,469,463
Notes: Bt
() The short term bank deposits of the Group have original maturities of three 0} ANEBZRBETERSVEBHAAB=EAHLA T
months or less.
(i) The time deposits of the Group carry an effective interest rate of 1.6% (2015: (i)  AEEOERFHILERFNE6% (20155 :2.0% ) &t
2.0%) per annum and have an average maturity period of 183 days (2015: B FHRE A A183K (20154 : 184K ) ©
184 days).
(b) Restricted cash (b) BREESL
As at 31 December 2016, restricted bank deposits of MN20165E128310 - T4 7 BT EZ 5N
HK$626,573,000 (2015: HK$126,786,000) represent deposits placed 626,573,0007T (20154 : % #126.786,0007T)
in banks on which charges are created to secure banking facilities. FEHER T AR IT ARUEIR TR S Z SR1T 15 »
(c) Significant restrictions (0 EXRE
Restricted and unrestricted cash, and short-term deposits of ZRE R ATR G YIS & BT s
HK$668,370,000 (2015: HK$544,193,000) are held in the PRC and 668,370,0007T (20154F : % #5544, 193,0007T)
are subject to local exchange control regulations. These local exchange Ty N A B ST B M ONE S H 18
control regulations provide for restrictions on exporting capital from 1 o B —ARAR BN - BB NES B AN EE 2 A E 1
the country, other than through normal dividends. HNEE 5 41|38 15 -
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29. Deferred tax
Deferred tax is calculated in full on temporary differences under the liability
method using applicable tax rates prevailing in the countries in which the
Group operates. The movement of the deferred tax is as follows:

29. BIERIF

EEHBERAABEEIAEREZRRASEEERE
BRNRITERREEZHFE - RERAZE
mr

Deferred tax liabilities Deferred tax assets
BEREAR BERARE
Properties under Depreciation
development/ in excess of
Accelerated tax Properties held Fair value Intangible depreciation Tax

depreciation for sale gains assets Total allowance losses Total

BRTHE/ i 11
NEREHRE REHEZHR LhERE 37714 @t HESRE HEER #it
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BRI BT EETT AT BT BT
At1 January 2015 201551818 (17,988) (206,409) (405,661) (13124) (643,182) 538 10250 15,632
Exchange difference EXER 9%7 305,612 91,664 - 398223 - - B
Acquisiton of subsiiaries (Note 41) WERBAR (Kita) - (4,525,180) (1,543978) - (6,069,158) - - -
Disposalof a subsidiary HEHBAR (16) = = = (16) = = =
Charged to other comprehensive income A 2ENE AR - - (8217) - 8217) - - -

(Cherged)credited to consolicted income. ~ FEEAIRER A (B8 /3T A
statement (Note 14) (Hist14) (19,360) (17,435) (49,280) 1303 (84,772) (1,051) 21393 2634
At 31 December 2015 RO15£12A318 (36417 (b4 (1915472 (11821 (6407,122) 4331 £ ] 41974
Exchange difference EfzE 1471 w73 106,879 - 332,089 - - -
Disposalof a subsidiary HEHBAR 315 - - 10,626 11,001 (80) - (80)
Charged to other comprehensive income £ 2ENEAIIR - - (18,926) - (18,926) - - -
(Charged)credited to consolicted income.~ FEEAIREZR A (18R /3T A

statement (Note 14) (Kizk14) 3,689 1223107 0,38 1,195 1450373 (358) (32480) (32:838)
At31 December 2016 R 2016512310 (30,876) (2996,572) (1,605,137) - (4,632,585) 3893 5,163 9,056

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to
the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit through future
taxable profits is probable. The Group has unrecognised deferred tax
assets in respect of tax losses amounting to HK$1,447,631,000 (2015:
HK$570,513,000) which can be carried forward against future taxable
income. Tax losses amounting to HK$660,013,000 are expiring from 2017
through 2021 (2015: HK$433,470,000 expiring from 2016 through 2020).
The remaining tax losses do not have expiry dates.

BELEREEEDREE 2R EREBMER  UHE
NG R ERB A REE B AR RERTGF IR 2
BEAR ANEEEABRELRBEE REHK
1878 #1,447,631,0007T (20154 : 7 #6570,513,000
TC) H A AE DK R RERTRRA - BEEE
660,013,0007T 2 T 18 #5 7A2017F £2021F N & m
(20154 : i #433,470,0007T 7 % 18 #8 720164 &=
2020F A fE ) o HERTIIE8 B E IR AR o
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30. Bank loans

30. |ITE®

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥TT BT
Bank loans, wholly payable within five years ~ BR AFERNBHEE 2 BITERK
— secured — B HE A 1,982,508 2,554,158
— unsecured — AR 347,227 1,243,445
2,329,735 3,797,603
The repayment schedule of bank loans is as IRITERZEREAT -
follows:
Short term revolving bank loans EHIEIRIRTTE R 1,204,416 1,895,220
Portion of bank loans due for repayment AR —F WEZ&Z?E BEREn
within one year 925,401 787,845
2,129,817 2,683,065
Portion of bank loans due for repayment AR —FRERE
after one year but contain a repayment on BEREREEBKRZ
demand clause RITEREBH
(i) in the second year () MREBEZFZH 75,100 231,421
(i) in the third to fifth years, inclusive iy RE=2FRFZNH
(EEMFEBEEN) 124,818 203,301
Portion of bank loans due for repayment after 7B — 414 (EE18
one year but do not contain a repayment on Iﬁ’j BREREEBKZ
demand clause RITE R MR
(i) in the second year () MEZFIH - 254,595
(i) in the third to fifth years, inclusive (il RE=ZFAFIH(HEM
FERIEEN) - 425,221
199,918 1,114,538
2,329,735 3,797,603
Less: Amounts due after one year shown B IERBBEET —F&
under non-current liabilities BIH ” ©%8 - (679,816)
2,329,735 3,117,787
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30. Bank loans (continued) 30. BITER (&)

The Group's bank loans are denominated in the following currencies: REFERITEFUTINEEEE :
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRETT BT T
Hong Kong dollar ok 2,272,508 3,087,063
Renminbi AR - 517,843
Macau pataca SR 57,227 =
United States dollar =Sl - 192,697
2,329,735 3,797,603
Notes: B EE -
(@) The bank loans of the Group carried weighted average interest rates of 3.19% (2015: (@) AEEZRITERMEFHFEFEE3.19% (20154 :
3.22%) per annum. 3.22%) °
(b)  As at 31 December 2016, the bank loans of the Group were secured by leasehold by M2016F12A31H AEEZRITERUNBE
land and building of HK$570,000,000 (2015: HK$506,000,000) (Note 17); 570,000,0007T (20154 : % #506,000,0007T ) = 18 & +
investment properties of HK$840,683,000 (2015: HK$2,496,549,000) (Note 18); KT (F5E17) © % #840,683,0007T (20154 : /& #
properties under development of HK$nil (2015: HK$216,234,000) (Note 24); stocks 2,496,549,0007T ) 2 & E W (MizE18) B =T (2015
of properties of HK$nil (2015: HK$580,944,000) (Note 25); restricted cash of F: 5#5216,234,0000T ) 2 B EFME (HiH24) - BEZ
HK$626,573,000 (2015: HK$126,786,000) (Note 28); and equity interests of the 7T (20154 : &6580,944,000) 2 M%7 & (Mizk25) Bl
Group's subsidiary. 626,573,0007T (20154 : ##126,786,0007T,) 2 R Hll38
& (M5528) : RAKE B QR 2 IREVEER -
(& The carrying amounts of bank loans approximate their fair value. (© ROTEFRZEEAEBEHEEQNAEBEMET
31. Payables and accruals 31. EfIEERRENRA
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Trade payables 2 5 IR
— third parties —F= 1,311,707 1,073,392
Retention payables RE S ERERK
— third parties —%=5 918,800 946,909
Accruals for builders” work AR TIRET & F 2,249,265 2,131,287
4,479,772 4,151,588
Other payables, deposits and accruals H TR IRe REFTER
— third parties —%=5 1,207,039 1,574,650
— accruals for tax liabilities on acquisition of ~ —FHUREE A B sE b8
land parcels in Tieling EEHiEAE 325,187 347,300
6,011,998 6,073,538
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31. Payables and accruals (continued) 31. BEREENER (2

The carrying amounts of the Group's payables and accruals are AEBEEMNERRETER ZREAEBENA TS EEE
denominated in the following currencies: =k
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
EBETT BT T
Hong Kong dollar okt 3,775,259 3,429,259
Renminbi AR 1,340,220 1,799,237
Macau pataca SR 890,794 845,042
United States dollar =TT 5,725 -
6,011,998 6,073,538
The aging analysis of trade payables by due date is as follow: B S EMNRRIRI A BRER AT :
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Not yet due R EIH 668,127 632,645
1 to 30 days 12308 307,600 257,457
31 to 90 days 31E90K 145,571 64,876
91 to 180 days 91E=180& 77,539 24,508
Over 180 days 180K A _E 112,870 93,906
1,311,707 1,073,392
Note: Bt 5 -
Retention payables in respect of the contracting business are settled in accordance with the BEXBZRESENERDNIBRESEAOZBREE-
terms of the respective contracts. At 31 December 2016, retention payables held by the H2016F 1273310 AEE A ZRE € ENRRLEE
Group amounting to approximately HK$209,248,000 (2015: HK$478,713,000) are expected 209,248,0007T (20154 : /&#5478,713,0007T ) TEHA 4 B #h e Hiss
to be settled in more than twelve months from the end of the reporting period. RBFTRBB T —EAKLEE-
32. Other borrowings 32. Htufg s
The other borrowings from financial institutions of HK$4,494,073,000 KB & @R 2 H A& 5 %4,494,073,0007T AN HE
bear weighted average interest rate of 19.3% per annum, in which 5 F R & A519.3/E - i H o 2 8 #2,883,684,000
HK$2,883,684,000 (31 December 2015: HK$2,400,736,000) will 7t (2015512 4311 : % %2,400,736,0007T ) #%
be repayable within one year. As at 31 December 2016, the other R—FANER -R20165F12A318  HifEEH
borrowings were secured by the Group's investment properties of 7 £ [ 75 %6,469,690,0007T (2015412 A31H ¢
HK$6,469,690,000 (31 December 2015: HK$6,454,493,000) (Note 18); 5 #£6,454,493,0007T) 2 IR E W ¥ (MiE18)
properties under development of HK$8,574,608,000 (31 December 78 #£8,574,608,0007T (2015F 12 A31H : B #
2015: HK$12,028,450,000) (Note 24); property, plant and equipment and 12,028,450,0007T ) 2 B B H W1 ¥ (W 7H24) : B
leasehold land of HK$1,695,166,000 (31 December 2015: nil) (Note 17); 1,695,166,0007T (2015512 4318 : &) 2 ¥ 3 - #
stock of properties of HK$527,161,000 (31 December 2015: nil) (Note 25); SEREEREE LM (FFE17) B #527,161,0007T
and equity interests of the Group's certain subsidiaries (31 December 2015: (2015512 A318 - |&) 2 MEFE (MiFE25) « R
nil). SEETHEARZEME (2015F12 8310 - #) 1
R
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32.

33.

34.

Other borrowings (continued)

The other borrowings from third parties amounting to HK$1,267,928,000
(31 December 2015: Nil) will be repayable within one year, with a weighted
average interest rate of 14.8%. As at 31 December 2016, these other
borrowings are secured by receivables and prepayments of HK$512,459,000
(note 26) and equity interests of the Group's certain subsidiaries.

The carrying amounts of other borrowings approximate to their fair value.

Senior notes

In May 2015, the Company issued senior notes with principal amount of
United States Dollars (“USD”) 300 million (the “USD300 million Senior
Notes”). The USD300 million Senior Notes bear interest of 8.75% per
annum, which are repayable semi-annually. The USD300 million Senior
Notes will mature on 18 May 2018. The Company may at its option, at any
time prior to 18 May 2018, redeem the USD300 million Senior Notes in
whole but not in part, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal
amount plus the applicable premium as of, and accrued and unpaid interest
to the redemption date. The USD300 million Senior Notes are listed on the
Stock Exchange and can be dealt with by way of debt issues for professional
investors only.

In January 2016, the Company issued senior notes with principal amount of
USD150 million (the “USD150 million Senior Notes”). The USD150 million
Senior Notes bear interest of 8.5% per annum, which are repayable semi-
annually. The USD150 million Senior Notes will mature on 22 January 2019.
The Company may at its option, at any time prior to 22 January 2019,
redeem the USD150 million Senior Notes in whole but not in part, at a
redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount plus the applicable
premium as of, and accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date.
The USD150 million Senior Notes are listed on the Stock Exchange and can
be dealt with by way of debt issues for professional investors only.

The fair value of the USD300 million Senior Notes and the USD150 million
Senior Notes at 31 December 2016 amounted to USD249,187,500 and
USD121,406,250 respectively. The fair value of the senior notes is calculated
using the quoted price of the senior notes and is within level 1 of the fair
value hierarchy.

Convertible bonds and financial derivative liability
On 20 November 2015, the Group issued 6.0% convertible bonds at a par
value of USD100 million. The bonds mature two years from the issue date
at their nominal value of USD100 million or can be converted into shares at
the holder’s option within the conversion period at the rate of HK$1.00 per
share. On 20 May 2016, the conversion price was adjusted downwards to
HK$0.78 per share. The values of the liability component and the embedded
derivative component were determined at the issuance of the bonds. During
the year, principal amount of HK$734 million was early redeemed by the
Company.

On 19 May 2016, the Group issued zero coupon convertible bonds at a par
value of HK$34 million. The bonds mature on the 18th month from the
issue date at their nominal value of HK$34 million or can be converted into
shares at the holder’s option from the date of issue up to the maturity date
at the rate of HK$1.00 per share. The values of the liability component and
the equity component were determined at the issuance of the bonds.

32.

33.

34,

HthEE (2

REABZH 2 B E & A% 1,267,928,0007T (2015
F12A318 &) BR—FREE  MEEEFEE
14.8%  7A2016F12 B31H » It EHMEEH AL
2 EUBRR M FER & A8 H512,459,0007T (M 5E26)
DA EBETH B AR 2 RAE KT

B SR B AL E AR -
BERE

72015458 - AN A &) 17 7 78 € %8300,000,0003
70 (3= 7T])) B8 % 2= 4% (300,000,000 T8 7t 2
%) ° 300,000,0003 JT18 5T R ¥ LA8.75% 2 F 7| =&
sHE ¥ FEE— )X ° 300,000,0003 TTE L ZE
M2018F5 A 18H B B o KA R Al B1T3E1E 20185
58188 Z A BHRILZHEE I A2 EH100% 49 BB [B]
ENEEZERN SN EREEREZER B HAE
&1 M R A FIB, - B 1B] 2 5 M 3F 6 4300,000,000% 7T
B 4L 22 9% ° 300,000,000 LB L EHE R R AT £
BEMUREEREEZRTEBN R

2016517 - N2 &) 217 7 A€ %8150,000,0003
TTHIE %24 ([150,000,000FE T B L ZH# ) o
150,000,000 JL{8 e =15 IA8.5% 2 F F K5+ &
FEF(F B —)K ° 150,000,000 T8 £ 245 1 582019
F1A22BFIH - AN G A 51T#FER2019F 1722
B 7 BT B R AR HE E 7 AN 58 100% 9 5 018 hngL
ZELNBNNERREREZER BN EAS Rk
78 B B 2 56 JE 30 > 150,000,000 T B £ =
1% © 150,000,0003 JT 18 2o EIE B 2P L B2 A]
LA BN EEBHITEBN A REE -

300,000,0003 T8 55 2= 45 K 150,000,000 LB £ 2
ER2016F 12 A31B R A LA D 71 /5249,187,5003%
JC K% 121,406,250E T - B A BHEM R SETIIRE T
EZENREAETBERARNEEFNEIBA-

AEEEFREMTETAAR
2015411 5208 » 7N 5= @ 2 17 {5100,000,000
ETH60ERBERES ZEEHFKEA@ME
100,000,000 7T B 217 A BB AT M F B 87 - sk Al i
A AR R ERERERERNIRESREE1.00TH
K@ A - 201655 A200  BHE T AEF
f&E80.787C BEHD LBRAITETARLHHEE
RBEITEFHET RAFE  ARBIZEHFEFEA
IR R E R A &B#734,000,0007T

2016554191 » 2N 6 [ 25 7 {8 75 134,000,000
TZEBABEKRES ZSBEHFEHEMEBY
34,000,000t B %77 B #f#E5T 1\ @ A 25 - sk AT iz
BEANEERRTENEE A MR EREE
1.007THI L R ARG - BEE D REE B HE
EREITERNETE-
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34. Convertible bonds and financial derivative liability 34. [#KREHFREMTETIRARE (&)

(continued)
The initial recognitions of the 6.0% convertible bonds and zero coupon 6.0F Al &5 R T B AIMRES 2 VI P HERE T
convertible bonds are set out as below: AR
6.0% Zero coupon
convertible bonds convertible bonds
20 November 19 May
2015 2016
6.0E ZR
AR ES g ES
20155 20165
11A208 58198
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEET T FEHE T T
Fair value of convertible bonds at date of issue 53277 B B 2 AR E 5 A LB 728,713 34,000
Embedded derivative component BRAPTETEZBH (199,425) =
Equity component MR R - (9,874)
Liability component on initial recognition at
date of issue RE1T B B SEREN B & H 529,288 24,126

The movements of the liability component of the 6.0% convertible bonds 6OEFRESFRTEEARRESCBELD 2 E

192

and zero coupon convertible bonds are set out below: EJUNNE
6.0% Zero coupon
convertible bonds convertible bonds
20 November 19 May
2015 2016 Total
6.0E R
AR R % ARG (R %
20155 20165
118208 5A19A st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T BT
At 1 January 2015 7201541 A1H - - -
Issue of convertible bonds BITA AR E S 529,288 = 529,288
Interest expense (Note 9) MEFX (H739) 14,911 = 14,911
At 31 December 2015 2015512 A31H 544,199 - 544,199
Issue of zero coupon BT ERRES
convertible bonds - 24,126 24,126
Interest expense (Note 9) MEF < (M3E9) 132,439 3,653 136,092
Conversion to ordinary shares of B3 A7 7] & @ %
the Company (Note 36(a)) (BizE36(@a)) (15,764) = (15,764)
Coupon interest paid BEfEER (46,478) - (46,478)
Early redemption R ED (597,479) - (597,479)
At 31 December 2016 R20165E12 A31H 16,917 27,779 44,696
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34. Convertible bonds and financial derivative liability

35.

(continued)
The movements of the embedded derivative component of the 6.0%
convertible bonds are set out below:

3. fBERRFREMOTETAAR &

6.0E AT AR (E 5 < (R ALTHE T ARG E B E 510
T~

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

BRTT BT

At 1 January R1A1H 206,412 =

Issue of convertible bonds BATARRES - 199,425
Change in fair value in financial derivatives SRITETRERAABEE (7))

(Note 7) (194,168) 6,987

Conversion to ordinary shares of B ARR AR (MEE36())

the Company (Note 36(a)) (5,573) -

Early redemption R ER (6,488) -

At 31 December M®12831H 183 206,412

The fair value of the liability component and embedded derivative
component of the 6.0% convertible bonds at 31 December 2016
approximately amounted to USD2,400,000 (31 December 2015:
UsD73,300,000) and USD24,000 (31 December 2015: USD26,600,000)
respectively. The fair value of liability component is calculated using cash
flows discounted at effective interest rate at 28.10% (31 December 2015:
28.06%). The fair value of derivative component is calculated using Black-
Scholes model and is within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

The carrying amounts of the zero coupon convertible bonds approximate to
their fair value.

Long service payment liabilities

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is obliged
to make lump sum payments on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances to certain employees who have completed at least five
years of service with the Group. The amount payable is dependent on the
employee’s final salary and years of service, and is reduced by entitlements
accrued under the Group's defined contribution retirement scheme that is
attributable to contributions made by the Group. The Group does not set
aside any assets to fund any remaining obligations.

35.

2016F 128310 6. 0E AR ES 2 EBHD R
BMALTETAE » 2 AR EH S B A2,400,000% 7T
(20154128318 : 73,300,000 7T ) %24,000% 7T
(20155125318 : 26,600,0003 7T ) - BEHH Z A
AETERITIRE SR RERFE28.10% (2015
F12H31H :28.06% )5t & STHET AEH D AAE
TN R —fTRATERHE WEBRARNEERE
3R

TRABRES 2 FREEEE A ERT -

RURK AR

REEE (BREED)  AREEEERRBFEZE
AFHUEMESRTHERATELZENEE SN —
FENER-MXNNERIREEENERFTE
N AR 75 4F SR B RE - 30 HNBR (8 B £ AN 5 B SRE R
RGBT BT R RSB 2 I8 NEE
WEBELEMEEAREMBTHOREREES
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35. Long service payment liabilities (continued)

35. REEEEAER (&

Movements of present value of defined benefit obligations are as follows: REBAMETZBEBE2ZEHMT
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Attdanway o RIATR ek 222 |
Amounts recognised in consolidated income %R A WK PR Z £ 5 :
statement:
Current service cost BIVER AR 75 X AN 239 209
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation RERIEEZF B 34 49
NN 0909092020 - N =
Amounts recognised in REMEEREFERZ &
other comprehensive income
Remeasurement: BHErE:
Actuarial loss/(gain) arising from: BUATSEELEZEH
18, (W)
Experience adjustment R 1,347 2,318
Financial assumptions B 5B % (1,246) 962
D S240 |
Others: Hth -
Benefits paid [=ENEER (793) (734)
Disposal of a subsidiary & —FEH B AR (3,977) =
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, @rmo) _________ 734
At 31 December M®12A31H 2,157 6,553
The principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows: RAZETEREMELOT
2016 2015
Discount rate ALIR = 2.0% 1.6%
Long term salary increase rate REF SILRE 3.2% 32%
Long term average expected return on REIMARETEEEZ
mandatory provident fund scheme assets R AT TEEA B 3R 2.0% 1.6%

-~ 194
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35. Long service payment liabilities (continued) 35. REIRB&RAR (9
The sensitivity analysis of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the AERANEEHERETERBEDNBRE S ITE
significant principal assumptions is as follows: HEAT

Impact on defined benefit obligation

(HK$'000)
HRERAREHTZE (B%TT)
Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption
RS %187 Ra%iR D
Discount rate BEEH & 0.50% (592) 741
Long term salary increase rate REF SRR 0.50% 46 (70)
The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption A EBRESTRENR —IBREEE)  MAEEAMmR
while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to BB L AIKRAIBER A Hp — & /R%
occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When CHRREREEEEN EHERATENELHE
calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant NBEEBERNBRER - ER THRE (R#REH
actuarial assumptions, the same method (present value of the defined RATERT BT AT E R ERANEERIRE) -
benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the
end of the reporting period) has been applied.
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 20.4 72016512 A31 B BB T E M INETHHR R
years as at 31 December 2016. 20.4%F o
36. Share capital and share options 36. BX &K AR B4
(a) Share capital (@) B#FE
2016 2015
Number Number
of shares of shares
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
e E BETT &2 B BT
T TR
Authorised, ordinary shares A7 » SR EEE ¥
of HK$0.1 each: 0.17C:Z &3 Ak
At 1 January RK1A1H 30,000,000 3,000,000 30,000,000 3,000,000
Addition N - - = =
At 31 December M®12H31H 30,000,000 3,000,000 30,000,000 3,000,000
Authorised, preference A BEEmEEE
shares of HK$0.1 each: 0.1TTZ fR5Ehk :
At 1 January M1ATHE 15,000,000 1,500,000 15,000,000 1,500,000
Addition N - - - -
At 31 December M®12A31H 15,000,000 1,500,000 15,000,000 1,500,000
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36. R AR AERHE ()

36. Share capital and share options (continued)

(a) Share capital (continued)

(a) B*F (&)

2016 2015
Number Number
of shares of shares
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
Ein& A BETT &5 & B BT
T A&
Ordinary shares, issued and BRITR#EZ
fully paid: BEm
At 1 January R1A1H 5,188,577 518,858 2,858,167 285,817
Issue of rights shares EITHRR G - - 857,450 85,745
Issue of placing shares BITELER D = = 1,472,960 147,296
Issue of shares upon conversion — FL1T{E A BB A8 Fo A%
of convertible preference 2 B T BT
shares’ Mz fn! 505,702 50,570 - -
Issue of shares upon conversion — FL1T{E AJ AR EH 2
of convertible bonds EIRET B1TARD
(Note 34y (P43E34)2 26,828 2,683 - -
Cancellation on repurchase of ~ E& [ %17 2 5§43
shares? (14,436) (1,444) = =
At 31 December R®12H31H 5,706,671 570,667 5,188,577 518,858
Preference shares, issued ERTRBEZ
and fully paid: - EH
At 1 January RK1A1H 5,654,772 565,477 - -
Issue of shares for business MEEE G T
combination & 15 - - 5,654,772 565,477
Exercise of conversion right T AT SR (B SR AR P
attached to convertible P A5 2 e
preference shares' (505,702) (50,570) - -
Issue of consideration BITREELER
preference shares* 555,096 55,510 - -
At 31 December M®12A31H 5,704,166 570,417 5,654,772 565,477
11,410,837 1,141,084 10,843,349 1,084,335
Notes: B 5 :
1. During the year, ordinary shares were issued upon exercise of conversion rights 1. RAFE BETE A ERE R RATMS 2 BHREmR—
attached to the convertible preference shares on a one for one basis. HEEFTEBR
2. During the year, these shares were issued pursuant to the exercise of 6.0% 2. RAEAFEE ZERMIHATEMR2015511 5208 #1769
convertible bonds issued on 20 November 2015. These shares rank pari passu 6.0/ AT AR ME 25 1 31T o R F R BN E 7 H R E A2
in all respects with other shares in issue. BT Z B R E AL
3. In April 2016, the Company purchased a total of 14,436,000 shares of the 3. 2016548 AR EEHZFTAGRB B0 TEAB
Company, price ranged from HK$0.51 to HK$0.54, on the Stock Exchange for 0.547T % [0 $£14,436,000/8 " 2 A AR 15 - KB R B
an aggregate consideration of HK$7,556,020. All of the repurchased shares 7,556,0207T)  Fr A BB R 2 DA B 38 - AN AR 2 B8
were cancelled, accordingly, the issued share capital of the Company was 1TRR A E g B8 2 AR AN (B A8 FE R -
reduced by the nominal value of these shares.
4. During the year, these shares were issued upon the issue of state-owned land 4. RAEFE H015F1AsBKE Y — e B EEE £

use rights certificates for a land acquired on 8 January 2015. i FRRERE M EATZ SR -
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36. Share capital and share options (continued)

(b) Share options

2008 Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 22 May 2008 (the
2008 Option Scheme”). Pursuant to the 2008 Option Scheme, the
directors of the Company may, at their absolute discretion, grant
options to eligible persons (as defined in the rules of the 2008 Option
Scheme) who might include, inter alia, any employee, executive
director, non-executive director and independent non-executive
director of the Company or its subsidiaries.

Movements in the options under the 2008 Option Scheme during the
year and options outstanding as at the beginning and end of the year

36. XK B (o)
(b) ERIE
2008 F AR EFHE
RN B FA20084F5 A22 B 4y — I8 R A RE T 2
([2008F R HERT &) © R IE2008F R AR T
B ARRREZATHFEBERIBEREEB/A
1 (& R2008F RIEEI 2 RA) - ERIE
(EFBE)ARRISEMB LR 2 EMAES -
HWITESR FERTEFNBUIERATEERY
R o

TR2008F BB 8 T 2 R FANEE - &
RENRERZRITERBENBRERH 2

and their related average exercise prices are as follows: FHTEEFIBRT

Average Number of

exercise price share options

FIYTEERE REEEsE

(HK$ per share) ‘000

(BRRA%TT) T3

At 1 January 2015 12015617318 1.87 25,504
Lapsed B KK 1.02 (1,500)
At 31 December 2015 2015512 H318 1.92 24,004
Granted BEEH 0.70 3,000
Lapsed BRK 1.57 (8,420)
At 31 December 2016 R20165F12A31H 1.89 18,584

Out of 18,584,000 outstanding options (2015: 24,004,000 options),
18,584,000 options (2015: 24,004,000 options) were exercisable with
the average exercise price of HK$1.89 (2015: HK$1.92).

Share options outstanding have the following expiry date and exercise
price:

718,584,00010 A& 171 2 AR A% # (20154 :
24,004,00017 R [% 1) # - 518,584,00017 53 A
# (20154 : 24,004,000 B #E ) B ] T 17
- FHITEEABE1.897T (201545 B
1.9278) °

HARTTRE R ZBIH A RITEEMT

Average

Expiry date EHA exercise price Number of share options ("000)
FEIYTER RIRESHE (T13)

(HK$ per share)
(BB TT) 2016 2015
22 May 2018 2018%F5H22H 2.13 14,000 19,000
3 December 2019 2019912 A3H 1.02 2,334 2,754
31 August 2021 20218 A31H 1.29 2,250 2,250
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37. Contingent liabilities 37. BiRAR

At 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group is subject to various claims 2016%20156F 12 A31H  REE R — i XK B2
on liquidated damages of certain construction contracts during the normal HHEBRZIESRETRESH THRBEERE -EF
course of business. The Directors are of the opinion that the Group has R AEBRELIESHRFBRREERESRE -
applied extension of time to mitigate the liquidated damages and any ILFTEE 2 B ETEHAEE 2 MK R B R
resulting liability would not materially affect the financial position of the BATE-
Group.
38. Related party transactions 38. EAXS
The following transactions were carried out with related parties: BRERZRZHWT
(a) In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere in (a) BEEUBRRRAZEEBEFERIIN RE
the consolidated financial statements, the following is a summary AREEEERES TR BEFERPETZ
of significant related party transactions entered into in the ordinary ERBESTZGUENT
course of business between the Group and its related parties during
the year.
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Interest income from related companies KERRENTZFBHA 6,064 =
Note: B3
Loans to related companies were concluded on terms and prices agreed by both ETRER B2 ERTIRE T HE 2 R R BT
parties. Please refer to Note 26 for details. HI5H2HM 26 -
(b) Key management compensation (b)) EEEBENRZHE
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
BR¥TT BT T
Salaries and other benefits 37 P 52 Lt 48 ) 51,169 38,829
Bonus TE4L 14,263 10,047
Contributions to retirement scheme RIRET SR 1,754 1,470
67,186 50,346
None of the related party transactions disclosed above constituted LA DA PR EE 2 BE S X S AR AP
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions as REZAERGIFEAERS -

defined in the Listing Rules.
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39. Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had capital commitments as follows:

39. BERKiE

20165128318 AEE B T 7 E A HEPE:

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T

Contracted but not provided for BRI AE R B
— Properties under development —BRPYE 2,709,931 1,805,461
— Other capital investment —HERKE 228,571 =
2,938,502 1,805,461

40. Commitments under operating leases
At the balance sheet date, the Group had future aggregate minimum lease
payable under noncancellable operating leases as follows:

40. BEHIRKIE

REER AEERBETAIREZ2EROTRR

RN 2 B EFIREREMNT

2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Land and buildings T RIEF
— not later than one year —F—FR 36,833 15,037
— later than one year but —FEFEFRER
not later than five years 46,393 9,618
— more than five years —RENRE 15,874 -
99,100 24,655
Office equipment N
- not later than one year —F—FN - 525
— later than one year but —FE_FEFRFRA
not later than five years - 734
- 1,259
99,100 25914

20165F12A31H  AEBIRETAI B € EHY
(—RAEERAE ZERF ) RRKZRELERE YR

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had future aggregate minimum lease
payments receivable under non-cancellable operating leases, which typically

run for a period of one to five years, as follows: BT
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETRT BT
Land and buildings T RIEF

— not later than one year —FE—FNA 49,396 52,186

— later than one year but —FFEFRFA
not later than five years 75,283 95,783
— more than five years —AFLE 32,589 50,277
157,268 198,246
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41. Business combinations
(@ On 8 January 2015, the Group acquired the entire issued share
capital of Goleman International Limited, which, through its wholly
owned subsidiaries, is the legal and beneficial owner of 7 parcels
of land in Foshan City, Guangdong Province, at a consideration of

4. EHEH
@@ M2015F1A8A AEEUREBE
5,854,894,0007T U B# Goleman International
Limited®) 2 HEBEITRA - ZARBEBHEEE
M8 A E AEREEILTA7IE L 2 05 E &

- 200

HK$5,854,894,000. BREAA
Fair value
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed FRUgE§Z AT BIEE R FA&iEZ & & KRE
HK$'000
BT
Property, plant and equipment and leasehold land ~ #1% - #2s Rk B R FAE L 5,830
Investment properties & &Y 2,681,731
Tax indemnification assets (Note 1) RIEEEEE (M) 1,114,670
Properties under development BERPYHE 12,487,798
Receivables and prepayments FEWER R R IEN & 24,231
Cash and bank deposits R & RRITFR 280
Other borrowings HEEE (2,918,593)
Payables and accruals R K EETE A (318,785)
Deferred tax liabilities BIERIAAE (5,239,750)
7,837,412
Gain on bargain purchase ER L GAlES (1,982,518)
Total consideration RIB4EZE 5,854,894
Satisfied by: AR AT
Issuance of convertible preference shares on: R T5I B HA 31T A S E SRR
(Note 2) (FFE2)
— 8 January 2015 —2015%1A8H 4,514,132
—8July 2015 —2015%7H8H 1,084,092
— 15 January 2016 —20165F1 7158 256,670
5,854,894
Net cash inflow in respect of business combination: BRIZEIEA 2R ERAFEE
Cash and bank deposits acquired EHSIHR® RRITER 280
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41. Business combinations (continued)

(@)
Notes:

1.

(continued)

The tax indemnification assets of RMB843 million (approximate HK$1,006
million) at the acquisition date represent the tax indemnity granted by
the vendor in respect of estimated taxation charge arising from the sales
of properties (“Property Sales Taxation”) when the aggregate amount of
Property Sales Taxation paid or accrued exceeds the first RMB2,500 million.
A total of 2,604 million issued convertible preference shares are withheld
and redeemable by the Group within a period of 10 years starting from the
share issuance date to safeguard the Group’s potential tax liabilities. As at 31
December 2015, the provisional tax indemnification asset was estimated to
be HK$1,976 million. In 2016, the provisional deferred tax liabilities relating
to land appreciation tax has been finalised, resulting in a decrease of HK$861
million.

Convertible preference shares were issued at a fair value of HK$0.99 per share.

In accordance with the acquisition agreement, a total of 259,263,039 and
295,833,333 convertible preference shares were issued on 15 January and 26
April 2016 respectively in respect of any fines, fees or penalties for delays in
commencement of construction works on the property and the certified work
value.

Acquisition-related costs of HK$17,253,000 have been charged to
administrative expenses in the consolidated income statement for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

The acquired business contributed no revenue and net profit of
HK$133,320,000 to the Group for the period from 8 January 2015 to 31
December 2015. If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January 2015,
consolidated revenue and consolidated profit for the year ended 31 December
2015 would have no material difference since revenue and profit or loss of the
Goleman Group for the period from 1 January 2015 to 7 January 2015 were
immaterial.

The fair value of receivables and prepayments is HK$24,231,000 and there
is no objective evidence that the receivables and prepayments are not fully
collectible.

The gain on bargain purchase was mainly attributable to the difference
between the Company's share price set on the date of acquisition agreement
of 14 May 2014 and the share price on completion date of 8 January 2015.

4. EBSH m)

(@)
B

1.
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4. EBEH

2015F3A31H » KEBE U BEPure Benefits
Limited (EEZEHEMVRILR AT LT
IR ) 2 2 HEBRTRA REAEE

41. Business combinations (continued)
(b)  On 31 March 2015, the Group acquired the entire issued share (b)
capital of Pure Benefits Limited which indirectly owns 2 parcels of
land situated at Taidn City, Shandong Province, at a consideration of

HK$1,042,363,000.

1,042,363,0007T °

Fair value
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed FrUEEZ AT BIEERFAZRIEZ A B [RE
HK$'000
BT T
Property, plant and equipment and leasehold land ~ #7% - #22 KRB R A E -0 6
Investment properties BEME 1,843,221
Receivables and prepayments FEWER R R IB & 674
Cash and bank deposits B MIRITER 4,181
Other borrowings HEEE (252,496)
Payables and accruals FETEBRR R FEET & A (37,882)
Deferred tax liabilities BEFIBAE (332,609)
1,225,095
Gain on bargain purchase =EWERR (182,732)
Total consideration KRBT 1,042,363
Satisfied by: AT AT
Cash Be 808,879
Repayment of former shareholder’s loan BEAKREER 233,484
1,042,363
Net cash outflow in respect of business EAXBAF 2B R LT
combination:
Cash and bank deposits acquired EHYSIR & RRITEK 4,181
Cash consideration paid EfNRENRE (808,879)
Repayment of former shareholder’s loan EERBERER (233,484)
(1,038,182)

Notes:

1.

Wi :

Acquisition-related costs of HK$1,645,000 have been charged to
administrative expenses in the consolidated income statement for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

REZE2015F 12 A31BIEFE - WERBR B
1,645,0007C A Er 6 NS R 2 1T 51

2. The acquired business contributed no revenue and net loss of HK$42,976,000 201543 A31H 22015512 A31H AIf - Ak
to the Group for the period from 31 March 2015 to 31 December 2015. ¥R EAREE RN EEFBIBFEEE
If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January 2015, consolidated 42,976,0007T  fisf Ye i FIE /20151 H1H FTRK -
profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 would have HZE2015F 12 A3 B I FE 2 A& BERE & F i’
been HK$2,472,909,000 and there would have been no difference in the 575 #52,472,909,0007T * 1 F MR & U &5 18
consolidated revenue for the year. o

3. The fair value of receivables and prepayments is HK$674,000 and there is JEWER R R FEN & 2 A A {E A 674,000 +
no objective evidence that the receivables and prepayments are not fully FEEEFARBER R RN TR Sk
collectible.

4. The gain on bargain purchase was the variance between the consideration and FBEWBEBRR ARES HEITEEESE  RER

the net asset value acquired after commercial negotiation with the vendor.
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41. Business combinations (continued) 11. ¥4 o

(¢ On 29 April 2015, the Group acquired the entire issued share capital (© F2015F4A298  AEBEWESERHBEERA
of Wisdom Top International Limited which owns a commercial A (ERERERMNMEE —EEENE) 22
property in Guangzhou City, Guangdong Province, at a consideration B E RIS - (B R 15477,600,0007T ©

of HK$477,600,000.

Fair value
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed FRUfBZ AT RSB ERFARIEZ&E [RE
HK$'000
BT T
Investment properties "B 1,014,184
Cash and bank deposits e RIRTTFER 165
Bank loan IRITERK (370,386)
Payables and accruals N ERR R EE R (54,301)
Deferred tax liabilities RIEHIEA R (100,117)
489,545
Gain on bargain purchase =EWERE (11,945)
Total consideration RIBHEFE 477,600
Satisfied by: ATEHF AT
Cash e 477,600
Net cash outflow in respect of business BHAFEBE T 2R MEFEE:
combination:
Cash and bank deposits acquired EEREHE RRITER 165
Cash consideration paid EfNBEeRE (477,600)
(477,435)

Notes: B & :

1. Acquisition-related costs of HK$4,474,000 have been charged to 1. REZE2015F12A318I-FE - WEARR B
administrative expenses in the consolidated income statement for the year 4,474,0007T R bR A W R 2 TR S 51 5%
ended 31 December 2015.

2. The acquired business contributed no revenue and net loss of HK$8,236,000 2. 2015548298 Z2015612 4318 Hif - Friksg
to the Group for the period from 29 April 2015 to 31 December 2015. If the ¥R EAREEER MR EEBIBFEEE
acquisition had been completed on 1 January 2015, consolidated revenue and 8,236,0007T © fisi Y % = IE 201551 A1H 5Tk
consolidated profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 would HZE2015F 128310 L FE 2 AEEGE Bm &
have been HK$15,040,115,000 and HK$2,487,811,000 respectively. 4R % F#E 2 Bl A 7 #15,040,115,0007T K7

2,487,811,0007T °
3. The gain on bargain purchase was the variance between the consideration and 3. EERBREAREESEITEEEREZ REHR

the net asset value acquired after commercial negotiation with the vendor. B R EFEERE -
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41. ¥EBESH (&)

(d) 72015F9F 148 » AEBIUEEL&X Investment
Industrial Limited ([L&X | ) 65% 3 1T A% 7 o
L&X[E 7% 5 — [ BT /B A B198.95% 2 #E %5 1M
ZMBARES —BURRKETAMSE - KE

41. Business combinations (continued)

(d)  On 14 September 2015, the Group acquired 65% of the issued share
capital of L&X Investment Industrial Limited (“L&X"). L&X indirectly
holds 98.95% equity interest in a subsidiary, which owns a parcel of

land in Tianjin City, at a consideration of HK$900,000,000.

778 %900,000,0007T ©
Fair value
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed FrUiEZ AT BIEERFARIEZ A B [RE
HK$'000
PRI
Investment properties BEME 2,150,317
Receivables and prepayments FEWER R R IBN & 1,282
Cash and bank deposits B MIRITER 3,410
Payables and accruals JEMERF X EETE A (120,663)
Deferred tax liabilities REFIAA G (396,682)
Non-controlling interests FEIE A 2 (594,280)
1,043,384
Gain on bargain purchase =EWERE (143,384)
Total consideration RIBEBEE 900,000
Satisfied by: ATE AT
Cash e 900,000
Net cash outflow in respect of business EREBA 2B RLFE:
combination:
Cash and bank deposits acquired BEHEHR e RIRITHER 3,410
Cash consideration paid BEEERE (900,000)
(896,590)

Notes: B3 -

1.

Acquisition-related costs of HK$1,474,000 have been charged to
administrative expenses in the consolidated income statement for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

The acquired business contributed no revenue and net profit of
HK$24,970,000 to the Group for the period from 14 September 2015 to 31
December 2015. If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January 2015,
consolidated profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 would
have been HK$2,474,062,000 and there would have been no difference in the
consolidated revenue in the year.

The fair value of receivables and prepayments is HK$1,282,000 and there
is no objective evidence that the receivables and prepayments are not fully
collectible.

The fair value of the non-controlling interest was estimated by using the
purchase price paid for acquisition of 65% issued share capital in L&X
Investment Industrial Limited. This purchase price was adjusted for the lack of
control and lack of marketability that market participants would consider when
estimating the fair value of the non-controlling interest in L&X Investment
Industrial Limited.

The gain on bargain purchase was the variance between the consideration and
the net asset value acquired after commercial negotiation with the vendor.
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41.

42,

Business combinations (continued)

These business combinations were accounted for by acquisition method.
The gains on bargain purchase are calculated based on the fair values of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date
and the fair value of the consideration of the respective acquisition.

Tax indemnification asset

In connection with acquisition of Goleman International Limited in 2015,
therein the tax indemnification asset represents the tax indemnity granted
by the vendor in respect of estimated taxation charge arising from the sales
of properties (“Property Sales Taxation”) when the aggregate amount of
Property Sales Taxation paid or accrued exceeds the first RMB2,500 million.
A total of 2,604 million issued convertible preference shares are withheld
and redeemable by the Group within a period of 10 years starting from the
share issuance date to safeguard the Group's potential tax liabilities.

The movement is as follows:

41.

42,

E 420 XE))

B RTEA GHT IR E AR o 35 B U WS o iR
B S BT TR E R REREY A
REARSWBEEREZ ARERTHE .

RAHEESE

AR 20155F Y # Goleman International Limited »
HREEERED NN RANYEEERIBBRER
BEE AREE2,500,000,0007TH B i S WES
EEMEETHIESZ L ([MEHESHIE]) R HMNE
THIRE - & $£2,604,000,0000% 2 217 Al AR S I B
8T BERFI0F AR ALEERE BATAASE
EER LA I A EEAREEREBEAE -

BB

HK$'000

EBETT
At 1 January 2015 20151 H1H -
Granted due to business combination at a provisional amount NEBEHRLCEESTE 1,975,804
Re-measurement on the provisional amount REEESHEMENT= (861,134)
Exchange difference EHER (108,286)
At 31 December 2015 20155124318 1,006,384
Adjustment! ! (983,861)
Exchange difference EHER (22,523)

At 31 December 2016

2016512 A31H =

Note:

ML -
1. RAE BRHIRERTOERERE Al ASEEN

1. During the year, provision for impairment of properties under development has been
provided. Accordingly, the Group has reassessed its tax position of certain properties
in the PRC as at 31 December 2016 which resulted a decrease in deferred tax

liabilities and correspondingly, resulted an adjustment to the tax indemnification asset.
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43. Notes to the consolidated statement of cash flows
Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net cash outflow from operations

is shown as below:

BR B AT A

43. IREHKRERME

i
a7\ REFRERRNT

- 206

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥TT BT T

(Loss)/profit before taxation from continuing ~ FFELE S 2 Fial (F8) afl

operations (4,273,460) 2,517,816
Profit before taxation from discontinued EARIE A 575 2 B AT A

operation 218,300 67,794
Less: Share of loss of an associated Company & : &1l < B & A A& 18 52,015 -
(Loss)/profit before taxation BREL AT (B18), 5l (4,003,145) 2,585,610
Gains on bargain purchase EAE e - (2,320,579)
Gain on debt extinguishment B I8 P E A 2 e - (117,557)
Loss on redemption of convertible bonds f& [l AT AR (E 25 2 B 18 129,976 -
Amortisation of intangible assets B ES 19,578 12,195
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #7% - #2E R R B M EE T 2 T E

and leasehold land 85,285 72,552
Fair value loss/(gain) on investment properties &R & ¥E A AEEE, (Uz) 883,925 (191,465)
Fair value (gain)/loss on convertible bond AR ESITEIL D 2

derivative ARE (W) BB (194,168) 6,987
Net finance costs BhE PR A 53R 145,133 119,464
Net (gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEME HWERBEREET 2

plant and equipment and leasehold land (Mz) /B8R (169) 817
(Gain)/loss on disposal of a subsidiary HEMBARZ (W), EE (185,915) 2,257
Provision for long service payment liabilities KRG € B ERE 273 258
Share-based compensation VAR AR 7 20t 2 w8 69 957
Change in ownership interest in R—REAREEZ R

a subsidiary without loss of control MEARZ EAERES 183 =
Adjustment for tax indemnification asset FETIEREEE 983,861 =
Provision for impairment of goodwill R ER A 23,249 -
Provision for impairment of properties ERERPYERERE

under development 1,924,025 -
Provision for impairment of amount due JE Ui — FEIES & A RIIR R R IE 2

from a shareholder of an associate B 156,044 =
Provision for impairment of amount due FEUL — R & A B SKIB 2 BB R

from an associate 11,179 -
Operating (loss)/profit before working EEESEIR 2

capital changes K (F18) af (20,617) 171,496
Increase in properties under development TR R YL N (96,003) (661,536)
Increase in stocks and contracting Rz T2 AN

work-in-progress (310,088) (493,525)
Increase in receivables and prepayments JREE L B TR R TR < 3 A0 (418,762) (286,657)
Decrease in amounts due from FEU SE1% AR A 2 R IER

non-controlling interests 1,873 2,867
Increase in payables and accruals FETBRZR & FE 5T & FRE N 532,797 1,133,853
Net cash outflow from operations K 2 B FRE (310,800) (133,502)
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44, BEREEH
R2017F2 168 AEBE B EBEB65%MERN —
M BARI L ESE W WEEAREEETHE
AR Z100%F% 1 - 1B &7%8 % 150,000,0007T © 5% i
EFTENAREBEMARTA

44. Event after the reporting period
On 16 February 2017, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with its 65%-owned subsidiary to dispose of 100% equity
interests of certain subsidiaries of the Group at a consideration of HK$150
million. Completion of the disposal has not been taken place as at the date
of this announcement.

45. Balance Sheet and Reserve Movement of the 45. ZAFIZEEABGERERED
Company

(a) Balance Sheet (a) BEEBER
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
B¥TT ST T
Non-current assets ERBDEE
Property, plant and equipment and Y3 - HeS R AR RAEE i
leasehold land 16,488 12,122
Intangible assets | B E 148 2,377
Investment in subsidiaries WEBARIKRE 772,007 2,177,149
Loans to subsidiaries BERTHEA T 1,232,940 828,000
Deferred tax assets RIETRIBE E 3,586 3,586
2,025,169 3,023,234
Current assets TE) &
Loan to subsidiaries BERTFHE AR - 321,940
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U BT B8 A R FRIE 16,379,922 14,246,171
Receivables and prepayments JEWRR RTER & 65,303 40,706
Cash and cash equivalents ReRERFEER 745 257,212
16,445,970 14,866,029
Current liabilities mEAE
Bank loans RITER (1,010,000) (915,000)
Other borrowings HEiEE (1,267,928) =
Convertible bonds AR (E (44,696) (544,199)
Payables and accruals FERERR KR FEET & A (105,800) (74,585)
Loan from a subsidiary RE—MEHB AR ZER (315,000) (180,000)
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE BT B8 A R FRIB (2,659,783) (2,193,207)
Financial derivative liability CRSTETHAR (183) (206,412)
(5,403,390) (4,113,403)
Net current assets REEERE 11,042,580 10,752,626
Total assets less current liabilities HEERTEAR 13,067,749 13,775,860
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45. Balance Sheet and Reserve Movement of the 45 FAFIZHEAERRERED »
Company (continued)

(a) Balance Sheet (continued) (a) BEERREF (B

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT ok i

Non-current liabilities ERBAR
Loan from a subsidiary RKE—MEHNEBRRZER = (196,000)
Senior notes BERIE (3,417,715) (2,275,504)
Long service payment liabilities RERGEBE (274) (307)
Total non-current liabilities EF =R f 1y (3,417,989) (2,471,811)
Net assets BEERE 9,649,760 11,304,049

Equity Ba

Capital and reserves attributable to the ZFATFERIFBAELEER GH
Company'’s equity holders

Share capital N 1,141,084 1,084,335

Other reserves H i 10,264,952 10,048,945

Retained (losses)/profits RE (B1E), & (1,756,276) 170,769

Proposed dividends AR 2 - -

Total equity EamEt 9,649,760 11,304,049

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of Directors BEER2017F4A18BERRRIZEEGERT

on 18 April 2017 and was signed on its behalf. HTIEERRES-
Joseph CHOI Kin Hung & {#318 Wilfred WU Shek Chun B} fEE

Executive Director and Co-Chief Executive Officer #177E F# B /E7TIA#4&,  Executive Director and Chief Risk Officer $77Z F# B /Z AR E
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45. FAFIZRERARERFEMED ()

45. Balance Sheet and Reserve Movement of the
Company (continued)

(b) Reserve Movement (b) FFEEE
Convertible
Capital Share bonds and
Share redemption options Special warrants Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve  equity reserve profits Total
TRERSR
HEkEE
BYER BREIMEEE  DREEE WG RatkE REARMN #E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT AETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
At 1 lanuary 2015 H201551818 2383224 4420 17,669 332,046 11,683 08130 3457172
Loss for the year AEEER - - - - - (226,674) (226,674)
Other comprehensive income Hip2ElE
Actuarial loss on retirement benefit BINERETZRERR
obligations - - - - - (80) (80)
Total comprehensive income 2ENREE - - - - - (226,754) (226,754)
Issue of new placing shares BOMRERR 1,266,746 = = = = = 1,266,746
Issue of rights shares BTHRRRG 756,029 = = = = = 756,029
Issue of convertible preference shares BOUERELR 5,032,747 - - - - - 5,032,747
Unissued consideration shares FEITRERS - - - 256,670 - = 256,670
Transfer upon warrants lapsing INRIHEE K R - - - = (11,683) 11,683 =
Transfer upon share options lapsing NI TRICES - - (606) - - 606 -
Dividends paid BfIRE - - - - - (322,89) (322,89)
7,055,522 - (606) 256,670 (11,683) (310,607) 6,989,296
At 31 December 2015 120158128318 9,438,746 4420 17,063 588,716 - 170,769 10,219,714
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - - (1,923,566) (1,923,566)
Other comprehensive income Hip2EKE
Actuarial gain on retirement benefit RNERIEE BB
obligations - - - - - ;3 ;3
Total comprehensive income 2ENREE - - - - - (1,923,523) (1,923523)
Issue of new placing shares BIHEERR - - - - - - -
Issue of rights shares BTHRRN - - - - - - -
Issue of consideration preference shares  Z{TREE LK 446,702 = = (256,670) = - 190,032
Issue of shares upon conversion of RERARREREETRG
convertible bonds 18,654 - - - - - 18,654
Recognition of equity componentupon ~ EATAT AR EH R
issuance of convertible bonds T an - - - - 9,874 - 9,874
Cancellation on repurchase of shares BRI R - 1,444 - - - (7,583) (6,139)
Transfer upon warrants lapsing RRREE KRR ER - - - - - - -
Transfer upon share options lapsing BRI XL B - - (4,061) - - 4,061 =
Equity settled share-based transactions MR AR 2 RIEEER S - - 64 - - - 64
Dividends paid BfIRE - - - - - - -
465,356 1,444 (3,997) (256,670) 9,874 (3,522) 212,485
At 31 December 2016 120164128318 9,904,102 5,864 13,066 332,046 9,874 (1,756,276) 8,508,676
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45. Balance Sheet and Reserve Movement of the

Company (continued)
(b) Reserve Movement (continued)

45. FAFIZRERARRREMED ()

(b) GEHEE (&)

Convertible
Capital Share bonds and
Share redemption options Special warrants Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve  equity reserve profits Total
TRERSR
RkEE
BRYER BRIREOGEE  DRERE Rl EREHE RERH &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETTT BETT BETT BT BETT BETTT BETTT
Reserves f#E 9,438,746 4420 17,063 588,716 - 170,769 10,219,714
Final dividend proposed in respect of BEEZ2015812A31A1
the year ended 31 December 2015 FELRERE - - - - - - -
At 31 December 2015 120158128318 9,438,746 4420 17,003 588,716 - 170,769 10,219,714
Representing: &
Reserves M 9,904,102 5,864 13,066 332,046 9,874 (1,756,276) 8,508,676
Final dividend proposed in respect of BEEZ2016F12A310 1
the year ended 31 December 2016 FEZRHRE - - - - - - -
At 31 December 2016 120168124318 9,904,102 5,864 13,066 332,046 9,874 (1,756,276) 8,508,676
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46. Principal subsidiaries

46. TEMRE LT

Place of .
incorporation/ The Group's effective
registration/ percentage of interest held by Issued and
Company operation the Company ~ Subsidiaries paid up capital  Principal activities
NG| R/ i EEE FREARRERERESL ERTRMERF FERE
F48 HEAE
Beijing Zhong Ji Xin He Real Estate Co., Ltd.* The People’s Republic of - 100% US$40,000,000  Property investment
(Notes 2 & 4) China 40,000000%XT  MERE
ARPEEHNEXFERARA (HE2R4) hEARLME
Cogent Spring Limited (Note 5) Hong Kong - 100% HK$85,000,002  Property investment
(Bit3Es) BB A85000002  MERE
Datawin Trading Limited* (Note 4) British Virgin Islands - 100% US$100,000  Investment holding
EBHESHERAF* (M) EBRAAE 10000071 RAER
Ever Apex Construction (Macau) Company Macau - 100% MOP25,000  Registered contractor services
_ Limited (Notes 1 & 5) AP RFIEs 000 EfEERERS
KEREE (RPT) BRAR (M1 R5)
Far Capital Limited (Note 4) Hong Kong - 100% HK$1 Investment holding
ERERAE (M) ) BT REAER
HCCG Building and Civil Engineering (Macau) Macau - 100% MOP25,000  Building construction and civil
_ Limited (Note 5) i SBPF9#25,0007T engineering
MERERTATIR (RM)ERAR (Miz5) BFRERTATIRE
Hsin Chong Aster Building Services Limited Hong Kong - 100% HK$5,000,000  Mechanical, electrical and
_(Note 5) \ B 5 000,0007C building services
MEBHERFREBRAR (MiFHs) KEIRERETRME
ﬂsin Chong Construction (Asia) Limited (Note 5)  Hong Kong - 100% Ordinary:  Building construction and civil
MEEER (TM)ERAR (M) B HK$70,002,000 engineering
Non-voting deferred: ~ BFEERTATRE
HK$10,000,000
EAR:
770,002,000
BRRRE
B -
75110,000,0007T
Hsin Chong Construction (BVI) Ltd. British Virgin Islands 100% - HK$150,000 Investment holding
((N%te 5)) RBRARE AEI50000T  REER
Fit&Es
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46. Principal subsidiaries (continued)

46. FEMBLT (&)

212

Place of
incorporation/ The Group.'s effective
registration/ percentage of interest held by Issued and
Company operation the Company ~ Subsidiaries paid up capital  Principal activities
28 BRI/ SR FREMGRREREAL BRTRAEKRE IERB
7 LA
Hsin Chong Construction Company Limited Hong Kong - 100% Ordinary:  Building construction and civil
(Note 5) B HK$85,002,000 engineering
HEBERERAT (Fizs) Non-voting deferred: ~ BFRER LRI
HK$20,000,000
BB
751%:85,002,0007
BRZE
EERD
7%20,000,00070
Hsin Chong Construction Company Limited* The People's Republic of - 100% RMB172,653,600  Building construction and civil
(Notes 1,2 &5) China AR H172,653,6007C engineering
MEEERERR AR (M1 2k5) hEARAAE EFRERTIATIR
Hsin Chong Construction (Macau) Limited Hong Kong - 100% HK$2  Construction management
MagE (RF)BRAT ) BT services
BEEERG
Hsin Chong Construction Management Hong Kong — 100% HK$1,000,000  Construction management
Services Limited (Note 5) BE 75%1,000,0007T services
MEEEERRBEABR AR (F5) B ER IR
Hsin Chong Engineering (Macau) Limited Macau - 100% MOP25,000  Construction management
(Notes 1 & 5) i R P9#25,0007T services
METR (RF)ARAR (ME1RS) BEEERG
Hsin Chong Holdings (China) Limited* The People’s Republic of - 100% US$139,468,979  Investment holding
MEER (hE)ERARF China 139468979% T HRAHEK
hEARLME
Hsin Chong Property Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands 100% - US$227,355,000  Investment holding
(Notes 4 & 5) EBRIES 22735500057 REAER
MEMERRER AR (faks)
Hsin Chong Property Development Limited Hong Kong = 100% US$2,502,191  Provision of investment
MENELRERAR ) 2,502,1913 T and asset management
consultancy services
REREREEERER
R
L&X Investment Industrial Limited (Notes 1 & 4)  British Virgin Isalands 65% - US$32,500  Investment holding
BEREEXERRAGF (F154) RBRAAE 32500k REER
Liaoning Huisheng Property Investment Limited*  The People’s Republic of - 100% US$150,695,000  Real estate development
(Notes 1 &2) China 150,695,000%T EHELRE

BEEEXEEERAA (F1Kk2)

*  For identification purpose only

hEARLNE

* EHBES
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46. Principal subsidiaries (continued) 46. EEMEB AT (&)

Place of
incorporation/ The Group's effective
registration/ percentage of interest held by Issued and
Company operation the Company ~ Subsidiaries paid up capital  Principal activities
N i/l EEh FEEFRGRREREAL BRTRAERF IERE
AR5 HELR
Liaoning Tongji Property Investment Limited* The People’s Republic of - 100% US$211,149,960  Real estate development

(Notes 1 &2) China 211,149960% T EHEER

REREEXER AR (f15k2) hEARARNE

Renowned Brand Qutlet Store (China) Hong Kong - 100% HK$47,700  Real estate development
Limited (Note 4) 0 BT I00T  FHEER

RERAMRINE (P E)
BRAR (Miza)

Renowned Brand Outlet Store Investment Hong Kong - 100% HK$51,000  Real estate development
Limited (Note 4) B i AR50  FHERR

REHREBRTEREBRAR (M)

Renowned Brand QOutlet Store Properties Hong Kong - 100% HK$51,000  Real estate development

Limited (Note 4) B
RERNEETNEEXERAR (FizH)

BE51000r  BHERE

Renowned Outlet Store Asia Limited (Note 4) Hong Kong - 100% _ HK$49,000  Real estate development
RSN BR A A (M) ) B0 FHEERE
Rosy China Investments Limited British Virgin Islands - 100% US$1 Investment holding
(Notes 18 5) (FzE11%5) EBRAES 1R REER
Rife Yard Limited (Note 5) Hong Kong - 100% HK$1,000  Real estate development
(Hf7E5) B BE1000T  BHERR
Sight Star Limited (Note 4) Hong Kong - 100% HK$1  Investment holding
ERERAR (M) 0 BT RESR
Smart Lane Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands 100% - US$1  Investment holding
ERRUHS 1E=r REER
Sorano Investments Limited British Virgin Islands - 100% US$1 Investment holding
(Notes 18 5) (FfE11%5) EBRIES 1R REZR
Wisdom Top International Limited Hong Kong - 100% HK$1,000,000  Property Investment
BEERERAH & 1,000 MERE
RERGTEZERERAR The People's Republic of = 100% 1US$40,000,000  Real estate development
(Notes 1,2 &4) (FifzE1 ~ 2]%4) China 400000007  FHEZR
EARKA
ERBAEZERAR The People’s Republic of = 100% US$40,000,000  Real estate development
(Notes 1 &2) (P71 &2) China 40,000000X FEHEZR
HREAR LA

*  For identification purpose only

*EHRES
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46. Principal subsidiaries (continued)

46. EEMBAT (5)

Place of , )
incorporation/ The Group s effective
registration/ percentage of interest held by Issued and
Company operation the Company ~ Subsidiaries paid up capital  Principal activities
48 R/ i e s FSARKERERTSL EROTRMERT FERH
YN HELF
EREEEXERAA The People’s Republic of 100% US$30,000,000  Real estate development
(Notes 1 &2) (FifE1%2) China 30000000X7T FHEER
hE ARAAE
ERSEEXERAT The People’s Republic of 100% US$10,000,000  Real estate development
(Notes 1 & 2) (FifaE1 522) China 10,000,000%7T FHEEE
HEEARER
BRAERNMEERERAR The People's Republic of 100% US$61,039,300  Real estate development
(Notes 1&2) (FifE1%2) China 61039300%T FHEER
HEARLR
SEHE (F%)E%XERAF (Notes18&2)  The People’s Republic of 100% US$42,000,000  Real estate development
(BT R2) China 42000000%T FHEER
HEARLNE
KEEAEZBRAF (Notes 1,2 &3) The People’s Republic of 64.3% RMB390,317,009  Real estate development
(Figsk1 - 2R3) China ARH390317,000t  FHEZE
HE AR KA

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the opinion of
the directors, principally affected the results or assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

Notes:

AwWN o

Companies not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers

A wholly foreign owned enterprise

A company controlled by the Group through a non-wholly owned subsidiary

Equity of these subsidiaries are pledged as collateral for the Group's banking facilities

and other borrowings.

Equity of the intermediate holding companies of these subsidiaries are pledged as

collateral for the Group's banking facilities and other borrowings.
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ERINRZAEENBARIREERATERER
EERXENEECHBAR -EER R RHEAHEE
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B EE -
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3 HARER B FIFEEMBRARERZ AR
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IFNBEE

Year ended 31 December

HZ=12A31BLLFE
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT PE¥ETIT ¥ T PEEEF T PEEEFIT
(Restated)
(& =%1)
Operating Results BEXE
Revenue iz 9,823,216 12,585,256 14,010,505 11,505,979 8,810,112
(Loss)/profit before taxation BREiRT (E518) s A (4,273,460) 2,517,816 553,492 225,542 210,633
Taxation 1E 1,350,866 (99,213) (150,617) (32,127) (30,543)
(Loss)/profit from continuing FHEIRE R 2
operations (E518) %= F) (2,922,594) 2,418,603 402,875 193,415 180,090
Profit from discontinued operation 2 4% [ 4% & 3£ 7% 2 33 A 24,493 55,487 = = =
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — i B2 7z s 185,915 = = = =
Non-controlling interests FEFERR M 2R (21,314) (28,253) (15,317) (8,013) (82)
(Loss)/profit attributable to equity AR FEmIFE A
holders of the Company e (E518) /% F) (2,733,500) 2,445,837 387,558 185,402 180,008
Assets and Liabilities HSERAR
Total assets wEE 33,437,635 36,341,951 13,193,323 11,143,153 7,210,745
Total liabilities BEE (22,330,960) (21,794,580)  (8,534,873)  (6,901,401)  (5,057,147)
11,106,675 14,547,371 4,658,450 4,241,752 2,153,598
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o
MAJOR PROJECTS IN-PROGRESS BRETHRZERIRE
Group’s Commencement Anticipated

Description Interest Date Completion Date Client/Ultimate Employer

x5KE

ITEATE FrikEa BIAH BB T A EF B¥REE

BUILDING CONSTRUCTION

BFEiE

Construction of Public Rental Housing Development 100% December 2013 August 2017 Hong Kong Housing Authority
at Tung Chung Area 56 20134124 2017484 EAREZES

RAFEeR AERERABZETR

Proposed Residential Development at Kowloon Inland Lot No. 11227 100% January 2015 August 2017 Classic Gold Holdings Limited
J/O Sheung Lok Street and Sheung Shing Street, Ho Man Tin, Kowloon 2015514 201748 A

NEENMERSE1122755% - I X A B L HFEE R AREET
#RIAH

M+ Main Works Contract Including RDE Building (P39B), 100%  September 2015 January 2019 West Kowloon Cultural District
Interfacing Car Parking and Sewage Pumping Station at West Kowloon 2015498 2019414 Authority
Cultural District * BAXLEEER

BEAANXIEEZM+EZTIREH BEZE.

B E KHE(P39B) * (R EEI5 RIS K TRk +

Proposed Office Complex at Lam Lee Street, Kowloon Bay, 100%  November 2015 July 2017 Star Wing International Limited
N.K.I.L. No 6312, Hong Kong 20154F11 4 2017474

BB EANMERE63125% - N BEBAERENRAGEE

Main Contract for The Hong Kong Ocean Park Marriott Hotel 100% May 2016 October 2017 Capital Court Limited
at Ocean Park, Hong Kong 2016%F5 A 20174F10A8 BEARAH

B AEBERAENEESHIR

Design and Construction of Kowloon East Regional Headquarters and 65% May 2016 July 2019 Architectural Services Department
Operational Base cum Ngau Tau Kok Divisional Police Station 201645 A 201947 A BEE
at 105 Concorde Road, Kai Tak*

= FAE 10558 R AR 4B [ 48 3D K
TBEMELSEASREENERGTRESIAR *

CDSJ and USJ Green Campus in Ilha Verde* 100%  April 2013 March 2017 Fundacao Catolica de Ensino

EEBASNHE FEgE TR 2013F4A 201743 A Superior Universitario

REHEGABESZHELES

Upgarde of Macao Peninsula 45%  February 2014 December 2016 CESL Asia—Investments &

Waste Water Treatment Plant* 20142 A 20165124 Services, Limited

RPN B KRR E TR Bt E R AR AR

Link Bridge of Galaxy Macau Lot 1 Phase 2 to Grand Waldo 100%  August 2014 March 2015 Perfect Assets Real Estate Limited
LBO0O8 Main Contract for Link Bridge™ 20148 A 201543 A ARBXARAA

SRR BRI b B 1 (55280) 1 #DIh ER
TARBZ BHZTR"

Lisboa Palace, Macau 100%  November 2015 July 2018 Cotai Magnific View-Property
COT/DSC1012-4 Reinforced Concrete Works 2015 11A4 2018574 Development Company Limited
(Excluding Reinforced Concrete Works Below Tower) and General BEBEEBRERMERAR
Builder's Works for Podium (G/F to Podium Roof) (West Portion)

AR CRMEERRLIABREBEIR

Sportland, Henggin 100% June 2015 December 2018 SREE BRI A B IR A A

BEEERE 2015467 20184123
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MAJOR PROJECTS IN-PROGRESS (continued)

BRETRZEEIR ()

Group’s Commencement Anticipated
Description Interest Date Completion Date Client/UItimate Employer
FKRME
IEAZE FritiEz: FRIAM AR T A EF BREE
CIVIL ENGINEERING WORKS
TARIE
Elevated Road along LOHAS Park Road and the Pedestrian Footbridge FB1 100%  August 2016 Novemeber 2018 MTR Corporation Limited
BEUREE S ARBEAR RAT AR L2 2016%F8 8 20184114 BRHBEARAR
Construction of MTR Express Rail Link Contract 810B, 22.5% January 2011 February 2018 MTR Corporation Limited
West Kowloon Terminus Station South 20114F1 A 201842 A BERHBRAERAR
7 8 R R = IR BR & 498 10BPE NLBE 4R uh () & T 72
Sewerage in Kau Lung Hang San Wai, 60% June 2012 May 2017 Drainage Services Department
Kau Lung Hang Lo Wai and Tai Hang 201246 A 20174F5 4 RIBE
NEHE  WERZEERFZTKKERSR
Shatin to Central Link, Sung Wong Toi and To Kwa Wan Stations and 40%  August 2012 September 2018 MTR Corporation Limited
Tunnels, Contract 1109 201248A 20184F9 8 EFEHBAERAA
PHERRE NEBREEREBBTIRE (S4M/%1109)
Lam Tsuen Valley Sewerage — Village Sewerage, Stage 2, Phase 2 57%  October 2012 May 2017 Drainage Services Department
M AT KSR Rt — 5 KRR E — BB ADS KIER Rt 20124F10A4 2017451 REE
ELS and Foundation Works for Office Development 100% July 2015 December 2016 New World Construction
at 704 — 730 King's Road* 2015474 20165124 Management Company Limited
HEE704— 7305 M EANEEEHE B A TR S EEEE AR AR
Site Formation and Infrastructural Works near Tong Hang Road and 57%  November 2015 May 2019 Civil Engineering and
Tsz Tin Road in Area 54 Tuen Mun 20154114 2019454 Development Department
AP EsAR T ET R KRN L TR RERETRE THIRAREE
Pipe Pile Works and Temporary Site Access for The Residential 100%  August 2016 January 2017* Henderson Land Development
Development at TMTL No.500 Kwun Chui Road, Tuen Mun 201648 A 201741 A" Company Limited
AP ERE R EPIT R FE5005 X EAEEE R BEKFMERRAR
AR ERAT H A D T2
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICE
BERAERE
Venetian Macau Capital Works (A&A) Projects — Sands* 100% May 2011 December 2016 Venetian Macau Limited
BERT AR Y - I Kk Tie* 20114F58 201657128 BUEHT NRPIRD B IR R
Venetian Macau Capital Works (A&A) Projects—Parcel 18&2* 100%  April 2011 December 2016 Venetian Cotai Limited
BEHT ARkt — /= - hnsE Rk T2+ 201144 A 20165124 BLJE HT A BE KRR 1D B PR A 7]
Venetian Cotai Parcel 3* 100%  August 2012 September 2016 Venetian Cotai Limited
BB AR it R = 20124F8 8 20164F9A BUEHT A B S BN B IR A R
Sands Cotai Central Capital Works (A&A) Projects —Parcel 5&6* 100%  August 2012 December 2016 Venetian Orient Limited
BEHT ARkt A, N @A L - IR KRB T2t 20124F8 A 2016%F124 RABEHABRAR
Venetian Cotai Parcel 5, Sands Cotai Central — Tower 5B (Resumption)* 100%  October 2013 June 2016 Venetian Orient Limited
BURHT AR k3R T - SBIE LT 20134108 201656 7 RO BB ARRAR
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MAJOR PROJECTS IN-PROGRESS (continued)

BERETPZEETE &)

Group’s Commencement Anticipated
Description Interest Date Completion Date Client/Ultimate Employer
KM
ITEAZE FiisfE FMIBH RHART A EFR B#REE
ELECTRICAL AND MECHANICAL
BEIR
Sub-Contract for the Supply and Installation of the Electrical 100%  September 2015 January 2019 West Kowloon Cultural District
(inclusive of ELV) Air-Conditioning, Fire Services, Plumbing and 2015994 20194F1 A Authority
Water Supply Systems,(inclusive of Town Gas Installation) BAXEEEERER
for M+ Museum (Building Contract Number CC/2015/3A/022)*
M+EYIEE (LA LR 57 CC/2015/3A022)2 BR
(BEEEBERSR) =6 EKERERKER
(BEERRE)RE
Infrastructure Main Contract Works for Commerical Development 100% May 2015 February 2017 Hang Seng Bank Limited
at 113-115 Argyle Street, Mongkok, Kowloon, Hong Kong* 2015458 201742 A EAERITERAF]
HADEZEHIS-NEEERER 2 EEZEARBTE:
Supply and Install of the Building Services and Electrical & Mechanical 100% July 2016 June 2019 Architectural Services Department
Installation for the Main Contract for Design & Construction of 2016571 201946 A BEE
Kowloon East Regional Headquarters and Operational Base Cum Ngau
Tau Kok Divisional Police Station at 105 Concorde Road,
Kai Tak (Programme No. 237 LP)*
BB FAE 105 RN AR A RTHEMESBADE
LERNERTREEFEGHZEFRBEER
REREBERE (JABRIR237LP) *
New World Centre Remodeling and Palace Mall Remodeling Project 100%  June 2014 February 2018 NWS Holdings Limited
(Package Code No. 100408B-1) Design, Supply and Installation of 20144F6 A 201842 A MEEEEARAR
H2 and H2 Podium MVAC —Podium Portion Nominated Sub-Contract
ERPLREYHOELIEE (4445 100408-1)
—H2RH2F &BRAZER Z Rt HERTRIEEDHERH
The Proposed Logistics Centre Development at 100%  December 2015 June 2017 Kongwell Logistics Limited
Tsing Vi Lot No.181, New Territories 20154124 201746 A B A R AR
— MVAC, Electrical and Fire Services Installation
MABTRMHER181SEEEYRF O 2 BRAZEH  EREEN ZRTE
Proposed Retail and Hotel Development at Tung Chung Town Lot 2 & 100% December 2016 March 2019 Newfoundworld Project
Lot 11 — HVAC Installation Contract No. C1105/N04 20165F12 A 201943 A4 Management Limited
RRRER —E R —BAEREEEREERE
—BRZERATESHEL
Central Police Station Conversion and Revitalisation Project 100% December 2012 September 2017 The Jockey Club CPS Limited
Works Contract for Plumbing and Drainage (Package 601), 2012124 201749 A BESEXYWREARAR
MVAC (603) and FS (604) Installation
RIREERERHRA RALaT 8l — 45K (A 49601),
mEZE (A 49603) % HP 24t (& 49604)% 5
Air-conditioning and Ventilation Systems Term Maintenance Contract 100%  January 2017 December 2019 The Hong Kong Housing Authority
(Contract No.20169030) (Kowloon East, Wong Tai Sin, Tsing i, 201714 201912 A EBEEZE®

Tsuen Wan, Islands, Kwai Chung, Tuen Mun and Yuen Long Regions)
2017/2020 for Hong Kong Housing Authority Estates, Areas and
Buildings

2017,/ 2005 EESEEEE® (LR BEAI FX 28
BES 2B M RTEE) —E- Bt REFERAD R
BRRSERRES L (A H#R%20169030)
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MAJOR PROJECTS IN-PROGRESS (continued)

BRETRZEELIR ()

Group’s Commencement Anticipated
Description Interest Date Completion Date Client/UItimate Employer
FKRME
IERE Fiisia BIEM BME I AN BE RREE
ELECTRICAL AND MECHANICAL (continued)
BETE(E)
Air-Conditioning and Ventilation Systems Term Maintenance Contract 100% July 2014 June 2017 The Hong Kong Housing Authority
(Contract No. 20139012) (Kowloon West, Hong Kong, Tai Po, North, 201447 A 201746 A BEEEEZEE
Shatin, and Sai Kung Regions) 2014/2017 for Hong Kong Housing
Authority Estates, Areas and Buildings
2014, 2017F EEBEEZEGE NEWRHH REFTHZERFALH K
BAZRSTEHRESLH (ARHFH20139012) (LER ES -
AR dbe - DHERAERE)
Proposed Office Development at No.14-30, King Wah Road, 100%  September 2014 April 2017 Henderson Land Development
North Point, HK — ACMV Installation Nominated Sub-Contract 2014597 20174547 Company Limited
b AREE 1430 FER TR ERIER BEKFMERR AR
—ZEFBEAIETE R HED
Electrical and ELV Installation Works Contract 100% March 2016 January 2018 Cheer Regal Limited
for the Proposed Hotel Development at Lot No. 1950 in DD221, 201643 A 201841 A BERERAA

Wai Man Road, Sai Kung, New Territories
PR ERIXDD22 131 B 55195058 fH2E /5 & RIA R
—BERREEEZRLEIER

* Part of the contract has been sub-contracted to group companies

BOBHEDHTEEARA

SEARFAHALEEERTZAHAKRE
* Awaiting PC certificate
FETITE
Actual Completion Date
BRETHEH

Sub-contract value being awarded by group companies or joint venture
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Approximate
Description Uses gross area

MEHi Ri& gneER

Status

kiR

Lease term

F1

Percentage of
Group's interest
EREFRE
EREst

Properties Held for Investment/Own Use/Sale as at 31 December 2016

R2016E12A31AZRE BRHEWE

Hsin Chong Center Office 107,000
107-109 Wai Yip Street, [l
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong

MEFR L
EENEBREEERE072109%

Carparks in Lung Mun Oasis Carpark 47 carparks
43 Lung Mun Road, By 4718 s AL
Tuen Mun, New Territories, Hong Kong

BEME 2B
BB PTREPI 84357

Basement Level 1 & Level 1t0 6 Commercial 38,214 @
New Times Plaza [SES
No. 25 Maliandao Road,
Xicheng District,
Beijing,
People’s Republic of China
R B E TR T R I [ S A B 2 59R
MEEEYPL
WE—E R F—BENE

Level 7 to 15 Office/ 12,115 @
New Times Plaza Residential
No. 25 Maliandao Road, BA/EE
Xicheng District,
Beijing,
People’s Republic of China
B 4L R PRI S B IR 255
MEEBYHO
+tEETRE
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Head Office

B

For Sale

urf S

Rental

HE

For Sale

HE

Medium
H HA

Medium

o8

Medium

h

Medium
i H7

100%

100%

100%

100%



opili

Approximate Percentage of
Description Uses gross area Status Lease term  Group's interest
EREML
LV 3= 30 B& BHRmR iR FH ERast
Properties Held for Investment/Own Use/Sale as at 31 December 2016 (continued)
#2016 12A31AZ 8RR 'BA, HEME (W)
Basement Level 2 and 3 Carpark 328 carparks Rental Medium 100%
New Times Plaza By 3281AE HE H
No. 25 Maliandao Road,
Xicheng District,
Beijing,
People’s Republic of China
EE R I R S i B BR 255
MEZEBEDT O
ME—ERIE=E
No. 33 Lubao Avenue Commercial 99,000 @ Renovation Medium 100%
Lubao County, [HES planning work H R
Shanshui District, in progress
Foshan, Guangdong Province, EBREETP
People’s Republic of China
FEIERE LT =KRESE
BB RE33%
Commercial Podium Level 1 to 3 Commercial 11,526 @ For sale, Medium 100%
Tian Cheng Ming Yuan GES in the meantime, H
Nos. 111-119 Shipai Xi Road, looking at
Tianhe District, the possibility of
Guangzhou, Guangdong Province, generating revenue
People’s Republic of China through
B R R A B T AR [ A RE A BE 11111958 short term lease
AERAR—EZE=E HE  RRFESK
BRENEEREE
s 2 T e
Basement Level 1 and 2 Carpark 325 carparks For sale, Medium 100%
Tian Cheng Ming Yuan B 325fEfz in the meantime, H
Nos. 111-119 Shipai Xi Road, looking at

Tianhe District,

Guangzhou, Guangdong Province,

People’s Republic of China
RIS BN KT B R E B 111-1195%

RERWE—ERIME=E

the possibility of
generating revenue
through

short term lease
e FESK
BREBHEES
Weas 2 AT EEE
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Estimated

Approximate Percentage of Year of
Description Uses gross area Status Lease term  Group's interest Completion
HREFRG
o F 12311 A& #ineER kiR 8 EERESL FEERFH
Properties Under Development as at 31 December 2016
R2016F12A3 1A Z B R ME
South of Ganjiang Road, Residential 380,000 @ Construction Medium and 100% 2016 to 2017
west of National Highway 102, = and Design long 20165 220174
Dafanhe Village and Xintun Village, in Progress F HA ] =
Fanhe Town, BER
Tieling County, R
Liaoning Province,
People's Republic of China Ground Floor 6,000 @ Construction Medium and 100% 2016 to 2017
REEEEEEGN TR Retails and Design long 2016F E20175F
AN R Fr 1028338 T E in Progress FER R
JA 7R 88T B LA Ra P 3 £ 5 TEHH BiER
REHETH
Commercial 215,000 @ Construction Medium and 100% 2016 to 2017
LS and Design long 2016F £20175
in Progress H HA ] =
BER
RATETH
Residential/ 1,417,000 © Master Medium and 100% N/A
Commerdial Plan in Progress long TER
TE/ % Rl RERRE
T
Ninty-nine Gang Residential 204,400 @ Construction Long 100% 2016 t0 2017
Dushu Gang Villager Committee, = and Design =3 2016F 220175
Lubao County, in Progress
Sanshui District, BER
Foshan City, R
Guangdong Province,
People's Republic of China Residential/ 1,602,000 @ Master Medium and 100% N/A
FEEREHLT=KE Commercial Plan in Progress long TEA
EHEBHENZENA TN /% Rl RERRE
T
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opili

Estimated

Approximate Percentage of Year of

Description Uses gross area Status Lease term  Group's interest Completion
FREFRG

MEEd B #ineER iR FH ERFS B ERFR

Properties Under Development as at 31 December 2016 (continued)

R2016F12A3 1A ZREFME (8)

Jiali Commercial Plaza Commercial 274,977%  Construction and Long 100% 2017 0 2018
South of the middle section of Yitianmen [HES Design in Progress R 20175 £20185
Street, B REE
Hi-Tech Industrial Development Zone, ETH
Tai'an City,

Shandong Province,
People’s Republic of China

RELRERZ TR RINEXRER
—RPIAEH AR

Southern side of Har River, Commercial 328,100 @ Master Plan Medium 64.3% N/A
Northern side of Binhe Road, [EES in Progress R TEA
Central Business District, R EETH
Binhai New District,

Tianjin,

People’s Republic of China
HREIRETE SR O EBE
BN BE AL 8 LA
o Gross floor area of square feet 2 1EE E & (FHR)

@ Gross floor area of square metres #2/EEIE & (F 5 K)

@ Gross site area of square metres 81 S8 E & (£ 77K)

HEREEBRAMRAT 2016F W 123—



/'\: E' ﬁ“ *SI_

Board of Directors
ERE

Audit Committee
EREAE

Remuneration Committee
HMERE

Nomination Committee
R

Executive Committee
RE

Company Secretary
ARG

Auditor
D

Financial Calendar

Announcement of interim results
Announcement of annual results
Annual General Meeting of 2017

- 224

LIN Zhuo Yan* (Non-executive Chairman
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Joseph CHOI Kin Hung (Executive Director and
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The Bank of East Asia, Limited

RERITERAF

The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporanon L|m|ted

BERELTEEHRITERA

Banco Nacional U\tramanno SA.
REFBITROBRA
Bank of China Limited Macau Branch
HEIRITRMHBRDRRPIDT
Bank of Commumcauons Co Ltd.

Kong Branch o
xi@ TIRMHABERDBEEDT
China Everbright Bank Company Limited,

Hong Kong Branch . i
FEERBITROBER AR EESTT
East West Bank
FERT
Hang Seng Bank, L|m|ted
BHRITARR
Industrial and Commeraal Bank of
China (Asia) Limited

TR TRERT (B ERA
Nanyang Commercial Bank, L|m|ted
Ehad] ﬁﬁﬁ@Aj
NOVO BANCO Asia, S
ﬁﬁﬁﬁwhﬁﬁﬁ
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co., Ltd.
Hong Kong Brand|
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Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton, HM 11
Bermuda

Hsin Chong Center

107-109 Wai Yip Street

Kwun Tong3 Kowloon, Hong Kong
=g

[EX%107-109%

MEFL

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HM08

Bermuda

Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewel\ Centre
183 Queen's Road East
Wan Chai, Hon
%’6‘43%4%@5%@

/
SR RER1835%
A7
1712-17165% 4

00404

2,000 shares
2,0008%

Year High HK$0.87
2FRm BH08TT
Year Low HK$0.25
2ERE BH0.25T

www.hsinchong.com

info@hcg.com.hk

20165F8 A24H
201754 418H
201796 A2H
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Hsin Chong Center

107-109 Wai Yip Street

Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Tel : (852) 2579 8238

Fax: (852) 2516 6596

Website : www.hsinchong.com
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FEHRH

ETEE 1 (852) 2579 8238
EH : (852) 2516 6596
#3E  www.hsinchong.com
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